
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

June 20, 2023 
 

Work Session – 5:00 pm 
Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
RYAN HUNTER 

JOHN P. NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON 
DEBBIE SWANSON 



 

DEPARTMENTAL 

REPORTS 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI FIRE DEPARTMENT 
222 South Ford Boulevard, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 

 

 

 

MONTHLY REPORT FOR MAY, 2023  

 
 
Fire Department staffing levels are as follows: 
 

1 Fire Chief  3 Shift Captains            16 Fire Fighters      
 1 Fire Marshal         3 Shift Lieutenants            1 Clerk III/Staff Support   
                                  
      
All fire department response personnel are licensed as Emergency Medical Technicians by the State 
of Michigan Public Health.  During the month, the fire department responded to requests 504 for 
assistance.  Of those requests, 315 were medical emergency service calls, with the remaining 189 
incidents classified as non-medical and/or fire related. 

 

Department activities for the month of May 2023: 

1) Smoke Alarms 
a)       

 

2) Fire fighters received training in the following areas: 
a) TRT Training 
b) Hazmat Training @Salem Township FD 

 

 

3)  Pub Education 
a) East Arbor Charter School 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 



 

 

Monthly Report – May 2023 
Page 2  

 

The Fire Marshal had these activities / events for the month of May 2023:  

1. Fire Investigations: 4 
2. Fire Investigations interview:  1 
3. Fire Investigations follow up: 7    
4. Building Inspections:  1 
5. Building Re-inspections:     
6. Plan Reviews: 6 
7. Hood / Fire Suppression Inspections: 4 
8. Meetings: 5 
9. Fire Alarm Inspections: 2  
10. Occupant Load Certificates:  1   
11. Burn Permit: 1 
12. Burn Complaints:     
13. Knox Box:  3 
14. Fire Department Site Tours:   
15. Training:  2 
16. Business/Community Engagement: 1     
17. Citizen Engagement:  3 
18. Safety Inspections:  1 
19. Addressing:  
20. Code Research: 3 
21. Fire Drill at Clark East Towers 
22. Attending the IAAI Arson Training in Lansing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
Monthly Report – May 2023 
Page 3 
 
 
The Fire Chief attended these meetings / events for the month of May 2023: 
 

1. WAAMA 
2. Fuel Reports 
3. Assisted a resident for a proper car seat fitting   
4. Met with Washtenaw County Resource re:  Station 3 Hewitt Road Drain 
5. Met with resident on Draper Ave adjoining to Station 3 re:  fence  
6. Met with James Hui, WCRC  re:  Obtaining a emergent Lane at the Michigan Ave/Hewitt 

Road closure 
7. Evaluation for new hires:  Williams & Bryant 
8. Zoom meeting re:  Whittaker & Bemis Road roundabout 
9. Attending the Emergency Communication 911 Kick off with WCSD 
10. Attending Washtenaw 100 Banquet 
11. Attending Auto Aid Meeting with Superior & Ypsilanti City Fire Chiefs 
12. Installation of the Ghost Bike 
13. Memorial Day Parade 
14. Responded to the Textile Road house fire 
15. Assist FM Wallgren re:  Condemning of the Citgo gas station on Holmes Road 
16. Collaboration with FM Wallgren re:  Children’s Healing Center @7400 Kalitta Drive  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There was 0 injuries and 0 deaths reported this month for civilians. 
There was 0 injuries and 0 deaths reported this month for fire fighters. 

 
 

 

 

 



 
Monthly Report – May 2023 
Page 4 
 

This month the total fire loss, including vehicle fires, is estimated at $913,250.00.  All occurred at the 
following locations: 

 DATE OF LOSS  ADDRESS   ESTIMATED LOSS 

1) 5/03/2023   1158 Fall River    $        6,000.00  (Building Fire) 
2) 5/06/2023   883 Grove Road  $          30,000.00  (Building Fire) 
3) 5/12/2023   2344 Ellsworth  $               500.00  (Cooking Fire) 
4) 5/14/2023   3375 E Michigan Ave $           1,250.00   (Cooking Fire) 
5) 5/15/2023   7390 Textile Road  $       650,000.00   (Building Fire) 
6) 5/17/2023   1158 Fall River  $       500.00  (Building Fire) 
7) 5/29/2023   1039 Parkwood  $       200,000.00   (Building Fire)  
8) 5/31/2023   1468 Village Lane  $           5,000.00   (Building Fire) 
9) 5/31/2023   Michigan Ave/S Mansfield $ 20,000.00   (Vehicle Fire)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Maria Batianis  
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department 

 

Attachment:  Image Trend Incident Type Report (Summary): 05/01/2023 – 05/31/2023 



Elite wamaa Incident Type Report (Summary) 2023  

Basic Incident Type Code And
Description (FD1.21)

Total
Incidents

Total Incidents Percent of
Incidents

Total
Property

Loss

Total Content
Loss

Total Loss Total Loss Percent
of Total

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 1 - Fire
111 - Building fire 6 1.19% 580500.00 311000.00 891500.00 97.62%
113 - Cooking fire, confined to container 2 0.40% 750.00 1000.00 1750.00 0.19%
131 - Passenger vehicle fire 1 0.20% 10000.00 10000.00 20000.00 2.19%
150 - Outside rubbish fire, other 1 0.20% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
154 - Dumpster or other outside trash
receptacle fire

4 0.79% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

 Total:  14 Total:  2.78% Total: 
591250.00

Total: 
322000.00

Total: 
913250.00

Total:  100.00%

Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 3 - Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident
300 - Rescue, EMS incident, other 4 0.79%     
311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 147 29.17%     
320 - Emergency medical service, other 39 7.74%     
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle
accident with injury

104 20.63%     

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 9 1.79%     
323 - Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident
(MV Ped)

1 0.20%     

324 - Motor vehicle accident with no
injuries.

8 1.59%     

353 - Removal of victim(s) from stalled
elevator

2 0.40%     

357 - Extrication of victim(s) from
machinery

1 0.20%     

 Total:  315 Total:  62.50% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%
Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 4 - Hazardous Condition (No Fire)
411 - Gasoline or other flammable liquid
spill

1 0.20%     

412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 1 0.20%     
424 - Carbon monoxide incident 2 0.40%     
440 - Electrical  wiring/equipment
problem, other

3 0.60%     

444 - Power line down 1 0.20%     
445 - Arcing, shorted electrical
equipment

3 0.60%     

461 - Building or structure weakened or
collapsed

2 0.40%     

463 - Vehicle accident, general cleanup 1 0.20%     
 Total:  14 Total:  2.78% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%
Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 5 - Service Call
500 - Service call, other 4 0.79%     
511 - Lock-out 1 0.20%     
531 - Smoke or odor removal 10 1.98%     
542 - Animal rescue 2 0.40%     
550 - Public service assistance, other 4 0.79%     
551 - Assist police or other governmental
agency

2 0.40%     

553 - Public service 2 0.40%     
554 - Assist invalid 6 1.19%     
561 - Unauthorized burning 5 0.99%     
 Total:  36 Total:  7.14% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%
Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 6 - Good Intent Call
600 - Good intent call, other 5 0.99%     
611 - Dispatched and cancelled en route 94 18.65%     
621 - Wrong location 1 0.20%     
622 - No incident found on arrival at
dispatch address

5 0.99%     

Printed On: 06/01/2023 11:18:10 AM1 of 2



Basic Incident Type Code And
Description (FD1.21)

Total
Incidents

Total Incidents Percent of
Incidents

Total
Property

Loss

Total Content
Loss

Total Loss Total Loss Percent
of Total

651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 3 0.60%     
 Total:  108 Total:  21.43% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%
Incident Type Category (FD1.21): 7 - False Alarm & False Call
700 - False alarm or false call, other 8 1.59%     
735 - Alarm system sounded due to
malfunction

1 0.20%     

740 - Unintentional transmission of
alarm, other

1 0.20%     

743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire -
unintentional

3 0.60%     

745 - Alarm system activation, no fire -
unintentional

3 0.60%     

746 - Carbon monoxide detector
activation, no CO

1 0.20%     

 Total:  17 Total:  3.37% Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00 Total:  0.00%
 Total:  504 Total:  100.00% Total: 

591250.00
Total: 

322000.00
Total: 

913250.00
Total:  100.00%

Printed On: 06/01/2023 11:18:10 AM2 of 2



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Jimmie Wilson Jr 

 
Date:   June  9, 2023 

To:   Clerk’s Office 

CC:   Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor 

From: Michael Saranen, Operation Manager 

      
Subject: Department Report (activities in May 2023)  

 

Activities: 

Ford Lake Dam (Hydro Station) 
 

General Operation Summary: 
The Hydro Station continues to operate safely and continues to get routine safety 
inspections and preventive maintenance. Operators had 0 after hour call-ins for the 
month.  

 
Average precipitation for the month of is around 3.72”, this year it was about .92”.  
 
Regulatory Notes 
 
The FERC is revamping the Commission’s Safety Program.  Due to recent events in 
California and Michigan, the FERC has implemented some changes to ensure projects 
are safe.  Deep dives into the engineering and technical backgrounds on dams have 
been eye opening.  Changes to documentation requirements, reevaluation of 
engineering calculation dating back 40+ years and other safety topics. For our Hydro 
Station, these FERC driven activities has required the Township to work on list of 
technical reviews, update plans and improve public safety.  This work is on-going and 
will not likely be complete for 2 to 3 years.  As the process progresses, additional 
work may be needed to be address the finding and to satisfy FERC. 

 
During this time of FERC review, the expenses are going to abnormally higher and will 
likely exceed the annual revenue the Hydro Station makes from DTE.  It is possible 
that additional funds will be needed to cover the expenses that are incurred. Staff is 
looking for grants to help with these tasks. 

 
 



 

Regulatory Status: 
  

For 2023- 
- DSSMR, Complete & Filed 
- Owners Dam Safety Program Review –  
- EAP annual update and test-  
- EAP First Responder Training- Complete 
- WQ Report – Started, collecting data 
- Nuisance Plant Plan Report – Started 
- Wildlife Plan Report –   
- Historical Activity Report –   
- Gate Certification –  
- Security Review –  
- FERC Security Inspection/Compliance-  
- FERC Annual Dam Safety Inspection – Complete 
- Annual DEQ Lake Operation Monitoring Report- Out for Review 
- Spillway Assessment Action Plan- Filed, addressing comments by FERC, Ongoing 
- Public Safety Plan Update-  
- Fish & Sediment Analysis - Planning 
 

Future Items: 
 

- Shoreline Restoration, Ford Lake Park 
- PMF Study for watershed 
- Part 12 Inspection - 2025 
- Shoreline Erosion Survey – 2025 
- Protective Relay testing – 2024 
- Emergency Gen Testing – 2025 
- Downstream Concrete repairs – 2025 
- Powerhouse windows and concrete repairs – 2025 
- EAP Exercise – 2024 
- EAP Rewrite - 2025 

 
 

Projects: 
 
Concrete Repairs- Out To Bid, Approved by the Board to go out to bid. Construction 
is now planned for summer 2023. Field inspection was conducted on 5/6/21, an 
assessment report was provided by Barr. Report outlines areas that need repairs 
within 5 to 10 years. 
 
Sluice Gate Stress Analysis- Out to Bid, the FERC has requested a detail study of the 
spillway gates. This is common industry request from FERC as they continuously look 
at safety involving dams. We are currently working with engineering to develop a 
procedure to complete this task. This task is planned for 2023. 
 



 

Powerhouse Service Power Upgrades- the high voltage cable from the house 
transformer to the transfer switch needs to be replaced due to inadequate sizing for 
the load. This is planned for 2023 during station down time. 
 
Turbine Inspections and Maintenance- Conduct cleaning, inspection and 
maintenance on turbine equipment and associated spaces. This is planned for 2023. 
 
Tailrace Safety Buoys- Install new buoys across the spillway. With the spillway gates 
being automated, additional safety precautions to prevent boats from getting to 
close when the gates open automatically. 
 
 
Operation Summary 

 
2023 May YTD 5 Year Ave. 

Precipitation total (inches)1 .92 13.95 39.1 
Days Online 30.8 150.6 359.6 

Generation MWH (estimated) 778.778 5,119.792 10,728.8 
Generation MWH lost (estimated)* 35.613 43.242 582.9 

    
After Hour Call In    

Water levels 0 6 39 
Mechanical/Electrical 0 1 4 

Other 0 1 2 

Totals 0 8 45 
 
 

Recent History 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 
Precipitation total 

(inches) 
42.2 45.4 41.4 40.0 26.37 

Days Online      364.2 350.6 359.7 360.0 363.5 
Generation MWH 

(estimated) 
10,635.0 12,576.7 10,722.7 10,524.5 9,185.151 

Generation MWH lost 
(estimated)* 

552.9 1,005.8 570.2 423.2 362.5 

      
After Hour Call In      

Water levels 26 30 69 3 36 
Mechanical/Electrical 5 3 4 9 0 

Other 3 0 2 0 4 

Totals 34 33 75 42 40 
 

 
1 Preliminary totals from NOAA for Detroit  



 

*losses related to scheduled & unscheduled maintenance and water quality 
discharges. 

 
 

Gate Spilling Summary: 
 
Releasing water from the sluice gates is primary done to maintain lake level when flow 
exceeds the powerhouse. At certain times, we can use the gates to help keep the lake 
mixing to maintain oxygen levels (effectiveness depends on a number of factors) at 
the bottom of the lake. 
 
The water quality monitoring begins on June 1st and will end on September 30th; 
operators monitor the water quality conditions and take readings as outline in the WQ 
Plan. The dam releases water from the bottom gates to maintain run of river and/or 
help with water quality in Ford Lake. The Federal License requires we pass water with 
a minimum of 5mg/l of dissolved oxygen all the time.  Therefore, spilling from the 
bottom gates in the summer for improving the lake is not always possible. 
 
Sluice Gate Usage Summary: 

            Current Year       Current Year  Current Year     Current Year    Prior Yr. 
2023 Days Spilled         Lost KWh*      Lost KW$*        Lost KW$* 
January 0 0 0 0 
February 1.2 0 0 0 
March 13.8 0 0 0 
April 13.4 0 0 0 
May 4.6 25,759 $ 1,597 $ 58 
June    $ 7495 
July    $ 2,054 
August    $ 6,303 
September    $ 279 
October    0 
November    0 
December    0 

Totals 28.4 25,759 $ 1,597     $ 21,690 
 

*estimated losses from diverting water away from generators for the purpose 
improving WQ. 

Sargent Charles Dam  
 
This dam continues to get routine safety inspections and appropriate maintenance. 
 
In 2023, this dam will get the periodic safety inspection by the state, no date has 
been set. 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement 
 
 
To:  Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Belinda Kingsley, Community Compliance Director 
  Dave Bellers, Chief Building Official 
  Jason Iacoangeli, Planning Director 
  Tom Greenwood, Executive Coordinator 
 
Re:  OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS ACTIVITY REPORT – May 2023 
 
Date:  June 7, 2023 
 
Attached are reports for the following areas of activity within the Office of Community 
Standards for the period of May 1, 2023 thru May31, 2023. 
 

1. ACTIVE LITIGATION CASES 
2. NEW CODE ENFORCEMENT CASES 
3. NEW RENTAL HOUSING CERTIFICATIONS 
4. NEW VACANT STRUCTURE APPLICATIONS 
5. BUILDING DEPARTMENT PERMITS ISSUED 
6. BUILDING CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY ISSUED 
7. PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 

 
 
 
 
 
 



0 Dir Address Defendant Nature of Case Status Updated Notes
Date Last 

Reviewed

Next Court 

Date
Case No.:

1005 Emerick

GV, LLC (Robert Hull) 

Gault Village 

Shopping Center

Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED Demo approved by Twp Board and Court.  6/7/2023 16-437-CZ

2355 Wiard
D&G Auto Salvage & 

Randy Clark
Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Taxes to be paid prior to moving forward with 

approval and dismissal. Order to be entered - need 

site plan and licenses.

6/7/2023 6/7/23 @ 1:30 17-96-CZ

924-

940
Minion

Circular Investments 

LLC (Issa)

Zoning/Woodland 

Protection/Soil 

Erosion

AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Site Plan has been approved - preliminary.  Waiting 

for revised plans. Attorney refused meeting regarding 

noise. Site plan on hold.

6/7/2023
7/14/23 @ 

1:30 
17-809-CZ

1405 Ecorse Elks Club Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED
Several violations of the Court Order have occurred. 

Judge Connors ordered shut down.
6/7/2023 18-1259-CZ

1503 E. Michigan

Malek& Jenias 

Mohammed-KH 

Hamami

Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Site Plan improvements made.  Continuously 

overparked on site. Legal meeting 4/25/23. Site 

inspection  5/22/23.

6/7/2023
6-15-23 @ 

2:30 
19-1123-CZ 

1474 Ecorse

Ypsi Motown 

Properties - Township 

Plaza

Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Front parking lot paved, alley will be in 2023. Façade 

and other  work needs to be completed. Inspection 

4/10/23 - no change. Needs vacant inspection by 

court order.

6/7/2023
7/27/23 @ 

1:30 

3775 Golfisde Issa Fire AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Get a new C-of-O for rebuild, or demo the garage ( by 

1/28/22). Permit issued.  Property needs to be 

transferred to new property owner.

6/7/2023

COURT CASE REVIEW



0 Dir Address Defendant Nature of Case Status Updated Notes
Date Last 

Reviewed

Next Court 

Date
Case No.:

COURT CASE REVIEW

399 Elder Dabney Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED Lien placed against against the property. 6/7/2023

Paint Creek Plaza Paint Creek South LLC Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Settlement Agreement prepared by attorneys needs 

revisions. May be going back to court to resolve 

Order.  

6/7/2023

281 Ohio Kinzerb Homes Public Nuisance
AUTHORIZED AND FILED 

ESTATE
Probate closed. Property sold. 6/7/2023

1448 Nash Ali Mohamed Usman Public Nuisance
AUTHORIZED AND FILED 

ESTATE

Foreclosed with a new owner. Probate closed. Deed 

recorded 8/29/22.
6/7/2023

2835 Coolidge Ave Jason Bombrisk Junkyard Licensing AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Junkyard inspection request denied. Deliquent taxes. 

Inspected 4/23 by EGLE. Litigation to be filed soon. 

Judge Connors.

6/7/2023
7/13/23 @ 

1:30 

8950/

9070
Charlotte Ct

Oaks of Ypsilanti, LLC 

and Oaks of Golden 

Pond, LLC

Blight AUTHORIZED AND FILED

TG did exterior inspection - sign, sidewalks and trash.  

Multi-family rental inspections in progress. List of 

violations sent to Denny.

6/7/2023

1106 E Michigan Avenue

Tri-County 

Cremations / Burrell 

Vault / Oneil Swanson

Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Plans submitted - under review.  Transfer to Judge 

Connors. LARA dismissed. Exterior violations sent to 

attorney - TG send NOV.

6/7/2023
6/29/23 @ 

1:30 



0 Dir Address Defendant Nature of Case Status Updated Notes
Date Last 

Reviewed

Next Court 

Date
Case No.:

COURT CASE REVIEW

1221 Desoto Swain Holdings Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Work is being done to rehab the house. Swain 

Holdings LLC is new owner. TG check status of garage 

repairs.

6/7/2023

6050 S Ivanhoe Timothy Yerebeck Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Vacant house with blight and mold damage.  Property 

sold. Bldg Dept to contact new owner, Timothy 

Yerebeck, regarding addition issues. Bldg walk-thru 

3/29/23.

6/7/2023

6630 Rawsonville Motown Holdings Public Nuisance FILED AND SERVED

Illegal truck parking operation. Pre-application 

meeting and direction provided to applicant. No 

activity on site. Plans submitted - denied.

6/7/2023
7/27/23 @ 

1:30 

386 S Ford Blvd
Wolverine Auto 

Repair
Public Nuisance PREVIOUS ORDER ENTERED

Unpermitted expansion of legal non-conforming 

business.  Added towing and storage. Contempt 

hearing scheduled.

6/7/2023
6/23/23 @ 

9:00 

8 June St Hedger Breed Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Tenant is overparking the site, second story 

condemned by Bldg Dept. Meeting on 1/31/23 with 

attorneys. FM and Bldg inspection on 6/13/23. 

6/7/2023
7/12/23 @ 

9:00 a.m. 

5970 Bridge Round Haus Zoning Violation AUTHORIZED

Parking lot in disrepair. Site plan approved to demo 

and re-build building, and pre-con held.  Litigation not 

filed.

6/7/2023

521 Eugene Go America LLC Public Nuisance FILED AND SERVED
Foreclosed/Condemned House - Default Order to 

abate nuisance. Sold.
6/7/2023



0 Dir Address Defendant Nature of Case Status Updated Notes
Date Last 

Reviewed

Next Court 

Date
Case No.:

COURT CASE REVIEW

2041 Parkwood
Harvey Properties 

Rental Mgmt
Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Accessory structure and container on-site.  Plan to be 

submitted by PO, not received. DM will contact their 

counsel. If no plan by 3/23/23, schedule a hearing.

6/7/2023
6/15/23 @ 

1:30 

1473 Ecorse Rd Hani Auto LLC Zoning Violation AUTHORIZED AND FILED
Parking lot needs to be completed. Pre-con mtg held. 

Site inspection 4/17 with attorneys.
6/7/2023

6/28/23 @ 

1:30 

1255 W Michigan
Jeffrey Murillo - Auto 

One
Zoning Violation AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Major automotive repair business opened without 

approval.  Also U-Haul and flea market businesses in 

the building. Trial scheduled. FM review being 

requested.

6/7/2023

case eval. 

8/16/23 @ 

11:00; sett. 

Conf. 9/21/23 

2715 Woodruff Ted Ferenczy Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED

Unsanitary conditions - over 100 birds in the house.  

Walter Hamilton is defense attorney.  Waiting for air 

quality test. Needs a rental inspection.

6/7/2023

550 Oaklawn Jerry Baker
Public Nuisance - 

Fire
AUTHORIZED AND FILED

Fire in August 2021 - No insurance - Blight - Bringing in 

dumpsters to clean yard week of 4/17.
6/7/2023

544 Oaklawn Jerry Baker Public Nuisance PREVIOUS ORDER ENTERED
Blight in yard. Contempt hearing scheduled. Cleaned 

up in May.
6/7/2023

6981 Hitchingham Claudia Ross
Public Nuisance - 

Fire

AUTHORIZED AND 

AUTHORIZED

Fire in June 2022 - Total loss - Demo. Court hearing to 

apply 495 funds to demo. Bldg Permit issued for demo 

and building project.  30 days to demo - set for 

5/12/23.

6/7/2023 6/7/23 @ 1:30 



0 Dir Address Defendant Nature of Case Status Updated Notes
Date Last 

Reviewed

Next Court 

Date
Case No.:

COURT CASE REVIEW

835 George Katherine Cerda Public Nuisance
PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED 

AND FILED

Will not permit rental inspections.  Litigation to be 

filed soon.
6/7/2023 6/13/23 @ 1:30 

1254 Ecorse Pet City Pets Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED Blight and zoning violations 6/7/2023

3011 E Michigan Avenue Men Like Us Public Nuisance AUTHORIZED Zoning Use Violation 6/7/2023

1440 Foley Jannette Jones Public Nuisance
ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 

- FILED
Padlock Case - Drugs 6/7/2023

6/29/2023 @ 

1:30 p.m. 



Enforcement NumberCategory Date Filed Subdivision Address Display String

EN23-0502 Solid Waste 05/01/2023 THURSTON AREA 289 OREGON ST

EN23-0503 Blight 05/01/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1221 REDLEAF LN

EN23-0504 Solid Waste 05/01/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1210 REDLEAF LN

EN23-0505 Blight 05/01/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1240 REDLEAF LN

EN23-0506 Solid Waste 05/01/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7172 HITCHINGHAM RD

EN23-0507 Blight 05/01/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1314 HARRY ST

EN23-0508 Solid Waste 05/01/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1369 ANDREA ST

EN23-0509 Solid Waste 05/01/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1453 ANDREA ST

EN23-0510 Solid Waste 05/01/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1529 WISMER ST

EN23-0511 Solid Waste 05/01/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1312 HULL AVE

EN23-0512 Parking 05/01/2023 WEST WILLOW 1034 NASH AVE

EN23-0513 Blight 05/01/2023 2111 RAWSONVILLE RD

EN23-0514 Solid Waste 05/01/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2065 MOELLER AVE

EN23-0515 Blight 05/01/2023 9035 TEXTILE RD

EN23-0516 Vegetation 05/01/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2155 BRADLEY AVE

EN23-0517 Property Maintenance - Motor Vehicle05/02/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7208 DAISEY LN

EN23-0518 Blight 05/02/2023 THURSTON AREA 150 S HARRIS RD

EN23-0519 Blight 05/02/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8021 MERRITT RD

EN23-0520 Blight 05/02/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8041 MERRITT RD

EN23-0521 Blight 05/02/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8061 MERRITT RD

EN23-0522 Property Maintenance 05/02/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6786 LOON HOLLOW CT

EN23-0523 Blight 05/02/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 312 N CLUBVIEW DR

EN23-0524 Blight 05/02/2023 WEST WILLOW 1979 TYLER RD

EN23-0525 MULTI 05/02/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 548 GREENLAWN ST

EN23-0526 MULTI 05/02/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1428 FOLEY AVE

EN23-0527 Solid Waste 05/02/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1103 LEVONA ST

EN23-0528 Blight 05/03/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2500 LAKEVIEW AVE

EN23-0529 Blight 05/03/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 71 ALLEN RD

EN23-0530 MULTI 05/03/2023 1631 E MICHIGAN AVE

EN23-0531 MULTI 05/03/2023 1601 E MICHIGAN AVE

EN23-0532 Commercial Vehicles 05/03/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7460 TEXTILE RD

New Code Enforcement Cases - May 2023



EN23-0533 Solid Waste 05/03/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1053 JANET AVE

EN23-0534 Solid Waste 05/03/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 140 GREENSIDE ST

EN23-0535 Parking 05/03/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 535 GLENWOOD AVE

EN23-0536 Blight 05/03/2023 1900 CADILLAC AVE

EN23-0537 Zoning 05/03/2023 WEST WILLOW 1965 CHEVROLET AVE

EN23-0538 Solid Waste 05/03/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7100 HOMESTEAD RD

EN23-0539 Property Maintenance - Motor Vehicle05/04/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1414 BUD AVE

EN23-0540 Solid Waste 05/04/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1429 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0541 Blight 05/04/2023 APPLERIDGE AREA 2851 WOODRUFF LN

EN23-0542 Solid Waste 05/04/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1482 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0543 Solid Waste 05/04/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1422 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0544 Blight 05/04/2023 WEST WILLOW 1039 WOODGLEN AVE

EN23-0545 Solid Waste 05/04/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 709 E GRAND BLVD

EN23-0546 Solid Waste 05/04/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1421 WENDELL AVE

EN23-0547 Blight 05/04/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 1974 MERRILL ST

EN23-0548 Assist Attorney 05/04/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 550 OAKLAWN AVE

EN23-0549 Solid Waste 05/05/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1116 LEXINGTON PKWY

EN23-0550 Blight 05/05/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2029 BRADLEY AVE

EN23-0551 Property Maintenance 05/05/2023 1193 S HARRIS RD 102

EN23-0552 MULTI 05/05/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7390 MEADOW LN

EN23-0553 Pre-Permit Inspection 05/05/2023 2057 TYLER RD

EN23-0554 Blight 05/05/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5592 MICHAEL DR

EN23-0555 Solid Waste 05/05/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1389 CANDLEWOOD LN

EN23-0556 Solid Waste 05/05/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1411 CANDLEWOOD LN

EN23-0557 Solid Waste 05/05/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1111 LEXINGTON PKWY

EN23-0558 Solid Waste 05/05/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1690 DOROTHY ST

EN23-0559 Blight 05/05/2023 WEST WILLOW 1420 JEFF ST

EN23-0560 Solid Waste 05/05/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 120 HILLCREST BLVD

EN23-0561 Blight 05/05/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT WHITTAKER RD

EN23-0562 Blight 05/05/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1647 WISMER ST

EN23-0563 Building Code 05/08/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1141 HULL AVE

EN23-0564 Blight 05/08/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7723 PIONEER DR

EN23-0565 Solid Waste 05/08/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5879 CARY DR

EN23-0566 Solid Waste 05/08/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7404 DOVER DR



EN23-0567 Blight 05/08/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5580 MICHAEL DR

EN23-0568 Blight 05/08/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7707 PIONEER DR

EN23-0569 Blight 05/08/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7644 PIONEER DR

EN23-0570 Blight 05/08/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1129 LEXINGTON PKWY

EN23-0571 Parking 05/08/2023 WEST WILLOW 903 NASH AVE

EN23-0572 MULTI 05/08/2023 WEST WILLOW 800 GATES AVE

EN23-0573 Solid Waste 05/08/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1232 SHIRLEY DR

EN23-0574 Blight 05/08/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1121 RAMBLING RD

EN23-0575 Parking 05/08/2023 WEST WILLOW 900 NASH AVE

EN23-0576 Blight 05/08/2023 WEST WILLOW 1065 ZEPHYR ST

EN23-0577 Solid Waste 05/08/2023 WEST WILLOW 1421 DESOTO AVE

EN23-0578 Blight 05/09/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7454 SPY GLASS LN

EN23-0579 Vegetation 05/09/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 799 ALLEN RD

EN23-0580 Blight 05/09/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1241 RAMBLING RD

EN23-0581 Vegetation 05/09/2023 WEST WILLOW 800 EUGENE ST

EN23-0582 Vegetation 05/09/2023 WEST WILLOW 717 CAYUGA AVE

EN23-0583 Vegetation 05/09/2023 WEST WILLOW 650 FOX AVE

EN23-0584 Vegetation 05/09/2023 WEST WILLOW 680 CALDER AVE

EN23-0585 Vegetation 05/09/2023 WEST WILLOW 711 CAYUGA AVE

EN23-0586 Vegetation 05/09/2023 WEST WILLOW 727 CAYUGA AVE

EN23-0587 Zoning 05/09/2023 WEST WILLOW 587 EUGENE ST

EN23-0588 Vegetation 05/09/2023 WEST WILLOW 695 CAYUGA AVE

EN23-0589 Vegetation 05/09/2023 WEST WILLOW 636 FOX AVE

EN23-0590 Property Maintenance 05/09/2023 LAKEVIEW MHP 9987 JOAN CIR 177

EN23-0591 Property Maintenance - Motor Vehicle05/09/2023 THURSTON AREA 333 OREGON ST

EN23-0592 Vegetation 05/09/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1217 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0593 Blight 05/09/2023 WEST WILLOW 550 DESOTO AVE

EN23-0594 Vegetation 05/09/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1187 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0595 Solid Waste 05/09/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1193 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0597 Blight 05/10/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 144 CAMPBELL AVE

EN23-0598 Vegetation 05/10/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1482 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0599 Vegetation 05/10/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1416 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0600 Vegetation 05/10/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1476 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0601 Vegetation 05/10/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1450 BLOSSOM AVE



EN23-0602 Vegetation 05/10/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1199 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0603 Vegetation 05/10/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1109 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0604 Vegetation 05/10/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2277 GROVE RD COMMON AREAS

EN23-0605 Vegetation 05/10/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1420 GATTEGNO ST

EN23-0606 Vegetation 05/10/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1437 GATTEGNO ST

EN23-0607 Vegetation 05/10/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1104 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0608 Vegetation 05/10/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1211 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0609 Vegetation 05/10/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1427 GATTEGNO ST

EN23-0610 Vegetation 05/10/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1204 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0611 Solid Waste 05/10/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 2361 DRAPER AVE

EN23-0612 Vegetation 05/10/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1211 SHIRLEY DR

EN23-0613 Basketball Hoop 05/10/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 610 WOODLAWN AVE

EN23-0614 Basketball Hoop 05/10/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 640 WOODLAWN AVE

EN23-0615 Property Maintenance 05/10/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 1715 E FOREST

EN23-0616 Property Maintenance 05/10/2023 2500 HOLMES RD 616

EN23-0617 Blight 05/11/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 589 KENNEDY AVE

EN23-0618 Vegetation 05/11/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1313 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0619 Vegetation 05/11/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1223 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0620 Solid Waste 05/11/2023 THURSTON AREA 1675 PARKWOOD AVE

EN23-0621 Vegetation 05/11/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1318 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0622 Blight 05/11/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7040 POPLAR DR

EN23-0623 Vegetation 05/11/2023 WEST WILLOW 639 OSWEGO AVE

EN23-0624 Blight 05/11/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 650 BROWNING ST

EN23-0625 Blight 05/11/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 649 N IVANHOE AVE

EN23-0626 Property Maintenance 05/11/2023 1106 E MICHIGAN AVE

EN23-0627 Zoning 05/11/2023 WEST WILLOW 1881 EILEEN AVE

EN23-0628 Vegetation 05/11/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6234 CHERRYWOOD DR

EN23-0629 Zoning 05/11/2023 2169 WASHTENAW RD

EN23-0630 Vegetation 05/11/2023 940 MINION ST

EN23-0631 Vegetation 05/11/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1192 RAMBLING RD

EN23-0632 Vegetation 05/11/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1180 RAMBLING RD

EN23-0633 Vegetation 05/11/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1326 RUE DEAUVILLE BLVD

EN23-0634 Blight 05/11/2023 JOHNSON PLACE 72 JOHNSON ST

EN23-0635 Vegetation 05/11/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1298 RUE DEAUVILLE BLVD



EN23-0636 Vegetation 05/11/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1210 REDLEAF LN

EN23-0637 Blight 05/11/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5607 PRINCETON PL

EN23-0638 Business Registration Violation05/11/2023 2714 WASHTENAW RD

EN23-0639 Vegetation 05/11/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1555 GROVE RD

EN23-0640 Vegetation 05/11/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1783 GROVE RD

EN23-0641 Vegetation 05/11/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1531 GROVE RD

EN23-0642 Vegetation 05/11/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1771 GROVE RD

EN23-0643 Vegetation 05/11/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1357 MCCARTHY CT

EN23-0644 Vegetation 05/11/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5718 BIG PINE DR

EN23-0645 Vegetation 05/11/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5696 NEW MEADOW DR

EN23-0646 Basketball Hoop 05/11/2023 WEST WILLOW 2364 BROOKTREE CT

EN23-0647 Vegetation 05/11/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1401 HARRY ST

EN23-0648 MULTI 05/11/2023 2351 WIARD CT

EN23-0649 Zoning 05/11/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 211 N HEWITT RD

EN23-0650 Litigation 05/12/2023 3011 E MICHIGAN AVE

EN23-0651 Vegetation 05/12/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 1425 ECORSE RD

EN23-0652 Zoning 05/12/2023 215 S FORD BLVD

EN23-0653 Vegetation 05/12/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 2068 MERRILL ST

EN23-0654 Property Maintenance 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6062 WHITTAKER RD

EN23-0655 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5620 BIG PINE DR

EN23-0656 Vegetation 05/12/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 722 N FORD BLVD

EN23-0657 Vegetation 05/12/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 740 N FORD BLVD

EN23-0658 Vegetation 05/12/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 2544 EASTLAWN AVE

EN23-0659 Blight 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7124 OAKRIDGE DR

EN23-0660 Solid Waste 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7636 PIONEER DR

EN23-0661 Solid Waste 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7394 HOGAN DR

EN23-0662 Solid Waste 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7267 LOCHMOOR DR

EN23-0663 Blight 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6043 MAPLEVIEW LN

EN23-0664 BB HOOP 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6298 MAPLEHURST DR

EN23-0665 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6367 OAKHURST DR

EN23-0666 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6030 MAPLEVIEW LN

EN23-0667 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6031 MAPLEVIEW LN

EN23-0668 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7480 HOGAN DR

EN23-0669 Solid Waste 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7644 PIONEER DR



EN23-0670 Vegetation 05/12/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1163 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0671 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 9385 PARKLAND DR

EN23-0672 Vegetation 05/12/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1210 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0673 Vegetation 05/12/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1151 EVELYN AVE

EN23-0674 Solid Waste 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7539 DORAL DR

EN23-0675 Vegetation 05/12/2023 WEST WILLOW 1359 JEFF ST

EN23-0676 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8267 HUMMINGBIRD DR

EN23-0677 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8279 HUMMINGBIRD DR

EN23-0678 Solid Waste 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8298 HUMMINGBIRD DR

EN23-0679 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8218 HUMMINGBIRD DR

EN23-0680 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7109 STREAMWOOD DR

EN23-0681 MULTI 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7550 DORAL DR

EN23-0682 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8210 HUMMINGBIRD DR

EN23-0683 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8250 HUMMINGBIRD DR

EN23-0684 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8234 HUMMINGBIRD DR

EN23-0685 Vegetation 05/12/2023 WEST WILLOW 1343 JEFF ST

EN23-0686 Vegetation 05/12/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6191 CHERRYWOOD DR

EN23-0687 MULTI 05/12/2023 1521 HOLMES RD

EN23-0688 Vegetation 05/12/2023 WEST WILLOW 1842 EILEEN AVE

EN23-0689 Vegetation 05/15/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 164 CARRIAGE WAY

EN23-0690 Solid Waste 05/15/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1080 HULL AVE

EN23-0691 Basketball Hoop 05/15/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1080 HULL AVE

EN23-0692 Vegetation 05/15/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1244 LEXINGTON PKWY

EN23-0693 Vegetation 05/15/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6038 MAPLEVIEW LN

EN23-0694 Vegetation 05/15/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6046 MAPLEVIEW LN

EN23-0695 Vegetation 05/15/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6042 RAWSONVILLE RD

EN23-0696 Vegetation 05/15/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6051 MAPLEVIEW LN

EN23-0697 Vegetation 05/15/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6059 MAPLEVIEW LN

EN23-0698 Blight 05/15/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7411 HICKORY RIDGE DR

EN23-0699 Blight 05/15/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7423 HICKORY RIDGE DR

EN23-0700 Zoning 05/15/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1266 RAMBLING RD

EN23-0701 MULTI 05/15/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2084 BRADLEY AVE

EN23-0702 Vegetation 05/15/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1455 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0703 Property Maintenance 05/15/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7995 STONY CREEK RD #2



EN23-0704 Vegetation 05/15/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 9393 COUNTRY VIEW DR

EN23-0705 Solid Waste 05/15/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5629 JUSTIN CT

EN23-0706 Basketball Hoop 05/15/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 611 WOODLAWN AVE

EN23-0707 Blight 05/15/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 641 WOODLAWN AVE

EN23-0708 Solid Waste 05/15/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 650 WOODLAWN AVE

EN23-0709 Vegetation 05/15/2023 WEST WILLOW 1418 DESOTO AVE

EN23-0710 Vegetation 05/15/2023 WEST WILLOW 1448 NASH AVE

EN23-0711 Vegetation 05/15/2023 WEST WILLOW 1376 DESOTO AVE

EN23-0712 Vegetation 05/15/2023 WEST WILLOW 1028 STUDEBAKER AVE

EN23-0713 Blight 05/15/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 740 N FORD BLVD

EN23-0714 Vegetation 05/15/2023 WEST WILLOW 1062 LORI ST

EN23-0715 Vegetation 05/15/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 485 E GRAND BLVD

EN23-0716 Blight 05/15/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5566 NEW MEADOW DR

EN23-0717 Vegetation 05/15/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 435 E GRAND BLVD

EN23-0718 Blight 05/15/2023 WEST WILLOW 1670 TYLER RD

EN23-0719 Property Maintenance 05/16/2023 2671 INTERNATIONAL DR 1431B

EN23-0720 Solid Waste 05/16/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1449 RUE DEAUVILLE BLVD

EN23-0721 Vegetation 05/16/2023 WEST WILLOW 890 NASH AVE

EN23-0722 MULTI 05/16/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1306 HARRY ST

EN23-0723 Property Maintenance - Motor Vehicle05/16/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1321 MCCARTHY CT

EN23-0724 Vegetation 05/16/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1084 LEVONA ST

EN23-0725 Vegetation 05/16/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7481 BERMUDA DUNES DR

EN23-0726 Vegetation 05/16/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8800 LILLY DR

EN23-0727 BB HOOP 05/16/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8761 LILLY DR

EN23-0728 Vegetation 05/16/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6050 S IVANHOE AVE

EN23-0729 Vegetation 05/16/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6318 OAKHURST DR

EN23-0730 Vegetation 05/16/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 122 CARRIAGE WAY

EN23-0731 Vegetation 05/16/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6008 S MIAMI ST

EN23-0732 MULTI 05/17/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 939 MAPLEWOOD AVE

EN23-0733 Vegetation 05/17/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1435 RUE DEAUVILLE BLVD

EN23-0734 MULTI 05/17/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8879 TRILLIUM DR

EN23-0735 Vegetation 05/17/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 1920 HARMON ST

EN23-0736 Property Maintenance 05/17/2023 1712 TIMBER RDG

EN23-0737 Vegetation 05/17/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5784 NEW MEADOW DR



EN23-0738 Vegetation 05/17/2023 204 S HARRIS RD OFFICE

EN23-0739 Blight 05/17/2023 WEST WILLOW 1063 NASH AVE

EN23-0740 Blight 05/17/2023 WEST WILLOW 1075 NASH AVE

EN23-0741 Zoning 05/17/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6680 BUNTON RD

EN23-0742 MULTI 05/17/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2040 CRITTENDON AVE

EN23-0743 MULTI 05/17/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 550 GLENWOOD AVE

EN23-0744 MULTI 05/17/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 559 GLENWOOD AVE

EN23-0745 Vegetation 05/17/2023 1507 HOLMES RD

EN23-0746 MULTI 05/17/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1148 FALL RIVER RD

EN23-0747 Blight 05/17/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6470 WHITTAKER RD

EN23-0748 Vegetation 05/17/2023 WEST WILLOW 1216 WOODGLEN AVE

EN23-0749 Vegetation 05/17/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 1374 HAWTHORNE AVE

EN23-0750 Vegetation 05/17/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 371 S HARRIS RD

EN23-0752 Vegetation 05/17/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 518 BERGEN AVE

EN23-0753 Vegetation 05/17/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 2936 EASTLAWN AVE

EN23-0754 Vegetation 05/17/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 2866 NORTHLAWN AVE

EN23-0755 Solid Waste 05/17/2023 WEST WILLOW 532 HUDSON ST

EN23-0756 Vegetation 05/17/2023 WEST WILLOW 576 DESOTO AVE

EN23-0757 Vegetation 05/17/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 2934 NORTHLAWN AVE

EN23-0758 Blight 05/17/2023 WEST WILLOW 551 HUDSON ST

EN23-0759 Vegetation 05/17/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 1702 E FOREST AVE

EN23-0760 Vegetation 05/17/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 91 LAMAY AVE

EN23-0761 Property Maintenance 05/17/2023 THURSTON AREA 392 DAKOTA AVE

EN23-0762 Vegetation 05/17/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1253 FALL RIVER RD

EN23-0763 Vegetation 05/17/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1148 FALL RIVER RD

EN23-0764 Vegetation 05/17/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 371 S HARRIS RD

EN23-0765 Vegetation 05/16/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1420 CANDLEWOOD LN

EN23-0766 Assist Attorney 05/16/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 9791 BEMIS RD

EN23-0767 Vegetation 05/17/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 230 HILLCREST BLVD

EN23-0768 Vegetation 05/17/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 1373 HAWTHORNE AVE

EN23-0769 Vegetation 05/18/2023 STEVENS PARK AREA 287 KIRK AVE

EN23-0770 MULTI 05/18/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2083 WOODALE AVE

EN23-0771 Blight 05/18/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2090 MCGREGOR RD

EN23-0772 Vegetation 05/18/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1138 RUE DEAUVILLE BLVD



EN23-0773 Property Maintenance 05/18/2023 521 WOODLAWN AVE

EN23-0774 Blight 05/18/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1001 RUE DEAUVILLE BLVD

EN23-0776 Vegetation 05/18/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7416 MAPLELAWN DR

EN23-0777 Property Maintenance 05/18/2023 ASPEN CHASE/VILLAS APARTMENTS2129 GOLFSIDE DR 109

EN23-0778 Property Maintenance 05/18/2023 ASPEN CHASE/VILLAS APARTMENTS2129 GOLFSIDE DR 104

EN23-0779 Vegetation 05/18/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5468 GRAYFIELD CIR

EN23-0780 Vegetation 05/18/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5453 GRAYFIELD CIR

EN23-0781 MULTI 05/18/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5459 GRAYFIELD CIR

EN23-0782 Vegetation 05/18/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5438 GRAYFIELD CIR

EN23-0783 Vegetation 05/18/2023 WEST WILLOW 1081 NASH AVE

EN23-0784 Blight 05/18/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7043 OAKRIDGE DR

EN23-0785 Vegetation 05/18/2023 WEST WILLOW 1054 NASH AVE

EN23-0786 Vegetation 05/18/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6262 OAKHURST DR

EN23-0787 Litigation 05/18/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 1254 ECORSE RD

EN23-0788 Vegetation 05/18/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1260 LEXINGTON PKWY

EN23-0789 Basketball Hoop 05/18/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5863 PARVIEW DR

EN23-0790 Vegetation 05/18/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1026 RUE DEAUVILLE BLVD

EN23-0791 Basketball Hoop 05/19/2023 STEVENS PARK AREA 395 ELDER ST

EN23-0792 Vegetation 05/19/2023 WEST WILLOW 521 EUGENE ST

EN23-0793 Vegetation 05/19/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2138 BRADLEY AVE

EN23-0794 Vegetation 05/19/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7257 MAPLELAWN DR

EN23-0795 Blight - Fire 05/19/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7390 TEXTILE RD

EN23-0796 Vegetation 05/19/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1075 SWEET RD

EN23-0797 Vegetation 05/19/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1311 LEVONA ST

EN23-0798 Vegetation 05/19/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1166 RUTH AVE

EN23-0799 Vegetation 05/19/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1550 S HARRIS RD

EN23-0800 Vegetation 05/19/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1200 BORGSTROM AVE

EN23-0801 Vegetation 05/19/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2050 WOODALE AVE

EN23-0802 Vegetation 05/19/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2026 MOELLER AVE

EN23-0803 Vegetation 05/19/2023 APPLERIDGE AREA 2851 WOODRUFF LN

EN23-0804 Solid Waste 05/19/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2027 IDE AVE

EN23-0805 Vegetation 05/19/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2065 MOELLER AVE

EN23-0806 Vegetation 05/19/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2138 BRADLEY AVE

EN23-0807 Vegetation 05/19/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1220 BORGSTROM AVE



EN23-0808 Solid Waste 05/19/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7360 STREAMWOOD DR

EN23-0809 Vegetation 05/19/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1115 LEVONA ST

EN23-0810 Vegetation 05/19/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1127 LEVONA ST

EN23-0811 Blight 05/19/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 1619 SMITH ST

EN23-0812 Solid Waste 05/19/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2056 GEORGE AVE

EN23-0813 Solid Waste 05/19/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1726 LYNN CT

EN23-0814 Basketball Hoop 05/19/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7715 GREENE FARM CT

EN23-0815 Solid Waste 05/19/2023 PINEVIEW AREA 5832 PINEVIEW DR

EN23-0816 Vegetation 05/19/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 840 N FORD BLVD

EN23-0817 Vegetation 05/19/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 841 N FORD BLVD

EN23-0818 Blight 05/19/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 2431 ROANOAKE DR

EN23-0819 Vegetation 05/19/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 130 JOHNSON ST

EN23-0820 Vegetation 05/19/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1313 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0821 Blight 05/19/2023 SCHOONER COVE 5050 SCHOONER COVE BLVD

EN23-0822 Blight 05/22/2023 WEST WILLOW 1967 TYLER RD

EN23-0823 Rental - Unregistered 05/22/2023 WEST WILLOW 1967 TYLER RD

EN23-0824 Blight 05/22/2023 239 S FORD BLVD

EN23-0826 Blight 05/22/2023 825 GEORGE PL

EN23-0827 MULTI 05/22/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 642 CAMPBELL AVE

EN23-0828 MULTI 05/22/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 71 JEROME AVE

EN23-0829 Blight 05/22/2023 1661 E MICHIGAN AVE

EN23-0830 Solid Waste 05/22/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7022 RACHEL DR

EN23-0831 Vegetation 05/22/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 57 JEROME AVE

EN23-0832 Vegetation 05/22/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 1871 WASHTENAW RD

EN23-0833 MULTI 05/22/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1192 SHARE AVE

EN23-0834 Vegetation 05/22/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6091 MAPLEVIEW LN

EN23-0835 Vegetation 05/22/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1329 BORGSTROM AVE

EN23-0836 Vegetation 05/22/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7256 MAPLELAWN DR

EN23-0837 Vegetation 05/22/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1192 SHARE AVE

EN23-0838 Blight 05/22/2023 WEST WILLOW 1333 DESOTO AVE

EN23-0839 Blight 05/22/2023 WEST WILLOW 1979 TYLER RD

EN23-0840 Vegetation 05/22/2023 2500 HOLMES RD

EN23-0841 Vegetation 05/22/2023 1633 KNOWLES ST

EN23-0842 Vegetation 05/22/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 110 JOHNSON ST



EN23-0843 Vegetation 05/23/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 231 EDISON AVE

EN23-0844 Blight 05/23/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1278 E CLARK RD

EN23-0845 Litigation 05/23/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 885 PARKWOOD AVE

EN23-0846 Litigation 05/23/2023 THURSTON AREA 281 OHIO ST

EN23-0847 Litigation 05/23/2023 WEST WILLOW 1448 NASH AVE

EN23-0848 Vegetation 05/23/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 673 CAMPBELL AVE

EN23-0849 Solid Waste 05/23/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1231 SHIRLEY DR

EN23-0850 Solid Waste 05/23/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6247 TUTTLE HILL RD

EN23-0851 MULTI 05/23/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 633 CAMPBELL AVE

EN23-0852 Blight 05/23/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2054 BRADLEY AVE

EN23-0853 Property Maintenance - Motor Vehicle05/23/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1184 S HARRIS RD

EN23-0854 Solid Waste 05/23/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1768 HEATHERRIDGE ST

EN23-0855 Vegetation 05/23/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1376 MCCARTHY CT

EN23-0856 Vegetation 05/23/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7550 BERWICK DR

EN23-0857 Vegetation 05/23/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7715 PIONEER DR

EN23-0858 Zoning 05/23/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 2723 SOUTHLAWN ST

EN23-0859 BB HOOP 05/23/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7128 RICHMOND DR

EN23-0860 Vegetation 05/23/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7140 RICHMOND DR

EN23-0861 Vegetation 05/23/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1351 FALL RIVER RD

EN23-0862 Zoning 05/23/2023 1701 E MICHIGAN AVE

EN23-0863 05/24/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7883 BRIARBROOK DR

EN23-0864 Solid Waste 05/24/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1345 ANDREA ST

EN23-0865 Blight 05/24/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1337 ANDREA ST

EN23-0866 Vegetation 05/24/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1706 LYNN CT

EN23-0867 Vegetation 05/24/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6285 MAPLEHURST DR

EN23-0868 Blight 05/24/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1416 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0869 Vegetation 05/24/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1411 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0870 Vegetation 05/24/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1464 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0871 Vegetation 05/24/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1330 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0872 Vegetation 05/24/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7128 MAPLELAWN DR

EN23-0873 Solid Waste 05/24/2023 WEST WILLOW 587 EUGENE ST

EN23-0874 Solid Waste 05/24/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7791 HAMPTON CT

EN23-0875 Vegetation 05/24/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7058 RACHEL DR

EN23-0876 Zoning 05/24/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2173 MOELLER AVE



EN23-0877 Vegetation 05/24/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 101 LAMAY AVE

EN23-0878 Rental - Unregistered 05/24/2023 THURSTON AREA 247 S FORD BLVD

EN23-0879 Vegetation 05/24/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 1824 CRITTENDON AVE

EN23-0880 Solid Waste 05/24/2023 THURSTON AREA 1591 RUSSELL ST

EN23-0882 Vegetation 05/25/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 570 HOLLIS AVE

EN23-0883 Solid Waste 05/25/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 264 NURA CT

EN23-0884 Rental - Unregistered 05/25/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2051 MOELLER AVE

EN23-0885 Rental - Unregistered 05/25/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2055 MOELLER AVE

EN23-0886 Rental - Unregistered 05/25/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 2057 MOELLER AVE

EN23-0887 Solid Waste 05/25/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7250 SPY GLASS LN

EN23-0888 Property Maintenance 05/25/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 760 CAMPBELL AVE #10

EN23-0889 Property Maintenance 05/25/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 161 ECORSE RD

EN23-0890 Blight 05/25/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 1011 E FOREST AVE

EN23-0891 Blight 05/25/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 993 E CROSS ST

EN23-0892 Blight 05/25/2023 THURSTON AREA 1635 PARKWOOD AVE

EN23-0893 Vegetation 05/25/2023 THURSTON AREA 360 DEVONSHIRE RD

EN23-0894 Solid Waste 05/25/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1309 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0895 Solid Waste 05/25/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7814 HAMPTON CT

EN23-0896 Blight 05/25/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 5777 SUNSET TRL

EN23-0897 Vegetation 05/25/2023 3020 WASHTENAW RD

EN23-0898 Solid Waste 05/25/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8139 HUMMINGBIRD CT

EN23-0899 MULTI 05/25/2023 WEST WILLOW 1229 WOODGLEN AVE

EN23-0900 Vegetation 05/25/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1353 LEVONA ST

EN23-0901 Vegetation 05/25/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 846 HOLMES RD

EN23-0902 Vegetation 05/25/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1161 LESTER AVE

EN23-0903 Vegetation 05/25/2023 HEWITT ROAD AREA 270 N CLUBVIEW DR

EN23-0904 Vegetation 05/25/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7835 GREENE FARM DR

EN23-0905 Vegetation 05/25/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1148 LESTER AVE

EN23-0906 Vegetation 05/25/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1115 BORGSTROM AVE

EN23-0907 Vegetation 05/25/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1107 LESTER AVE

EN23-0908 Vegetation 05/25/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6110 MAPLEVIEW LN

EN23-0909 Solid Waste 05/25/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7292 MAPLELAWN DR

EN23-0910 Solid Waste 05/25/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7280 MAPLELAWN DR

EN23-0911 Solid Waste 05/25/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1282 CLARITA ST



EN23-0912 Vegetation 05/25/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7822 GREENE FARM DR

EN23-0913 Vegetation 05/25/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1322 ANDREA ST

EN23-0914 Vegetation 05/25/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8624 SHAWN DR

EN23-0915 Vegetation 05/25/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7995 STONY CREEK RD #2

EN23-0916 Solid Waste 05/25/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 1205 DAVIS ST

EN23-0917 Vegetation 05/25/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 3127 SOUTHLAWN ST

EN23-0918 Solid Waste 05/25/2023 WEST WILLOW 671 EUGENE ST

EN23-0919 Blight 05/25/2023 THURSTON AREA 1675 PARKWOOD AVE

EN23-0920 Parking 05/25/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 2302 HOLMES RD

EN23-0921 Blight 05/25/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 2490 PACKARD RD

EN23-0922 Blight 05/25/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 485 EASTMAN AVE

EN23-0923 Solid Waste 05/25/2023 LAKEVIEW AREA 3240 GROVE RD

EN23-0924 Vegetation 05/25/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 3109 SOUTHLAWN ST

EN23-0927 Vegetation 05/26/2023 835 GEORGE PL BLDG 1

EN23-0928 Vegetation 05/26/2023 839 GEORGE PL

EN23-0929 Vegetation 05/26/2023 837 GEORGE PL

EN23-0930 Vegetation 05/26/2023 833 GEORGE PL

EN23-0931 Vegetation 05/26/2023 THURSTON AREA 82 OHIO ST

EN23-0932 Vegetation 05/26/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7930 WINTERFIELD DR

EN23-0933 Vegetation 05/26/2023 THURSTON AREA 373 DEVONSHIRE RD

EN23-0934 Vegetation 05/26/2023 WEST WILLOW 1252 WOODGLEN AVE

EN23-0935 Vegetation 05/26/2023 THURSTON AREA 333 DEVONSHIRE RD

EN23-0936 Assist General 05/26/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7200 S HURON RIVER DR

EN23-0937 Vegetation 05/26/2023 THURSTON AREA 203 DAKOTA AVE

EN23-0938 Blight 05/26/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7012 HAMPTON DR

EN23-0939 Vegetation 05/26/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 1386 E FOREST AVE

EN23-0940 Vegetation 05/26/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7187 SPY GLASS LN

EN23-0941 Vegetation 05/26/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 110 JOHNSON ST

EN23-0942 Solid Waste 05/26/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 8032 PEBBLESTONE DR

EN23-0943 Solid Waste 05/26/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 938 GROVE RD

EN23-0944 Vegetation 05/26/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1076 LESTER AVE

EN23-0945 Blight 05/30/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 626 CAMPBELL AVE

EN23-0946 Assist General 05/30/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7200 S HURON RIVER DR

EN23-0947 Assist General 05/30/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7200 S HURON RIVER DR



EN23-0948 Assist General 05/30/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7200 S HURON RIVER DR

EN23-0949 Assist General 05/30/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7200 S HURON RIVER DR

EN23-0950 Vegetation 05/30/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 880 E FOREST AVE

EN23-0951 Vegetation 05/30/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7346 SPY GLASS LN

EN23-0952 Vegetation 05/30/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 958 ECORSE RD

EN23-0953 Blight 05/30/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1175 SHARE AVE

EN23-0954 Property Maintenance 05/30/2023 1287 CONCORD DR

EN23-0955 Vegetation 05/30/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 855 PARKWOOD AVE

EN23-0956 Vacant Property/Building Investigation05/30/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 855 PARKWOOD AVE

EN23-0957 Blight - Fire 05/30/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 1039 PARKWOOD AVE

EN23-0958 Vegetation 05/30/2023 WESTLAWN AREA 1800 PACKARD RD

EN23-0959 BB HOOP 05/30/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 6191 HICKORY RIDGE CT

EN23-0960 Vegetation 05/30/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 715 JEROME AVE

EN23-0961 Vegetation 05/30/2023 WEST WILLOW 1355 DESOTO AVE

EN23-0962 Vegetation 05/30/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 722 JEROME AVE

EN23-0963 Vegetation 05/30/2023 WEST WILLOW 720 EUGENE ST

EN23-0964 Vegetation 05/30/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 408 CAMPBELL AVE

EN23-0965 Solid Waste 05/30/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1282 HULL AVE

EN23-0966 MULTI 05/30/2023 815 GEORGE PL

EN23-0967 Vegetation 05/30/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1281 CANDLEWOOD LN

EN23-0968 MULTI 05/31/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 680 N MIAMI AVE

EN23-0969 MULTI 05/31/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 593 N HARRIS RD

EN23-0970 MULTI 05/31/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 591 N HARRIS RD

EN23-0971 Zoning 05/31/2023 SOUTH DISTRICT 7489 DOVER DR

EN23-0972 Basketball Hoop 05/31/2023 OAKLAWN/HAWTHORNE AREA 610 WOODLAWN AVE

EN23-0973 Parking 05/31/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1254 E CLARK RD

EN23-0974 Vegetation 05/31/2023 BUD/BLOSSOM AREA 1482 BLOSSOM AVE

EN23-0975 Vegetation 05/31/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1651 GROVE RD

EN23-0976 Vegetation 05/31/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1451 GROVE RD

EN23-0977 Vegetation 05/31/2023 LAY GARDENS AREA 944 E FOREST

EN23-0978 Vegetation 05/31/2023 WEST WILLOW 1074 NASH AVE

EN23-0979 Vegetation 05/31/2023 SUGARBROOK AREA 1483 GROVE RD

EN23-0980 Vegetation 05/31/2023 WEST WILLOW 1075 NASH AVE

EN23-0981 Vegetation 05/31/2023 GAULT VILLAGE AREA 1235 GEORGINA DR



EN23-0982 Basketball Hoop 05/31/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1359 CANDLEWOOD LN

EN23-0983 Solid Waste 05/31/2023 HOLMES ROAD AREA 1316 RAMBLING RD



Parcel Number Address Display String Cert Type Cert Number Status

K -11-02-308-016 749 JEROME AVE Rental 24 CSFR-22-1250 Certified

K -11-03-127-044 1399 CANDLEWOOD LN Rental 24 CSFR-23-0025 Certified

K -11-03-163-030 1203 WENDELL AVE Rental 24 CSFR-23-0024 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2964 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0377 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2964 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0378 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2964 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0379 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2964 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0380 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2962 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0381 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2962 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0382 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2962 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0383 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2962 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0384 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 1 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0385 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 1-LAUND Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0386 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2960 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0387 Suspended

K -11-06-325-003 2960 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0389 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2960 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0390 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2958 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0391 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2958 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0392 Suspended

K -11-06-325-003 2958 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0393 Suspended

K -11-06-325-003 2958 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0394 Suspended

K -11-06-325-003 2954 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0395 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2954 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0396 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2954 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0397 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2954 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0398 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2952 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0399 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2952 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0400 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2952 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0401 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2952 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0402 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2950 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0403 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2950 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0404 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2950 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0405 Certified

New Rental Housing Certifications - May 2023



K -11-06-325-003 2950 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0406 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 2 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0407 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 2-LAUND Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0408 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2948 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0409 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2948 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0410 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2948 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0411 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2948 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0412 Suspended

K -11-06-325-003 2940 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0413 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2940 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0414 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2940 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0415 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2940 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0416 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2938 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0417 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2938 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0418 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2938 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0419 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2938 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0420 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2936 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0421 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2936 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0422 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2936 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0423 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2936 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0424 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2934 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0425 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2934 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0426 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2934 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0427 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2934 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0428 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 3 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0429 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 3-LAUND Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0430 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2930 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0431 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2930 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0432 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2930 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0433 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2930 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0434 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2928 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0435 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2928 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0436 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2928 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0437 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2928 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0438 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2926 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0439 Certified



K -11-06-325-003 2926 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0440 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2926 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0441 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2926 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0442 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 4 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0443 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 4-LAUND Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0444 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2920 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0445 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2920 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0446 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2920 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0447 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2920 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0448 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2918 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0449 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2918 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0450 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2918 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0451 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2918 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0452 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2916 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0453 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2916 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0454 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2916 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0455 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2916 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0456 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 5 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0457 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 5-LAUND Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0458 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2910 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0459 Suspended

K -11-06-325-003 2910 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0461 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2910 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0462 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2908 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0463 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2908 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0464 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2908 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0465 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2908 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0466 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2906 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0467 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2906 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0468 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2906 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0469 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2906 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0470 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 6 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0471 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 6-LAUND Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0472 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2904 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0473 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2904 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0474 Certified



K -11-06-325-003 2904 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0475 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2904 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0476 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2902 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0477 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2902 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0478 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2902 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0479 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2902 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0480 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3006 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0481 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3006 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0482 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3006 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0483 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3006 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0484 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3004 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0485 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3004 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0486 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3004 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0487 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3004 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0488 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3002 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0489 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3002 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0490 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3002 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0491 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3002 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0492 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3000 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0493 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3000 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0494 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3000 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0495 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 3000 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0496 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 7 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0497 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 7-LAUND Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0498 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2974 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0499 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2974 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0500 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2974 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0501 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2974 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0502 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2970 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0503 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2970 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0504 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2970 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0505 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2970 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0506 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 8 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0507 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2990 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0508 Certified



K -11-06-325-003 2990 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0509 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2990 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0510 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2990 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0511 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2994 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0512 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2994 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0513 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2994 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0514 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2994 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0515 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 9 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0516 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 9-LAUND Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0517 Suspended

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD BLDG 10 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0518 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD 1A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0519 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD 1B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0520 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD 2A Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0521 Certified

K -11-06-325-003 2982 WASHTENAW RD 2B Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-22-0522 Certified

K -11-06-378-016 2771 SOUTHLAWN ST Rental 24 CSFR-22-1116 Certified

K -11-10-308-022 873 DAVIS ST Rental 24 CSFR-23-0128 Certified

K -11-11-303-001 1624 PARKWOOD AVE Rental 24 CSFR-23-0029 Certified

K -11-11-324-018 363 KANSAS AVE Rental 24 CSFR-22-1214 Certified

K -11-11-326-001 1564 PARKWOOD AVE Rental 24 CSFR-23-0031 Certified

K -11-14-150-014 2050 CHEVROLET AVE Rental 24 CSFR-23-0026 Certified

K -11-18-220-046 3024 ROUNDTREE BLVD Rental 24 CSFR-22-1281 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8876 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0381 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8876 BROOKWOOD AVE 102 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0382 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8876 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0383 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8876 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0384 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8876 BROOKWOOD AVE 302 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0385 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8882 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0388 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8882 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0389 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8882 BROOKWOOD AVE 301 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0390 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8882 BROOKWOOD AVE 302 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0391 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8888 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0392 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8888 BROOKWOOD AVE 102 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0393 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8888 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0394 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8888 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0395 Certified



K -11-22-480-026 8888 BROOKWOOD AVE 301 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0396 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8888 BROOKWOOD AVE 302 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0397 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8894 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0398 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8894 BROOKWOOD AVE 102 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0399 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8894 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0400 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8894 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0401 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8894 BROOKWOOD AVE 301 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0402 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8900 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0403 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8900 BROOKWOOD AVE 102 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0404 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8900 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0405 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8900 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0406 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8900 BROOKWOOD AVE 302 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0407 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8906 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0408 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8906 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0410 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8906 BROOKWOOD AVE 301 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0412 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8912 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0413 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8912 BROOKWOOD AVE 102 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0414 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8912 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0415 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8912 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0416 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8912 BROOKWOOD AVE 302 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0417 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8918 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0418 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8918 BROOKWOOD AVE 102 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0419 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8918 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0420 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8918 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0421 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8924 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0423 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8924 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0425 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8924 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0426 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8924 BROOKWOOD AVE 302 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0427 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8930 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0428 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8930 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0430 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8930 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0431 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8930 BROOKWOOD AVE 301 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0432 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8930 BROOKWOOD AVE 302 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0433 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8936 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0434 Certified



K -11-22-480-026 8936 BROOKWOOD AVE 102 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0435 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8936 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0436 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8936 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0437 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8942 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0440 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8942 BROOKWOOD AVE 102 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0441 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8942 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0442 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8942 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0443 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8948 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0445 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8948 BROOKWOOD AVE 302 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0449 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8954 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0450 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8954 BROOKWOOD AVE 102 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0451 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8954 BROOKWOOD AVE 201 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0452 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8954 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0453 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8954 BROOKWOOD AVE 301 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0454 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8954 BROOKWOOD AVE 302 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0455 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8960 BROOKWOOD AVE 101 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0456 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8960 BROOKWOOD AVE 102 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0457 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 1 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0460 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 1-MECH Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0461 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 2 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0462 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 2-MECH Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0463 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 3 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0464 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 3-MECH Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0465 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 4 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0466 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 4-MECH Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0467 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 5 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0468 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 5-MECH Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0469 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 6 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0470 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8990 BROOKWOOD AVE BLDG 6-MECH Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0471 Certified

K -11-22-480-026 8960 BROOKWOOD AVE 202 Multi-Family Rental Inspection CMFR-23-0472 Certified

K -11-23-410-080 9649 BAYVIEW DR 210 Rental 24 CSFR-23-0116 Certified

K -11-24-132-009 2090 MOELLER AVE Rental 24 CSFR-22-1179 Certified

K -11-24-206-010 2070 WOODALE AVE Rental 24 CSFR-22-1251 Certified

K -11-34-100-002 8601 MARTZ RD Rental 24 CSFR-22-1253 Certified



Parcel Number Address Display String Cert Type Cert Number Status

K -11-03-177-038 1221 REDLEAF LN Vacant Residential CVR-23-0015 Suspended

K -11-11-490-015 789 NASH AVE Vacant Residential CVR-23-0016 Suspended

New Vacant Structure Applications - May 2023



Permit Type Category Date Issued Permit Number Address Display String Construction Value Amount Paid Total

Building Res Alter/Repair 05/01/2023 PB23-0345 375 SENATE AVE $1,000.00 $100.00

Building Com Addition 05/01/2023 PB23-0275 2448 WASHTENAW $188,000.00 $2,225.00

Building Building 05/02/2023 PB23-0292 7115 NATALIE DR $3,872.00 $110.00

Building Res Solar Panel 05/09/2023 PB23-0356 8755 LILLY DR $5,775.00 $130.00

Building Res Misc Concrete 05/10/2023 PB23-0314 6096 TUTTLE HILL RD $5,900.00 $130.00

Building Building 05/10/2023 PB23-0367 10258 SWAN LAKE CIR $6,500.00 $140.00

Building Res Addition 05/09/2023 PB23-0347 2045 MCKINLEY AVE $10,000.00 $270.00

Building Res Alter/Repair 05/11/2023 PB23-0355 1340 DUNCAN AVE $5,200.00 $130.00

Building Res Alter/Repair 05/12/2023 PB23-0378 55 DEVONSHIRE RD $13,158.00 $210.00

Building Com Roof 05/12/2023 PB23-0391 3100 WASHTENAW RD $699,900.00 $7,045.00

Building Com  Alter/Repair 05/12/2023 PB20-0067 2905 WASHTENAW RD $10,000.00 $445.00

Building Swimming Pool (residential) 05/15/2023 PB23-0373 7099 MISSION HILLS DR $5,354.00 $130.00

Building Com  Alter/Repair 05/17/2023 PB23-0360 2643 ELLSWORTH RD $5,000.00 $395.00

Building Res Solar Panel 05/17/2023 PB23-0351 2089 MARY CATHERINE ST $3,207.00 $110.00

Building Res Solar Panel 05/18/2023 PB23-0415 7227 COLCHESTER LN $5,774.00 $130.00

Building Res Misc Concrete 05/18/2023 PB23-0420 7614 GREENE FARM DR $8,495.00 $175.00

Building Res Solar Panel 05/22/2023 PB23-0346 776 E GRAND BLVD $39,000.00 $475.00

Building Com Roof 05/23/2023 PB23-0451 7190 S HURON RIVER DR $175,845.00 $1,805.00

Building Com  Alter/Repair 05/23/2023 PB23-0452 2025 E CLARK RD $75,650.00 $805.00

Building Res Garage detached 05/26/2023 PB23-0414 2418 CANYON DR $34,580.00 $420.00

Building Building 05/26/2023 PB23-0425 1105 GAULT DR $5,626.00 $130.00

Building Building 05/26/2023 PB23-0424 1725 W MICHIGAN AVE $36,000.00 $430.00

Building Com  Alter/Repair 05/30/2023 PB22-0703 608 S HEWITT RD $150,000.00 $1,925.00

Building Com Sign 05/31/2023 PB23-0413 3175 W CLARK RD $3,245.00 $375.00

Building Com Roof 05/31/2023 PB23-0474 3015 WASHTENAW RD $64,318.00 $695.00

Electrical Electrical 05/31/2023 PE23-0250 608 S HEWITT RD $0.00 $153.00

Electrical Electrical 05/31/2023 PE23-0238 5193 TEXTILE RD $0.00 $143.00

Electrical Electrical 05/31/2023 PE23-0249 689 ONANDAGA AVE $0.00 $140.00

Electrical Mechanical 05/31/2023 PE23-0247 1132 JUNEAU RD $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/30/2023 PE23-0246 2643 ELLSWORTH RD $0.00 $90.00

Electrical Electrical 05/30/2023 PE23-0243 1063 GROVE RD $0.00 $75.00

Building Department Permits Issued - May 2023



Electrical Electrical 05/26/2023 PE23-0244 1310 CANDLEWOOD LN $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/26/2023 PE23-0245 6330 BUNTON RD $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/24/2023 PE23-0230 10169 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/24/2023 PE23-0231 10175 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/24/2023 PE23-0232 10181 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/24/2023 PE23-0233 9428 MAPLELAWN CT $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/24/2023 PE23-0234 9113 FAWN DR $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/24/2023 PE23-0228 528 HUNT PL $0.00 $90.00

Electrical Electrical 05/24/2023 PE23-0236 3775 GOLFSIDE RD $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/24/2023 PE23-0235 1127 LEVONA ST $0.00 $80.00

Electrical Electrical 05/25/2023 PE23-0239 2057 MOELLER AVE $0.00 $90.00

Electrical Electrical 05/26/2023 PE23-0237 1400 LEVONA ST $0.00 $125.00

Electrical Electrical 05/26/2023 PE23-0240 3375 E MICHIGAN 222 $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/26/2023 PE23-0241 3375 E MICHIGAN 005 $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/26/2023 PE23-0242 3375 E MICHIGAN 006 $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/23/2023 PE23-0229 6139 SCHUSS XING $0.00 $85.00

Electrical Electrical 05/22/2023 PE23-0227 2748 WASHTENAW RD $0.00 $90.00

Electrical Electrical 05/18/2023 PE23-0224 7885 TUTTLE HILL RD $0.00 $130.00

Electrical Electrical 05/22/2023 PE23-0194 776 E GRAND BLVD $0.00 $90.00

Electrical Electrical 05/19/2023 PE23-0225 1756 TYLER RD $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/19/2023 PE23-0223 10340 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/19/2023 PE23-0222 10330 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/17/2023 PE23-0220 77 DEVONSHIRE RD $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/17/2023 PE23-0219 5598 CARY DR $0.00 $125.00

Electrical Electrical 05/16/2023 PE23-0217 29 CARRIAGE WAY $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/17/2023 PE23-0218 7227 COLCHESTER LN $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/16/2023 PE23-0214 1365 DESOTO AVE $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/16/2023 PE23-0215 422 BROOKSIDE ST $0.00 $112.00

Electrical Electrical 05/16/2023 PE23-0211 10218 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $423.00

Electrical Electrical 05/16/2023 PE23-0216 10208 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $423.00

Electrical Electrical 05/16/2023 PE23-0210 10226 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $423.00

Electrical Electrical 05/15/2023 PE23-0212 2025 E CLARK RD $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/15/2023 PE23-0198 7099 MISSION HILLS DR $0.00 $98.00

Electrical Electrical 05/15/2023 PE23-0209 6098 SCHUSS XING $0.00 $85.00



Electrical Electrical 05/12/2023 PE23-0208 9161 FAWN DR $0.00 $168.00

Electrical Electrical 05/12/2023 PE23-0207 2731 ELLIS RD $0.00 $183.00

Electrical Electrical 05/11/2023 PE23-0205 520 RICE AVE $0.00 $85.00

Electrical Electrical 05/09/2023 PE23-0204 7364 NATALIE DR $0.00 $85.00

Electrical Electrical 05/10/2023 PE23-0201 256 N HEWITT RD $0.00 $162.00

Electrical Electrical 05/09/2023 PE23-0203 6640 WHITTAKER RD $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/05/2023 PE23-0193 7896 THORNHILL DR $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/08/2023 PE23-0199 5639 S EAGLE CT $0.00 $112.00

Electrical Electrical 05/08/2023 PE23-0195 2089 MARY CATHERINE ST $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/08/2023 PE23-0196 8755 LILLY DR $0.00 $75.00

Electrical Electrical 05/08/2023 PE23-0202 1781 CADILLAC AVE $0.00 $120.00

Electrical Electrical 05/02/2023 PE23-0162 6234 BOYNE DR $0.00 $146.00

Electrical Electrical 05/04/2023 PE23-0197 534 OAKLAWN AVE $0.00 $270.00

Electrical Electrical 05/01/2023 PE23-0192 68 N CLUBVIEW DR $0.00 $85.00

Fire SuppressionFire Suppression 05/12/2023 PFS23-0007 2800 WASHTENAW RD $0.00 $290.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/15/2023 PM23-0618 1780 MEADOW WOODS BLVD $0.00 $125.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/15/2023 PM23-0620 506 FAIRFIELD ST $0.00 $145.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/15/2023 PM23-0621 6098 SCHUSS XING $0.00 $120.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/15/2023 PM23-0616 8067 LAKE CREST DR $0.00 $188.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/15/2023 PM23-0588 2175 BRADLEY AVE $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/16/2023 PM23-0614 375 SENATE AVE $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/16/2023 PM23-0623 5078 BOSUNS WAY BLVD Laundry$0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/16/2023 PM23-0624 8615 SPINNAKER WAY C2 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/16/2023 PM23-0622 2947 ROUNDTREE BLVD C4 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/16/2023 PM23-0629 1382 CRESTWOOD AVE $0.00 $135.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/17/2023 PM23-0626 10090 MARTZ RD $0.00 $105.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/17/2023 PM23-0625 1307 FALL RIVER RD $0.00 $145.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/17/2023 PM23-0631 7857 COLLIN CT $0.00 $115.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/17/2023 PM23-0632 77 DEVONSHIRE RD $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/19/2023 PM23-0645 2643 ELLSWORTH RD $0.00 $250.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/18/2023 PM23-0638 480 BERKLEY ST $0.00 $90.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/18/2023 PM23-0641 2090 MERRILL ST $0.00 $125.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/18/2023 PM23-0639 624 ONANDAGA AVE $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/18/2023 PM23-0633 2932 ROUNDTREE BLVD $0.00 $135.00



Mechanical Mechanical 05/18/2023 PM23-0634 2090 MERRILL ST $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/17/2023 PM23-0630 147 CARRIAGE WAY $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/22/2023 PM23-0619 10181 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $215.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/22/2023 PM23-0617 10169 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $215.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/22/2023 PM23-0615 10175 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $215.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/22/2023 PM23-0650 2778 APPLERIDGE ST $0.00 $135.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/22/2023 PM23-0651 1745 LYNN CT $0.00 $135.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/23/2023 PM23-0640 6335 TUTTLE HILL RD $0.00 $105.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/23/2023 PM23-0653 1589 WINGATE BLVD $0.00 $105.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/23/2023 PM23-0654 7885 TUTTLE HILL RD $0.00 $160.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/23/2023 PM23-0635 3375 E MICHIGAN 006 $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/23/2023 PM23-0636 3375 E MICHIGAN 005 $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/23/2023 PM23-0637 3375 E MICHIGAN 222 $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0575 803 N REDWOOD AVE $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0564 821 N REDWOOD AVE $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0560 823 N REDWOOD AVE $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0581 889 CLIFFS DR 305A $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0553 843 MAPLEWOOD AVE $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0580 897 DESOTO AVE $0.00 $135.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0558 780 BROWNING CT 4 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0567 780 BROWNING CT 5 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0569 799 BROWNING CT 1 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0565 799 BROWNING CT 3 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0571 799 BROWNING CT 6 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0568 799 BROWNING CT 8 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0563 799 BROWNING CT 7 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0562 1082 COLEMAN ST $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0559 730 BROWNING CT 3 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0570 745 BROWNING CT 7 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0566 730 BROWNING CT 1 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0557 730 BROWNING CT 5 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0561 745 BROWNING CT 2 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0576 767 BROWNING CT 2 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0572 730 BROWNING CT 7 $0.00 $75.00



Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0577 767 BROWNING CT 3 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0554 745 BROWNING CT 1 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0573 767 BROWNING CT 5 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/01/2023 PM23-0574 767 BROWNING CT 7 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/04/2023 PM23-0591 7321 WELLINGTON LN $0.00 $155.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/04/2023 PM23-0587 7490 KENSINGTON DR $0.00 $135.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/04/2023 PM23-0593 1154 LEXINGTON PKWY $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/03/2023 PM23-0585 9573 HARBOUR COVE CT $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/05/2023 PM23-0589 953 N TERRACE LN $0.00 $0.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/05/2023 PM23-0590 953 N TERRACE LN $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/05/2023 PM23-0400 1268 HOLMES RD 8 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/05/2023 PM23-0399 1310 HOLMES RD 2 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/05/2023 PM23-0398 1302 HOLMES RD 8 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/05/2023 PM23-0397 1284 HOLMES RD 2 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/05/2023 PM23-0396 1268 HOLMES RD 6 $0.00 $90.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/02/2023 PM23-0579 1213 FALL RIVER RD $0.00 $105.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/02/2023 PM23-0578 7178 POPLAR DR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/03/2023 PM23-0584 9113 FAWN DR $0.00 $258.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/03/2023 PM23-0583 68 N CLUBVIEW DR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/02/2023 PM23-0466 6234 BOYNE DR $0.00 $135.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/03/2023 PM23-0380 267 S WALLACE BLVD $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/08/2023 PM23-0600 2731 ELLIS RD $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/08/2023 PM23-0595 614 VILLA DR $0.00 $90.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/08/2023 PM23-0596 5639 S EAGLE CT $0.00 $90.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/08/2023 PM23-0597 21 OREGON ST $0.00 $115.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/05/2023 PM23-0555 7896 THORNHILL DR $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/09/2023 PM23-0603 1298 FALL RIVER RD $0.00 $150.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/09/2023 PM23-0604 2295 PACKARD RD $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/10/2023 PM23-0532 597 EUGENE ST $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/09/2023 PM23-0599 1310 HOLMES RD 5 $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/09/2023 PM23-0602 7364 NATALIE DR $0.00 $115.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/10/2023 PM23-0601 256 N HEWITT RD $0.00 $150.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/10/2023 PM23-0606 7437 ESSEX DR $0.00 $105.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/10/2023 PM23-0605 3015 WASHTENAW RD $0.00 $155.00



Mechanical Mechanical 05/11/2023 PM23-0598 10340 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $215.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/11/2023 PM23-0594 10330 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $228.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/11/2023 PM23-0609 520 RICE AVE $0.00 $90.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/11/2023 PM23-0607 2991 GOLFVIEW CT $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/11/2023 PM23-0608 7720 BERWICK DR $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/11/2023 PM23-0610 7743 THORNHILL DR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/11/2023 PM23-0611 7092 COLCHESTER LN $0.00 $165.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/11/2023 PM23-0612 6640 WHITTAKER RD $0.00 $145.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/11/2023 PM23-0613 7340 WARWICK DR $0.00 $90.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/26/2023 PM23-0668 1935 SMITH ST $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/25/2023 PM23-0663 6264 CREEKSIDE CIR $0.00 $145.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/25/2023 PM23-0664 1093 DESOTO AVE $0.00 $140.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/25/2023 PM23-0666 1934 HARMON ST $0.00 $105.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/24/2023 PM23-0658 7446 LOCHMOOR DR $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/24/2023 PM23-0657 6587 ROBINDALE DR $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/25/2023 PM23-0662 1300 N PROSPECT RD $0.00 $115.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/24/2023 PM23-0660 9113 FAWN DR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/24/2023 PM23-0659 1112 LESTER AVE $0.00 $148.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/24/2023 PM23-0656 1966 MARY CATHERINE ST $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/24/2023 PM23-0655 1065 WOODGLEN AVE $0.00 $115.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/26/2023 PM23-0672 9436 NATURE VIEW LN $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/26/2023 PM23-0673 7361 MERRITT RD $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/26/2023 PM23-0674 1541 WINGATE BLVD $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/26/2023 PM23-0671 7336 STREAMWOOD DR $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/26/2023 PM23-0670 1310 CANDLEWOOD LN $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/26/2023 PM23-0669 7621 HENLEY DR $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/30/2023 PM23-0676 10079 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/30/2023 PM23-0684 10218 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/30/2023 PM23-0683 10208 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/30/2023 PM23-0682 10226 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/30/2023 PM23-0681 10097 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/30/2023 PM23-0680 10181 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/30/2023 PM23-0679 10175 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/30/2023 PM23-0678 10169 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $85.00



Mechanical Mechanical 05/30/2023 PM23-0677 10085 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/30/2023 PM23-0675 9428 MAPLELAWN CT $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/31/2023 PM23-0665 7551 WARWICK DR $0.00 $188.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/31/2023 PM23-0688 1132 JUNEAU RD $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/31/2023 PM23-0687 1707 KNOWLES ST $0.00 $85.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/31/2023 PM23-0689 6447 OAKHURST DR $0.00 $105.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/31/2023 PM23-0648 2521 INTERNATIONAL DR 1027A $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/31/2023 PM23-0646 2561 INTERNATIONAL DR 1141B $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/31/2023 PM21-0945 2840 INTERNATIONAL DR 424C $0.00 $75.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/31/2023 PM23-0691 7043 OAKRIDGE DR $0.00 $105.00

Mechanical Mechanical 05/24/2023 PM23-0661 9609 LANDSDOWNE LN $0.00 $85.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/31/2023 PP23-0215 608 S HEWITT RD $0.00 $170.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/30/2023 PP23-0212 1088 STUDEBAKER AVE $0.00 $98.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/26/2023 PP23-0213 393 ELDER ST $0.00 $90.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/24/2023 PP23-0207 9113 FAWN DR $0.00 $276.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/24/2023 PP23-0208 630 N TERRACE LN # 636 $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/25/2023 PP23-0209 2448 WASHTENAW $0.00 $274.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/25/2023 PP23-0211 85 S HEWITT RD #2 $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/25/2023 PP23-0210 85 S HEWITT RD #1 $0.00 $90.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/12/2023 PP23-0170 55 DEVONSHIRE RD $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/10/2023 PP23-0169 596 HUNT PL $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/10/2023 PP23-0171 7513 ROXBURY DR $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/10/2023 PP23-0172 375 SENATE AVE $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/08/2023 PP23-0168 2731 ELLIS RD $0.00 $345.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/03/2023 PP23-0161 2190 BURNS AVE $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/02/2023 PP23-0164 7503 DORAL DR $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/05/2023 PP23-0167 480 BERKLEY ST $0.00 $323.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/04/2023 PP23-0119 7235 STREAMWOOD DR $0.00 $90.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/04/2023 PP23-0166 936 ECORSE RD $0.00 $135.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/01/2023 PP23-0163 2111 RAWSONVILLE RD $0.00 $1,152.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/01/2023 PP23-0162 1216 HULL AVE $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/01/2023 PP23-0160 966 N PROSPECT RD $0.00 $259.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/23/2023 PP23-0198 3375 E MICHIGAN 222 $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/23/2023 PP23-0197 3375 E MICHIGAN 005 $0.00 $75.00



Plumbing Plumbing 05/23/2023 PP23-0196 3375 E MICHIGAN 006 $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/23/2023 PP23-0206 7667 GREENE FARM CT $0.00 $90.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/18/2023 PP23-0191 1340 DUNCAN AVE $0.00 $140.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/22/2023 PP23-0205 2277 COLONY WAY $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/22/2023 PP23-0204 6223 CHERRYWOOD DR $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/17/2023 PP23-0192 5598 CARY DR $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/16/2023 PP23-0189 221 HILLCREST BLVD $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/16/2023 PP23-0190 7089 STREAMWOOD DR $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/15/2023 PP23-0185 7808 TROTTERS PARK ST $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/15/2023 PP23-0174 10218 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $276.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/15/2023 PP23-0182 10226 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $276.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/15/2023 PP23-0181 10097 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $276.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/15/2023 PP23-0180 10085 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $276.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/15/2023 PP23-0179 10079 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $276.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/15/2023 PP23-0178 9428 MAPLELAWN CT $0.00 $326.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/15/2023 PP23-0183 10208 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $276.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/15/2023 PP23-0187 375 SENATE AVE $0.00 $135.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/15/2023 PP23-0188 1465 RUE WILLETTE BLVD $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/12/2023 PP23-0184 1417 GATTEGNO ST $0.00 $288.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/15/2023 PP23-0186 9215 PARKLAND DR $0.00 $75.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/12/2023 PP23-0173 1093 DESOTO AVE $0.00 $200.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/12/2023 PP23-0177 10181 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $276.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/12/2023 PP23-0176 10175 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $276.00

Plumbing Plumbing 05/12/2023 PP23-0175 10169 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $276.00

Plumbing-Water/sewer sumpPlumbing 05/19/2023 PP23-0193 10208 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $112.00

Plumbing-Water/sewer sumpPlumbing 05/19/2023 PP23-0194 10226 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $112.00

Plumbing-Water/sewer sumpPlumbing 05/19/2023 PP23-0195 10218 SWAN LAKE CIR $0.00 $112.00

Plumbing-Water/sewer sumpPlumbing 05/19/2023 PP23-0203 1784 EILEEN AVE $0.00 $105.00

Plumbing-Water/sewer sumpPlumbing 05/02/2023 PP23-0165 1160 LEXINGTON PKWY $0.00 $75.00

Res - Basement finishRes - Basement finish 05/02/2023 PB23-0311 6306 MAPLEHURST DR $3,000.00 $75.00

Res - Basement finishRes - Basement finish 05/03/2023 PB23-0332 7253 ROYAL TROON DR $6,000.00 $130.00

Res - Basement finishRes - Basement finish 05/18/2023 PB23-0404 6236 SCHUSS XING $10,000.00 $170.00

Res - Basement finishRes - Basement finish 05/18/2023 PB23-0417 5598 CARY DR $3,000.00 $75.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/18/2023 PB23-0379 7453 RED BIRD DR $33,869.00 $410.00



Res - Deck Res Deck 05/18/2023 PB23-0392 8125 LAKE CREST DR $396,000.00 $485.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/17/2023 PB23-0395 10149 SWAN LAKE CIR $10,000.00 $170.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/17/2023 PB23-0370 9373 WHITE TAIL DR $5,000.00 $120.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/19/2023 PB23-0401 6065 VISTA DR $11,000.00 $195.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/22/2023 PB23-0419 6154 EAGLE TRACE DR $23,178.00 $310.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/23/2023 PB23-0400 312 DAKOTA AVE $4,000.00 $110.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/23/2023 PB23-0445 8851 AMARANTH LN $6,580.00 $140.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/23/2023 PB23-0421 6142 S MIAMI ST $7,500.00 $150.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/24/2023 PB23-0407 1708 GROVE RD $33,473.00 $410.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/15/2023 PB23-0396 5918 WILLOWBRIDGE RD $10,000.00 $170.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/05/2023 PB23-0234 7067 POPLAR DR $5,000.00 $120.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/02/2023 PB23-0317 7034 CREEKWAY CT $10,500.00 $195.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/01/2023 PB23-0348 7361 COLCHESTER LN $6,000.00 $105.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/03/2023 PB23-0325 6173 COLUMBIA DR $12,000.00 $240.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/08/2023 PB23-0339 7142 COLCHESTER LN $28,238.00 $360.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/26/2023 PB23-0376 8432 FARM LN $19,000.00 $260.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/25/2023 PB23-0443 6081 CHERRYWOOD DR $16,800.00 $240.00

Res - Deck Res Deck 05/31/2023 PB23-0453 6540 STONY CREEK RD $20,000.00 $270.00

Res - Egress WindowRes - Egress Window 05/18/2023 PB23-0357 2376 COLONY WAY $6,100.00 $140.00

Res - Mobile HomeRes - Mobile Home 05/15/2023 PB23-0385 3375 E MICHIGAN 006 $0.00 $160.00

Res - Mobile HomeRes - Mobile Home 05/15/2023 PB23-0386 3375 E MICHIGAN 005 $0.00 $170.00

Res - Mobile HomeRes - Mobile Home 05/15/2023 PB23-0388 3375 E MICHIGAN 222 $0.00 $170.00

Res - Mobile HomeRes - Mobile Home 05/04/2023 PB23-0319 2949 MONTROSE $0.00 $150.00

Res - Mobile HomeRes - Mobile Home 05/04/2023 PB23-0321 2985 MONTROSE $0.00 $150.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/03/2023 PB23-0359 1113 ZEPHYR ST $7,000.00 $115.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/01/2023 PB23-0352 246 DEVONSHIRE RD $10,240.00 $155.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/01/2023 PB23-0338 2360 MERRILL ST $8,575.00 $135.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/01/2023 PB23-0302 7338 KNOLLWOOD DR $10,650.00 $155.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/01/2023 PB23-0350 7341 DEER TRACK DR $12,330.00 $175.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/08/2023 PB23-0371 1195 RIDGE RD $13,000.00 $175.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/05/2023 PB23-0365 915 OTTAWA AVE $17,965.00 $225.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/09/2023 PB23-0293 525 EMERICK ST $11,183.00 $165.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/08/2023 PB23-0363 5694 HIGH RIDGE DR $10,000.00 $145.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/09/2023 PB23-0366 1234 HULL AVE $3,566.00 $85.00



Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/11/2023 PB23-0390 9255 CREEKWAY DR $6,000.00 $105.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/15/2023 PB23-0397 1157 EVELYN AVE $3,490.00 $85.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/16/2023 PB23-0412 2040 CRITTENDON AVE $3,000.00 $75.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/16/2023 PB23-0398 8221 S HURON RIVER DR $12,845.00 $175.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/16/2023 PB23-0406 110 CAMPBELL AVE $9,990.00 $145.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/16/2023 PB23-0408 1710 TYLER RD $8,835.00 $135.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/16/2023 PB23-0409 6234 S MIAMI ST $6,019.00 $115.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/16/2023 PB23-0411 1321 DESOTO AVE $7,606.00 $125.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/19/2023 PB23-0433 8935 INDIGO LN $19,368.00 $245.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/22/2023 PB23-0441 1381 JEFFERY ST $13,110.00 $185.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/22/2023 PB23-0440 1754 SMITH ST $7,996.00 $125.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/18/2023 PB23-0418 8133 STARLING CT $16,800.00 $215.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/23/2023 PB23-0444 231 EDISON AVE $15,750.00 $205.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/23/2023 PB23-0455 8773 LILLY DR $9,580.00 $145.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/22/2023 PB23-0447 5729 MUNGER RD $20,000.00 $245.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/22/2023 PB23-0448 9817 WOODLAND CT $13,878.00 $200.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/22/2023 PB23-0437 1720 RUSSELL ST $17,348.00 $225.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/22/2023 PB23-0435 1105 LEXINGTON PKWY $14,586.00 $195.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/22/2023 PB23-0436 7535 TUTTLE HILL RD $20,440.00 $255.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/22/2023 PB23-0434 1401 GLENGROVE AVE $6,050.00 $115.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/30/2023 PB23-0462 370 N CLUBVIEW DR $18,620.00 $235.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/30/2023 PB23-0468 528 E CLARK RD $15,288.00 $205.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/30/2023 PB23-0467 630 EUGENE ST $8,586.00 $135.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/24/2023 PB23-0460 1323 GAULT DR $8,057.00 $135.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/25/2023 PB23-0459 5556 MICHAEL DR $11,200.00 $165.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/25/2023 PB23-0458 1748 SMITH ST $10,963.00 $155.00

Res - Roof Res - Roof 05/31/2023 PB23-0478 6400 MEADOWLARK LN $9,000.00 $135.00

Res - Siding Res - Siding 05/12/2023 PB23-0364 7968 RAINTREE DR $55,234.00 $605.00

Res - Siding Res - Siding 05/01/2023 PB23-0349 1116 E FOREST AVE $12,705.00 $190.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/01/2023 PB23-0263 7911 BREEZEWOOD CT $38,830.00 $435.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/03/2023 PB23-0354 1082 JANET AVE $9,018.00 $145.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/04/2023 PB23-0361 7356 W BROOK DR $4,000.00 $85.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/11/2023 PB23-0281 1254 CRESTWOOD AVE $32,357.00 $375.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/12/2023 PB23-0113 5554 N EAGLE CT $44,618.00 $495.00



Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/11/2023 PB23-0389 7887 THORNHILL DR $9,127.00 $145.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/10/2023 PB23-0380 2063 MCKINLEY AVE $3,302.00 $85.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/11/2023 PB23-0381 2928 MAZIN CT $14,303.00 $195.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/11/2023 PB23-0279 527 LYNNE AVE $18,980.00 $235.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/10/2023 PB23-0277 895 GROVE RD $23,634.00 $285.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/10/2023 PB23-0278 6594 WHITTAKER RD $25,799.00 $305.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/10/2023 PB23-0362 7101 INDIAN WELLS DR $6,872.00 $115.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/09/2023 PB23-0375 8683 LILLY DR $3,000.00 $75.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/09/2023 PB23-0374 7826 DOVER DR $8,400.00 $135.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/10/2023 PB23-0372 6423 ENCHANTED DR $18,464.00 $235.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/08/2023 PB23-0335 7406 MEADOW LN $4,294.00 $95.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/06/2023 PB23-0331 6450 STONY CREEK RD $4,977.00 $95.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/06/2023 PB23-0330 829 AUBURNDALE AVE $8,546.00 $135.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/17/2023 PB23-0382 5246 ELLIS RD $15,020.00 $205.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/16/2023 PB23-0399 6139 SCHUSS XING $11,510.00 $165.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/17/2023 PB23-0393 7190 SHAMROCK HL $13,271.00 $185.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/17/2023 PB23-0387 7015 HOGAN DR $13,483.00 $185.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/17/2023 PB23-0383 537 ROSEWOOD AVE $5,064.00 $105.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/22/2023 PB23-0353 910 DAVIS ST $10,103.00 $155.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/23/2023 PB23-0454 7608 DOVER DR $5,729.00 $105.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/22/2023 PB23-0439 5773 NEW MEADOW DR $6,141.00 $115.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/22/2023 PB23-0438 611 N MIAMI AVE $6,260.00 $115.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/22/2023 PB23-0442 1211 RUE DEAUVILLE BLVD $2,605.00 $75.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/19/2023 PB23-0427 1108 WOODGLEN AVE $2,544.00 $75.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/19/2023 PB23-0428 6010 EAGLE TRACE DR $11,197.00 $165.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/25/2023 PB23-0384 1243 DUNCAN AVE $12,120.00 $175.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/25/2023 PB23-0464 213 DAKOTA AVE $450.00 $75.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/26/2023 PB23-0469 1471 E CHATEAU VERT ST APT D$4,228.00 $55.00

Res - Windows Res - Windows 05/30/2023 PB23-0472 5360 MICHAEL DR $24,526.00 $310.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/31/2023 PZP23-0052 6450 TEXTILE RD $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/25/2023 PZP23-0051 413 N HEWITT RD $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/25/2023 PZP23-0039 8951 CREEKWAY DR $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/18/2023 PZP23-0045 650 N MIAMI AVE $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/17/2023 PZP23-0047 2057 TYLER RD $0.00 $50.00



Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/22/2023 PZP23-0027 8789 CREEKWAY DR $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/22/2023 PZP23-0049 7485 ESSEX DR $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/17/2023 PZP23-0048 5454 BIG PINE DR $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Shed 05/16/2023 PZP23-0044 1785 OUTER LANE DR $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/12/2023 PZP23-0038 141 EDISON AVE $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Patio 05/05/2023 PZP23-0040 314 EDISON AVE $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/09/2023 PZP23-0041 7110 WELLINGTON LN $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/09/2023 PZP23-0042 6593 TEXTILE RD $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Shed 05/09/2023 PZP23-0043 1944 VETERANS MEMORIAL DR $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Shed 05/09/2023 PZP23-0037 7068 AMBERLY WAY $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/11/2023 PZP23-0030 7494 ROXBURY DR $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/03/2023 PZP23-0034 7099 LOCHMOOR DR $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/03/2023 PZP23-0032 1961 CHEVROLET AVE $0.00 $50.00

Zoning Zoning - Fence 05/02/2023 PZP23-0028 7034 CREEKWAY CT $0.00 $50.00

$3,157,262.00 $67,362.00



C O Number Address Display String Status Date Temp Issued Date Finaled

OF23-0011 10217 SWAN LAKE CIR ISSUED (FINAL) 05/17/2023

OF23-0012 10223 SWAN LAKE CIR ISSUED (FINAL) 05/17/2023

OF23-0013 10229 SWAN LAKE CIR ISSUED (FINAL) 05/17/2023

OF23-0014 3015 WASHTENAW RD ISSUED (FINAL) 05/19/2023

OF23-0015 7722 OXFORD CT ISSUED (FINAL) 05/24/2023

OF23-0016 6016 MERRITT RD ISSUED (FINAL) 05/24/2023

OF23-0017 10090 SWAN LAKE CIR ISSUED (FINAL) 05/30/2023

OF23-0018 10082 SWAN LAKE CIR ISSUED (FINAL) 05/30/2023

OF23-0019 6841 SWAN LAKE CT ISSUED (FINAL) 05/30/2023

OF23-0020 6847 SWAN LAKE CT ISSUED (FINAL) 05/30/2023

Building Certificates of Occupancy Issued - May 2023



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

June 7, 2023  
 
Re: Planning Division (OCS) May 2023 Activity Summary 

 
 

Please be advised of the following activities related to the Planning 
Department for May 2023. 

 
Zoning verification letters issued:  4 

Building and zoning permit applications reviewed: 63 

Business registration applications reviewed: 4 
 

 
Planning Commission: The May 9, 2023, and May 23, 2023, Planning 
Commission Meetings were cancelled due to lack of agenda.  
 
Zoning Board of Appeals: At the May 3, 2023, Zoning Board of Appeals meeting, 
the following items were considered:  
 
Public Hearing 
 
Applicant:  Andrew Shaw – ALDI, Inc. 
Location:  1420 S. Huron Street, Ypsilanti, MI 49187 
Parcel ID:  K-11-38-280-014 
Request:  Article 5 – Sec. 503. Standards: Request for variance to the build-to line 

setbacks. Article 5 – Sec. 507. Design Standards: Request for variance to 
the building location requirements 

 
MOTION: Mr. Eldridge MOVED to approve the variance request for ALDI Inc. to be located on a 
parcel at 1420 S. Huron Street, Ypsilanti, MI, 48197 (K-11-38-280-017). The variances are as 
follows: 

1. Article 5, Section 503, Standards: To allow the front build-to-line for South Huron 
Street to be set at 40 feet from Huron Street right of way. 

2. Article 5, Section 503, Standards: To allow the front build-to-line for Brinker Way 
to be set at 154 feet from the Brinker Way right of way. 

3. Article 5, Section 507, Design Standards: To allow the building to be located 
outside the corner of the lot adjacent to the intersection. 

 
The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Hine. 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Roll Call Vote: Mr. Eldridge (Yes), Mr. Hine (Yes), Mr. Marshall (Yes), Mr. Burnett (Yes), Ms. 
El-Assadi (Yes). MOTION PASSED. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 

 2201 Hogback Road ◆ Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732 ◆ OFFICE  (734) 971-8400 ◆ FAX  (734) 973-4624 ◆ EMAIL  sheriffinfo@ewashtenaw.org 
JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 

 SHERIFF   UNDERSHERIFF 

 

Public Safety – Quality Service – Strong Communities 
Serving Washtenaw County since 1823 

To: Brenda Stumbo, Ypsilanti Township Supervisor 
From: Shane Peltier, Police Services Lieutenant 
Cc: Ypsilanti Township Board  
 Keith Flores, WCSO Police Services Commander  
 Nancy Hansen, WCSO Police Services Captain 
Date: June 7, 2023 
Re: May 2023 Police Services Monthly Report 
 
SUMMARY: 
During the month of May 2023, there were 3,589 calls for service in Ypsilanti Township, a 5% decrease in 
calls for service as compared to May 2022. 
 
OPERATIONS 
During May 2023, Patrol Operations responded to calls for service, conducted traffic enforcement, and 
completed criminal investigations in support of our citizen’s quality of life. 
 
In the month of May 2023 there were 11 home invasions, which is a 22% increase as compared to May 
2022 (9 home invasions). In many of these incidents a domestic relationship and unauthorized entry 
were common. The best prevention methods for a typical residential home invasion are to keep all 
windows and doors locked (including vehicles in the driveway), including deadbolts, while away from 
home. External lighting and visual deterrents such as “Beware of Dog” or alarm signage also discourages 
criminals. 
 
In the month of May 2023 there were 0 breaking and entering’s. In the month of May 2022, we saw 3 
breaking and entering’s.   
 
In May 2023 there were 11 reported UDAA’s. This is an 8% decrease compared to May 2022 where 
there were 12 reported UDAA’s. Many of these vehicle thefts occurred by the suspect gaining entry to 
an unlocked vehicle. Citizens are reminded to lock all vehicle doors and keep ignition keys in separate 
and secure areas to prevent such thefts. Valuables, if left in a vehicle, should be placed in a concealed 
location. The following website provides further information regarding the reduction of potential for 
theft of your vehicle, common vehicles targeted, and further information. 
  
 https://www.nhtsa.gov/road-safety/vehicle-theft-prevention  
 
YOUTH INITIATIVE 
The Sheriff’s Office continues to partner with courts, probation, and social services to ensure that there 
is accountability beyond Sheriff’s Office contact with the offenders that are consistently involved in 
crimes.  From a year-to-year perspective, comparing 2023 to 2022, our juvenile offenses and complaints 
are up 50% (from 66 to 99) and our runaway complaints are down 35.1% (from 37 to 24).  
 

 

https://www.nhtsa.gov/road-safety/vehicle-theft-prevention


 
 
 
 
 

 

 2201 Hogback Road ◆ Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732 ◆ OFFICE  (734) 971-8400 ◆ FAX  (734) 973-4624 ◆ EMAIL  sheriffinfo@ewashtenaw.org 
JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 

 SHERIFF   UNDERSHERIFF 
 

Public Safety – Quality Service – Strong Communities 
Serving Washtenaw County since 1823 

 
 

 
COMMUNITY ACTION TEAM   
The purpose of the Community Action Team (CAT) is to respond to situations involving or with a nexus 
of drugs, guns, or violence.  The team focuses on the timely assessment and response to tips they 
receive from our community and community problems identified through crime pattern analysis.  
 
CAT collaboration with the Michigan Department of Corrections in reference to parole compliance 
contributes to effective monitoring and management of parolees who live in our community.  Timely 
and efficient response to tips regarding parolee misconduct combined with regular unannounced home 
visits are expected by the parolees that reside in Ypsilanti Township and surrounding areas.  
 
For any violent crime tips related to guns, gang activity or violence in general please call 734-661-9034. 
 
CLEMIS ONLINE REPORTING 
Citizens can now fill out a police report online utilizing CLEMIS’ new “online reporting tool”. Citizens can 
visit: https://www.washtenaw.org/3439/File-a-Police-Report to fill out an online report.  
 
WASHTENAW ALERT (EVERBRIDGE) 
As a reminder for residents they can sign up for “Up-to-the-minute updates” from the Washtenaw 
County Sheriff’s Office by email or cell phone at www.washtenaw.org/alerts 
 
HOUSE WATCH 
If you plan on being gone for a period of time sign your house up for house checks.  The house watch 
form can be found at:  https://www.washtenaw.org/1743/House-Watch 
 
NEW FACES 
The Sheriff’s Office is hiring!  We continue to hire highly qualified, motivated, and diverse people that 
are committed to pursuing our mission:  Creating public safety, providing quality service, and building 
strong and sustainable communities.   
 
If you are interested in joining us in serving your community in Police Services, Corrections, 
Communications, Emergency Services or Community Corrections please check us out at:  
https://www.washtenaw.org/1124/Sheriff 
 
We have rewarding career opportunities available for those seeking a profession with a greater purpose. 
 
 

https://www.washtenaw.org/3439/File-a-Police-Report
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.washtenaw.org%2Falerts&data=02%7C01%7Cteetsc%40washtenaw.org%7Cf8689bdf108a4ba6257308d83e23fdd1%7C940f79927c85414e8cb10632dd3a5282%7C1%7C0%7C637327671714166397&sdata=ntMVps2wVcbhpVaG5pYdrMlGoG%2Bud83w%2FPLXC0iO9%2FQ%3D&reserved=0
https://www.washtenaw.org/1743/House-Watch
https://www.washtenaw.org/1124/Sheriff


May 2023 Ypsilanti Township Call Report (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

Search Criteria: (This report counts for offenses but excludes UCR status of 'Unfounded'.)

Month: May

Year: 2023

City: Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

Page 1 of 5 Created On 06/07/2023 12:39 PM



May 2023 Ypsilanti Township Call Report (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description May/2023 May/2022 % CHG YTD 2023 YTD 2022 % CHG May/2023 YTD May/2022 YTD May YTD

09001 MURDER/NONNEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER

(VOLUNTARY)

0 1 -100% 1 2 -50% 0 1 0 0 0 1

09002 NEGLIGENT HOMICIDE/MANSLAUGHTER

(INVOLUNTARY)

0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

10001 KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 2 0 0% 6 4 50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

10002 PARENTAL KIDNAPPING 0 0 0% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11001 SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST

DEGREE

5 2 150% 10 10 0% 1 1 0 0 1 1

11002 SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD

DEGREE

0 0 0% 3 2 50% 0 4 0 0 0 4

11003 SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST

DEGREE

0 1 -100% 1 3 -66.6% 0 1 0 0 0 1

11004 SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC 3RD

DEGREE

0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11005 SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 0 0 0% 0 2 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

11007 SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 1 2 -50% 3 9 -66.6% 0 3 0 0 0 3

11008 SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 1 2 -50% 6 6 0% 1 2 0 0 1 2

12000 ROBBERY 1 2 -50% 5 11 -54.5% 0 3 0 1 0 4

12001 ROBBERY 0 0 0% 3 1 200% 0 0 0 1 0 1

13001 NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 36 48 -25% 177 218 -18.8% 12 65 1 4 13 69

13002 AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 32 36 -11.1% 138 136 1.470% 25 86 1 4 26 90

13003 INTIMIDATION/STALKING 12 10 20% 37 45 -17.7% 1 5 0 0 1 5

20000 ARSON 0 0 0% 0 2 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

21000 EXTORTION 1 2 -50% 9 3 200% 0 0 0 0 0 0

22001 BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 9 13 -30.7% 32 39 -17.9% 2 6 0 0 2 6

22002 BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to

Commit)

2 0 0% 9 8 12.5% 0 1 0 0 0 1

23001 LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 0 1 -100% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23002 LARCENY -PURSESNATCHING 0 0 0% 2 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Page 2 of 5 Created On 06/07/2023 12:39 PM



May 2023 Ypsilanti Township Call Report (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description May/2023 May/2022 % CHG YTD 2023 YTD 2022 % CHG May/2023 YTD May/2022 YTD May YTD

23003 LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 13 9 44.44% 42 48 -12.5% 0 4 0 0 0 4

23004 LARCENY -THEFT FROM COIN-OPERATED

MACHINE/DEVICE

0 0 0% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23005 LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 18 25 -28% 70 87 -19.5% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23006 LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE

PARTS/ACCESSORIES

2 4 -50% 18 16 12.5% 0 0 0 0 0 0

23007 LARCENY -OTHER 11 5 120% 33 30 10% 0 0 0 0 0 0

24001 MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 11 11 0% 45 50 -10% 1 6 0 1 1 7

24002 MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 0 0 0% 0 2 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

24002 MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 1 1 0% 8 13 -38.4% 0 0 0 1 0 1

25000 FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 2 0 0% 10 11 -9.09% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26001 FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE

GAME

11 3 266.6% 35 32 9.375% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26002 FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER

MACHINE

4 6 -33.3% 23 26 -11.5% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26005 FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 1 1 0% 5 5 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26007 FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 9 5 80% 43 33 30.30% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26008 FRAUD - HACKING/COMPUTER INVASION 0 0 0% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

27000 EMBEZZLEMENT 1 1 0% 6 5 20% 0 0 0 0 0 0

28000 STOLEN PROPERTY 1 1 0% 10 9 11.11% 2 5 0 3 2 8

29000 DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 26 22 18.18% 138 132 4.545% 2 11 0 0 2 11

30001 RETAIL FRAUD -MISREPRESENTATION 1 1 0% 4 1 300% 0 0 0 0 0 0

30002 RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 9 3 200% 36 26 38.46% 1 1 0 0 1 1

35001 VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 4 11 -63.6% 52 69 -24.6% 2 18 0 0 2 18

35002 NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 0 2 -100% 10 12 -16.6% 0 1 0 0 0 1

37000 OBSCENITY 2 1 100% 4 6 -33.3% 0 0 0 0 0 0

52001 WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 6 5 20% 50 36 38.88% 5 25 0 1 5 26

52003 WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 4 4 0% 20 17 17.64% 0 1 0 1 0 2

72000 ANIMAL CRUELTY 1 0 0% 6 5 20% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Page 3 of 5 Created On 06/07/2023 12:39 PM



May 2023 Ypsilanti Township Call Report (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description May/2023 May/2022 % CHG YTD 2023 YTD 2022 % CHG May/2023 YTD May/2022 YTD May YTD

Group A Totals 240 241 -0.41% 1112 1176 -5.44% 55 250 2 17 57 267

22003 BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO INTENT) 0 1 -100% 1 2 -50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

26006 FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 2 1 100% 3 4 -25% 0 0 0 0 0 0

36004 SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 0 2 -100% 3 3 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

38001 FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 7 4 75% 20 14 42.85% 0 0 0 0 0 0

38002 FAMILY -NONSUPPORT 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

38003 FAMILY -OTHER 0 0 0% 2 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

41002 LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 1 0 0% 4 2 100% 0 1 0 0 0 1

48000 OBSTRUCTING POLICE 12 13 -7.69% 75 72 4.166% 3 12 0 1 3 13

49000 ESCAPE/FLIGHT 0 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

50000 OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 25 22 13.63% 102 107 -4.67% 7 23 0 1 7 24

53001 DISORDERLY CONDUCT 2 1 100% 8 3 166.6% 1 3 0 0 1 3

53002 PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 0 1 -100% 3 4 -25% 0 0 0 0 0 0

54001 HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 0 3 -100% 0 8 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

54002 OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR

OR DRUGS

9 14 -35.7% 62 117 -47.0% 8 48 0 1 8 49

55000 HEALTH AND SAFETY 2 2 0% 14 9 55.55% 0 0 0 0 0 0

57001 TRESPASS 3 4 -25% 13 8 62.5% 0 1 0 0 0 1

58000 SMUGGLING 0 1 -100% 1 4 -75% 0 0 0 0 0 0

61000 TAX/REVENUE 0 0 0% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

63000 VAGRANCY 1 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

70000 JUVENILE RUNAWAY 7 10 -30% 24 37 -35.1% 0 0 0 0 0 0

73000 MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 5 5 0% 10 18 -44.4% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group B Totals 76 84 -9.52% 348 413 -15.7% 19 88 0 3 19 91

2800 JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 24 23 4.347% 99 66 50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

2900 TRAFFIC OFFENSES 44 23 91.30% 102 85 20% 0 1 0 0 0 1

3000 WARRANTS 47 41 14.63% 183 227 -19.3% 23 105 0 1 23 106

3100 TRAFFIC CRASHES 97 109 -11.0% 537 555 -3.24% 0 1 0 0 0 1

Page 4 of 5 Created On 06/07/2023 12:39 PM



May 2023 Ypsilanti Township Call Report (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                   ADULT                     JUV                    Total

CLASS Description May/2023 May/2022 % CHG YTD 2023 YTD 2022 % CHG May/2023 YTD May/2022 YTD May YTD

3200 SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 229 180 27.22% 1018 870 17.01% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3300 MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 880 868 1.382% 3694 3602 2.554% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3400 WATERCRAFT COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 0 2 -100% 1 2 -50% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3500 NON - CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 911 1010 -9.80% 4447 4380 1.529% 0 0 0 2 0 2

3700 MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 864 957 -9.71% 5439 5723 -4.96% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3800 ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 91 91 0% 387 339 14.15% 0 0 0 0 0 0

3900 ALARMS 107 151 -29.1% 545 663 -17.7% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group C Totals 3294 3455 -4.65% 16452 16512 -0.36% 23 107 0 3 23 110

4000 HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 2 -100% 1 7 -85.7% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4100 NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 1 0 0% 2 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4200 PARKING CITATIONS 0 3 -100% 6 6 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4300 LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 1 0 0% 2 1 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4500 MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 19 21 -9.52% 80 100 -20% 0 0 0 0 0 0

4600 LIQUOR CITATIONS / SUMMONS 1 0 0% 1 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group D Totals 22 26 -15.3% 92 114 -19.2% 0 0 0 0 0 0

5100 18A STATE CODE FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 0 1 -100% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group E Totals 0 1 -100% 0 1 -100% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6000 MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 30 45 -33.3% 192 209 -8.13% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6100 MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 101 121 -16.5% 419 484 -13.4% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6300 CANINE ACTIVITIES 8 1 700% 31 20 55% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6500 CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 3 4 -25% 25 22 13.63% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6600 COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 1 0 0% 11 1 1000% 0 0 0 0 0 0

6700 INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 49 44 11.36% 215 174 23.56% 0 0 0 0 0 0

Group F Totals 192 215 -10.6% 893 910 -1.86% 0 0 0 0 0 0

City : Ypsilanti Twp Totals 3824 4022 -4.92% 18897 19126 -1.19% 97 445 2 23 99 468

Page 5 of 5 Created On 06/07/2023 12:39 PM



YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP MONTHLY POLICE SERVICES DATA

May 2023

Traffic Stops 765 838 -9% 4802 4986 -4%

Citations 192 283 -32% 1327 1811 -27%

Drunk Driving (OWI) 8 8 0% 52 65 -20%

Drugged Driving (OUID) 1 4 -75% 8 46 -83%

Calls for Service Total 3589 3780 -5% 17847 17884 0%

Calls for Service                  
(Traffic stops and non-response 

medicals removed)

2319 2466 -6% 10519 10831 -3%

Robberies 1 2 -50% 8 12 -33%

Assaultive Crimes 72 90 -20% 328 383 -14%

Home Invasions 11 9 22% 37 38 -3%

Breaking and Entering’s 0 3 - 4 9 -56%

Larcenies 44 39 13% 165 176 -6%

Vehicle Thefts 11 12 -8% 44 50 -12%

Traffic Crashes 80 78 3% 411 451 -9%

Medical Assists 58 77 -25% 239 275 -13%

Animal Complaints           
(ACO Response)

58 18 222% 292 81 260%

In/Out of Area Time Month 
(minutes)

YTD 
(minutes)

Into Area Time 1992 5368

Out of Area Time 1485 8080

Investigative Ops (DB) 29015 189390

Secondary Road Patrol 240 6210

County Wide 969 6832

Hours 

Accum.

Hours 

Used
Balance

Banked Hours 940 TBD 1266.5

+ = Positive Change                                                    

- = Negative Change

%    

Change
Incidents

Month 

2023

Month 

2022

%    

Change

YTD       

2023

YTD       

2022











                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK HEATHER JARRELL ROE  TREASURER STAN 
ELDRIDGE TRUSTEES: RYAN HUNTER  JOHN P. NEWMAN II  GLORIA PETERSON   
DEBBIE SWANSON  
 

                                
              

 
 
 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2023 
      

 
5:00pm 

 
1. 2022 FINANCIAL AUDIT REVIEW………………………………………..RANA EMMONS, PSLZ  

 
2. MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR DISCUSSION…....…..KAREN WALLIN, HR MANAGER      

 
3. AGENDA REVIEW ………………………………………………………..SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
4. OTHER DISCUSSION………………………………………………………… BOARD MEMBERS 
 



 
 

PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Washtenaw County, Michigan 

 
AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
For the Fiscal Year Ended  

December 31, 2022 
 



 
 

PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 
Table of Contents 

 
FINANCIAL SECTION   Page 
 
 Independent Auditor's Report ............................................................................................   1-2 
 
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis ...........................................................................   3-11 
 
 Basic Financial Statements: 
 
  Government Wide Financial Statements: 
 
   Statement of Net Position ........................................................................................    12 
   
     Statement of Activities ............................................................................................. 13-14 
 
  Fund Financial Statements: 
  
   Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ..................................................................  15-16 
 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
      Fund Balances – Governmental Funds ...............................................................  17-18 
 
   Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and  
      Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the 
      Statement of Activities ..........................................................................................    19 
 
   Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds ......................................................    20 
 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
      In Net Position – Proprietary Funds .......................................................................    21 
 
   Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds .......................................................    22 
 
   Statement of Fiduciary Net Position .......................................................................    23 
 
   Statement of Changes in Net Position - Fiduciary Funds .....................................    24 
 
   Combining Statement of Net Position – Component Units .................................    25 
  
   Combining Statement of Activities – Component Units ......................................    25 
    
  Notes to Financial Statements ...................................................................................... 26-62 
 
  Required Supplementary Information: 

   Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios .............. 63 

   Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Fire ..... 64 



 
 

PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022 

 
Table of Contents 

      Page 
 Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios .............................. 65 

 Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios - Fire ..................... 66 

 Schedule of Township Pension Contributions ................................................................... 67 

 Schedule of Township Pension Contributions – Firefighters Retirement ......................... 68 

 Schedule of Township OPEB Contributions ....................................................................... 69 

 Schedule of Township OPEB Contributions – Firefighters Retirement ............................. 70 

 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
    Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund ............................................................. 71-72 
 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
    Balance – Budget and Actual – Fire Department Special Revenue Fund .................    73 
 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
    Balance – Budget and Actual – Environmental Services Special Revenue Fund .....    74 
 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – 
    Budget and Actual – Law Enforcement Special Revenue Fund .................................   75 
 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – 
    Budget and Actual – American Rescue Plan Act Special Revenue Fund .................    76 
 
   
Other Supplementary Information: 

 Combining Fund Statements: 

  Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds .................................    77 
 
  Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
     Fund Balance – Nonmajor Governmental Funds ....................................................    78 
 
  Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds .............................  79-80 
 
  Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
     Fund Balance – Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds ................................................  81-82 
 
  Combining Balance Sheet – Pension and Employee Benefit Trust Funds................    83 
 
  Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – 
   Pension and Employee Benefit Trust Funds ..............................................................    84



1 
 
 

 PSLZ PLLC 
 Certified Public Accountants 

  19500 Victor Parkway  Telephone: (734) 453-8770 
 Suite 460 Jane F. Wang, C.P.A. Fax: (734) 453-0312 
 Livonia, MI 48152 Rana M. Emmons, C.P.A. 
  Susan H. Bertram, C.P.A.  
  Deborah M. Gulledge, C.P.A. 
  _______________ 
 
  Dennis M. Siegner, C.V.A. 
  Kaitlin J. McDuff, C.P.A. 
  Kevin F. Kurkie, C.P.A. 
  Chanelle Owens, C.P.A. 
   

 Independent Auditor's Report 
 

To the Board of Trustees 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan 

 
Opinions 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate of all 
remaining fund information of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Township’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate of all remaining fund information of 
the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, as of December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in its financial 
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS).  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be 
independent of the Township and to meet our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Township’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinions.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 



2 
 

PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 
 

Board of Trustees 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include 
examining, on a rest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Township’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 
• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 

raise substantial doubt about the Township’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amount other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that 
we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and other required supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management 
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplemental Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s basic financial statements.  The other supplemental information, as 
identified in the table of contents, is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic  financial statements or the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the other supplemental information, as identified in the 
table of contents is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 

  Respectfully, 

          
  PSLZ PLLC 
  Certified Public Accountants 
June 8, 2023  



 
3 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

As management of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, we offer readers of the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the 
financial activities of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2022.   
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• The assets of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti exceeded its liabilities at the close 
of the most recent fiscal year by $47,322,549 (net position). 

 
• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s 

governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $23,439,012, 
an increase of $3,198,653 in comparison with the prior year.  Approximately 35 
percent of this amount, $8,309,098 is available for spending at the government’s 
discretion (unrestricted fund balance). 

 
• The Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s total long-term bonded debt decreased by 

$795,000 during the current fiscal year, which reflects annual debt service 
payments made. 

 
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti’s basic financial statements.  The Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s 
basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 
statements.  This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the 
basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net 
position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti is 
improving or deteriorating. 



 
4 
 
 

 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net 
position changed during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., 
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all 
or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities).  The governmental activities of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti include 
general government, public safety, public works, community and economic 
development, and recreation and culture.  The business-type activities of the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti include the golf course and the compost center.  
  
The government-wide financial statements include not only the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti (the primary government), but also the Local Development Finance Authority 
and the Ypsilanti Township Economic Development Corporation which are separate 
legal entities for which the Charter Township of Ypsilanti is financially accountable.  
Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the 
financial information presented for the primary government. 
 
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-14 of this report. 
 
Fund financial statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to 
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or 
objectives.  The Charter Township of Ypsilanti, like other state and local governments, 
used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements.  All of the funds of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti can be divided 
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental 
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the 
fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term 
financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental 
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental 
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 



 
5 
 
 

 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti maintains 15 individual governmental funds.  
Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the 
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances for the General Fund, Fire Department Fund, Environmental Services Fund, 
Law Enforcement Fund, and the American Rescue Plan Act Fund all of which are 
considered to be major funds.  Data from the other governmental funds are combined 
into aggregated presentations by fund type.  Individual fund data for each of these 
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements 
elsewhere in this report. 
 
A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the major budgetary funds 
to demonstrate compliance with the annual appropriated budget. 
 
Proprietary funds.  The Charter Township of Ypsilanti maintains three proprietary funds.    
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  The Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti uses enterprise funds to account for its Golf Course and its Compost Center.  
Internal Service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate 
costs internally among the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s various functions.  The 
Township uses an internal service fund to account for its fleet of vehicles.  Because this 
service predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-type functions, it has 
been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. 
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide 
financial statements, only in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements 
provide separate information for the Golf Course and Compost Center both of which 
are considered to be nonmajor funds of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti.   
 
Fiduciary funds.  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit 
of parties outside the government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-
wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available to 
support the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s own programs.  The accounting used for 
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
Notes to the financial statements.  The notes provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund 
financial statements. 
 
Other information.  The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with the 
nonmajor governmental funds are presented immediately following the required 
supplementary information.  Combining and individual fund statements can be found 
on pages 71-83 of this report. 
 



 
6 
 
 

 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a 
government’s financial position.  In the case of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, assets 
exceeded liabilities by $47,322,549 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
 
A significant portion of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s net position reflects its 
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any 
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti used these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending.  Although the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s Net Position 
 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Current and Other Assets 61,545,704$    53,722,828$      1,163,706$       1,157,437$     62,709,410$       54,880,265$    

Capital Assets 37,256,476      37,218,721        2,521,861         2,826,521       39,778,337        40,045,242      

   Total Assets 98,802,180      90,941,549        3,685,567         3,983,958       102,487,747       94,925,507      

Deferred Outflows 5,804,806        4,861,016          -                       -                     5,804,806          4,861,016        

Long-term Liabilities

  Outstanding 15,523,915      23,271,495        139,936            180,342          15,663,851        23,451,837      

Other Liabilities 13,390,834      4,777,319          22,854              10,511            13,413,688        4,787,830        

   Total Liabilities 28,914,749      28,048,814        162,790            190,853          29,077,539        28,239,667      

Deferred Inflows 31,892,465      31,496,513        -                       -                     31,892,465        31,496,513      

Net Position:

Net Investment

  in Capital Assets 35,756,476      34,923,721        2,397,661         2,660,921       38,154,137        37,584,642      

Restricted 14,833,415      12,103,774        -                       -                     14,833,415        12,103,774      

Unrestricted(Deficit) (6,790,119)       (10,770,257)      1,125,116         1,132,184       (5,665,003)         (9,638,073)      

   Total Net Position 43,799,772$    36,257,238$      3,522,777$       3,793,105$     47,322,549$       40,050,343$    

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

 
 

An additional portion of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s net position (31 percent) 
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.   
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti governmental net 
position increased by $7,542,534 during the current fiscal year and the business-type net 
position decreased by $270,328, as presented: 
 



 
7 
 
 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Program Revenues:

  Charges for Services 3,483,056$    3,404,463$       1,144,829$   1,207,014$   4,627,885$     4,611,477$     

  Operating Grants & Contrib. 547,118         394,920            -                    -                    547,118          394,920          

  Capital Grants & Contrib. 829,224         420,636            -                    -                    829,224          420,636          

General Revenues:  

  Property Taxes 23,051,501    22,194,011       -                    -                    23,051,501     22,194,011     

  State Shared Revenues 6,796,721      5,844,766         -                    -                    6,796,721       5,844,766       

  Franchise Fees 636,473         671,883            -                    -                    636,473          671,883          

  Investment Earnings 561,951         4,589                14,705          105               576,656          4,694             

  Loss on Disposal of Assets (68,590)         -                        -                    -                    (68,590)           -                     

Total Revenues 35,837,454    32,935,268       1,159,534     1,207,119     36,996,988     34,142,387     

Program Expenses:

  General Government 4,976,090      4,595,303         -                    -                    4,976,090       4,595,303       

  Public Safety 14,220,680    9,669,533         -                    -                    14,220,680     9,669,533       

  Public Works 5,135,872      4,735,311         -                    -                    5,135,872       4,735,311       

  Comm. and Econ. Dev. 1,479,460      1,370,344         -                    -                    1,479,460       1,370,344       

  Recreation and Cultural 2,344,152      1,887,451         -                    -                    2,344,152       1,887,451       

  Interest on Long-Term Debt 54,090           73,660              -                    -                    54,090            73,660            

  Golf Course -                    -                        790,322        732,585        790,322          732,585          

  Compost -                    -                        724,116        660,995        724,116          660,995          

Total Expenses 28,210,344    22,331,602       1,514,438     1,393,580     29,724,782     23,725,182     

Excess(Deficiency) before transfers 7,627,110      10,603,666       (354,904)       (186,461)       7,272,206       10,417,205     

Transfers in (out) (84,576)         (15,000)             84,576          15,000          -                      -                     

Change in Net Position 7,542,534      10,588,666       (270,328)       (171,461)       7,272,206       10,417,205     

Net Position, Beg. of year 36,257,238    25,668,572       3,793,105     3,964,566     40,050,343     29,633,138     

Net Position, End of year 43,799,772$  36,257,238$     3,522,777$   3,793,105$   47,322,549$   40,050,343$   

TotalGovernmental Activities Business-type Activities

 
 
Governmental activities.  Property tax revenues increased from $22,194,011 to 
$23,051,501, an increase of $857,490. This was due to the overall taxable value increase 
from the 2019 tax roll to the 2020 tax roll of 2.85%.  The taxes levied in 2021 are the 
revenues for 2022.  State shared revenue is $6,796,721 for the current period, an increase 
of $951,955 from the prior year. Current year state shared revenue includes a population 
adjustment payment by the State for 2020 and 2021. 
 
Operating Grants and Contributions were $547,118 in the current year, as compared to 
$394,920 in the prior year.  The current year includes $237,634 of American Rescue Plan 
Act funds spent. 
 
Capital Grants and Contributions were $829,224 in the current year, as compared to 
$420,636 in the prior year.  The current year includes a $150,000 Washtenaw County 
Connect Huron grant, $280,560 of Washtenaw County solid waste and recycling grants, 
and State EGLE grant of $322,700.  



 
8 
 
 

 
 
Business-type activities.  This represents the municipal-owned Green Oaks Golf Course 
and the Township Compost Center.  The Bike Path/Recreation Millage Fund transferred 
$80,000 to Green Oaks Golf Course during the current year for operations.  This was an 
increase from the prior year’s transfer of $15,000.  Fee revenues decreased from 
$719,700 in the prior year to $637,693 in the current year.  
 
The Compost Fund had a decrease in net position from $1,734,235 in 2021 to $1,508,500 
in 2022.  Revenue for compost services decreased only $811 but the expenses 
increased by $63,121 over the prior year. 
 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
Governmental funds.  The focus of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s governmental 
funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of 
spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing The Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti’s financing requirements and may serve as a useful measure of a 
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s 
governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $23,439,012, an 
increase of $3,198,653 in comparison with the prior year.  The unrestricted fund balance, 
which is the amount available for spending at the government’s discretion, represents 
35% of the total fund balance.  The remainder of fund balance is restricted to indicate 
that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed to 
uphold contracts or bond agreements. 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti.  The 
unassigned fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year was $3,322,770. The 
General Fund’s fund balance increased by $477,871 in the current fiscal year as 
compared to an increase of $570,787 in the prior year.  The 2022 capital improvements, 
debt expenditures and transfers to other funds are as follows:  $31,346 for grounds and 
pare equipment, $154,284 for computer equipment, $348,861 for road improvements, 
$6,547 for building improvement and furnishings, $307,500 transferred to BSRII Fund for a 
portion of the principal and interest payment of the Road Improvement bond, $913,456 
transferred to 14B District Court for operation related to the COVID-19 pandemic 
revenue shortfall, $159,468 transferred to General Debt Obligation for bond payment, 
$164,261 transferred to Hydro Station Fund.  Total expenditures (not including the 
transferred amounts) increased from $8,338,971 in the prior year to $9,000,601 in the 
current year. 
 
Proprietary funds.  The Township’s proprietary funds provide the same type of 
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
Unrestricted net position of the proprietary funds comprised of the Enterprise Funds (the 
Golf Course and the Compost Site) was $1,125,116 and the Internal Service Fund (Motor 
Pool) was $497,394 at the end of the year.   Other factors concerning the finances of 
this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti’s business-type activities. 
 
 



 
9 
 
 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
There is a difference between the beginning and final budgets which represent an 
increase in budgeted expenditures of $2,144,569.  The budget amendment requests 
approved by the Board using prior year fund balance was $2,118,763 and the 
remaining $25,806 was reimbursements.  No funds were drawn from the approved 
budget amendments of prior year’s fund balance at the end of the fiscal year.  This was 
due to the positive net change in fund balance of $477,871.  The following is a summary 
of the Board approved budget amendments to the General Fund.  The total budget 
amendment increases include $1,099,521 for capital improvements and engineering as 
follows:  $564,234 for Roads, Calming Devices, and Streetlights; $164,161 for Equipment 
and Software; and $371,126 Building & Ground Improvements.  Non-capital budget 
amendments as follows:  $34,000 for professional services; $250,000 transferred to 14B 
District Court; $162,000 to Hydro Station Fund; $284,300 for legal services and nuisance 
abatement; $217,942 for wage and fringe benefits; $23,250 election related wages and 
supplies; $55,000 increase of streetlight operation costs; and $18,556 miscellaneous.  
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.  The Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s investment in capital assets for its 
governmental and business type activities as of December 31, 2022, amounts to 
$39,778,337 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital assets 
includes land, land improvements, buildings and system improvements, machinery and 
equipment, infrastructure, park facilities, and roads and streets.  New assets total 
$2,691,178 with depreciation expense of $2,879,764, resulting in a net decrease of 
$188,586.  Disposal of fully depreciated obsolete assets for 2022 was $164,792. Major 
capital assets constructed or acquired during the year were: 
 
Road improvements, Paths & Streetlights  $1,311,760  
Building Improvements     $     33,763  
Computer & Communication Equipment  $   160,831      
Land Improvement     $     62,516    
Equipment       $   244,504        
Equipment – Compost     $   877,804 
 
 
 
Long-term debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
had long term indebtedness outstanding of $2,616,834.  This represents $1,500,000 of a 
general obligation bond and $1,116,834 of compensated absences. All of the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti’s debt represents general obligation debt backed by the full faith 
and credit of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti.  The Township reduced the amount of 
notes and bonded debt in 2022 by $795,000 as a result of annual debt service 
payments which included the final payment of the 2012 Washtenaw County 
Transportation Note.  Additional information on the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s long-
term debt can be found in note III. E. on page 42 of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
10 

 
 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
According to the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, the annual 
average unemployment rate for the State of Michigan from 2021 to 2022 decreased from 5.7 
percent to 4.1 percent, respectively. The unemployment rate for the Ann Arbor, Michigan 
Metropolitan area for the most recent reported date of March 2023 is 3.5 percent. However, 
a preliminary revision in April of 2023 puts the unemployment rate at 2.5 percent. The April 
2023 Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) for Detroit- Warren-Dearborn area reports on a 2 month 
and 12 month percentage changes, all items index, not seasonally adjusted decreased from 
April 2022 rates of 2 month at 2.5% and 12 month at 8.3% to April 2023 rates of 2 month at 
2.1% and 12 month at 6.6%. 

 
The Constitutional and City, Village, and Township Revenue Sharing (CVTRS) shared revenue 
received in 2022 was $6,796,72, while the State projected amount for 2022 was $ 6,551,524. 
The difference in the actual and projected amounts are due to different fiscal year dates. 
The State’s fiscal year is October to September and the Township’s is January to December.  
The State’s projected budget for 2023 is $6,643,249 and their budget recommendation for 
2024 is $6,750,890 as of February 8, 2023. 

 
The Township’s 2021 taxable value (TV) minus Renaissance Zone TV equals $1,480,133,552 for 
the fiscal year of 2022. The Township’s 2022 taxable value (TV) minus Renaissance Zone TV 
equals $1,564,932,814 for the fiscal year of 2023 for percentage change increase of 5.72 over 
prior year.  The 2023 TV minus Renaissance Zone TV equals $1,680,496,116 for fiscal year 2024 
for a percentage change increase of 7.38 over prior year. 

 
There will be a Headlee Millage Reduction Fraction of .9872 for 2022 taxable values, which 
lowers the Township millage rates for: General Operations from .9925 to .9797; Fire Protection 
from 3.1250 to 3.0850; Solid Waste from 2.4050 to 2.3742; Police Services from 5.7000 to 5.6270; 
Recreation, Bike Path, Roads, and General Operations from 1.0059 to .9930; and the final 
year for Fire Capital from .4881 to .4818 for 2023 revenues. The Fire Pension PA345 millage rate 
decreased from 1.1000 mills to .8100 mills. There will be a no Headlee Millage Reduction 
fraction applied to the 2023 tax request millages for 2024 revenues. 

 
The General Fund budget for 2023 has revenues of $10,311,078 and $2,076,231 from appropriation 
of prior year fund balance. The General Fund budget for expenditures is $9,449,176 for general 
operations, $1,371,126 for capital projects, and $1,567,007 in transfers out to other funds.   

 
The transfers include $163,067 to the General Debt Obligation Fund for bond payments, $460,000 to 
Bike, Sidewalk, Recreation, Roads, and General Fund for road improvement, $81,000 to Hydro Dam 
Fund for capital projects, and $862,940 to 14B District Court Fund to supplement operations. The 
amount transferred to 14B District Court Fund for operations in 2022 was $913,456. 

 
The Township has adopted a balanced budget in the General Fund for Fiscal Year 2023. The 
complete budget report is available on Ytown.org under the Supervisor’s Department. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
11 

 
 

Requests for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.  
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for 
additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Supervisor,  
7200 South Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI  48197. 



 
 

PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B A S I C   F I N A N C I A L   S T A T E M E N T S 



 
   
  

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

ASSETS
Current Assets:
   Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 34,044,741      $ 1,132,895     $ 35,177,636   $ 91,840               
   Receivables, net 27,227,583      -                    27,227,583   71,083               
   Inventories 11,903             15,333          27,236          -                         
   Prepaid Expenditures 261,477           15,478          276,955        -                         
      Total Current Assets 61,545,704      1,163,706     62,709,410   162,923             

Noncurrent Assets:
   Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 9,623,049        1,277,618     10,900,667   -                         
   Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 27,633,427      1,244,243     28,877,670   -                         
      Total Noncurrent Assets  37,256,476       2,521,861      39,778,337    -                         

      TOTAL ASSETS 98,802,180      3,685,567     102,487,747 162,923             

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows related to Pensions & OPEB 5,804,806        -                    5,804,806     -                         

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
  Accounts Payable  895,222            9,320             904,542         -                         
  Accrued Liabilities 735,734           13,534          749,268        18,680               
  Due to Other Governmental Units 90,319             -                    90,319          -                         
  Deposits and Escrows 1,795,493        -                    1,795,493     -                         
  Unearned Revenue 9,874,066        -                    9,874,066     -                         
  Current Portion of Compensated Absences 186,139           -                    186,139        -                         
  Current Portion of Long-term Debt 200,000           41,400          241,400        -                         
     Total Current Liabilities 13,776,973      64,254          13,841,227   18,680               

Noncurrent Liabilities:
  Net Pension Liability 10,579,162      -                    10,579,162   -                         
  Net OPEB Liability 2,327,919        -                    2,327,919     -                         
  Noncurrent Portion of Compensated Absences 930,695           15,736          946,431        -                         
  Noncurrent Portion of Long-term Debt 1,300,000        82,800          1,382,800     -                         
     Total Noncurrent Liabilities 15,137,776      98,536          15,236,312   -                         

     TOTAL LIABILITIES 28,914,749      162,790        29,077,539   18,680               

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows related to Pensions & OPEB 7,719,981        -                    7,719,981     -                         
Property Taxes Levied for the following year 24,172,484      -                    24,172,484   71,083               
     TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 31,892,465      -                    31,892,465   71,083               

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 35,756,476      2,397,661     38,154,137   -                         
Restricted 14,833,415      -                    14,833,415   -                         
Unrestricted (6,790,119)       1,125,116     (5,665,003)    73,160               
        TOTAL NET POSITION $ 43,799,772      $ 3,522,777     $ 47,322,549   $ 73,160               

Primary Government

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2022

12
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



  
  

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
   Governmental Activities:
        General Government $ 4,976,090       $ 1,331,219       $ 347,363          $ -                      
        Public Safety 14,220,680     1,197,992       73,944            -                      
        Public Works 5,135,872       552,268          23,704            829,224          
        Community and Economic Development 1,479,460       21,175            74,322            -                      
        Recreation and Cultural 2,344,152       380,402          27,785            -                      
        Interest Expense 54,090            -                      -                      -                      
            Total Governmental Activities 28,210,344     3,483,056       547,118          829,224          

   Business-type Activities:     
        Golf Course 790,322          660,204          -                      -                      
        Compost 724,116          484,625          -                      -                      
            Total Business-type Activities 1,514,438       1,144,829       -                      -                      

  Total Primary Government $ 29,724,782     $ 4,627,885       $ 547,118          $ 829,224          

Component Units:
      Local Development Finance Authority 74,322            -                      -                      -                      
      Economic Development Corp -                      -                      -                      -                      
   Total Component Units $ 74,322            $ -                      $ -                      $ -                      

  
General Revenues:
   Property Taxes
   State Shared Revenue
   Franchise Fees
   Investment Earnings
   Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets
Transfers

        Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning

 Net Position - Ending

Program Revenues

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

13
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 

   

 
Governmental Business-type  Component

Activities Activities Total Units

$ (3,297,508)      $ -                      $ (3,297,508)      $ -                    
(12,948,744)    -                      (12,948,744)    -                    

(3,730,676)      -                      (3,730,676)      -                    
(1,383,963)      -                      (1,383,963)      -                    
(1,935,965)      -                      (1,935,965)      -                    

(54,090)           -                      (54,090)           -                    
(23,350,946)    -                      (23,350,946)    -                      

   
-                      (130,118)         (130,118)         -                    
-                      (239,491)         (239,491)         -                    
-                      (369,609)         (369,609)         -                    

 (23,350,946)     (369,609)          (23,720,555)    -                    

-                      -                      -                      (74,322)           
-                      -                      -                      -                      

 -                       -                       -                       (74,322)           

23,051,501     -                      23,051,501     74,322            
6,796,721       -                      6,796,721       -                      

636,473          -                      636,473          -                      
561,951          14,705            576,656          1,385              
(68,590)           -                      (68,590)           -                      
(84,576)           84,576            -                      -                      

30,893,480     99,281            30,992,761     75,707            

7,542,534       (270,328)         7,272,206       1,385              

36,257,238     3,793,105       40,050,343     71,775            
    

$ 43,799,772     $ 3,522,777       $ 47,322,549     $ 73,160            

Primary Government
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

14
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 Fire Environmental Law
General Department Services Enforcement

Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,165,737        $ 1,572,549        $ 529,807           $ 7,140,499        
Receivables:
   Accounts 933,804           632,212           603,260           -                       
   Taxes 2,389,098        4,825,874        3,713,968        8,802,332        
   Special Assessments 1,628,620        -                       -                       -                       
Advance to Other Funds 35,215             -                       -                       -                       
Prepaid Expenditures 109,817           116,078           6,100               7,668               

    
Total Assets $ 13,262,291      $ 7,146,713        $ 4,853,135        $ 15,950,499      

 
     
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF     
   RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES  
Liabilities:  

Accounts Payable $ 340,765           $ 39,942             $ 234,449           $ 120,531           
Accrued Liabilities 468,795           66,187             8,519               22,018             
Due to Other Governmental Units 17,433             -                       -                       -                       
Deposits and Escrows -                       109,765           -                       -                       
Unearned Revenue 724,977           -                       -                       -                       

       Total Liabilities 1,551,970        215,894           242,968           142,549           

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
   Property Taxes Levied for the following year 3,256,191        4,825,874        3,713,968        8,802,332        

Fund Balances:   
   Nonspendable 145,032           116,078           6,100               7,668               
   Restricted -                       1,988,867        890,099           6,997,950        
   Assigned 4,986,328        -                       -                       -                       
   Unassigned 3,322,770        -                       -                       -                       
       Total Fund Balances 8,454,130        2,104,945        896,199           7,005,618        

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
   and Fund Balances $ 13,262,291      $ 7,146,713        $ 4,853,135        $ 15,950,499      

 
 
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
   are different because:
Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
  therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of motor
  pool to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of the internal service
  funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.

 Long-term receivables (unearned revenue) are not available to pay for current  
   period expenditures and therefore deferred in the funds. 

Net Deferred Outflows and Inflows related to Pensions and OPEB
Net Pension Liabilities are not reported in the funds
Net OPEB Liabilities are not reported in the funds

 Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
  current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
December 31, 2022

15
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



American Nonmajor Total
Rescue Plan Act Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds

$ 9,336,105        $ 6,813,460        $ 33,558,157      
 

-                       110,192           2,279,468        
-                       3,574,119        23,305,391      
-                       14,104             1,642,724        
-                       -                       35,215             
-                       21,621             261,284           

   
$ 9,336,105        $ 10,533,496      $ 61,082,239      

 
  

$ -                       $ 158,507           $ 894,194           
-                       169,957           735,476           
-                       72,886             90,319             
-                       1,685,728        1,795,493        

9,201,392        28,892             9,955,261        
9,201,392        2,115,970        13,470,743      

-                       3,574,119        24,172,484      

-                       21,621             296,499           
134,713           4,821,786        14,833,415      

-                       -                       4,986,328        
-                       -                       3,322,770        

134,713           4,843,407        23,439,012      

$ 9,336,105        $ 10,533,496      

36,839,721      

878,934           

81,195             
(1,915,175)       

(10,579,162)     
(2,327,919)       

(2,616,834)       

$ 43,799,772      

16
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 
Fire Environmental Law

General Department Services Enforcement
Fund Fund Fund Fund

Revenues
Property Taxes $ 2,606,175        $ 4,617,806        $ 3,554,654        $ 8,437,749        
Licenses and Permits 10,240             -                       -                       -                       
Intergovernmental 6,826,637        13,956             626,964           49,401             
Charges for Services 420,170           1,350               -                       167,864           
Franchise Fees 636,473           -                       -                       -                       
Interest and Rent 347,175           43,054             23,960             141,083           
Other 97,172             9,543               9,312               7,697               
     Total Revenues  10,944,042       4,685,709         4,214,890        8,803,794        

   
Expenditures   
Current:
  General Government  5,680,169         -                        -                       -                       
  Public Safety -                       4,368,348        -                       7,120,755        
  Public Works 1,060,124        -                       3,322,621        -                       
  Community and Economic Development 1,479,460        -                       -                       -                       
  Recreation and Cultural 775,465           -                       -                       -                       
Debt Service:
  Principal -                       -                       -                       -                       
  Interest and Fees -                       -                       -                       -                       
Capital Outlay 5,383               -                       877,804           2,342               
    Total Expenditures 9,000,601        4,368,348        4,200,425        7,123,097        

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures 1,943,441        317,361           14,465             1,680,697        
   
Other Financing Sources (Uses)    
Transfers In 131,865           26,912             2,691               8,882               
Transfers Out (1,597,435)       -                       -                       (131,865)          
   Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,465,570)       26,912             2,691               (122,983)          

Net Change in Fund Balances 477,871           344,273           17,156             1,557,714        

Fund Balances - Beginning 7,976,259        1,760,672        879,043           5,447,904        

Fund Balances - Ending $ 8,454,130        $ 2,104,945        $ 896,199           $ 7,005,618        

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

17
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



  
  

American Nonmajor Total
Rescue Plan Act Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds

$ -                         $ 3,835,117        $ 23,051,501      
-                         964,544           974,784           

237,634             395,998           8,150,590        
-                         1,580,481        2,169,865        
-                         -                       636,473           

134,518             86,589             776,379           
-                         27,154             150,878           

372,152             6,889,883         35,910,470      

   
   

237,634             1,706,896         7,624,699        
-                         2,506,921        13,996,024      
-                         602,688           4,985,433        
-                         -                       1,479,460        
-                         952,000           1,727,465        

   
-                         795,000           795,000           
-                         54,090             54,090             
-                         1,079,272        1,964,801        

237,634             7,696,867        32,626,972      

134,518             (806,984)          3,283,498        
   
   

-                         1,854,105        2,024,455        
-                         (380,000)          (2,109,300)       
-                         1,474,105        (84,845)            

134,518             667,121           3,198,653        

195                    4,176,286        20,240,359      

$ 134,713             $ 4,843,407        $ 23,439,012      

18
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



  
   

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 3,198,653     

 
Capital Outlay 2,663,549     
Depreciation (2,466,403)   
Loss on Sale of Assets (68,590)        

 
Principal Repayments 795,000        
Decrease in Compensated Absences 171,619        

Change in Net Pension Liability 2,668,871
Change in Net OPEB Liability 534,297        

5,381            
  

49,886          

Change in net position in governmental activities $ 7,552,263     

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlay exceeded depreciation expense in the current period.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
management and management information systems to individual funds. The net
revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental
activities.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.  

19
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Governmental
Activities -

Internal
Service Fund

Golf Course Compost Total Motor Pool
ASSETS

Current Assets  
   Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 301,319           $ 831,576           $ 1,132,895        $ 486,584           
   Inventory 15,333             -                       15,333             11,903             
   Prepaid Expense 8,775               6,703               15,478             193                  
       Total Current Assets 325,427           838,279           1,163,706        498,680           

Noncurrent Assets
   Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 1,277,618        -                       1,277,618        -                       
   Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation 552,074           692,169            1,244,243         416,755           
      Total Noncurrent Assets 1,829,692        692,169           2,521,861        416,755           

Total Assets $ 2,155,119        $ 1,530,448        $ 3,685,567        $ 915,435           

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current Liabilities:
    Accounts Payable $ 3,920               $ 5,400               $ 9,320               $ 1,028               
    Accrued Liabilities 10,053             3,481               13,534             258                  
    Current Portion of Lease Payable 41,400             -                       41,400             -                       
       Total Current Liabilities 55,373             8,881               64,254             1,286               

Noncurrent Liabilities:
    Lease Payable 82,800             -                       82,800             -                       
    Compensated Absences 2,669               13,067             15,736             -                       
    Advance from Other Funds -                       -                       -                       35,215             
       Total Noncurrent Liabilities 85,469             13,067             98,536             35,215             

Total Liabilities 140,842           21,948             162,790           36,501             

Net Position:
    Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,705,492        692,169           2,397,661        381,540           
    Unrestricted 308,785           816,331           1,125,116        497,394           
       Total Net Position 2,014,277        1,508,500        3,522,777        878,934           

Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 2,155,119        $ 1,530,448        $ 3,685,567        $ 915,435           

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2022

Business-type Activity Enterprise Fund

20
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Governmental
Activities -

Internal
Service Fund

Golf Course Compost Total Motor Pool
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services $             637,692 $ 484,063           $ 1,121,755        $ 228,070           
Other Income 22,512              562                   23,074              24,339             
      Total Operating Revenues 660,204           484,625           1,144,829        252,409           

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and Wages 307,556           208,794           516,350           12,972             
Fringe Benefits 142,545           184,695           327,240           3,771               
Fuel and Utilities 35,889             27,766             63,655             41,264             
Operating Supplies 59,426             4,627               64,053             1,772               
Contractual Services 7,454               62,792             70,246             39,285             
Insurance 9,400               2,508               11,908             -                       
Repairs and Maintenance 56,607             24,427             81,034             599                  
Administrative 20,593             13,280             33,873             -                       
Other 40,749             670                  41,419             -                       
Depreciation 110,103           194,557           304,660           108,701           
      Total Operating Expenses 790,322           724,116           1,514,438        208,364           

Operating Income (Loss) (130,118)          (239,491)          (369,609)          44,045             

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Earned 3,372               11,333             14,705             5,572               

Net Income (Loss) before Transfers (126,746)          (228,158)          (354,904)          49,617             

Transfers:
Transfers In 82,153             2,423               84,576             269                  

Change in Net Position (44,593)            (225,735)          (270,328)          49,886             

Net Position, Beginning 2,058,870        1,734,235        3,793,105        829,048           
 

Net Position, Ending $ 2,014,277        $ 1,508,500        $ 3,522,777        $ 878,934           
 

Business-type Activity Enterprise Fund

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

21
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Governmental
Activities -

Internal
Service Fund

Golf Course Compost Total Motor Pool
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
   Receipts from customers and users $ 660,204           $ 484,625           $ 1,144,829        $ 252,409           
   Payments to suppliers (237,295)          (134,086)          (371,381)          (87,060)            
   Payments to employees (438,977)          (395,164)          (834,141)          (16,735)            
      Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (16,068)            (44,625)            (60,693)            148,614           

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
   FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   Purchases of Capital Assets -                       -                       -                       (27,629)            
   Transfer In 82,153             2,423               84,576             269                  
   Lease Principal Payments (41,400)            -                       (41,400)            -                       
   Long Term Advance-General Fund -                       -                       -                       (60,000)            
      Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
           Financing Activities 40,753             2,423               43,176             (87,360)            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
   Interest Earned 3,372               11,333             14,705             5,572               
      Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 3,372               11,333             14,705             5,572               

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 28,057             (30,869)            (2,812)              66,826             

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 273,262           862,445           1,135,707        419,758           

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $ 301,319           $ 831,576           $ 1,132,895        $ 486,584           
   

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash    
   Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:   
 Operating Income (Loss) $ (130,118)          $ (239,491)          (369,609)          44,045             
     Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
         Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
             Depreciation and Amortization Expense 110,103           194,557           304,660           108,701           
             (Increase) Decrease in Inventory (5,269)              -                       (5,269)              (3,221)              
             (Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses (3,776)              (36)                   (3,812)              (3)                     
             Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 1,868               1,956               3,824               (916)                 
             Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities 8,455               64                    8,519               8                      
             Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 2,669               (1,675)              994                  -                       
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (16,068)            $ (44,625)            $ (60,693)            $ 148,614           

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year December 31, 2022

Business-type Activity Enterprise Fund

Proprietary Funds

22
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Pension and 
Employee Custodial

Benefit Trusts Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents  $ 863,767           $ 18,261,406      
Investments 44,095,643      -                       
Accrued Interest 63,808             -                       
Due from Fire Healthcare Trust fund 18,095             -                       
Due from Individuals and Agencies -                       -                       
  Total Assets  45,041,313       18,261,406      

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable  1,267,491         -                       
Due to Other Governmental Units -                       18,250,356      
Due to Fire Pension Trust Fund 18,095             -                       
Due to Individuals and Agencies -                       11,050             
   Total Liabilities 1,285,586        18,261,406      

NET POSITION
Held in Trust For Pension and Employee Benefits $ 43,755,727      $ -                       

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
Statement of Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2022

23
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Pension and 
Employee

ADDITIONS Benefit Trusts
Investment Income
   Interest and Dividends $ 811,648           
   Net Appreciation (Depreciation) 
      in Fair Value of Investments (8,204,887)       
Contributions:
   Employer 2,132,821        
   Employee 172,600           
Other 18,873             
Taxes Collected for Other Governments -                       

        Total Additions (5,068,945)       

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits Paid 2,829,480        
Retirees Insurance 1,241,601        
Administrative Costs 185,781           
Payment of Taxes to Other Governments -                       

        Total Deductions 4,256,862        

Change in Net Position (9,325,807)       

Net Position, Beginning of the Year 53,081,534      

Net Position, End of the Year $ 43,755,727      

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
Statement of Changes in Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

24
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 
Local

Development Economic
Finance Development

Authority Fund Corporation Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 20,302             71,538             $ 91,840             
Taxes Receivable 71,083             -                       71,083             
   Total Assets  91,385              71,538              162,923           

LIABILITIES
Accrued Liabilities 18,680             -                       18,680             

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property Taxes Levied for the following year 71,083             -                       71,083             

NET POSITION
Unrestricted $ 1,622               $ 71,538             $ 73,160             

Local
Development Economic

Finance Development
Authority Fund Corporation Total

Program Expenses:
Local Development Finance Authority $ 74,322             $ -                       $ 74,322             
Economic Development Corporation -                       -                       -                       
    Total Program Expenses 74,322             -                       74,322             

General Revenues:
Property Taxes 74,322             -                       74,322             
Investment Earnings 306                  1,079               1,385               
  Total General Revenues 74,628             1,079               75,707             

Change in Net Position 306                  1,079               1,385               

Net Position, Beginning of the Year 1,316               70,459             71,775             

Net Position, End of the Year $ 1,622               $ 71,538             $ 73,160             

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
Combining Statement of Net Position

Component Units

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
Combining Statement of Activities

Component Units

25
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

26 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 A. Reporting Entity 

 The Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan was organized as a Township under 
provisions of the constitution and general law of the State of Michigan.  Ypsilanti 
Township became a Charter Township on May 15, 1979 by Board resolution.  The 
Township operates under an elected Township Board which consists of the 
Supervisor, Clerk, Treasurer and four Trustees, and provides the following services as 
permitted by law: public safety (police and fire), community development, 
recreation and culture, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general 
administrative services. 

  As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial 
statements present the Charter Township of Ypsilanti and its component units, 
entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.  
Blended component units, although legally separate entities are, in substance, 
part of the Township's operations and so data from these units is combined with 
data of the primary government.  The discretely presented component units, on 
the other hand, are reported in a separate column in the government-wide 
financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the 
government.  Each blended and discretely presented component unit has a 
December 31 year end. 

  Discretely Presented Component Units 

  The component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that, while 
legally separate, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti remains financially accountable 
for these entities. 

  The governing body of the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) is 
appointed by the Township Board.  The Authority was established for the collection 
of tax increment revenues, the issuance and repayment of debt, the construction 
of public facilities, and the promotion and facilitation of economic growth in the 
development district.  The Authority’s budget and debt issuance is subject to the 
approval of the Township Board. 

  The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Economic Development Corporation (EDC) was 
established pursuant to the provisions of Public Act 338 of 1974, as amended.  The 
EDC is governed by a nine (9) member board appointed by the Township Board. 
The EDC may not issue debt without approval from the Township Board.  
Additionally, the annual operating budget and any amendments must be 
approved by the Township Board.  The Township Board must approve all 
developmental and financing plans of the EDC. 

   
   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

27 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
 A. Reporting Entity – Continued 
 
  Joint Venture 
  The Township is a participant in the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority 

(Y.C.U.A.) which was created under Act 233, P.A. of 1955 by the City of Ypsilanti  
and the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, in 1974.  All activities necessary to provide 
water and sewer services to residents of the City, Township, and other 
communities serviced by Y.C.U.A., are accounted for by the Authority.  The 
Township has financial responsibility as follows: 
• Township Board has the ability to reject or approve water rates for customers in 

its service district. 
• Some obligations of the Authority are supported by pledges of the Township's 

full faith and credit, subject to constitutional limitations.  These obligations are 
described in more detail further in these notes. 

• Financial statements may be obtained by contacting Y.C.U.A. at 2777 State 
Street, Ypsilanti, MI 48198. 
 

          
 B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and 
the statement of activities) present information on all of the nonfiduciary activities 
of the primary government and its component units as a whole.  For the most part, 
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, 
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.  Likewise, the 
primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate 
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

28 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 

 B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements – Continued 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses 
of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses 
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  
Revenues that are not required to be presented as program revenues are general 
revenues.  This includes taxes, interest, unrestricted State shared revenue 
payments, franchise fees, and other general revenues. 

  

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary 
funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the 
government-wide financial statements.  Major individual governmental funds and 
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. 

 
 C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
  The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic 

resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the 
proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.  Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the 
year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue 
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.   

  Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  
Revenues are considered to be available if they are collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and 
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

  Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current 
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been 
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  Only the portion of special 
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be 
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.  All other revenue items 
are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by 
the Township. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

29 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
 C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation – 

Continued  
 
  Governmental Funds 

  The Township reports the following major governmental funds: 

   The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund.  It accounts for 
all financial resources of the general government, except those required to 
be accounted for in another fund. 

   The Fire Department Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the 
voter approved property taxes used to support fire protection, and related 
services. 

   The Environmental Services Fund is a special revenue fund used to account 
for the voter approved property tax revenues used to support solid waste, 
recycling and yard waste collection activities. 

    
   The Law Enforcement Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the 

voter approved property taxes for law enforcement activities. 
    
   The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Fund is a special revenue fund used to 

account for the federal grant dollars received and the respective projects 
and expenditures. 

 
  Additionally, the Township reports on the following fund types: 

 
   The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally 

restricted to expenditures for specific purposes (not including expendable trusts 
or major capital projects). 

   The debt service funds account for the resources accumulated and 
payments made for principal and interest on long-term debt of governmental 
funds. 

  Proprietary Funds 

  Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources 
measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting.  Under this 
method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at 
the time liabilities are incurred.  Proprietary funds include the following fund 
types: 

   Enterprise Funds are used to account for those operations that are financed 
and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the Township 
Board has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred 
and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.  The 
Township's enterprise funds are the Golf Course Fund and the Compost Fund, 
which are reported as nonmajor funds. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

30 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
 C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation – 

Continued  
 
  Proprietary Funds – Continued 
  
   Internal Service Funds account for operations that provide services to other 

departments or agencies of the Township on a cost reimbursement basis.  As 
these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type 
functions, they have been included within the governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  The Township uses an internal service 
fund to account for the management of a motor pool. 

 
   
  Fiduciary Funds  
   
  Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the Township in a trustee capacity or as 

an agent on behalf of others.  Fiduciary funds include the following fund types: 

   Pension Trust Funds – The pension trust funds accounts for the activities of 
the employee benefit plan that accumulates resources for pension and 
other post employment benefit payments to qualified employees. 

 
   The Custodial Funds are used to account for assets that the Township holds 

for others in a custodial capacity.   
 
 
  Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

31 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity 

1. Deposits and Investments 

The Township's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, 
demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three 
months or less from the date of acquisition.  State statutes authorize the 
Township to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper of 
certain investment grades, and deposits of Michigan commercial banks. 
 
Investments are reported at fair value or estimated fair value.  Short-term 
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.  Securities 
traded on a nation or international exchange are valued at the last reported 
sales price at current exchange rates. 
 

  2. Receivables and Payables 

   Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing 
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due 
to/from other funds" (i.e. the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances 
to/from other funds" (i.e. non-current portion of interfund loans).  Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type 
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal 
balances.” 
 

   Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are 
offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds 
to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not 
expendable available financial resources. 

    
  3. Inventory and Prepaids 

   Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first out (FIFO) method.  The costs 
of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures as used.  
Prepaid items represent payments made to vendors for goods and services 
applicable to future years.  Inventories and prepaids are offset by 
nonspendable fund balance which indicates they do not constitute “available 
spendable resources” even though they are a component of current net 
position. 

 
   

 

 

  

 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

32 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
 D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity – Continued 
 
  4. Capital Assets 
 
   Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and  infrastructure 

assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the 
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the 
government-wide financial statements.  Such assets are recorded at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital 
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 
the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.  Major outlays 
for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed.  Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets 
of business-type activities is included as part of capitalized value of the assets 
constructed.  Capital assets of the primary government, as well as the 
component units, is depreciated using the straight-line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 

 
      Assets  Years 
     Buildings    7-40 
      Machinery & Equipment     5-25 
      Vehicles    3-15 
     Infrastructure  20-50 
 
  5. Compensated Absences 

   In accordance with contracts negotiated with the various employee groups of 
the Township, individual employees have vested rights upon termination of 
employment to receive payment for unused vacation and sick leave under 
formulas and conditions specified in the contracts. All sick and vacation pay is 
accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary 
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in 
governmental funds only if they have matured.  The long-term portion of 
compensated absences related to the governmental funds is a liability 
recorded in the Statement of Net Position.  

 
 6.  Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the 
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or business-type 
activities statement of net position.  The portion of those liabilities expected to 
be paid within the next year is a current liability with the remaining amounts 
shown as noncurrent.   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

33 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity – Continued 
 
 6. Long-term Obligations – Continued 

  
   Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due.  

For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed 
from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of 
a governmental fund.  The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in 
the Statement of Net Position.  Long-term liabilities expected to be financed 
from proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in those funds. 

  
7. Fund Equity 
 

   In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following 
components of fund balance: 

    
   Nonspendable – Amounts that are not in spendable form or are legally or 

contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
   Restricted – Amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties, 

constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation for use for a specific 
purpose.  

 
   Committed – Amounts that have been formally set aside by the Board for 

use for a specific purpose.  Commitments are made and can be 
rescinded only via resolution of the Township Board. 

 
   Assigned – Intent to spend resources on specific purposes expressed by 

the Township Board. 
    
   Unassigned – This is the residual classification for the general fund.  This 

classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other 
funds and has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific 
purposes within the general fund.   

 
   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

34 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY  
 
 A. Budgetary Information 
 
  The Township is legally subject to the budgetary control requirements of the State 

of Michigan P.A. 621 of 1978 (Uniform Budgeting Act).  The Township follows these 
requirements in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial 
statements: 

 
   1. In accordance with State law, prior to September 1, the Supervisor submits 

a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following 
January 1 to the Township Board.  The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and means of financing them for the upcoming year.  Detail 
line item budgets are included for administrative control.  The level of 
control for the detail budgets is at the departmental basis. 

   2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comment. 
   3. Prior to December 15, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a 

budget resolution (general appropriation act). 
   4. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control 

device for the General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.  Budgets 
for these funds are prepared and adopted on a basis consistent with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

   5. Proprietary Fund budgets are prepared on a non-GAAP method. 
   6. Budget appropriations lapse at year end. 

7. The Township does not employ encumbrance accounting as an extension 
of formal budgetary integration in the governmental funds. 

8. Budgeted amounts are reported as originally adopted, and as amended 
by the Township Board. 

 
B. Compliance with P.A. 621 of 1978 
 

1. Deficit Fund Balance 
 
    None of the funds have a deficit fund balance as of December 31, 2022. 

  2. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Budgetary Funds 
 

The budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted at the 
activity level.  None of the funds have expenditures in excess of budget 
appropriations at year end. 

         
    
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

35 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS  
 
 A. Deposits and Investments 
 
  Michigan Compiled Laws section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended), 

authorizes local governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of 
federally insured banks, credit unions, and savings and loan associations that have 
offices in Michigan.  The Township is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and 
other direct obligations of the United States or any agency or instrumentality of the 
United States; repurchase agreements; bankers’ acceptances of United States 
banks; commercial paper rated within the two highest classifications, which 
mature not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; obligations of the 
State of Michigan or its political subdivisions, which are rated as investment grade; 
and mutual funds composed of investment vehicles that are legal for direct 
investment by local units of government in Michigan; and investment pools of 
financial institutions. 

 
  The pension trust fund and retiree health care fund are also authorized by 

Michigan Public Act 55 of 1982, as amended, to invest in certain reverse 
repurchase agreements, stocks, diversified investment companies, annuity 
investment contracts, real estate leased to public entities, mortgages, real estate, 
debt or equity of certain small businesses, certain state and local government 
obligations and certain other specified investment vehicles. 

 
  The Township has designated several banks for the deposit of funds.  The 

investment policy adopted by the Township Board in accordance with Public Act 
196 of 1997 authorized all investments permitted by PA 20.  The Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti, Michigan’s deposit and investment policies are in accordance with 
statutory authorities. 

 
  The Township’s cash and investments are subject to several types of risk, which are 

examined in more detail below: 
 
  Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits 

  Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Township’s 
deposits may not be returned to it.  The Township does not have a deposit policy 
for custodial credit risk.  Deposits of the Township are at federally insured banks 
located in the State of Michigan with all accounts maintained in the name of the 
Township.  At year end, the Township had $54,753,720 of bank deposits (checking 
and savings accounts) of which $2,367,164 was uninsured and uncollateralized.  
The component units had book and bank balances totaling $91,840, all of which 
was FDIC insured. 

 
  The Township believes that due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the 

limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to insure all deposits.  As a result, the 
Township evaluates each financial institution with which it deposits funds and 
assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an 
acceptable estimated risk level are used as depositories. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

36 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
 A. Deposits and Investments – Continued 
 

  Interest Rate Risk 
  Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments or deposits will decrease as 

a result of a rise in interest rates.  The Township’s investment policy minimizes 
interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to meet requirements and by  
investing funds in shorter-term securities, money market mutual funds or similar 
investment pools.  The Township’s investment policy does not restrict investment 
maturities, other than commercial paper which can only be purchased with a 270 
day maturity.  The weighted average maturity is based on maturity date or 
contracted modified maturity date as applicable.  At year end, the average 
maturities of investments are as follows: 

 
     

   

Investment Fair Value
Pension Fixed Income:
US Govt Obligations $ -                 Less than 1 year

1,160,991       1-5 years
185,670         6-10 years

32,970           11-15 years
2,419,084       16 or more years

Corporate Bonds 246,136         Less than 1 year
1,846,779       1-5 years
1,110,167       6-10 years

73,609           11-15 years
  

Other 69,561           1-5 years
-                 6-10 years
-                 11-15 years

1,026,910       16 or more years

Maturity

 
 

  Credit Risk 

  State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top two ratings issued by 
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations at the time of purchase.  The 
Township’s investment policy limits investments to the safest types of securities.  
Financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries and advisers need to be pre-
qualified to do business with the Township.  The policy also states that the 
investment portfolio will be diversified to minimize potential losses on individual 
securities.  As of year end, the credit quality ratings of debt securities (other than 
the U.S. government) are as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

37 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

 
III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 

   
A. Deposits and Investments – Continued 

 
Rating

Investment Fair Value Rating Organization
Pension:
U.S. Agency Obligations $ 5,365,507       n/a n/a

Corporate Bonds 2,510,599       Aaa Moody's
32,099           Aa1 Moody's
24,127           Aa2 Moody's

236,544         A1 Moody's
    

  Concentration of Credit Risk 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a 
government’s investment in a single issuer.  The Township places no limit on the  
amount that may be invested in any one issuer.  As of year end, the Township did 
not have investments that exceeded 5 percent of the total portfolio. 

 
  Fair Value Measurements 
  The Township categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value 

hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy 
is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 
1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are 
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable 
inputs.  Investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per 
share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient are not classified in the fair value 
hierarchy. 

 
  In instances whereby inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in 

the above fair value hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are 
categorized based on the lowest level input that is significant to the valuation.  The 
Township’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value 
measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset or 
liability.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

38 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
   

A. Deposits and Investments – Continued 
 
  The Township has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December 

31, 2022: 
 

   

Quoted Prices Significant  
in Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable
Balance at Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Dec. 31, 2022 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Debt Securities:
   U.S. Government Bonds 3,798,715$     3,798,715$       -$              -$                 
   Corporate Bonds 2,928,404       2,928,404         -                -                   
       Total Debt Securities 6,727,119       6,727,119         -                -                   

Equity Securities:
   Mutual Funds 33,321,699     33,321,699       -                -                   
   Common Stock 1,496,228       1,496,228         -                -                   
   Real Estate 2,760,913       -                    -                2,760,913        
       Total Equity Securities 37,578,840     34,817,927       -                2,760,913        

Total Investments by
   Fair Value Level 44,305,959$   41,545,046$     -$              2,760,913$      

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

39 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
B. Receivables and Deferred Inflows, and Unearned Revenue 

 
Receivables as of year end for the Township’s individual major funds and the 
nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for 
uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 
 

General Fire Environmental Law Nonmajor
Fund Department Services Enforcement Governmental

Receivables:
Accounts 933,804$        632,212$     603,260$     -$                     110,192$         
Taxes 2,393,369       4,838,951    3,723,182    8,827,034        3,585,167        
Special Assessments 1,628,620       -                   -                   -                       14,104             

4,955,793       5,471,163    4,326,442    8,827,034        3,709,463        
Less: Allowance for
   Doubtful Accounts (4,271)            (13,077)        (9,214)          (24,702)            (11,048)            
Net Receivables 4,951,522$     5,458,086$  4,317,228$  8,802,332$      3,698,415$      

 
 
Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with receivables for 
revenue that is not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current 
period.  Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with 
resources that have been received but not yet earned.  The deferred inflows in the 
governmental activities represents property taxes levied on December 1, 2022, but 
recognized revenue in the year ending December 31, 2023, when the proceeds of 
the levy are budgeted and available for financing operations.  At the end of the 
current fiscal year, the various components of deferred inflows and unearned 
revenue are as follows: 
 
Governmental Funds:     
Property Taxes Levied for the following year – Deferred Inflows  $33,373,876 
 
Unearned Revenue   $  753,869 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

40 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 

 C. Capital Assets 

  Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 was as follows: 
 
 

Beginning Ending 
Governmental Activities: Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital Assets, not depreciated:
  Land 9,623,049$    -$                  -$                  9,623,049$    

Capital Assets, being depreciated:
  Buildings 16,619,602    33,763          -                    16,653,365    
  Machinery and Equipment 9,537,814      1,493,227     (78,319)         10,952,722    
  Infrastructure 46,822,214    1,136,559     -                    47,958,773    
  Internal Service Fund - Motor Pool 1,892,736      27,629          (86,473)         1,833,892      

74,872,366    2,691,178     (164,792)       77,398,752    
Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
  Buildings (11,218,200)   (465,999)       -                    (11,684,199)   
  Machinery and Equipment (7,075,067)     (397,677)       -                    (7,472,744)     
  Infrastructure (27,588,518)   (1,602,727)    -                    (29,191,245)   
  Internal Service Fund - Motor Pool (1,394,909)     (108,701)       86,473          (1,417,137)     

(47,276,694)   (2,575,104)    86,473          (49,765,325)   
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, net 37,218,721$  116,074$      (78,319)$       37,256,476$  

 
Depreciation expense was charged to the following governmental activities:  
General Government 608,977$         
Public Safety 341,857           
Public Works 898,882            
Recreation and Cultural 616,687            
Charged through Internal  
  Service Fund 108,701         

2,575,104$      
  

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

41 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
 C. Capital Assets – Continued 

Beginning Ending 
Business-type Activities: Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital Assets, not depreciated:
  Land 1,277,618$        -$                    -$                 1,277,618$        
Capital Assets, being depreciated:
  Land and Building Improvements 2,186,658          -                      -                   2,186,658          
  Machinery and Equipment 2,634,538          -                      -                   2,634,538          

4,821,196          -                      -                   4,821,196          
Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
  Land and Building Improvements (1,342,320)         (77,330)           -                   (1,419,650)         
  Machinery and Equipment (1,929,973)         (227,330)         -                   (2,157,303)         

(3,272,293)         (304,660)         -                   (3,576,953)         
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, net 2,826,521$        (304,660)$       -$                 2,521,861$        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

42 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 

D. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 
 

1. Interfund Receivables and Payables 
 

  The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2022, is as follows: 
 

Advance Receivable Advance Payable

General Fund Motor Pool Fund 35,215$           

The General Fund advanced funds to the Motor Pool Fund for the purchase

of equipment. The principal is to be repaid over 10 years.

  
2. Interfund Transfers

 
Transfers In Transfers Out

Bike Path, Sidewalk, Rec., Roads General Fund 307,500$         

District Court Fund General Fund 913,456           

2013 GO Refunding Bond Debt Fund General Fund 159,468           

Hydro Station Fund General Fund 164,261           

Fire Fund General Fund 26,912             

Recreation Fund General Fund 4,306               

Building Dept. Fund General Fund 5,114               

Environmental Services Fund General Fund 2,691               

Law Enforcement Fund General Fund 8,882               

Golf Course Fund General Fund 2,153               

Compost Fund General Fund 2,423               

Motor Pool Fund General Fund 269                  

General Fund Law Enforcement Fund 131,865           

Recreation Fund Bike Path, Sidewalk, Rec., Roads 300,000           

Golf Course Fund Bike Path, Sidewalk, Rec., Roads 80,000             

2,109,300$      

Transfers include operating transfers for debt service payments.

The General Fund and the Bike Path, Sidewalk, Rec., Roads Fund made

operating transfers to augment specific projects.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

43 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 

E. Long-Term Debt 
 

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the Township for the 
year ended December 31, 2022: 

 
Balance   Balance Due Within

Jan 1, 2022 Additions Reductions Dec 31, 2022 One Year
Governmental Activities:
2012 Transportation Note 600,000$        -$                 600,000$     -$                -$                 
2013 G.O. Refunding Bonds 1,695,000       -                   195,000       1,500,000        200,000       

2,295,000       -                   795,000       1,500,000        200,000       
Compensated Absences 1,288,453       -                   171,619       1,116,834        186,139       

3,583,453$     -$                 966,619$     2,616,834$      386,139$     

 
Business-type Activities:
Lease Payable 165,600$        -$                 41,400$       124,200$        41,400$       
Compensated Absences 14,742            995              -                   15,737            -                   
 180,342$        995$            41,400$       139,937$        41,400$       

  
 

The following is a summary of general obligation debt outstanding of the Township 
as of December 31, 2022: 

Number Interest Maturing Principal
of Issues Rate Through Outstanding

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds 1 3.75%-4.50% 2029 1,500,000$      

 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for debt outstanding as of 
December 31, 2022 is as follows: 

Year Ended Principal Interest
2023 200,000$          33,600$             
2024 205,000            28,740               
2025 210,000            23,760               
2026 210,000            18,720               
2027 220,000            13,560               
2028 225,000            8,220                 
2029 230,000            2,760                 

1,500,000$       129,360$           

Governmental Activities

 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

44 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

 
III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued  

 
 F. Fund Balance Classifications 

  A detailed description of fund balance assignments in the General Fund at 
December 31, 2022, is presented below: 

 
 General Fund

Nonspendable:

 Prepaids & Inventory $ 109,817         

 Advance to Other Funds 35,215           

Total Nonspendable 145,032         
 

Assigned:

   Capital Improvements 4,780,061      

   Debt Service 163,067         

   Employee PTO 32,800           

   Water Hardships 10,400           

Total Assigned 4,986,328      

Unassigned 3,322,770      
Total Fund Balance $ 8,454,130      

 
  

    
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

45 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
 G. Property Taxes 
 

Property taxes are assessed as of each December 31.  The Township tax levy is 
billed on December 1 of the following year, and payable through February.  Taxes 
are considered delinquent on March 1, at which time the applicable property is 
subject to lien and penalty and interest is assessed.  The maximum authorized 
operating levy for the Township are detailed below for the 2021 tax roll: 

 
Pre- Post

Rollback Rollback Rate
Purpose Authorization Auth. Rate Auth. Rate Levied

Operating State Law 1.1160         0.9925         0.9925         
Fire Protection Voter Approved 3.1250         3.1250         3.1250         
Fire Capital Voter Approved 0.5000         0.4881         0.4881         
Solid Waste Voter Approved 2.4050         2.4050         2.4050         
Police Voter Approved 5.7000         5.7000         5.7000         
Recreational Voter Approved 1.0059         1.0059         1.0059         
Fire Pension State Law -               1.1000         1.1000         

14.8165       14.8165       

 
IV. OTHER INFORMATION 
 

A. Firefighters Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

  Method used to value investments.  Investments are reported at fair value.  
Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last 
reported sales price at current exchange rates. 

  Plan Description 

  The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Police and Firefighters Retirement System Pension 
Board administers the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Police and Firefighters Pension 
Plan, which is a single employer defined benefit pension plan that provides 
retirement, disability, and death benefits for all eligible firefighters and their 
beneficiaries.  Benefit terms have been established by Township policy and 
contractual agreements authorized by the Township Board and may be 
amended by Township Board action. 

  Management of the Plan is vested in a pension board, which consist of five 
members – two elected, two appointed by the Township Board and the Township 
Treasurer. 

 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

46 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
 A. Firefighters Defined Benefit Pension Plan – Continued 

Benefits Provided  

The Pension Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to eligible plan 
members.  Retirement benefits are computed using credited service at the time of 
termination of membership multiplied by a certain percentage based on the 
benefit program in effect as of the date of termination of membership times the 
final average compensation (FAC).   

    
 Plan Membership 

As of December 31, 2021, pension plan membership consisted of the following: 

 Inactive Plan members currently receiving benefits  64 
 Inactive Plan members entitled to but not receiving benefits - 
 Active Members  21 

          Total Plan Members 85   
       

   Contributions 
The authority to amend contribution requirements rests with the Pension Board, 
which establishes rates based on an actuarially determined rate recommended 
by an independent actuary.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimate 
amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members 
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued 
liability.  Covered employees are required to contribute 6% of their pay. The 
Township is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially 
determined rate and the contribution rate of plan members.  For the year ended 
December 31, 2022 the Township contributed $984,011. 

 
  Pension Reserves 

In accordance with Public Act 345 as amended, the following reserves are 
required to be set aside within the pension plan: 
 
The retiree reserve is to be computed annually by the actuary as the present value 
of estimated benefit payments for all current retirees.  The amounts reserved may 
be used solely to pay monthly retiree benefit payments. 
 
The employee reserve is credited as employee contributions are received 
throughout the year; the Plan maintains a record of the amount contributed by 
each employee, and credits interest annually at a rate of 2.0 percent.  For any 
employee who terminates before vesting in the plan, their balance is returned to 
them; for those who stay until retirement, the balance is transferred into the retiree 
reserve. 
 
The employer reserve is used to account for the residual net position balance in 
the pension plan after funding the retiree reserve and the employee reserve. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

47 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
 A. Firefighters Defined Benefit Pension Plan – Continued 

 
  The balances of the reserve accounts at December 31, 2021 are as follows: 
         

Employees' Contributions 1,029,757$           
Employer Contributions 455,036                
Retired Benefit Payments 29,848,229           

31,333,022$         

 
   Investment Policy 
 

The pension plans’ policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is 
established and may be amended by the Pension Board by a majority vote of 
its members.  It is the policy of the Pension Board to pursue an investment 
strategy that manages risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio 
across a broad selection of distinct asset classes.  The pension plan’s 
investment policy discourages the use of cash equivalents, except for liquidity 
purposes, and aims to refrain from dramatically shifting asset class allocations 
over short time spans.  The following was the Board’s adopted asset allocation 
policy as of December 31, 2021. 

 

 Long-term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Equities 51% 5.25%
Fixed Income  37%  1.68%
Real Estate 9% 4.43%
Cash 3% 0.09%
  

   Projected Cash Flows 
 
   Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was 

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  The long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a model in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of 
arithmetic real rates of return is 6.50%. 

 
   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

48 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
 A. Firefighters Defined Benefit Pension Plan – Continued 
 

  Net Pension Liability 

The net pension liability reported at December 31, 2022 was determined using a 
measure of the total pension liability and the plan net position as of December 31, 
2021.  The December 31, 2021 total pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation performed as of that date. 
 
Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows: 

 

 

Total Pension Plan Net Net Pension
Changes in Net Pension Liability Liability Position Liability

Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 37,396,930  $ 31,296,842   $ 6,100,088    

   Service Cost 432,245       -                    432,245       
   Interest 2,384,284    -                    2,384,284    
   Contributions-Employer -                   1,191,035     (1,191,035)   
   Contributions-Employee -                   94,021          (94,021)        
   Net Investment Income(Loss) -                   3,371,726     (3,371,726)   
   Differences between Expected 
     and Actual Experience (465,149)      -                    (465,149)      
   Change in Assumptions 42,596         -                    42,596         
   Benefit Payments, including refunds (2,295,758)   (2,295,758)    -                   
   Administrative Expenses -                   (21,650)         21,650         
          Net Changes 98,218         2,339,374     (2,241,156)   
 
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 37,495,148  $ 33,636,216   $ 3,858,932    
 

Increase (Decrease)

 

   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

49 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
 A. Firefighters Defined Benefit Pension Plan – Continued 

 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
At December 31, 2022, the Township reported deferred outflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of

Source Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
   earnings on pension plan investments $ 515,224       $ 2,818,420   
Differences between expected and actual experience -                   579,424      
Changes in assumptions 28,397         41,104        
Employer contributions to the plan subsequent
   to the measurement date 984,011       -                 
          Total $ 1,527,632    $ 3,438,948   

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Years Ending
Dec. 31 Amount

2023 $ (954,795)    
2024 (1,159,592) 
2025 (506,745)    
2026 (274,195)    
2027 -             

 
   Actuarial assumptions 
   The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 

December 31, 2021, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement: 

   
   Investment rate of return   6.50% 
   Salary increases   3.50% to 6.50% 
   Inflation   2.50% 
 

Mortality rates were based on the PubS-2010 Mortality with generational 
improvements projected beginning in 2010 based on the SOA Scale MP-19.  

    
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

50 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

 
IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 

 
A. Firefighters Defined Benefit Pension Plan – Continued 

 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Township, calculated using 
the discount rate of 6.50 percent, as well as what the Township’s net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage 
point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%)
 
Net Pension Liability $ 7,852,182    $ 3,858,932     $ 506,568       
  

 
 
 B. Municipal Employee Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan 
 
  Plan Description 
  The Township contributes to the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of 

Michigan (MERS), which is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan that covers all full time employees of the Township except elected officials 
and firefighters. MERS was established by the Michigan Legislature in 1945 and is 
administered by a nine member Retirement Board.  MERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the system.  That report may be obtained at 
mersofmich.com. 

 
  Benefits Provided 
  The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and 

their beneficiaries, as established by Public Act 427 of 1984, as amended.  The Plan 
covers all full-time employees at the Township except elected officials and 
firefighters.  Benefits are calculated as 2.5 percent of the employee’s five-year 
final average compensation times the employee’s years of service with a 
maximum of 80 percent of final average compensation.  Normal retirement age is 
60.  Deferred retirement benefits vest after 10 years of credited service but are not 
paid until the date retirement would have occurred if the member had remained 
an employee. Benefit terms, within the guidelines established by MERS, are 
generally established and amended by authority of the Township Board. 

 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

51 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 

B. Municipal Employee Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan – Continued 
 

  Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
At the December 31, 2021 measurement date, the following employees were 
covered by the benefit terms: 
 
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 81 
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 30  
Active Plan Members   72 
  Total Employees covered by MERS 183 

 
  Contributions 

  The State of Michigan Constitution, Article 9, Section 24, requires that financial 
benefits arising on account of employee services rendered in each year be 
funded during that year.  Accordingly, MERS retains an independent actuary to 
determine the annual contribution.  

 
  The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially 

determined rate, as established by the MERS retirement board.  The actuarially 
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of 
benefits earned by plan members during the year, with an additional amount to 
finance any unfunded accrued liability.  The employer may establish contribution 
rates to be paid by its covered employees. 

 
  For the year ended December 31, 2021, the average active employee 

contribution rate was 8.0% percent of gross wages for all employees. 
 

  Net Pension Liability 
  The net pension liability reported at December 31, 2022 was determined using a 

measure of the total pension liability and the plan net position as of December 31, 
2021.  The December 31, 2021 total pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation performed as of that date.   

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

52 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
  

B. Municipal Employee Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan – Continued 
   

Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows: 
 

  

Total Pension Plan Net Net Pension
Changes in Net Pension Liability Liability Position Liability

Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 26,192,239  $ 19,094,119  $ 7,098,120    

   Service Cost 507,004       -                   507,004       
   Interest 1,945,472    -                   1,945,472    
   Contributions-Employer -                   865,429       (865,429)      
   Contributions-Employee -                   335,739       (335,739)      
   Net Investment Income(loss) -                   2,677,141    (2,677,141)   
   Change in Assumptions 972,261       -                   972,261       
   Differences between Actual and
      Expected Experience 44,962         -                   44,962         
   Benefit Payments, including refunds (1,611,363)   (1,611,363)   -                   
   Administrative Expenses -                   (30,720)        30,720         
          Net Changes 1,858,336    2,236,226    (377,890)      
 
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 28,050,575  $ 21,330,345  $ 6,720,230    
 

Increase (Decrease)

 
   

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
At December 31, 2022, the Township reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of

Source Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
   earnings on pension plan investments $ 2,063,398    $ 377,266      
Changes in assumptions related to economic and
   demographic factors 955,505       -                 
Net difference between projected and actual
   experience 75,366         -                 
Employer contributions to the plan subsequent
   to the measurement date 906,756       -                 
          Total $ 4,001,025    $ 377,266      

 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

53 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 

B. Municipal Employee Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan – Continued 
 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows.  These amounts are exclusive of the 
employer contributions to the plan made subsequent to the measurement date 
($906,756), which will impact the net pension liability in fiscal year 2022, rather than 
pension expense. 

Years Ending
Dec. 31 Amount

2023 $ 975,847      
2024 1,000,389   
2025 466,484      
2026 274,283      
2027 -              

  Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement: 

 
Inflation    2.50% 
Salary increases              3.00% 
Investment rate of return 7.35% 

 
 Mortality rates were based on the RP=2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Tables of 

a 50 percent male and 50 percent female blend with rates multiplied by 105%.  
For disabled retirees, the 50% Male and 50% Female blend of the RP-2014 
Disabled Retiree Mortality Tables. 

 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2021 valuation were based 
on the results of an actuarial experience study in 2015. 

 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60 percent.  
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that 
employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that 
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between 
actuarially determined contribution rates and the employee rate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

54 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

 
IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 

B.   Municipal Employee Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan – Continued 
 
  Projected Cash Flows 

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was not 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
determined using a model in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real 
rates of return as of December 31, 2021, the measurement date, for each major 
asset class are summarized in the following table: 

 
 Long-term

Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Global Equity 60% 4.20%
Global Fixed Income  20%  0.90%
Private Investments 20% 1.90%
    
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Township, calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the Township’s net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage 
point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
 
Net Pension Liability $ 9,843,026    $ 6,720,230     $ 4,086,159    
  

 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

55 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 

B.   Municipal Employee Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan – Continued 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued financial report.  For the purposes of measuring the net pension 
liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pension and pension expense, information about the plan’s fiduciary net 
position and addition to/deduction from fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plan.  The plan uses 
the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of 
accounting.  Investments are stated at fair value.  Contribution revenue is 
recorded as contributions are due pursuant to legal requirements.  Benefit 
payments and refunds of employee contributions are recognized as expense 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 

 
C. Post-Employment Health Care Benefits 

 
1. General Township Employee Plan 

 
  Plan Description  
  In addition to providing pension benefits, the Township provides certain health 

care benefits to all full time employees of the Township.  The Township Board 
established by resolution the general Township employees’ Health Care Plan, a 
single-employer defined benefit post-employment health care plan.  The plan is 
designed to accumulate resources to pay for post-employment health, dental, 
and vision insurance for retired general township employees and is administered 
through the Michigan Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS).  The plan 
is included in the Township’s financial statements as a fiduciary fund.  The plan 
was established under the Authority of Public Act 169 of 1999.  The plan does not 
issue separate stand-alone statements. 

 
  Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
  At the December 31, 2021 valuation date, the following employees were covered 

by the benefit terms: 
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 49 
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 7  
Active Plan Members   29 
  Total 85 

 
  Contributions 
  The Plan’s funding policy provides for periodic contributions by the Township at 

actuarially determined rates expressed as a percentage of annual covered 
payroll.  The actuarially determined contribution (ADC) represents a level of 
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost 
each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) 
over a period not to exceed 30 years. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

56 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 

C. Post-Employment Health Care Benefits - Continued 
 
1. General Township Employee Plan - Continued 

 
  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
  For the purpose of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources 

and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (if applicable), and OPEB 
expenses, have been determined on the same basis as they are reported for the 
Township.  For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 
31, 2021.  The following actuarial assumptions were applied: 

 
 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-age normal
Amortization Method Level Dollar, closed
Remaining Amortization 24 years
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%
Salary increases 3.0%-16.0%, including inflation
Mortality RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Tables for males and female;

Projected to 2020 with MP-2017
Health care trend rates Trend rates starting at 8.25% and gradually decreasing

to an ultimate trend rate of 3.50% over 15 years.
 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.00% based on the 
average effective rate consisting of long term return on assets and 20 year Aa 
Municipal Bond Rate.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

57 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 

C. Post-Employment Health Care Benefits - Continued 
 
1. General Township Employee Plan - Continued 

 
Changes in Net OPEB Liability 
 
The components of the change in the net OPEB liability are summarized as follows: 

 

  

Total OPEB Plan Net Net OPEB
Changes in Net OPEB Liability Liability Position Liability

Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 11,218,758  $ 8,808,982    $ 2,409,776    

   Service Cost 150,028       -                  150,028       
   Interest Cost 364,978       -                  364,978       
   Change in Assumptions (465,742)      -                  (465,742)      
   Employer Contributions -                   519,956       (519,956)      
   Net Investment Income -                   1,278,318    (1,278,318)   
   Benefit Payments (556,171)      (556,171)     -                   
   Administrative Expenses -                   (17,789)       17,789         
          Net Changes (506,907)      1,224,314    (1,731,221)   
 
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 10,711,851  $ 10,033,296  $ 678,555       
 

Increase (Decrease)

 
 

 
  Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Township, calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the Township’s net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point 
lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
 
Net OPEB Liability $ 2,211,480             $ 678,555                     $ (611,228)               
  
 
 
 

 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

58 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

 
IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 

C. Post-Employment Health Care Benefits - Continued 
 
1. General Township Employee Plan - Continued 

 
  Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Township, as well as what the 
Township’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare trends 
rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the 
current healthcare cost trend rates: 

  

 Healthcare Cost  
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

 
Net OPEB Liability $ (309,444)               $ 678,555                     $ 1,984,478             
  

 
2. FireFighter’s Health Care Plan 

 
   Plan Description  

 The Township Board established by resolution the Firefighter’s Health Care Plan, 
a single-employer defined benefit post-employment health care plan.  The 
plan is designed to accumulate resources to pay for post-employment health, 
dental, vision, and life insurance for retired firefighters and is administered 
through The Vanguard Group.  The plan was established under the authority of 
P.A. 169 of 1999 and is included in the Township’s financial statements as a 
fiduciary fund.  The plan does not issue stand-alone financial statements. 

 
   Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

   At the December 31, 2021 valuation date, the following employees were 
covered by the benefit terms: 

 
 Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 39 
 Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits -  
 Active Plan Members   26 
  Total 65 

 
   Contributions 

The Plan’s funding policy provides for periodic contributions by the Township at 
actuarially determined rates expressed as a percentage of annual covered 
payroll.  Plan members were required to contribute 1% through September 
2012, and thereafter are required to contribute 4% of their annual covered 
salary.  Administrative costs of the plan are financed through investment 
earnings.  The actuarially determined contribution (ADC) represents a level of 
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost 
each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding 
excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

59 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

 
IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 

C. Post-Employment Health Care Benefits - Continued 
 
2. FireFighter’s Health Care Plan - Continued 

 
  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
  For the purpose of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources 

and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (if applicable), and OPEB 
expenses, have been determined on the same basis as they are reported for the 
Township.  For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 
31, 2021.  The following actuarial assumptions were applied: 
 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-age normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, closed
Remaining Amortization 26 years
Investment Rate of Return 6.50%
Salary increases 3.50%-6.50%, including inflation of 3.0%
Mortality RPH-2019 Total Dataset Fully Generational Mortality

Table using Scale MP-2019.
Health care trend rates Trend rates starting at 8.0% and gradually decreasing by

.5% annually to an ultimate rate of 4.50%.

 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.50% based on the 
average effective rate consisting of long term return on assets and 20 year Aa 
Municipal Bond Rate.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

60 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 

C. Post-Employment Health Care Benefits - Continued 
 
2. FireFighter’s Health Care Plan - Continued 
 
Changes in Net OPEB Liability 
 
The components of the change in the net OPEB liability are summarized as follows: 

 

  

Total OPEB Plan Net Net OPEB
Changes in Net OPEB Liability Liability Position Liability

Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 12,624,186  $ 8,544,128   $ 4,080,058    

   Service Cost 141,708       -                 141,708       
   Interest Cost 809,050       -                 809,050       
   Differences between Actual and
      Expected Experience (1,993,411)   -                 (1,993,411)   
   Change in Assumptions 127,970       -                 127,970       
   Employer Contributions -                   700,000      (700,000)      
   Employee Contributions -                   49,275        (49,275)        
   Net Investment Income -                   786,722      (786,722)      
   Benefit Payments (648,118)      (648,118)    -                   
   Administrative Expenses -                   (19,986)      19,986         
          Net Changes (1,562,801)   867,893      (2,430,694)   
 
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 11,061,385  $ 9,412,021   $ 1,649,364    
 

Increase (Decrease)

 
 

  Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Township, calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.50 percent, as well as what the Township’s net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point 
lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(5.50%) (6.50%) (7.50%)
 
Net OPEB Liability $ 2,870,027             $ 1,649,364                  $ 633,838                
  

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

61 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 

 C.  Post-Employment Health Care Benefits - Continued 
 

2. Firefighter’s Health Care Plan 
 

  Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Township, as well as what the 
Township’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare trends 
rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the 
current healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

  

 Healthcare Cost  
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

 
Net OPEB Liability $ 634,099                $ 1,649,364                  $ 2,863,965             
  

 
 D. Risk Management  
 
  The Township participates in a pool, the Michigan Municipal League Liability and 

Property Pool purchases insurance coverage through traditional means. The 
Township's property and liability and workers compensation coverages are on file 
in the Risk Manager’s office. 

 
 E. Contingencies 

 
  1. Consent Judgment 

 The Township entered into a settlement agreement with the City of Ypsilanti 
relative to dissolution of the Joint Ypsilanti Recreation Organization (JYRO).  
Under the settlement, all properties previously owned and managed by JYRO 
were conveyed to the Township in exchange for the following contingent 
payments from the Township to the City: 

 
  a. 10% of gross revenues, for fifty years, from the operation of the Ford Lake 

Dam.  Gross revenues are defined as revenues from dam operations less 
20% reserve for capital improvements, until $300,000 is accumulated. 

   b. 50% of residual funds available after Dam, Park Operations, royalties and  
    reserve requirements are paid from Dam revenues. 
 
   For 2022, the Township paid the City of Ypsilanti $45,002 under this agreement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2022 
 

62 
 

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

IV. OTHER INFORMATION – Continued 
 
 E. Contingencies - Continued 
 
  2. Ypsilanti Community Utility Debt 

 
The Township participates in a joint venture with the City of Ypsilanti, known as 
the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority.  The Authority issues bonds that are 
backed by the full faith and credit (subject to constitutional limitations) of the 
City or Township.  The proceeds of these bonds are used to construct the 
various infrastructure projects, and the recipient of these obligations have 
been made by the revenues of the Authority.  As of August 31, 2022, (the latest 
audited information of the Authority) the total amount of these obligations was 
$59,147,630 of which $44,990,646 is the Township’s portion or shared with the 
City. 
 

F. Tax Abatements 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti granted Industrial Facilities Tax exemptions (P.A. 
198 of 1974) to properties within the Township.  Industrial Facility Exemptions are 
intended to promote construction of new industrial facilities or to rehabilitate 
facilities.  Under the industrial facility exemption program, the Township’s millage is 
reduced by 50 percent on that parcel.  As of December 31, 2022, the Township’s 
property tax revenue was reduced by $6,270 under this tax abatement program. 

 
 

 G. Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements 

In May 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement 
No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs), which 
provides accounting and financial reporting for SBITAs by governments.  This 
statement requires a government to recognize a subscription liability and an 
intangible right-to-use subscription asset for SBITAs.  The Township is currently 
evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements, if any, 
when adopted.  This statement is effective for the Township’s financial 
statements beginning with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. 
 
In June 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement 
No. 101, Compensated Absences, which updates the recognition and 
measurement guidance for compensated absences as well as the disclosure 
requirements.  This statement requires that the compensated absence liability be 
recognized for leave that has not been used and leave that has been used but 
not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means.  This statement is 
effective for the Township’s financial statements beginning with the fiscal year 
ending /December 31, 2024. 
 



 
 

PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R E Q U I R E D   S U P P L E M E N T A R Y   I N F O R M A T I O N 



20
22

20
21

20
20

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ilit
y:

  S
er

vi
ce

 C
os

t
$

50
7,

00
4

   
   

  
$

50
7,

00
4

   
   

  
$

51
7,

13
0

   
   

  
$

49
5,

23
6

   
   

  
$

46
2,

84
4

   
   

  
$

43
8,

41
7

   
   

  
$

44
7,

99
7

   
   

  
$

39
9,

44
6

   
   

  
  I

nt
er

es
t

1,
94

5,
47

2
   

  
1,

80
4,

70
2

   
  

1,
78

2,
51

2
   

  
1,

74
4,

86
6

   
  

1,
68

5,
57

1
   

  
1,

65
9,

00
8

   
  

1,
55

2,
24

8
   

  
1,

49
0,

79
1

   
  

  C
ha

ng
e 

in
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
97

2,
26

1
   

   
  

92
1,

99
2

   
   

  
68

0,
06

3
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

87
9,

40
8

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
  C

ha
ng

e 
in

 b
en

ef
its

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
18

1
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
( 1

9,
03

7)
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

  D
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
   

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e

44
,9

62
   

   
   

 
13

6,
17

5
   

   
  

( 1
90

,4
12

)
   

   
(5

27
,5

43
)

   
   

(2
29

,5
95

)
   

   
( 6

13
,5

20
)

   
   

18
4,

97
9

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
  B

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 re
fu

nd
s

(1
,6

11
,3

63
)

   
(1

,3
40

,4
18

)
   

(1
,2

98
,7

12
)

   
(1

,2
23

,5
08

)
   

(1
,1

64
,1

41
)

   
(1

,1
25

,9
54

)
   

(1
,1

48
,7

69
)

   
(1

,1
90

,3
76

)
   

   
   

N
et

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 T

ot
al

 P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ilit
y

 
1,

85
8,

33
6

   
  

 
2,

02
9,

45
5

   
  

 
1,

49
0,

58
1

   
  

 
49

7,
23

2
   

   
  

 
75

4,
67

9
   

   
  

 
33

8,
91

4
   

   
  

 
1,

91
5,

86
3

   
  

 
69

9,
86

1
   

   
  

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ilit
y,

 B
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r
26

,1
92

,2
39

   
24

,1
62

,7
84

   
22

,6
72

,2
03

   
22

,1
74

,9
71

   
21

,4
20

,2
92

   
21

,0
81

,3
78

   
19

,1
65

,5
15

   
18

,4
65

,6
54

   

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ilit
y,

 E
nd

 o
f y

ea
r

$
28

,0
50

,5
75

   
$

26
,1

92
,2

39
   

$
24

,1
62

,7
84

   
$

22
,6

72
,2

03
   

$
22

,1
74

,9
71

   
$

21
,4

20
,2

92
   

$
21

,0
81

,3
78

   
$

19
,1

65
,5

15
   

Pl
an

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
:

   
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

Em
pl

oy
er

$
86

5,
42

9
   

   
  

$
63

5,
49

8
   

   
  

$
71

7,
32

1
   

   
  

$
60

1,
41

7
   

   
  

$
60

9,
99

5
   

   
  

$
46

8,
62

2
   

   
  

$
46

9,
55

3
   

   
  

$
47

6,
46

0
   

   
  

   
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

Em
pl

oy
ee

33
5,

73
9

   
   

  
36

1,
88

0
   

   
  

34
0,

54
0

   
   

  
31

9,
47

2
   

   
  

30
9,

73
9

   
   

  
27

0,
09

0
   

   
  

33
6,

58
7

   
   

  
24

0,
47

7
   

   
  

   
N

et
 In

ve
st

m
en

t I
nc

om
e(

Lo
ss

)
2,

67
7,

14
1

   
  

2,
20

2,
53

7
   

  
2,

08
9,

84
7

   
  

(6
38

,9
45

)
   

   
1,

94
6,

07
1

   
  

1,
54

0,
00

6
   

  
(2

12
,8

13
)

   
   

86
8,

12
6

   
   

  
   

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

es
(3

0,
72

0)
   

   
  

(3
4,

69
0)

   
   

  
(3

6,
01

3)
   

   
  

(3
1,

72
1)

   
   

  
(3

0,
80

8)
   

   
  

(3
0,

40
2)

   
   

  
(3

0,
96

9)
   

   
  

(3
1,

81
0)

   
   

  
   

Be
ne

fit
 p

ay
m

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 re

fu
nd

s
(1

,6
11

,3
63

)
   

(1
,3

40
,4

18
)

   
( 1

,2
98

,7
12

)
   

(1
,2

23
,5

08
)

   
(1

,1
64

,1
41

)
   

( 1
,1

25
,9

54
)

   
(1

,1
48

,7
69

)
   

( 1
,1

90
,3

76
)

   
N

et
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
la

n 
Fi

du
ci

ar
y 

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

2,
23

6,
22

6
   

  
1,

82
4,

80
7

   
  

1,
81

2,
98

3
   

  
(9

73
,2

85
)

   
   

1,
67

0,
85

6
   

  
1,

12
2,

36
2

   
  

(5
86

,4
11

)
   

   
36

2,
87

7
   

   
  

Pl
an

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
, B

eg
. o

f y
ea

r
 

19
,0

94
,1

19
   

17
,2

69
,3

12
   

 
15

,4
56

,3
29

   
 

16
,4

29
,6

14
   

 
14

,7
58

,7
58

   
 

13
, 6

36
,3

96
   

 
14

,2
22

,8
07

   
 

13
,8

59
,9

30
   

Pl
an

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
, E

nd
 o

f y
ea

r
$

21
,3

30
,3

45
   

$
19

,0
94

,1
19

   
$

17
,2

69
,3

12
   

$
15

, 4
56

,3
29

   
$

16
,4

29
,6

14
   

$
14

,7
58

,7
58

   
$

13
,6

36
,3

96
   

$
14

, 2
22

,8
07

   

To
w

ns
hi

p'
s N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ilit

y 
- E

nd
in

g
$

6,
72

0,
23

0
   

  
$

7,
09

8,
12

0
   

  
$

6,
89

3,
47

2
   

  
$

7,
21

5,
87

4
   

  
$

5,
74

5,
35

7
   

  
$

6,
66

1,
53

4
   

  
$

7,
44

4,
98

2
   

  
$

4,
94

2,
70

8
   

  

Pl
an

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 a

s a
 P

er
ce

nt
  o

f T
ot

al
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ilit

y
76

.0
%

72
.9

%
71

.5
%

68
.2

%
74

.1
%

68
.9

%
64

.7
%

74
.2

%

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 P

ay
ro

ll
$

4,
11

1,
94

7
   

  
$

4,
16

4,
66

0
   

  
$

4,
21

5,
27

6
   

  
$

3,
98

0,
69

0
   

  
$

3,
61

9,
62

0
   

  
$

3,
48

2,
63

1
   

  
$

3,
61

2,
93

9
   

  
$

3,
18

2,
19

5
   

  

To
w

ns
hi

p'
s N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ilit

y 
as

 a
   

Pe
rc

en
t o

f C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 P

ay
ro

ll
16

3.
4%

17
0.

4%
16

3.
5%

18
1.

3%
15

8.
7%

19
1.

3%
20

6.
1%

15
5.

3%

C
HA

RT
ER

 TO
W

N
SH

IP
 O

F 
YP

SI
LA

N
TI

Re
qu

ire
d 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f C
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Lia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
Re

la
te

d 
Ra

tio
s

M
ER

S 
De

fin
ed

 B
en

ef
it 

Pl
an

La
st

 Te
n 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
rs

 (s
ch

ed
ul

e 
is 

bu
ilt

 p
ro

sp
ec

tiv
el

y 
up

on
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 G

A
SB

 6
8)

63

P
SL

Z 
P

LL
C

 - 
C

er
ti

fi
ed

 P
ub

lic
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts



20
22

20
21

20
20

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ilit
y:

  S
er

vi
ce

 C
os

t
$

43
2,

24
5

   
   

  
$

41
0,

95
2

   
   

  
$

49
1,

47
6

   
   

  
$

43
9,

57
7

   
   

  
$

43
6,

50
6

   
   

  
$

42
8,

53
7

   
   

  
$

42
0,

48
9

   
   

  
$

45
6,

94
3

   
   

  
  I

nt
er

es
t

2,
38

4,
28

4
   

  
2,

40
6,

24
3

   
  

2,
34

2,
02

4
   

  
2,

31
4,

31
2

   
  

2,
27

5,
32

3
   

  
2,

39
6,

05
8

   
  

2,
27

1,
93

6
   

  
2,

24
8,

93
4

   
  

  D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

   
  a

nd
 A

ct
ua

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e

(4
65

,1
49

)
   

   
(8

07
,9

75
)

   
   

60
,4

66
   

   
   

 
(5

4,
73

3)
   

   
  

51
1,

87
6

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
( 7

13
,8

82
)

   
   

15
3,

44
6

   
   

  
  A

ss
um

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

es
42

,5
96

   
   

   
 

(1
23

,3
14

)
   

   
36

5,
39

7
   

   
  

(7
8,

33
7)

   
   

  
2,

78
7,

40
9

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(9
6,

95
9)

   
   

  
  O

th
er

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
5,

08
0

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
  B

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 re
fu

nd
s

(2
,2

95
,7

58
)

   
(2

,1
94

,3
02

)
   

(2
,1

87
,3

99
)

   
(2

,3
05

,3
53

)
   

(2
,5

42
,3

08
)

   
(2

,1
34

,5
26

)
   

(2
,2

22
,8

07
)

   
(2

,6
30

,9
32

)
   

   
   

  N
et

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 T

ot
al

 P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ilit
y

 
98

,2
18

   
   

   
 

 
(3

08
,3

96
)

   
   

 
1,

07
1,

96
4

   
  

 
48

0,
54

6
   

   
  

 
3,

46
8,

80
6

   
  

 
69

0,
06

9
   

   
  

 
(2

44
,2

64
)

   
   

 
13

1,
43

2
   

   
  

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ilit
y,

 B
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r
37

,3
96

,9
30

   
37

,7
05

,3
26

   
36

,6
33

,3
62

   
36

,1
52

,8
16

   
32

,6
84

,0
10

   
31

,9
93

,9
41

   
32

,2
38

,2
05

   
32

,1
06

,7
73

   

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ilit
y,

 E
nd

 o
f y

ea
r

$
37

,4
95

,1
48

   
$

37
,3

96
,9

30
   

$
37

,7
05

,3
26

   
$

36
,6

33
,3

62
   

$
36

,1
52

,8
16

   
$

32
,6

84
,0

10
   

$
31

,9
93

,9
41

   
$

32
,2

38
,2

05
   

Pl
an

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
:

   
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

Em
pl

oy
er

$
1,

19
1,

03
5

   
  

$
1,

50
8,

39
3

   
  

$
99

8,
71

1
   

   
  

$
78

6,
57

8
   

   
  

$
76

3,
87

4
   

   
  

$
78

9,
01

8
   

   
  

$
73

7,
86

7
   

   
  

$
75

9,
46

2
   

   
  

   
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

Em
pl

oy
ee

94
,0

21
   

   
   

 
10

1,
20

2
   

   
  

97
,8

37
   

   
   

 
10

2,
18

4
   

   
  

10
6,

03
8

   
   

  
10

1,
43

6
   

   
  

99
,3

33
   

   
   

 
10

2,
04

4
   

   
  

   
N

et
 In

ve
st

m
en

t I
nc

om
e(

Lo
ss

)
3,

37
1,

72
6

   
  

3,
02

0,
51

0
   

  
4,

20
0,

53
5

   
  

(8
00

,8
39

)
   

   
2,

58
3,

28
3

   
  

1,
66

1,
18

7
   

  
92

7,
62

7
   

   
  

1,
54

2,
48

7
   

  
   

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

es
(2

1,
65

0)
   

   
  

(2
4,

77
8)

   
   

  
(1

7,
44

8)
   

   
  

(1
8,

73
1)

   
   

  
(1

29
,5

25
)

   
   

(1
46

,9
40

)
   

   
(1

38
,6

12
)

   
   

(9
4,

62
6)

   
   

  
   

Be
ne

fit
 p

ay
m

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 re

fu
nd

s
(2

,2
95

,7
58

)
   

(2
,1

94
,3

02
)

   
( 2

,1
87

,3
99

)
   

(2
,3

05
,3

53
)

   
(2

,5
42

,3
08

)
   

( 2
,1

34
,5

26
)

   
(2

,2
22

,8
07

)
   

( 2
,6

30
,9

32
)

   
N

et
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
la

n 
Fi

du
ci

ar
y 

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

2,
33

9,
37

4
   

  
2,

41
1,

02
5

   
  

3,
09

2,
23

6
   

  
(2

,2
36

,1
61

)
   

78
1,

36
2

   
   

  
27

0,
17

5
   

   
  

(5
96

,5
92

)
   

   
(3

21
,5

65
)

   
   

Pl
an

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
, B

eg
. o

f y
ea

r
 

31
,2

96
,8

42
   

 
28

,8
85

,8
17

   
 

25
,7

93
,5

81
   

 
28

,0
29

,7
42

   
 

27
,2

48
,3

80
   

 
26

, 9
78

,2
05

   
 

27
,5

74
,7

97
   

 
27

,8
96

,3
62

   

Pl
an

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
, E

nd
 o

f y
ea

r
$

33
,6

36
,2

16
   

$
31

,2
96

,8
42

   
$

28
,8

85
,8

17
   

$
25

,7
93

,5
81

   
$

28
,0

29
,7

42
   

$
27

,2
48

,3
80

   
$

26
,9

78
,2

05
   

$
27

,5
74

,7
97

   

To
w

ns
hi

p'
s N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ilit

y 
- E

nd
in

g
$

3,
85

8,
93

2
   

  
$

6,
10

0,
08

8
   

  
$

8,
81

9,
50

9
   

  
$

10
,8

39
,7

81
   

$
8,

12
3,

07
4

   
  

$
5,

43
5,

63
0

   
  

$
5,

01
5,

73
6

   
  

$
4,

66
3,

40
8

   
  

Pl
an

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 a

s a
 P

er
ce

nt
   

of
 T

ot
al

 P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ilit
y

89
.7

%
83

.7
%

76
.6

%
70

.4
%

77
.5

%
83

.4
%

84
.3

%
85

.5
%

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 P

ay
ro

ll
$

1,
67

1,
27

3
   

  
$

1,
67

6,
17

5
   

  
$

1,
59

4,
04

3
   

  
$

1,
79

3,
00

6
   

  
$

1,
96

8,
59

2
   

  
$

1,
75

8,
73

5
   

  
$

1,
70

9,
51

7
   

  
$

1,
70

6,
09

6
   

  

To
w

ns
hi

p'
s N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ilit

y 
as

 a
   

Pe
rc

en
t o

f C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 P

ay
ro

ll
23

0.
9%

36
3.

9%
55

3.
3%

60
4.

6%
41

2.
6%

30
9.

1%
29

3.
4%

27
3.

3%

C
HA

RT
ER

 TO
W

N
SH

IP
 O

F 
YP

SI
LA

N
TI

Re
qu

ire
d 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f C
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Lia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
Re

la
te

d 
Ra

tio
s

Fi
re

fig
ht

er
s D

ef
in

ed
 B

en
ef

it 
Pl

an
La

st
 Te

n 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 (s

ch
ed

ul
e 

is 
bu

ilt
 p

ro
sp

ec
tiv

el
y 

up
on

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 G
A

SB
 6

8)

64

P
SL

Z 
P

LL
C

 - 
C

er
ti

fi
ed

 P
ub

lic
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts



2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB Liability:
  Service Cost $ 150,028        $ 157,670        $ 157,670        $ 162,626        $ 175,863        
  Interest 364,978        344,941        344,941        501,914        797,509        
  Change in assumptions (465,742)      (888,039)      (888,039)      -                   630,904        
  Differences between actual and     
    expected experience -                   -                   -                   -                   93,424          
  Benefit payments, including refunds (556,171)      (479,234)      (479,234)      (483,932)      (470,566)      
        Net Change in Total OPEB Liability  (506,907)       (864,662)       (864,662)       180,608         1,227,134     

Total OPEB Liability, Beginning of year 11,218,758   12,083,420   12,948,082   12,767,474   11,540,340   

Total OPEB Liability, End of year $ 10,711,851   $ 11,218,758   $ 12,083,420   $ 12,948,082   $ 12,767,474   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
   Contributions - Employer $ 519,956        $ 644,897        $ 664,540        $ 633,569        $ 646,163        
   Contributions - Employee -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
   Net Investment Income 1,278,318     1,080,979     941,452        (260,070)      794,526        
   Administrative Expenses (17,789)        (14,317)        (13,086)        (17,032)        (15,238)        
   Benefit payments, including refunds (556,171)      (482,687)      (479,234)      (483,932)      (470,566)      
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 1,224,314     1,228,872     1,113,672     (127,465)      954,885        

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, Beg. of year  8,808,982     7,580,110      6,466,438      6,593,903      5,639,018     

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, End of year $ 10,033,296   $ 8,808,982     $ 7,580,110     $ 6,466,438     $ 6,593,903     

Township's Net OPEB Liability - Ending $ 678,555        $ 2,409,776     $ 4,503,310     $ 6,481,644     $ 6,173,571     

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percent
  of Total OPEB Liability 93.7% 78.5% 62.7% 49.9% 51.6%

Covered Employee Payroll $ 1,891,165     $ 2,655,895     $ 2,768,409     $ 2,659,708     $ 2,665,488     

Township's Net OPEB Liability as a
   Percent of Covered Employee Payroll 35.9% 90.7% 162.7% 243.7% 231.6%

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
Required Supplemental Information

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Township OPEB Benefit Plan

Last Ten Fiscal Years (schedule is built prospectively upon implementation of GASB 68)

65

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB Liability:
  Service Cost $ 141,708         $ 150,240         $ 142,749          $ 137,922         $ 138,294         
  Interest 809,050         892,682         959,584          931,661         842,858         
  Difference between Expected
     and Actual Experience (1,993,411)     (1,647,513)     (2,152,449)     58,494           169,008         
  Assumption Changes 127,970         -                     720,691          -                     1,730,520      
  Benefit payments, including refunds (648,118)        (698,127)        (716,223)        (690,818)        (634,137)        
        Net Change in Total Pension Liability  (1,562,801)      (1,302,718)      (1,045,648)      437,259          2,246,543      

Total OPEB Liability, Beginning of year 12,624,186    13,926,904    14,972,552     14,535,293    12,288,750    

Total OPEB Liability, End of year $ 11,061,385    $ 12,624,186    $ 13,926,904     $ 14,972,552    $ 14,535,293    

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
   Contributions - Employer $ 700,000         $ 753,617         $ 767,327          $ 625,958         $ 629,226         
   Contributions - Employee 49,275           43,841           48,742            50,783           52,989           
   Net Investment Income 786,722         1,520,190      1,300,333       (363,105)        715,512         
   Administrative Expenses (19,986)          (24,000)          (21,120)          (18,942)          -                     
   Benefit payments, including refunds (648,118)        (698,127)        (716,223)        (719,979)        (634,137)        
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 867,893         1,595,521      1,379,059       (425,285)        763,590         

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, Beg. of year  8,544,128      6,948,607       5,569,548        5,994,833       5,231,243      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, End of year $ 9,412,021      $ 8,544,128      $ 6,948,607       $ 5,569,548      $ 5,994,833      

Township's Net OPEB Liability - Ending $ 1,649,364      $ 4,080,058      $ 6,978,297       $ 9,403,004      $ 8,540,460      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percent
   of Total OPEB Liability 85.1% 67.7% 49.9% 37.2% 41.2%

Covered Employee Payroll $ 2,084,653      $ 2,255,552      $ 2,163,061       $ 1,476,413      $ 1,433,411      

Township's Net OPEB Liability as a
   Percent of Covered Employee Payroll 79.1% 180.9% 322.6% 636.9% 595.8%

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
Required Supplemental Information

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Firefighters OPEB Plan

Last Ten Fiscal Years (schedule is built prospectively upon implementation of GASB 68)

66

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 

20
22

20
21

20
20

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

20
13

 A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

b
ut

io
n

$
90

6,
75

6
   

   
$

77
7,

83
2

   
 

$
63

4,
64

9
   

 
$

57
7,

32
1

   
 

$
55

1,
41

7
   

 
$

54
3,

73
0

   
 

$
46

8,
62

2
   

 
$

46
9,

55
6

   
 

$
47

6,
46

0
   

 
$

42
4,

58
9

   
 

C
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
a

ct
ua

ria
lly

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

b
ut

io
n

90
6,

75
6

   
   

86
5,

42
9

   
 

63
5,

49
7

   
 

71
7,

32
1

   
 

60
1,

41
7

   
 

60
9,

99
5

   
 

46
8,

62
2

   
 

46
9,

55
6

   
 

47
6,

46
0

   
 

42
4,

58
9

   
 

C
on

tri
b

ut
io

n 
Ex

ce
ss

 (D
ef

ic
ie

nc
y)

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$
87

,5
97

   
   

$
84

8
   

   
   

  
$

14
0,

00
0

   
 

$
50

,0
00

   
   

$
66

,2
65

   
   

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

Pa
yr

ol
l

$
4,

06
6,

94
7

   
$

4,
16

4,
66

0
 

$
3,

98
0,

69
0

 
$

3,
61

9,
62

0
 

$
3,

48
2,

63
1

 
$

3,
61

2,
93

9
 

$
3,

58
4,

14
3

 
$

3,
18

2,
19

5
 

$
3,

28
1,

48
6

 
$

3,
32

1,
52

9
 

 C
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
 a

s a
 P

er
ce

nt
a

ge
 o

f
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
C

ov
er

ed
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
Pa

yr
ol

l
22

.3
%

20
.8

%
16

.0
%

19
.8

%
17

.3
%

16
.9

%
13

.1
%

14
.8

%
14

.5
%

12
.8

%

A
ct

ua
ria

l v
a

lu
a

tio
n 

in
fo

rm
a

tio
n 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 th

e 
d

et
er

m
in

a
tio

n 
of

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
:

V
a

lu
a

tio
n 

D
a

te
A

ct
ua

ria
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s a

re
 c

a
lc

ul
a

te
d

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
b

er
 3

1 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r, 

w
hi

ch
 is

 1
2 

m
on

th
s p

rio
r t

o 
th

e
b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f t

he
 fi

sc
a

l y
ea

r i
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

re
 re

q
ui

re
d

.

M
et

ho
d

s a
nd

 a
ss

um
p

tio
ns

 u
se

d
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s:
 

A
ct

ua
ria

l C
os

t M
et

ho
d

En
try

 a
ge

 n
or

m
a

l c
os

t

A
m

or
tiz

a
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d
Le

ve
l p

er
ce

nt

Re
m

a
in

in
g 

A
m

or
tiz

a
tio

n 
Pe

rio
d

A
ss

et
 V

a
lu

a
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d
5-

ye
a

r s
m

oo
th

ed
 m

a
rk

et

In
fla

tio
n

2.
50

%

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
s

3.
00

%
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
fla

tio
n

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

a
te

 o
f R

et
ur

n
7.

35
%

C
os

t o
f l

iv
in

g 
a

d
ju

st
m

en
ts

N
on

e 

M
or

ta
lit

y
50

%
 M

a
le

 - 
50

%
 F

em
a

le
 b

le
nd

 o
f t

he
 R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
A

nn
ui

ta
nt

 M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

b
le

s, 
w

ith
 ra

te
s m

ul
tip

lie
d

 b
y 

10
5%

;
 

RP
-2

01
4 

Em
p

lo
ye

e 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
b

le
s; 

a
nd

 R
P-

20
14

 J
uv

en
ile

 M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

b
le

s

C
HA

RT
ER

 TO
W

N
SH

IP
 O

F 
YP

SI
LA

N
TI

Re
qu

ire
d 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f T
ow

ns
hi

p 
Pe

ns
io

n 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
-M

ER
S

La
st

 Te
n 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
rs

19
 y

ea
rs

67

PS
LZ

 P
LL

C 
- C

er
ti

fie
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts



 
20

22
20

21
20

20
20

19
20

18
20

17
20

16
20

15
20

14
20

13
 A

ct
ua

ria
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

n
$

97
5,

04
0

   
   

$
1,

07
4,

66
9

   
$

1,
06

7,
07

6
   

$
99

8,
71

1
   

   
 

$
78

6,
57

8
   

   
$

76
3,

87
4

   
   

$
78

9,
01

8
   

  
$

73
7,

86
7

   
   

$
75

0,
16

3
   

   
$

68
7,

87
8

   
   

C
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
a

ct
ua

ria
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

n
98

4,
01

1
   

   
1,

19
1,

03
5

   
1,

50
8,

39
3

   
99

8,
71

1
   

   
 

78
6,

57
8

   
   

76
3,

87
4

   
   

78
9,

01
8

   
  

73
7,

86
7

   
   

75
0,

16
3

   
   

68
7,

87
8

   
   

C
on

tri
b

ut
io

n 
Ex

ce
ss

 (D
ef

ic
ie

nc
y)

$
8,

97
1

   
   

   
 

$
11

6,
36

6
   

   
$

44
1,

31
7

   
   

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

Pa
yr

ol
l

1,
86

1,
39

0
   

1,
67

2,
27

3
   

1,
67

6,
17

5
   

1,
96

8,
59

2
   

 
1,

82
6,

56
4

   
1,

93
4,

57
6

   
2,

01
6,

30
7

  
1,

76
8,

79
3

   
1,

96
7,

31
2

   
2,

04
6,

69
1

   
 

 C
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
 a

s a
 P

er
ce

nt
a

ge
 o

f
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
C

ov
er

ed
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
Pa

yr
ol

l
52

.4
%

64
.3

%
63

.7
%

50
.7

%
43

.1
%

39
.5

%
39

.1
%

41
.7

%
38

.1
%

33
.6

%

A
ct

ua
ria

l v
a

lu
a

tio
n 

in
fo

rm
a

tio
n 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 th

e 
d

et
er

m
in

a
tio

n 
of

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
:

V
a

lu
a

tio
n 

D
a

te
A

ct
ua

ria
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s a

re
 c

a
lc

ul
a

te
d

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
b

er
 3

1 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r, 

w
hi

ch
 is

 1
2 

m
on

th
s p

rio
r t

o 
th

e
b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f t

he
 fi

sc
a

l y
ea

r i
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

re
 re

q
ui

re
d

.

M
et

ho
d

s a
nd

 a
ss

um
p

tio
ns

 u
se

d
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s:
A

ct
ua

ria
l C

os
t M

et
ho

d
En

try
 a

ge
 n

or
m

a
l c

os
t

A
m

or
tiz

a
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d
Le

ve
l P

er
ce

nt
a

ge
 o

f P
a

yr
ol

l, 
C

lo
se

d

A
m

or
tiz

a
tio

n 
Pe

rio
d

18
 y

ea
r

A
ss

et
 V

a
lu

a
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d
5 

Ye
a

r s
m

oo
th

ed
 m

a
rk

et

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

a
te

 o
f R

et
ur

n
6.

50
%

Pr
oj

ec
te

d
 S

a
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
s

3.
0%

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

b
le

Pu
b

S-
20

10
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

w
ith

 g
en

er
a

tio
na

l i
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 in
 2

01
0 

b
a

se
d

 o
n 

th
e 

SO
A

 S
ca

le
 M

P-
19

.

C
HA

RT
ER

 TO
W

N
SH

IP
 O

F 
YP

SI
LA

N
TI

Re
qu

ire
d 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f T
ow

ns
hi

p 
Pe

ns
io

n 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
-F

ire
 P

en
sio

n
La

st
 Te

n 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs

68

PS
LZ

 P
LL

C 
- C

er
ti

fie
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts



20
22

20
21

20
20

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

20
13

 A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

b
ut

io
n

$
50

6,
33

4
   

   
$

51
9,

95
6

   
 

$
64

4,
89

7
   

 
$

66
4,

54
0

   
 

$
63

3,
56

8
   

 
$

64
6,

16
3

   
 

$
65

4,
24

5
   

 
$

66
7,

54
0

   
 

$
60

7,
52

3
   

 
$

83
2,

30
9

   
 

C
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
a

ct
ua

ria
lly

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

b
ut

io
n

50
6,

33
4

   
   

51
9,

95
6

   
 

64
4,

89
7

   
 

66
4,

54
0

   
 

63
3,

56
8

   
 

64
6,

16
3

   
 

65
4,

24
5

   
 

66
7,

54
0

   
 

60
7,

52
3

   
 

83
2,

30
9

   
 

C
on

tri
b

ut
io

n 
Ex

ce
ss

 (D
ef

ic
ie

nc
y)

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

$
-

   
   

   
   

   

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

Pa
yr

ol
l

 
n/

a
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 

n/
a

 C
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
 a

s a
 P

er
ce

nt
a

ge
 o

f
 

 
 

 
 

   
C

ov
er

ed
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
Pa

yr
ol

l
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a

A
ct

ua
ria

l v
a

lu
a

tio
n 

in
fo

rm
a

tio
n 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 th

e 
d

et
er

m
in

a
tio

n 
of

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
:

V
a

lu
a

tio
n 

D
a

te
A

ct
ua

ria
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s a

re
 c

a
lc

ul
a

te
d

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
b

er
 3

1 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r, 

w
hi

ch
 is

 1
2 

m
on

th
s p

rio
r t

o 
th

e
b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f t

he
 fi

sc
a

l y
ea

r i
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

re
 re

q
ui

re
d

.

M
et

ho
d

s a
nd

 a
ss

um
p

tio
ns

 u
se

d
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s:
A

ct
ua

ria
l C

os
t M

et
ho

d
En

try
 a

ge
 n

or
m

a
l c

os
t

A
m

or
tiz

a
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d
Le

ve
l d

ol
la

r, 
cl

os
ed

Re
m

a
in

in
g 

A
m

or
tiz

a
tio

n 
Pe

rio
d

A
ss

et
 V

a
lu

a
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d
M

a
rk

et
 V

a
lu

e

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
s

3.
00

%
-1

6.
00

%
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
fla

tio
n

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

a
te

 o
f R

et
ur

n
7.

00
%

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

b
le

RP
-2

01
4 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

b
le

s f
or

 m
a

le
s a

nd
 fe

m
a

ils
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 to

 2
01

9 
w

ith
 M

P-
20

14
.

H
ea

lth
 C

a
re

 T
re

nd
 R

a
te

s
Tr

en
d

 st
a

rti
ng

 a
t 8

.2
5%

 a
nd

 g
ra

d
ua

lly
 d

ec
re

a
sin

g 
to

 a
n 

ul
tim

a
te

 tr
en

d
 ra

te
 o

f 3
.5

%
 o

ve
r 1

5 
ye

a
rs

.

C
HA

RT
ER

 TO
W

N
SH

IP
 O

F 
YP

SI
LA

N
TI

Re
qu

ire
d 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f T
ow

ns
hi

p 
O

PE
B 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

-M
ER

S
La

st
 Te

n 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs

24
 y

ea
rs

69

PS
LZ

 P
LL

C 
- C

er
ti

fie
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts



20
22

20
21

20
20

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

20
13

 A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

b
ut

io
n

$
64

2,
47

6
   

   
$

64
8,

11
8

   
   

$
75

3,
61

7
   

   
$

76
7,

32
7

   
   

 
$

62
5,

95
8

   
   

$
62

9,
22

6
   

   
$

58
7,

14
8

   
  

$
59

0,
74

4
   

   
$

48
7,

76
8

   
   

$
68

4,
43

1
   

   
C

on
tri

b
ut

io
ns

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

a
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

b
ut

io
n

64
2,

47
6

   
   

70
0,

00
0

   
   

75
3,

61
7

   
   

76
7,

32
7

   
   

 
62

5,
95

8
   

   
62

9,
22

6
   

   
58

7,
14

8
   

  
59

0,
74

4
   

   
48

7,
76

8
   

   
68

4,
43

1
   

   

C
on

tri
b

ut
io

n 
Ex

ce
ss

 (D
ef

ic
ie

nc
y)

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$
51

,8
82

   
   

  
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
$

-
   

   
   

   
   

   

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

Pa
yr

ol
l

$
2,

04
7,

09
3

   
$

2,
08

4,
65

3
   

$
2,

25
5,

55
2

   
$

2,
16

3,
06

1
   

 
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 C

on
tri

b
ut

io
ns

 a
s a

 P
er

ce
nt

a
ge

 o
f

 
 

 
 

 
   

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

Pa
yr

ol
l

31
.4

%
33

.6
%

33
.4

%
35

.5
%

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
ria

l v
a

lu
a

tio
n 

in
fo

rm
a

tio
n 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 th

e 
d

et
er

m
in

a
tio

n 
of

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
:

V
a

lu
a

tio
n 

D
a

te
A

ct
ua

ria
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s a

re
 c

a
lc

ul
a

te
d

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
b

er
 3

1 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r, 

w
hi

ch
 is

 1
2 

m
on

th
s p

rio
r t

o 
th

e
b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f t

he
 fi

sc
a

l y
ea

r i
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

re
 re

q
ui

re
d

.

M
et

ho
d

s a
nd

 a
ss

um
p

tio
ns

 u
se

d
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s:
A

ct
ua

ria
l C

os
t M

et
ho

d
En

try
 a

ge
 n

or
m

a
l c

os
t

A
m

or
tiz

a
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d
Le

ve
l P

er
ce

nt
a

ge
 o

f P
a

yr
ol

l, 
C

lo
se

d

A
m

or
tiz

a
tio

n 
Pe

rio
d

25
 y

ea
rs

A
ss

et
 V

a
lu

a
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d
M

a
rk

et
 v

a
lu

e

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

a
te

 o
f R

et
ur

n
6.

50
%

Pr
oj

ec
te

d
 S

a
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
s

3.
5%

-6
.5

0%
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
fla

tio
n 

of
 3

.0
%

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

b
le

RP
-2

01
4 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

b
le

s f
or

 m
a

le
s a

nd
 fe

m
a

ils
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 to

 2
01

9 
w

ith
 M

P-
20

14
.

H
ea

lth
 C

a
re

 T
re

nd
 R

a
te

s
Tr

en
d

 st
a

rti
ng

 a
t 8

.0
%

 a
nd

 g
ra

d
ua

lly
 d

ec
re

a
sin

g 
to

 a
n 

ul
tim

a
te

 tr
en

d
 ra

te
 o

f 4
.5

%

C
HA

RT
ER

 TO
W

N
SH

IP
 O

F 
YP

SI
LA

N
TI

Re
qu

ire
d 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f T
ow

ns
hi

p 
O

PE
B 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

-F
ire

La
st

 Te
n 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
rs

70

PS
LZ

 P
LL

C 
- C

er
ti

fie
d 

Pu
bl

ic
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts



Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
  Property Taxes $ 2,539,505    $ 2,539,505    $ 2,606,175    $ 66,670            
  Licenses and Permits 5,500           5,500           10,240         4,740              
  Intergovernmental - State 5,497,062    5,497,062    6,826,637    1,329,575       
  Charges for Services 393,966       393,966       420,170       26,204            
  Franchise Fees 690,000       690,000       636,473       (53,527)           
  Interest 2,200           2,200           127,175       124,975          
  Rents 220,000       220,000       220,000       -                      
  Other 10,300         36,106         97,172         61,066            
    Total Revenues 9,358,533    9,384,339    10,944,042  1,559,703       

   
Expenditures:    
  General Government:  
    Legislative 145,258       145,258       137,856       7,402              
    District Court 417,755       475,055       475,055       -                      
    Supervisor 331,534       338,004       288,084       49,920            
    Clerk 471,108       490,872       449,578       41,294            
    Treasurer 406,905       414,449       381,226       33,223            
    Assessing 517,825       540,762       531,869       8,893              
    Elections 263,960       425,573       399,873       25,700            
    Accounting Department 444,274       467,846       460,787       7,059              
    Human Resources 382,652       397,371       379,221       18,150            
    Building and Grounds 609,465       630,356       579,186       51,170            
    Residential Services 120,675       121,214       66,887         54,327            
    Legal Services 250,000       337,000       337,000       -                      
    Computer Support 971,684       978,227       777,599       200,628          
    General Services 136,700       149,700       140,002       9,698              
    Other 309,911       320,467       275,946       44,521            
       Total General Government 5,779,706    6,232,154    5,680,169    551,985          

Public Works:
  Stormwater & Drains 628,000       628,000       332,581       295,419          
  Highways and Streets 94,605         658,839       443,715       215,124          
  Street Lighting & Cameras 210,000       285,000       283,828       1,172              
       Total Public Works 932,605       1,571,839    1,060,124    511,715          

Community and Economic Development:
   Community Development 325,233       327,925       286,198       41,727            
   Planning Commission  10,136         10,136         3,733            6,403              
   Zoning Board of Appeals 4,875           4,875           1,412           3,463              
   Community Stabilization 1,040,000    1,189,000    1,188,117    883                 
       Total Community and Economic Dev. 1,380,244    1,531,936    1,479,460    52,476            

Recreation and Cultural:
    Parks and Grounds 810,037       857,139       775,465       81,674            

Capital Outlay 10,010         381,136       5,383           375,753          

Total Expenditures 8,912,602    10,574,204  9,000,601    1,573,603       

(continued)

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

71

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures $ 445,931       $ (1,189,865)  $ 1,943,441    $ 3,133,306       

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 131,865       131,865       131,865       -                      
Transfers Out (1,149,025)  (1,631,992)  (1,597,435)  34,557            

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,017,160)  (1,500,127)  (1,465,570)  34,557            

Change in Fund Balance (571,229)     (2,689,992)  477,871       3,167,863       

Fund Balance - January 1 7,976,259    7,976,259    7,976,259    -                      

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 7,405,030 $ 5,286,267 $ 8,454,130    $ 3,167,863

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

General Fund
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

72

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Variance-
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
  Property Taxes $ 4,579,215     $ 4,579,215     $ 4,617,806     $ 38,591          

   Intergovernmental-State 13,900          13,900          13,956          56                 
   Charges for Services 2,950            2,950            1,350            (1,600)           
  Interest Income 500               500               43,054          42,554          
  Other -                    -                    9,543            9,543            
     Total Revenues 4,596,565     4,596,565     4,685,709     89,144          

  
Expenditures:
   Public Safety 4,517,672     4,614,593     4,368,348     246,245        

 
Excess (Deficiency) of
 Revenues Over Expenditures 78,893          (18,028)         317,361        335,389        

Other Financing Sources:
   Transfers In -                    26,912          26,912          -                    

Change in Fund Balance 78,893          8,884            344,273        335,389        

Fund Balance - January 1 1,760,672     1,760,672     1,760,672     -                    

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 1,839,565     $ 1,769,556     $ 2,104,945     $ 335,389        

 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Fire Department Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

73

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Variance-
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
  Property Taxes $ 3,517,237     $ 3,517,237     $ 3,554,654     $ 37,417          

Intergovernmental-State 9,600            9,600            23,704          14,104          
Grants -                    863,830        603,260        (260,570)       

  Charges for Services 1,500            1,500            -                    (1,500)           
  Interest 1,000            1,000            23,960          22,960          
  Other 9,000            9,000            9,312            312               
      Total Revenues 3,538,337     4,402,167     4,214,890     (187,277)       

  
Expenditures:
  Public Works 3,352,879     3,389,233     3,322,621     66,612          
  Capital Outlay -                    880,288        877,804        2,484            
      Total Expenditures 3,352,879     4,269,521     4,200,425     69,096          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over Expenditures 185,458        132,646        14,465          (256,373)       

Other Financing Sources:
   Transfers In -                    2,691            2,691            -                    

Change in Fund Balance 185,458        135,337        17,156          (256,373)       

Fund Balance - January 1 879,043        879,043        879,043        -                    

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 1,064,501     $ 1,014,380     $ 896,199        $ (256,373)       

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
Environmental Services Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

74

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Variance-
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Property Taxes $ 8,347,702     $ 8,347,702     $ 8,437,749     $ 90,047          
Intergovernmental-State 50,530          50,530          49,401          (1,129)           
Charges for Services 153,000        153,000        167,864        14,864          
Interest 500               500               141,083        140,583        
Other -                    -                    7,697            7,697            

Total Revenues 8,551,732     8,551,732     8,803,794     252,062        
  

Expenditures:
Public Safety 8,345,878     8,365,202     7,120,755     1,244,447     
Capital Outlay 60,000          55,000          2,342            52,658          

Total Expenditures 8,405,878     8,420,202     7,123,097     1,297,105     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues  
 Over Expenditures 145,854        131,530        1,680,697     1,549,167     

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
  Transfers In -                    8,882            8,882            -                    
  Transfers Out (131,865)       (131,865)       (131,865)       -                    
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (131,865)       (122,983)       (122,983)       -                    

Change in Fund Balance 13,989          8,547            1,557,714     1,549,167     

Fund Balance - January 1 5,447,904     5,447,904     5,447,904     -                    

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 5,461,893     $ 5,456,451     $ 7,005,618     $ 1,549,167     

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Law Enforcement Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

75

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Variance-
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental-Federal $ 4,719,513     $ 4,719,513     $ 237,634        $ (4,481,879)    

  Interest -                    -                    134,518        134,518        
      Total Revenues 4,719,513     4,719,513     372,152        (4,347,361)    

  
Expenditures:
  Public Health -                    900,000        237,634        662,366        

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over Expenditures 4,719,513     3,819,513     134,518        (3,684,995)    

Other Financing Uses:
   Transfers Out (4,719,513)    (3,819,513)    -                    3,819,513     

Change in Fund Balance -                    -                    134,518        134,518        

Fund Balance - January 1 195               195               195               -                    

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 195               $ 195               $ 134,713        $ 134,518        

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
American Rescue Plan Act Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

76

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 
 

PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O T H E R   S U P P L E M E N T A R Y   I N F O R M A T I O N 
 
 



                                                                              Total
                                                  2013 GO Nonmajor

Special Refunding Governmental
Revenue Bond Debt Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,811,271    $ 2,189           $ 6,813,460         
Receivables:
   Accounts 110,192       -                  110,192            
   Taxes      3,574,119    -                  3,574,119         
   Special Assessments 14,104         -                  14,104              

Prepaid Expenditures 21,621         -                  21,621              

Total Assets $ 10,531,307  $ 2,189           $ 10,533,496       
 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
   RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
   Accounts Payable  $ 158,507       $ -                  $ 158,507            
   Accrued Liabilities 169,957       -                  169,957            
   Due to Other Governmental Funds 72,886         -                  72,886              
   Deposits and Escrow 1,685,728    -                  1,685,728         
   Unearned Revenue 28,892         -                  28,892              
          Total Liabilities  2,115,970     -                  2,115,970         

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
   Property Taxes Levied for the following year 3,574,119    -                  3,574,119         

Fund Balance:
   Nonspendable 21,621         -                  21,621              
   Restricted 4,819,597    2,189           4,821,786         
         Total Fund Balance 4,841,218    2,189           4,843,407         

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
   Resources, and Fund Balance $ 10,531,307  $ 2,189           $ 10,533,496       

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2022

77

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Total
2013 GO Nonmajor

Special Refunding Governmental
Revenue Bond Debt Funds

Revenues:
Property Taxes $ 3,835,117    $ -                  $ 3,835,117         
Licenses and Permits 964,544       -                  964,544            
Intergovernmental 321,676       74,322         395,998            
Charges for Services 1,580,481    -                  1,580,481         
Interest 86,438         151              86,589              
Other 27,154         -                  27,154              
      Total Revenues 6,815,410    74,473         6,889,883         

Expenditures:
General Government 1,706,896    -                  1,706,896         
Public Safety 2,506,921    -                  2,506,921         
Public Works 602,688       -                  602,688            
Recreation and Cultural 952,000       -                  952,000            
Debt Service:    
   Principal 600,000       195,000       795,000            
   Interest and Fees 15,250         38,840         54,090              
Capital Outlay 1,079,272    -                  1,079,272         
      Total Expenditures 7,463,027    233,840       7,696,867         

 Over Expenditures (647,617)     (159,367)     (806,984)          

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In 1,694,637    159,468       1,854,105         
Transfers Out (380,000)     -                  (380,000)          
      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,314,637    159,468       1,474,105         

Net Change in Fund Balance 667,020       101              667,121            

Fund Balance, January 1 4,174,198    2,088           4,176,286         

Fund Balance, December 31 $ 4,841,218    $ 2,189           $ 4,843,407         
 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

78

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Bike Path,
                                                                              Sidewalk, 
                                                  Fire Fire Recreation,

Pension Capital  Roads & General
Millage Millage Parks Operations

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 26,236          $ 1,536,250     29,366          $ 729,307               
Receivables:
   Accounts -                    -                    -                    61,874                 
   Taxes 1,267,085     753,681        -                    1,553,353            
   Special Assessments -                    -                    -                    -                           
Prepaid Expenditures -                    -                    -                    -                           

Total Assets $ 1,293,321     $ 2,289,931     29,366          2,344,534            

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
   RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 32                 $ 14                 -                    $ 83,885                 
Accrued Liabilities 1,848            1,099            -                    2,265                   
Due to Other Govermental Units -                    -                    -                    -                           
Deposits and Escrow -                    -                    -                    -                           

  Unearned Revenue -                    -                    -                    -                           
Total Liabilities  1,880             1,113            -                    86,150                 

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
   Property Taxes Levied for the following year 1,267,085     753,681        -                    1,553,353            

Fund Balance:
   Nonspendable -                    -                    -                    -                           
   Restricted 24,356          1,535,137     29,366          705,031               
Total Fund Balance 24,356          1,535,137     29,366          705,031               

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
   Resources, and Fund Balance $ 1,293,321     $ 2,289,931     29,366          $ 2,344,534            

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2022

79

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 
 

   14B District Building Hydro Nuisance
Recreation Court Department Station Abatement Total

$ 47,226          $ 152,232        $ 3,316,455     $ 906,645        $ 67,554          $ 6,811,271     

4,000            21,996          -                    22,322          -                    110,192        
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    3,574,119     
-                    -                    -                    -                    14,104          14,104          

7,875            -                    11,419          2,327            -                    21,621          

$ 59,101          $ 174,228        $ 3,327,874     $ 931,294        $ 81,658          $ 10,531,307   

$ 5,482            $ 50,407          $ 2,552            $ 11,669          $ 4,466            $ 158,507        
4,342            13,881          11,842          134,680        -                    169,957        

-                    27,884          -                    45,002          -                    72,886          
-                    64,435          1,621,293     -                    -                    1,685,728     

14,788          -                    -                    -                    14,104          28,892          
 24,612          156,607        1,635,687     191,351        18,570          2,115,970      

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    3,574,119     

7,875            -                    11,419          2,327            -                    21,621          
26,614          17,621          1,680,768     737,616        63,088          4,819,597     
34,489          17,621          1,692,187     739,943        63,088          4,841,218     

$ 59,101          $ 174,228        $ 3,327,874     $ 931,294        $ 81,658          $ 10,531,307    

80

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Bike Path,
Sidewalk, 

                                                  Fire Fire Recreation,
Pension Capital Roads & General
Millage Millage Parks Operations

Revenues:
Property Taxes $ 1,626,599     $ 720,764        $ -                    $ 1,487,754            
Licenses and Permits  -                    -                    -                    -                           
Intergovernmental  8,334            2,253            -                    196,048               
Charges for Services -                    -                    3,431            25,128                 
Interest 3,661            23,162          349               17,008                 
Other  -                    -                    -                    -                           
      Total Revenues 1,638,594     746,179        3,780            1,725,938            

Expenditures:
General Government -                    -                    -                    -                           
Public Safety 1,626,487     -                    -                    -                           
Public Works -                    -                    -                    -                           
Recreation and Cultural -                    -                    4,855            215,891               
Debt Service:
   Principal -                    -                    -                    600,000               
   Interest and Fees -                    -                    -                    15,250                 
Capital Outlay -                    40,141          -                    986,033               
      Total Expenditures 1,626,487     40,141          4,855            1,817,174            

 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures 12,107          706,038        (1,075)           (91,236)                

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In -                    -                    -                    307,500               
Transfers Out -                    -                    -                    (380,000)              
      Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                    -                    -                    (72,500)                

Net Change in Fund Balance 12,107          706,038        (1,075)           (163,736)              

Fund Balance, January 1 12,249          829,099        30,441          868,767               

Fund Balance, December 31 $ 24,356          $ 1,535,137     29,366          $ 705,031               
 

 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

81

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



  
  

   14B District Building Hydro Nuisance
Recreation Court Department Station Abatement Total

$ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ -                    $ 3,835,117     
-                    -                    964,544        -                    -                    964,544        

5,654            109,387        -                    -                    -                    321,676        
375,232        694,750        4,166            435,469        42,305          1,580,481     

747               416               26,604          13,432          1,059            86,438          
23,870          2,199            523               562               -                    27,154          

405,503        806,752        995,837        449,463        43,364          6,815,410     

 
-                    1,706,896     -                    -                    -                    1,706,896     
-                    -                    851,086        -                    29,348          2,506,921     
-                    -                    -                    602,688        -                    602,688        

731,254        -                    -                    -                    -                    952,000        

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    600,000        
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    15,250          
-                    -                    -                    53,098          -                    1,079,272     

731,254        1,706,896     851,086        655,786        29,348          7,463,027     

(325,751)       (900,144)       144,751        (206,323)       14,016          (647,617)       

304,306        913,456        5,114            164,261        -                    1,694,637     
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (380,000)       

304,306        913,456        5,114            164,261        -                    1,314,637     

(21,445)         13,312          149,865        (42,062)         14,016          667,020        

 55,934          4,309             1,542,322      782,005         49,072          4,174,198      

$ 34,489          $ 17,621          $ 1,692,187     $ 739,943        $ 63,088          $ 4,841,218     

82

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



General
Township Police and

                                                  Employees' Firefighters' Firefighters'  
Healthcare Healthcare Pension Trust  
Trust Fund Trust Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ -                            $ 165,193           $ 698,574          $ 863,767         
Investments 9,461,758             7,636,249        26,997,636     44,095,643    
Accrued Interest -                            -                       63,808            63,808           
Due from Fire Healthcare Trust Fund -                            -                       18,095            18,095           

Total Assets $ 9,461,758             $ 7,801,442        $ 27,778,113     $ 45,041,313    

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Liabilities:
   Accounts Payable $ 559,885                $ 681,968           $ 25,638            $ 1,267,491      
   Due to Fire Pension Trust Fund -                            18,095             -                      18,095           
       Total Liabilities 559,885                700,063           25,638            1,285,586      

Net Position:
   Held in Trust for Pension
      and Employee Benefits 8,901,873             7,101,379        27,752,475     43,755,727    

Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 9,461,758             $ 7,801,442        $ 27,778,113     $ 45,041,313    

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
Pension and Employee Benefit Trust Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2022

83

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



General
Township Police and

                                                  Employees' Firefighters' Firefighters'  
Healthcare Healthcare Pension Trust  
Trust Fund Trust Fund Fund Total

Additions
 
Investment Income:
    Interest and Dividends $ -                            $ 205,950           $ 605,698          $ 811,648         
    Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value
      of Investments (1,060,886)            (2,500,784)       (4,643,217)      (8,204,887)     
        Total Investment Income (1,060,886)            (2,294,834)       (4,037,519)      (7,393,239)     

Contributions:
   Employer 506,334                642,476           984,011          2,132,821      
   Employee -                            53,115             119,485          172,600         
     Total Contributions 506,334                695,591           1,103,496       2,305,421      

Other -                            -                       18,873            18,873           

       Total Additions (554,552)               (1,599,243)       (2,915,150)      (5,068,945)     

Deductions
Benefit Payments -                            -                       2,829,480       2,829,480      
Retirees Insurance 559,885                681,716           -                      1,241,601      
Administrative Expenses 16,986                  29,683             139,112          185,781         
       Total Deductions 576,871                711,399           2,968,592       4,256,862      

Total Change in Net Position (1,131,423)            (2,310,642)       (5,883,742)      (9,325,807)     

Net Position, January 1 10,033,296           9,412,021        33,636,217     53,081,534    

Net Position, December 31 $ 8,901,873             $ 7,101,379        $ 27,752,475     $ 43,755,727    
  

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
Pension and Employee Benefit Trust Funds

84

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Jimmie Wilson Jr 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From: Karen Wallin 
 Human Resource Manager 
 
Date: June 16, 2023 
 
Subject: Request to review “DRAFT” job description for Municipal Services Director. 

Replacement/Updated description of the Residential Services Director job 
description vacated by Mike Hoffmeister. 

 
This memo is to request the attached “DRAFT” job description for Municipal Services Director, 
be placed on the work session for discussion.  The job description has been renamed and 
updated to reflect current duties and responsibilities.   
 
Your consideration in the matter is appreciated.  Should you have any additional questions, 
please contact me at 544-3741 or kwallin@ypsitownship.org.    
 
 

 



 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR 
Non-Union Position 
 
Summary 
 
The Municipal Services Director is a confidential executive leader who instills trust and confidence 
through dynamic leadership. The individual directs and oversees a multi-functional department 
engaged in municipal services including but not limited to facility maintenance and operations, 
parks and ground maintenance, waste and recycling contracts, motor pool fleet, capital 
improvement projects, and other special projects as assigned. 
 
Supervision Received 
 
Under the supervision of the Township Supervisor, duties are performed with considerable 
independence to meet established objectives and priorities.  
 
Supervision Exercised 
 
Supervisory authority over the Maintenance Superintendent, Recreation Director, Director of Golf 
Operations, Golf Course Superintendent and other staff assigned. Indirectly supervises a large 
number of full-time and temporary employees subordinate to the above listed positions.  Has 
authority to recommend and issue disciplinary action to all employees of the municipal services 
department.   
 
Responsibilities and Duties  
An employee in this position may do any or all of the following essential duties. (These examples do not include all of 

the duties the employee maybe expected to perform.) 

 
1.  Oversees and directs a diverse team of management and hourly employees responsible for the 

delivery of services including: facility maintenance and operations, waste removal and 
reduction, maintenance of township parks and grounds, recreation services, golf course 
operations and motor pool fleet.  

 
2.  Visionary thinker with the ability to develop, plan and implement short and long term goals 

and objectives setting operating priorities.  Establishes departmental policy and procedures. 
 
3.  Proven ability to coach and motivate team members to reach new levels of accomplishment. 
 
4.  Responsible for the development and presentation of the Municipal Services Department 

budgets to the Township Board for approval.   
 

5.  Strong analytical skills with the ability to assess current operational effectiveness and future 
needs. Monitors department expenditures initiating measures as necessary to bring expenses 
into line with approved budgetary limits. Approves the billing of services and materials. 

 
6. Manage and execute contracts related to trash collection, recycling and vacant property 

mowing.  



 

 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR – Page 2 
 
7.  Excellent written, interpersonal and verbal communication skills, addressing inquiries relative 

to department policies and procedures.  Resolve citizen complaints or assist in reaching the 
proper source of assistance. 

 
8.  Serve as Project Director for all capital improvement projects from inception to project 

completion, enlisting the assistance of consulting engineers and architects when appropriate.   
a.  Review project proposals to determine time frame, funding limitations, procedures for 

accomplishing project, staffing requirements, and allotment of available resources to 
various phases of the project. 

b.  Participates in the development of plans, specifications and bid documents.  Examines 
estimates of materials, equipment, production costs, performance requirements, and 
delivery schedules to insure completeness and accuracy.  

c.  Review bids for conformity to contract requirements.  Analyzes price proposals, 
financial reports, or other data to determine reasonableness of prices.  Determines 
acceptable bidder and makes recommendation to the Township Board for contract 
award.  

d.  Coordinates start-up activities to include employee notification and relocation when 
necessary.   

e.  Monitor and evaluate construction activities to determine necessity for amendments or 
extensions of contract, and compliance to contract obligations. 

 
9.  Serve as Township liaison to various boards, commissions, committees, emergency disaster 

operations, contractors, and other assigned agencies assuring Township objectives are being 
met. 

 
Essential Functions, Qualifications, and KSA’s for Employment 
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skills, abilities and minimum qualifications necessary to 
perform the essential functions of the position.  These requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals 
requiring and requesting such accommodations.  
 
 Knowledge of the principles and practices of municipal administration, budgeting and facilities 

management. 
 Knowledge of supervisory practices and employee management. 
 Excellent written, interpersonal and verbal communication skills to lead a workforce and 

effectively work with the Township Board, public, contractors and fellow employees. 
 Strong organizational abilities including planning, delegating, program development and task 

facilitation.   
 Ability to compile and analyze statistical and technical data and to present facts and 

recommendations effectively in written and oral form. 
 Financial acumen to prepare/present budgets and reports.  
 Ability to read and interpret specifications, blue prints, drawings and technical manuals. 
 Must be able to constantly operate a computer and other standard office machines.  
 Must possess and maintain a valid Michigan drivers’ license. 
 Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university in public administration, business 

administration, facilities management or related field, seven years of increasingly responsible 
management experience, of which five years were in a supervisory capacity. 

 



 

 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR – Page 3 
 
Physical Demands and Work Environment  
The physical demands and work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee 
encounters while performing the essential functions of the job. These requirements may be accommodated for otherwise 
qualified individuals requiring and requesting such accommodations.  
 
Minimal physical effort generally required for work involved in the office; work may require 
employee to traverse rough or uneven territory when overseeing departmental activities; may 
occasionally lift and/or move objects weighing up to 75 pounds. Communicates verbally and in 
writing. Vision and hearing at or correctable to normal ranges. 
 
 
Updated 6-2023 
Wage: $90,000 – $100,000 (DOQ) 



 

REVIEW AGENDA 
 

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 



 

OTHER DISCUSSION 
 

A. BOARD MEMBERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO 
DISCUSS ANY OTHER PERTINENT ISSUES 



                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK HEATHER JARRELL ROE  TREASURER STAN 
ELDRIDGE TRUSTEES: RYAN HUNTER  JOHN P. NEWMAN II  GLORIA PETERSON   
DEBBIE SWANSON  
 

                                
               REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

                              TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2023 
                        7:00 P.M. 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION  

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

  
 THREE MINUTES PER PERSON 
 ALL COMMENTS MUST BE ADDRESSED TO THE CHAIR  
 PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE ALSO WELCOME AS THE BOARD ADDRESSES EACH 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE MAY 16, 2023 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING AND 
MINUTES OF THE MAY 23, 2023 AND JUNE 6, 2023 SPECIAL MEETINGS  

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 

 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JUNE 6, 2023 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$1,600,050.99 
2. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JUNE 20, 2023 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$422,31.34 
3. CLARITY HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH FOR MAY 2023 IN THE AMOUNT 

OF $49,457.77 
4. CLARITY HEALTHCARE ADMIN FEE FOR MAY 2023 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$1,434.44 
 

C. TREASURER’S REPORT APRIL 2023 (REVISED) AND MAY 2023 
 

5. ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AMENDED AGREEMENT WITH OHM FOR THE LOCAL 
ROAD ASSET MANAGEMENT REPORT IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,400.00 BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #213-753-801-000 CONTINGENT UPON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET 
AMENDMENT 
 

2. REQUEST TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDER #1 WITH HOMRICH FOR ADDITIONAL 
ABATEMENT AT THE GAULT VILLAGE DEMOLITION SITE IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$205,251.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-729-806-091 CONTINGENT APPROVAL 
OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2  June 20, 2023 
  

   
    
   
 
 
 
 
  

3. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES FOR TESTING OF FISH IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $14,400.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #252-000-801-000 

 
4. REQUEST TO REJECT PROPOSALS AND REBID THE HYDRO STATION PROJECT 

FOR CONCRETE REPAIRS AND INSPECTION OF SLUICE GATES 
 

5. REQUEST TO APPROVE AN AGREEMENT WITH OHM FOR PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES IN RELATION TO THE YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP ARPA CIVIC CENTER POND 
RENOVATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $51,750.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #282-901-
981-030 
 

6. REQUEST TO CONFIRM AUTHORIZATION FOR CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO 
ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCES LOCATED AT 1769 CADILLAC AND 1781 CADILLAC 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-729-801-023 
 

7. REQUEST TO CONFIRM AUTHORIZATION FOR CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO 
ABATE A PUBLIC NUISANCE BY PADLOCKING FOR 1440 FOLEY AVE. BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #101-729-8001-023 

 
8. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD 

COMMISSION FOR 2023 IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,017,271.08 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#213-446-982-000 
 

9. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD 
COMMISSION FOR THE INSTALLATION OF THREE (3) SPEED HUMPS ON WIARD RD. 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $33,790.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-446-982-000 
CONTINGENT UPON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
10. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD 

COMMISSION FOR THE INSTALLATION OF A RECTANGULAR RAPID FLASHING 
BEACON (RRFB) LOCATED ON HURON RIVER DR. AT LAKE CREST DR. IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $26,394.20 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-446-982-000 CONTINGENT 
UPON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
11. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH DTE FOR THE CONVERSION OF 

ONE THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED TWELVE (1,112) STREETLIGHTS TO LED IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $575,838.06 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #282-901-981-140 

 
12. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE PROPOSAL FROM STANTEC CONSULTING FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP ARPA GREEN OAKS 
GOLF COURSE BATHROOM IMPROVEMENTS 

 
13. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE PROPOSAL FROM STANTEC CONSULTING TO 

PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY 
CENTER WATER DAMAGE RENOVATION 

 
14. RESOLUTION 2023-08, TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR THE OBERUN 

5K 
 

15. RESOLUTION 2023-09. TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR THE RUN, 
SCREAM, RUN 5K 

 
16. BUDGET AMENDMENT #9 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 3  June 20, 2023 
  

   
    
   
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 
1. REQUEST TO AWARD THE BID FOR THE PURCHASE OF THREE (3) FORD F-250 

PLOW TRUCKS IN THE AMOUNT OF $154,350.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #661-268-
985-000 

 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MAY 16, 2023 WORK SESSION 

 
Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00pm in the Ypsilanti 
Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township.  
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Heather Jarrell Roe 

and Treasurer Stan Eldridge 
Trustees: Ryan Hunter, John Newman II, Gloria Peterson 
 and Debbie Swanson  

                            
Members Absent:  None 
                    
Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1. REQUEST TO ENTER INTO CLOSED SESSION FOR UNION NEGOTIATION 

DISCUSSION………………………………………………………... KAREN WALLEN 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Hunter and supported by Clerk Jarrell Roe to enter a 
closed session for union negotiation discussions at 5:06 PM.  
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The closed session concluded at 5:26 PM. 

 
2. YCUA BOND DISCUSSION……………………………………. LUKE BLACKBURN 
 
YCUA director Luke Blackburn explained the two capital improvement projects at the 
wastewater treatment plant that would require a sale of bonds. The bond sale would fund 
improvements to three ultraviolet disinfection channels and rehabilitation of the influent 
wet well.  
 
YCUA bonding counsel, Tom Colis, explained the wastewater treatment plant projects 
qualify for funding through the State of Michigan Clean Water Revolving Fund. The state 
would purchase the bonds at a fixed rate for a 20 to 30 year term.  
 
3. SAY YES TO SENIORS……………………………………….. ALLISON FOREMAN 
 
CEO and president of Ypsilanti Meals on Wheels, Allison Foreman, gave a presentation 
regarding the purpose and benefits of a millage for Senior citizens. The millage could 
potentially fund 5 main areas of need including case management, senior nutrition, 
maintaining and expanding senior centers, supporting caregivers and housing 
preservation.  
 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MAY 16, 2023 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 2 
 
4. AGENDA REVIEW………………………………………….. SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
The Board of Trustees agreed to add two items to the agenda under other business. 
 
The Work Session meeting was adjourned at approximately 6:55pm.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk, Charter Township of Ypsilanti                   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MAY 16, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
Supervisor Brenda Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 7:06pm in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent prayer. 
 
Members Present:     Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Heather Jarrell Roe and 

Treasurer Stan Eldridge 
          Trustees: Ryan Hunter, John Newman II, Gloria Peterson  

and Debbie Swanson  
 

Members Absent:       None 
                    
Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters  
 
  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
No public comment was given. 
 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. MINUTES OF THE MAY 2, 2023 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING  
 

b. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MAY 16, 2023 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $577,755.86 

2. CLARITY HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH FOR APRIL 2023 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $61,085.03 

3. CLARITY HEALTHCARE ADMIN FEE FOR APRIL 2023 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,464.25 

 

c. TREASURER’S REPORT APRIL 2023 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Trustee Peterson to approve the 
consent agenda. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
Attorney Winters stated that a letter regarding the planned demolition of the Gault Village 
Shopping Center was issued to the residents of Gault Village with an updated work 
schedule included. He suggested adding an update to the township website informing 
residents of the township’s efforts to eradicate the rodent population in Gault Village. 
 
Furthermore, Attorney Winters stated that Loonfeather Park is scheduled to open at the 
end of May. The final steps in this process being the issuing of checks to the contractor 
PGA and to the subcontractor Suburban in order to file for reimbursement with the 
Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. RESOLUTION 2023-06 AUTHORIZING SRF CONTRACT AND ADVERTISEMENT 

FOR YCUA BOND 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to approve 
Resolution 2023-06 authorizing SRF Contract and advertisement for YCUA bond (see 
attached). 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MAY 16, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
2. APPOINTMENT OF DAVID OSTROWSKI TO THE YCUA BOARD WITH A TERM 

ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Clerk Jarrell Roe to approve 
the appointment of David Ostrowski to the YCUA Board with a term ending December 31, 
2024. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
3. REQUEST TO ACCEPT THE QUOTE FOR A 3 MONTH PERIOD TO COVER THE 

ADDITIONAL AMOUNT REMAINING ON THE CURRENT AGREEMENT AND TO 
APPROVE THE MUNETRIX SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT TO UPGRADE TO 
PREMIUM PROGRAMS 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and supported by Clerk Jarrell Roe to accept 
the quote for a 3-month period to cover the additional amount remaining on the current 
agreement and to approve the Munetrix subscription agreement to upgrade to premium 
programs. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
4. REQUEST TO AWARD THE BID AND APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF ONE 

NEW FORD F-150 FOR $43,690.00 FROM FELDMAN AUTOMOTIVE GROUP 
BUDGETED IN LINE #249-371-985.000 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to approve 
the request to award the bid and approve the purchase of one new Ford F-150 for 
$43,690.00 from Feldman Automotive Group budgeted in line #249-371-985.000. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
5.  REQUEST TO WAIVE THE FINANCIAL POLICY AND AWARD THE LOW QUOTE 

FROM HEARNS AND SON CONCREATE CONSTRUCTION FOR THE 
INSTALLATION OF A 40’ X 40’ CONCREATE SLAB AT FORD LAKE PARK IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $16,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE #213-753-801.00 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Trustee Hunter to approve 
the request to waive the financial policy and award the low quote from Hearns and Son 
Concreate Construction for the installation of a 40’ X 40’ concreate slab at Ford Lake 
Park in the amount of $16,000.00 budgeted in line #213-753-801.00. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
6. REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE AND SIGN A CONTRACT WITH THE WASHTENAW 

COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE TO FACILITATE COLLABORATIVE SHARING OF 
A SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICE FOR THE SUMMER MONTHS WITH THE 
LINCOLN CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT BUDGETED IN LINE # 266-301-
831.008 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Trustee Swanson to approve 
the request to authorize and sign a contract with the Washtenaw County Sheriff's Office 
to facilitate collaborative sharing of a school resource office for the summer months with 
the Lincoln Consolidated School District budgeted in line #266-301-831.008 (see 
attached). 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MAY 16, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 3 
 

 
7. REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO ABATE PUBLIC 

NUISANCES LOCATED AT 1254 AND 1268 ECORSE (PET CITY PETS); IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $10,000 IN LINE #101-729-801.023 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to approve 
the request to authorize circuit court litigation to abate public nuisances located at 1254 
and 1268 Ecorse (Pet City Pets) in an amount not to exceed $10,000 in line #101-729-
801.23. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
8. REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO ABATE PUBLIC 

NUISANCES LOCATED AT 3011 E. MICHIGAN AVE (MEN LIKE US) IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $10,000 BUDGETED IN LINE #101-729-801.023. 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to approve 
the request to authorize circuit court litigation to abate public nuisances located at 3011 
E. Michigan Ave (Men Like Us) in an amount not to exceed $10,000 budgeted in line 
#101-729-801.023. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
9. BUDGET AMENDMENT #7 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to amend 
the 2023 budget amendment #7 to increase the general fund budget by $11,006 to 
$13,755,916 and approve the department line item changes as outlined, to increase the 
building department fund budget by $43,690 to $1,038,315 and approved the line item 
changes as outlined and to increase the golf course fund budget by $9,750 to $940,051 
and approve the line item changes as outlined (see attached). 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
AUTHORIZATION AND BIDS 
 
1. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR FOUR (4) NEW PLOW   

TRUCKS FOR THE PARKS AND GROUND DEPARTMENT 
 

A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Trustee Hunter to approve 
the request for authorization to seek sealed bids for four new plow trucks for the Parks 
and Ground Department.  
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
1. REQUEST TO ACCEPT LETTER OF RECOMMENDATION FROM HR MANAGER 

KAREN WALLIN TO APPROVE WAGE STUDY FINDINGS AND WAGE 
INCREASE FOR LEVEL 2 AND LEVEL 3 ASSESSORS 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Trustee Peterson to approve 
the request to accept the letter of recommendation from HR Manager Karen Wallin to 
approve wage study findings and wage increase for level 2 and level 3 assessors. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MAY 16, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 
2. REQUEST TO APPROVE SALES AGREEMENT BETWEEN YPSILANTI 

TOWNSHIP AND CLEAR ENERGY FOR RENEWABLE ENERGY CREDITS 
 

A motion was made by Trustee Swanson and supported by Clerk Jarrell Roe to approve 
the sales agreement between Ypsilanti Township and Clear Energy for renewable energy 
credits (see attached). 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 
 
Treasurer Eldridge expressed concern over the fire station closures within the township 
stating that a township of this size cannot have a fire station shuttered. Trustee Swanson 
echoed these concerns explaining that significant roadwork within the township can 
further impact emergency vehicle response times especially without all fire stations 
operating at full capacity.  

Supervisor Stumbo responded to these concerns stating that very harsh circumstances 
caused the fire station to temporarily shutter. Furthermore, she explained the national 
shortage of fire fighters has left the township short staffed by four fire fighters. Efforts are 
being made to fill this gap but will take time due to current hiring processes.  

 
A motion to adjourn was made by Trustee Peterson and supported by Clerk Jarrell Roe. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:44pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                   
 



Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. 

RESOLUTION 2023-06 
APPROVING CONTRACT  

AND AUTHORIZING NOTICE 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan 

____________________________________________ 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Township Board (the “Governing Body”) of the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan (the “Township”), held 
on the 16th day of May, 2023, at 7:00 p.m., prevailing Eastern Time. 

PRESENT: Members: 

ABSENT: Members: 

The following preamble and resolutions were offered by Member ___________________ 
and supported by Member _________________: 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to acquire and construct certain improvements to the 
wastewater treatment plant including improvements to the plant’s ultraviolet disinfection system, 
headworks odor control system and influent well,  together with all necessary appurtenances and 
attachments thereto (the “Project”), to serve the Township and the City of Ypsilanti (the “City”); 
and 

WHEREAS, a contract (the “Contract”) has been prepared among the Township, the City 
and the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority (the “Authority”) whereby the Authority will 
issue its bonds (the “Bonds”) on behalf of the Township and the City to provide for the financing 
of costs of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, this Governing Body has carefully reviewed the Contract and finds that it 
provides the best means for accomplishing the Project and for providing the needed services.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT: 

1. The Contract is hereby approved and the Supervisor and the Clerk of the Township
are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Contract for and on behalf of the 
Township; provided, however, that Contract shall not become effective until the expiration of 
forty-five (45) days after the publication of the attached notice as a display advertisement of at 
least ¼ page in size in the Washtenaw Legal News, a newspaper of general circulation within the 
Township, which manner of publication is deemed by the Governing Body to be the most effective 
manner of informing the taxpayers and electors of the Township of the details of the proposed 
Contract and the rights of referendum thereunder. 

2. The Township Clerk is directed to publish the attached notice in the newspaper
above designated as soon as possible after the adoption hereof. 

Ryan Hunter, Stan Eldridge, Brenda Stumbo, Heather Jarrell Roe, 

Gloria Peterson, John Newman, Debbie Swanson

None

Jarrell Roe
Eldridge



Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. 
2 

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution be, and the
same hereby are repealed. 

AYES:  Members: 

NAYS: Members: 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

Heather Jarrell Roe, Township Clerk 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by 
the Township Board of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan, at a regular meeting held on May 16, 2023, and that said meeting was conducted and 
public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings 
Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, and that the minutes of said 
meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by said Act. 

Heather Jarrell Roe, Township Clerk 

Ryan Hunter, San Eldridge, Brenda Stumbo, Heather Jarrell Roe,

Gloria Peterson, John Newman, Debbie Swanson

None

7

0



 

Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. 
3 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO EXECUTE 
TAX-SUPPORTED CONTRACT AND OF RIGHT TO 

PETITION FOR REFERENDUM THEREON 
 
TO THE TAXPAYERS AND ELECTORS OF 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN: 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti (the “Township”) has approved by 
resolution the execution of a contract (the “Contract”) with the Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority (the 
“Authority”) and the City of Ypsilanti (the “City”) pursuant to Act No. 233, Public Acts of Michigan, 1955, as 
amended, which Contract provides, among other things, that the Authority will acquire, construct and install 
certain improvements to the wastewater treatment plant, including improvements to the plant’s ultraviolet 
disinfection system, headworks odor control system and influent well, together with all necessary appurtenances 
and attachments thereto to service the Township and the City and will issue its bonds in the principal amount 
not to exceed $11,500,000 to finance the cost of the acquisition and construction of such wastewater 
improvements for the Township and the City AND THE TOWNSHIP WILL PAY TO THE AUTHORITY 
PURSUANT TO THE CONTRACT THE SUMS NECESSARY TO RETIRE ITS PERCENTAGE SHARE OF 
THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SAID BONDS.   
 

TOWNSHIP’S CONTRACT OBLIGATIONS 
 

It is presently contemplated that the bonds will be in the principal amount of not to exceed $11,500,000, 
of which the Township’s “Local Unit Share” (as that term is defined in the Contract and is based on the 
Township’s annual usage of the wastewater system) is initially 75.77%, subject to adjustment annually, will 
mature serially over a period of not to exceed thirty-five (35) years, and will bear interest at the rate or rates to 
be determined at the time of sale to the Michigan Finance Authority but in no event to exceed two and one-
eighths percent (2.125%) per annum on the balance of the bonds from time to time remaining unpaid.  The 
Contract includes the Township’s pledge of its limited tax full faith and credit for the prompt and timely payment 
of the Township’s obligations as expressed in the Contract.  THE TOWNSHIP WILL BE REQUIRED TO 
LEVY AD VALOREM TAXES WITHIN APPLICABLE CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY TAX 
LIMITATIONS ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWNSHIP TO THE EXTENT 
NECESSARY TO MAKE THE PAYMENTS REQUIRED TO PAY ITS SHARE OF THE PRINCIPAL OF 
AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS IF OTHER FUNDS FOR THAT PURPOSE ARE NOT AVAILABLE.  IT 
IS THE PRESENT INTENT OF THE TOWNSHIP TO USE THE REVENUES FROM THE TOWNSHIP 
DIVISION OF THE AUTHORITY’S SYSTEM TO MAKE THE PAYMENTS REQUIRED TO PAY 
PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS. 
 

RIGHT OF REFERENDUM 

The Contract will become effective and binding upon the Township without vote of the electors as 
permitted by law unless a petition requesting an election on the question of the Township entering into the 
Contract, signed by not less than 10% of the registered electors of the Township, is filed with the Township 
Clerk within forty-five (45) days after publication of this notice.  If such petition is filed, the Contract cannot 
become effective without an approving vote of a majority of electors of the Township qualified to vote and 
voting on the question.  The Contract is on file at the office of the Township Clerk. 

This notice is given pursuant to the requirements of Section 8 of Act No. 233, Public Acts of Michigan, 
1955, as amended.  Further information concerning the details of the Contract and the matters set out in this 
notice may be secured from the Township Clerk’s office. 
 

Heather Jarrell Roe 
Clerk, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 40633673.3/099369.00049 
 







CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT #7

May 16, 2023 

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $11,006.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $2,706.00

Net Revenues $2,706.00

Expenditures: Professional Services 101-101-801.000 $2,706.00

Net Expenditures $2,706.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $2,000.00

Net Revenues $2,000.00

Expenditures: Office Supplies 101-215-727.000 $2,000.00

Net Expenditures $2,000.00

Revenues: Reimburse - Vietnam Vet Memorial 101-000-676.015 $6,300.00

Net Revenues $6,300.00

Expenditures: Professional Service 101-272-801.000 $6,300.00

Net Expenditures $6,300.00

Request to increase the revenue line for a reimbursement coming in for work done on the Vietnam Veterans 
Memorial. The Vietnam Veterans of America 310 have a 99 year lease with the Township for the memorial property. 
There is a fund held and administered by the Ann Arbor Community Foundation-Ypsilanti Community Fund. 
Project work done on the Memorial by the Vietnam Veterans can be reimbursed to them through the fund. The 
Township has sent in the request for reimbursement.  All invoices and cancelled checks for the project have been 
received. This is a pass through and will be funded by a reimbursement and paid out to the Vietnam Veterans of 
America 310.

Request to increase budget for the additional premium license, which includes a capital improvement plan and a 
project component within Munetrix. The increase will be $562.89 for 3 months to finish current contract and $2,143 
additional for the contract from 9/1/23 to 8/31/2024.  There is $5,200 already budgeted for this service. This will be 
funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase budget for office supplies for use in the Clerk's department. New supplies needed such as 
new envelopes, master cards, printing labels and passport supplies. 

1 of 2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT #7

May 16, 2023 

249 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND Total Increase $43,690.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 249-000-699.999 $43,690.00

Net Revenues $43,690.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay - Vehicles 249-371-985.000 $43,690.00

Net Expenditures $43,690.00

584 - GOLF COURSE FUND Total Increase $9,750.00

Revenues: Insurance Reimbursements 584-000-676.012 $9,500.00
Prior Year Fund Balance 584-000-699-999 $250.00

Net Revenues $9,750.00

Expenditures: Non Reoccurring R & M - Golf 584-784-971.023 $9,750.00
Net Expenditures $9,750.00

Request to increase the budget for the purchase of a 2024 Ford F-150 with extended cab and long bed. This will be 
funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase the budget for insurance to be received for damages to the Golf course fence and increase 
the expenditure for repairs. This will be funded by the receipt of the insurance check and a small amount 
appropriated from prior year fund balance for the insurance deductible.

2 of 2



Motion to Amend the 2023 Budget (#7)  
 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $11,006 to $13,755,916 and approve the 
department line item changes as outlined. 

 
Move to increase the Building Department Fund budget by $43,690 to $1,038,315 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 
 

Move to increase the Golf Course Fund budget by $9,750 to $940,051 and approve the 
department line item changes as outlined. 

 
 
 

 













CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MAY 23, 2023 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

 
Supervisor Brenda Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 4:30pm in the Ypsilanti 
Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township.  
 
Members Present:     Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Heather Jarrell Roe and Treasurer Stan 

Eldridge 
          Trustees: Ryan Hunter, John Newman II, Gloria Peterson  

and Debbie Swanson  
 

Members Absent:       None 
                    
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
1. RESOLUTION 2023-07 OF INTENT FOR THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI TO 

ALLOCATE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FUNDS  
 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and supported by Treasurer Eldridge to approve 
Resolution 2023-07 
 
Trustee Newman asked for clarification about the road agreement mentioned in the resolution. It 
was explained by Supervisor Stumbo that the agreement would come back to the board for 
approval, and the recommendations are being provided by OHM. She also clarified that the funds 
are for local roads, not primary roads. 
 
Trustee Swanson asked for clarification about item 16 within the resolution regarding remaining 
dollars going towards roads, and also wanted to know what would happen if anything went over 
budget.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo clarified that approval of all projects will come back to this board. If a project 
is over budget, the township could match it.  
 
Trustee Swanson then asked if at another regularly scheduled meeting, the resolution could be 
brought back to help further inform the residents. She said she understood why the special 
meeting was called but the ARPA Committee intended to share their findings publicly.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo said it would be fine to bring the resolution back as a work session item. 
 
Clerk Jarrell Roe added to Trustee Swanson’s sentiments and read the ARPA Committee memo 
from the packet into the record.  
 
Trustee Hunter thanked Congresswoman Dingell and then asked clarification that the Barrier 
Busters funding would only be used for Ypsilanti Township residents. 
 
Clerk Jarrell Roe explained that a contract would be brought back similar to other municipalities 
that contribute to Barrier Busters, and those specifics would be included. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo elaborated on Barrier Buster services and stated that the goal is always to lift 
residents up and to help our community thrive.  
 
There were no additional questions.  
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 4:54pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                   
 



 1 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-07 
 

Resolution of Intent for the Charter Township of Ypsilanti to 
allocate American Rescue Plan Act funds  

 
  
 WHEREAS, on March 11th 2021 the President Joseph Biden signed the 

American Rescue Plan Act into law. The American Rescue Plan provided 

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to jurisdictions and  

WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township has received American Rescue Plan 

funds in the amount of 9,439,025.00 and, 

WHEREAS, on January 6th 2022 the Department of Treasury released 

The Final Rule that took effect on April 1, 2022, and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Treasury states in The Final Rule that 

funds must be obligated by December 31,2024 and expended by December 31, 

2026, and 

WHEREAS, recipients receiving less than $10M, can elect a standard 

allowance  for “Revenue Loss” and use the full award for “government services” 

such as: Township hall and facility  construction, renovations and expansions; 

Township facility equipment, systems and upgrades, including ventilation, 

security systems and features, parking lot paving, etc.; Emergency services 

vehicles, and purchase for public safety departments such as personal protection 

equipment and turnout gear; Township maintenance vehicles; Parks and 

recreation facilities, maintenance, expansion, etc; Computer equipment; Road 

projects; Recycling services; Election equipment, including ballot drop boxes; 

Feasibility studies; and Matching fund for non-federal programs,  and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Treasury presumes lost revenue of each 

local jurisdiction to be a standard of $10,000,000.00, the Ypsilanti Township 

Board of Trustees is choosing to invest the dollars into the community, rather 

than claim any lost revenues, and 

WHEREAS, Supervisor Stumbo was advised and is thankful for Congress 

Woman Debbie Dingell alerting the township to make immediate allocation to 

avoid losing ARPA dollars, and 



 2 

WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees has a master plan, 

along with a park and recreation plan that identifies goals and objectives for 

improvement and growth, and   

WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees has expended 

$237,633.53 to date for personal protection equipment such as masks, gloves, 

and COVID test kits, to protect the community from the further spread of COVID-

19. The township board of trustees delivered these items directly to households, 

non-profits, churches and businesses. These resources are still available today 

at the Civic Center and Community Center, and 

WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees ARPA subcommittee 

identified the top focus areas as being; health and wellness, community 

gathering areas, infrastructure improvements, environmentally friendly practices 

and safety, and 

WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township Park Commission and Board of Trustees 

has previously adopted the 2040 Master Plan and (adopted March, 2020) and 

the Parks and Recreation Plan (adopted January, 2019) where several projects 

were identified.  

 NOW, THEREFORE THE YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 

OF TRUSTEES HEREBY RESOLVES AND AUTHORIZES THE USE OF ARPA 

FUNDS FOR THE FOLLOWING:  

 1.  Road improvement and storm water management as 

recommended by OHM in partnership with the Washtenaw County Road 

Commission in the amount of $2,800,392.00 

 2. Upgrade the remaining community lights from high pressure 

sodium to LED lighting in the amount of $650,000.00 

3. Park improvements to West Willow Neighborhood Park in the 

amount of $350,000.00 

 4. Park improvements to Burns Park in the amount of $250,000.00 

5. Renovations to the community center bathrooms and replaced 

galvanized piping in the amount of $737,000.00. 

6. Play surface replacement to Ford Heritage Park in the amount of 

$165,000.00 



 3 

7. Hydro Dam safety projects that are required by the Federal Energy 

Regulatory Commission in the amount of $680,000.00 

8.  Two buses for 50 and Beyond and Youth Programing in the amount 

of $225,000.00 

9.  Bathroom facilities at Ford Heritage Park and Green Oaks Golf 

Course in the amount of $800,000.00. 

10.  Installation of LED lights at ball fields 3 and 4 located on Clark Rd 

in the amount of $354,000.00. 

11.  Provide Barrier Busters funding for Ypsilanti Township Residents in 

the amount of $450,000.00 

12.  Park shelter replacements at Ford Lake and Lakeside parks in the 

amount of $600,000.00 

13.  Improvements to the Community Resource Center located at 2057 

Tyler Rd. in the amount of $40,000.00. 

14.  Civic Center Pond Lining in the amount of $350,000.00 

15.  Civic Center parking lot and water main replacement $750,000.00 

16.  Once all projects identified above are approved and completed, any 

remaining funds shall be put towards an additional agreement with the 

Washtenaw County Road Commission for local road funding. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of 

Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of 

Resolution No. 2023-07 approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees 

assembled at a Special Meeting on May 23rd, 2023. 

 
 

Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk                                                                   
 Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 6th, 2023 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

 
Supervisor Brenda Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 4:30pm in the Ypsilanti 
Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township.  
 
Members Present:     Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Heather Jarrell Roe 

 and Treasurer Stan Eldridge 
          Trustees: Ryan Hunter, John Newman II, Gloria Peterson  

and Debbie Swanson  
 

Members Absent:       None 
 
Meeting called to order at 4:30pm.  
Supervisor Stumbo stated that public comment is allowable under each agenda item. 
                    
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
1. Request authorization to seek sealed bids for two (2) new Recreation 
Passenger Buses (ARPA Funding) 
 
Motion to approve made by Clerk Jarrell Roe, Supported by Trustee Hunter.  
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
2. Request to approve agreement with Washtenaw County for Barrier Busters 
three year contract in the amount of $450,000 (ARPA Funding) 
 
Motion to approve made by Treasurer Eldridge, supported by Trustee Swanson (see attached). 
 
Moonson Eninschem, OCED of Washtenaw County thanked the board for consideration and was 
available for any questions. He stated that looking at your entire package, he really appreciated 
the emphasis on low and moderate income communities and that has been his focus for a quarter 
century now. He further explained that the township will receive regular updates on the spending. 
 
Trustee Newman asked about financial literacy classes and learning opportunities.  
 
Trustee Swanson thanked Mr. Eninschem for the work that he was doing and is thankful for the 
opportunity to partner with Barrier Busters. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.  
 
3. Request authorization to purchase a software upgrade for courtroom 
recording software 3 year annual license at $4300 per year contingent upon 
a budget amendment 
 
Motion to approve made by Clerk Jarrell Roe, support by Trustee Peterson. 
 
Magistrate Mark Nelson explained that this is required and the same system that they currently 
have in place.  
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
4. Request authorization to seek sealed bids for Community Center Ball Field 
Lighting (ARPA Funding) 
 
Motion to approve made by Clerk Jarrell Roe, support by Trustee Hunter. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
5. Request authorization to seek quotes for monthly newsletter to Ypsilanti Township 
Community 
 
Motion to approve made by Trustee Swanson, support by Clerk Jarrell Roe. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
6. Request authorization to approve OHM to provide professional services for 
preliminary engineering, design and bidding for the Ypsilanti Township Civic 
Center Parking Lot Improvements (ARPA Funding) 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 6, 2023 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
 
Motion to approve made by Treasurer Eldridge, support by Clerk Jarrell Roe (see attached). 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
7. Request authorization to approve Spicer Group to provide professional 
services for preliminary engineering, design and bidding for the Ypsilanti 
Township ARPA parks projects in West Willow, Burns, Ford Heritage, Ford 
Lake and Lakeside Parks (ARPA Funding) 
 
Motion to approve made by Clerk Jarrell Roe, supported by Trustee Peterson (see attached). 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
8. Request authorization to seek sealed bids for renovations to the community 
resource center located at 2057 Tyler Rd (ARPA Funding) 
 
Motion to approve made by Clerk Jarrell Roe, supported by Trustee Peterson. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
9. Request authorization to approve Stantec Consulting to provide professional 
services for preliminary engineering and conceptual design for the Ypsilanti 
Township Community Center Bathroom Improvements and replacement of 
galvanized pipes (ARPA Funding) 
 
Motion to approve made by Clerk Jarrell Roe, support by Trustee Peterson (see attached). 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
10. Budget Amendment #8 
 
Motion to approve made by Clerk Jarrell Roe, support by Treasurer Eldridge (see attached). 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                   
 



   Revenue # __________ 
 

1 

CONTRACT 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 AGREEMENT is made for the three (3) year period spanning June, 2023 through December 
2025, by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti located at 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, and 
the COUNTY OF WASHTENAW, a municipal corporation, with offices located in the County 
Administration Building, 220 North Main Street, Ann Arbor, Michigan  48107(“County”).   
 
 In consideration of the promises below, the parties mutually agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The COUNTY will provide emergency basic need assistance including, but not limited to, 
assistance with housing, utility needs, transportation(including car repairs), structural ramps and health 
needs to residents of Washtenaw County, specifically and especially residents of the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti, who meet the criteria of the Barrier Busters Program. 
 
 The COUNTY will report quarterly on the provision of services in a manner and method mutually 
agreeable to the parties.  At a minimum, the County will report on the number of persons served, the 
services provided and, if practicable the direct benefit to the citizens of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, 
regardless of whether they receive services. 
 

ARTICLE II - COMPENSATION 
 
 Upon completion of the above services and submission of invoices, The Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti will pay the COUNTY an amount not to exceed 150,000.00 of ARPA funds per year for three(3) 
years for a total of $450,000.00.  The compensation will be directed to the delivery of services and not 
overhead or administrative fees.  
 

ARTICLE III - TERM 
 
 This contract begins on the date of this agreement and ends on December 31st, 2025. 
 

ARTICLE IV - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
 
 The County will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, physical handicap, age, height, weight, marital 
status, veteran status, religion and political belief (except as it relates to a bona fide occupational 
qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the business).   
 
 The County will take affirmative action to eliminate discrimination based on sex, race, or a 
handicap in the hiring of applicant and the treatment of employees.  Affirmative action will include, but not 
be limited to: Employment; upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment advertisement; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for training, including apprenticeship.   
 
 The County agrees to post notices containing this policy against discrimination in conspicuous 
places available to applicants for employment and employees.  All solicitations or advertisements for 
employees, placed by or on the behalf of the County, will state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, 
physical handicap, age, height, weight, marital status, veteran status, religion and political belief.   
 

ARTICLE V - EQUAL ACCESS 
 
 The County shall provide the services set forth in Article I without discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, physical handicap, or age.   
 

 
 



   Revenue # __________ 
 

2 

 
ARTICLE VI - ASSIGNS AND SUCCESSORS 

 
 This contract is binding on the Charter Township of Ypsilanti and the County, their successors 
and assigns.  Neither the County nor the Charter Township of Ypsilanti will assign or transfer its interest in 
this contract without the written consent of the other.   
 

ARTICLE VII - TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 
 
 Section 1 -  Termination without cause.  Either party may terminate the contract by giving thirty 
(30) days written notice to the other party.   
 

ARTICLE VIII - CHANGES IN SCOPE OR SCHEDULE OF SERVICES  
 
 Changes mutually agreed upon by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti and the County, will be 
incorporated into this contract by written amendments signed by both parties.   
 

ARTICLE IX - CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM 
 
 This contract is to be interpreted by the laws of Michigan.  The parties agree that the proper 
forum for litigation arising out of this contract is in Washtenaw County, Michigan.   
 

ARTICLE X - EXTENT OF CONTRACT 
 
 This contract represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior 
representations, negotiations or agreements whether written or oral.   
 

ARTICLE XI – ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES 
 

                All parties to this contract agree that either electronic or handwritten signatures are acceptable 
to execute this agreement. 
 
 
ATTESTED TO:    WASHTENAW COUNTY 
 
 
By:________________________________ By:______________________________ 
     Lawrence Kestenbaum (DATE)       Gregory Dill    (DATE) 
     County Clerk/Register        County Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:   CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI: 
 
 
By:__________________________________ By:______________________________ 
     Office of Community & Economic  (DATE)      Brenda Stumbo          (DATE) 
     Development, Director            Township Supervisor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   By:_______________________________ 
          Heather Jarrell Roe  (DATE) 
          Township Clerk 
BY:______________________________       
      Michelle K. Billard  (DATE) 
      Office of Corporation Counsel 
            
    
REVISED:  5/24/2023 
 



 
 
 

 

June 1, 2023 
 
 
Ms. Brenda Stumbo 
Township Supervisor 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
  
 
RE: Proposal for Civic Center Parking Lot Improvements - REVISED 
 Professional Engineering Design Services 
 
 
Dear Ms. Stumbo: 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide Professional Engineering Design Services for the 
reconstruction of the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center parking lot. The existing parking lot was at the end of its 
service life and last rehabilitated in the early 2000’s with a pulverize and overlay. The nature of a pulverize and overlay 
was to help extend the service life of the pavement but did not address critical base issues. Due to the deteriorating 
nature of the existing parking lot, this project will require a full reconstruct the failing subbase and place new asphalt 
pavement in order to handle the traffic volumes and a minimum of a 15-year service life. 
 
This proposal provides key personnel and project manager contact information as well as project understanding, 
deliverables, schedule, and fee estimation.  
 
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

The proposed project consists of full reconstruction of the Civic Center parking lot located at 7200 S Huron River 
Dr.  The Township has requested two (2) proposals for the proposed reconstruction design. The is Proposal A 
which includes full reconstruction of the parking lot, placed back matching the existing layout. To allow for easier 
snow removal, the design will also include removal of the concrete block bollards near the entrance of the Civic 
Center building and replace with removeable solar bollards. The proposed design will also include one (1) Electric 
Vehicle Charging Station at the north side of the parking lot. 
 
The total work will include approximately 6,000 square yards of pavement removal, subbase repair, and asphalt 
replacement. 500 feet of curb removal and replacement along the perimeter of the parking lot and located as 
landscape islands of the lot are also proposed within the design. 
 
The parking lot design will comply with the current Ypsilanti Township engineering standards for construction 
including, applicable sections of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the National Asphalt Pavement 
Association (NAPA) Standards, and local Ordinances. 
 
The construction effort will stay on Ypsilanti Township property and no easements will be required for this project. 
In addition, no major storm sewer work is anticipated as a part of the scope. 
 
We offer the following scope of services for the completion of the design of this project.  
 



Ms. Brenda Stumbo – Civic Center Parking Lot Reconstruction 
June 1, 2023  
Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 
SCOPE 
 
Task 1 – Topographic Survey for Design 
 
OHM Advisors will begin Design Survey upon authorization to proceed.  Given the unique location of this project, 
and to set a precedent for the Township expectations, it’s imperative updated topo is collected so the design can be 
properly designed to meet ADA compliance.  Tasks to be accomplished include: 
 

 Control: Establish horizontal and vertical control and tie to project. 
 Topographic Survey: Obtain all necessary existing physical features, such as sidewalk, structure 

inventory, trees, etc., and elevations to provide information for preparing plans, with a focus on meeting 
all ADA requirements. 

 
Task 2 – Utility Coordination 
OHM Advisors will notify applicable utility agencies, as a representative of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, 
with regards to the proposed project.  We will request information regarding the existing utilities within the project 
limits from all necessary utility companies to be incorporated into the construction drawings.  OHM will 
coordinate with the Charter Township of Ypsilanti to schedule and hold a utility meeting, if necessary, to resolve 
any conflicts.   If conflicts require relocations of existing utilities, OHM Advisors will coordinate with the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti and the utility company involved.   
 
In addition to coordinating utilities, OHM will work with YCUA to design and apply for a permit for a new 8” 
watermain loop to replace the original 6” watermain and complete the loop off the 1984 8-inch watermain that was 
installed when the courthouse was constructed.  This will need to include both plan and profile sheets required by 
EGLE.  OHM will also include a watermain standard notes and details.   
 
Task 3 – Geotechnical Investigation 
OHM Advisors will coordinate with G2 to provide geotechnical information for this project. It is assumed that we 
will receive up to six (6) Cores and two (2) borings (10 feet deep) within the project limits. G2 will provide a report 
on existing subsurface conditions and provide recommendations for cross section. Core and boring logs will be 
included in the bid package. 
 
Task 4 – Preliminary Engineering Drawing Design 
The data gathered in Tasks 1 - 3, along with the conceptual sketches provided during the Design Survey process, 
will allow us to create a set of design drawings and aerial maps. These drawings and maps will be further developed 
to show the parking lot layout and minor changes. Preliminary design will be completed at this time.  
 
For the parking lot, we propose to put back essentially the same footprint but minor alternations may be proposed 
to landscape islands as well as the turnaround area near the drop boxes.  The preliminary design will be introduced 
for the Township’s consideration.   Previously a conceptual design was offered that improved accessibility with more 
significant design alterations. Those concepts were discussed with the former residential services director and were 
generally supported. However, those design changes are not included in this base proposal.  We have listed an 
optional task under the assumptions section of this proposal if desired.   
 
Task 5 – Develop Plan Package (50% Plans) 
OHM Advisors will develop preliminary plans, specifications, and an engineer’s opinion of cost in conformance 
with the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Engineering Standards and design specifications.  The plans will include a 
cover sheet, detail sheet, note sheet, legend sheet, removal sheets, typical cross sections, plan, and profile sheets.  



Ms. Brenda Stumbo – Civic Center Parking Lot Reconstruction 
June 1, 2023  
Page 3 of 5 
 

Alignment, geometrics, and proposed elevations will be preliminary and will be used for preparing the preliminary 
opinion of cost.  Two sets of the Preliminary Plan Package will be submitted to the Township for review.  OHM 
will meet with the Township representatives to discuss preliminary plan comments and design items. 
 
 

 

Task 6 – Specifications, Final Plans and Bid Package Assembly 

In order to develop the necessary specifications, OHM will follow the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Engineering 
Standards and Design Specifications. These specifications will pertain to specific items such as special instructions 
to bidders (Township requirements), supplemental and technical specifications, and a method of payment for the 
contractor to follow.  
 
After meeting with the Township, OHM Advisors will further develop plans and special provisions integrating the 
comments received by all parties. OHM will prepare detailed construction plans at a 1” = 40’ scale on 22” x 34” 
sheets, as well as updating the engineer’s opinion of cost and streamlining the specifications.   
 
The bid package will require the necessary bonding, prevailing wage information, and insurance requirements as well 
as a bid form that will allow the Township to compare bids on an “apples to apples” basis. After completion of the 
design, the Township will be provided with two hard copies of the package for review along with an updated final 
engineer’s opinion of probable cost. Final adjustments to the package will then be made based on the Township’s 
comments prior to advertising and bidding.  A list of permits will also be included in the bid package and all applicable 
permit applications will also be applied for as part of this task.   
 
Task 7 – Bidding Assistance 

The final bid package will be provided to the Township to be posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade 
Network (MITN). OHM will assist with the bid process and conduct a bid opening. OHM can also hold an onsite 
pre-bid conference with potential bidders, if requested by the Township. OHM will address any questions and/or 
any Requests for Information (RFIs) received by the bidding contractors during the bid phase. OHM will hold a bid 
opening at the Township on the date specified in the bid documents. Bids will be received, read aloud, collected, 
tabulated, and reviewed. A letter of recommendation will be provided to the Township based on price, references, 
and other criteria outlined in the bid documents.  
 
DELIVERABLES 

Task Deliverable 
Task 4 Preliminary Engineering Drawings 
Task 5 50% Engineering Plans 
Task 6 Final Plans & Bidding Package (Reviewed by Township Attorney) 
Task 7 Recommendation of Award Letter 

 
KEY PERSONNEL 
 
This project team has been specifically selected to best meet the technical aspects of the design and facilitate 
coordination with the Township. Below is a list of key personnel and their role on this project. 
 
 

Project Team Members Role on Project Specific Duties 
Matthew Parks, PE Project Manager 

 
Management & Public Liaison  

Nicholas Barnett, P.E./Stacie Serdar Lead Design Engineer Concepts, Design Development, 



Ms. Brenda Stumbo – Civic Center Parking Lot Reconstruction 
June 1, 2023  
Page 4 of 5 
 

 ADA Issues, & QA/QC 
Andrew Schripsema, PE, PS 
 

Surveyor 
 

Design Survey (Control, Topography, 
& Right-of-Way)  

 
 
 
ASSUMPTIONS/CLARIFICATIONS 
 

 The design will be limited to the sidewalk and hard surface around the limits of the main Civic Center 
parking lot.  This design will not incorporate any improvements to Veteran’s Drive, the employee parking 
lot, or the drive to the employee parking lot. 

 This design is limited to matching the existing parking lot layout with only minor changes.  Additional 
“greenway landscape” design or sidewalk integrated into the parking lot is not included.  However, this can 
be added to the scope for additional fees based on the Township’s desired final product.  We estimate this 
work to be between $5,000 and $15,000 depending on the final scope.   

 After our survey team completes the Topographic Survey, OHM will review the existing grades of the 
surrounding sidewalk that intersects the project. If additional sidewalk reconstruction is needed to meet 
ADA, OHM will notify the Township and design to meet ADA standards. 

 Any additional tasks outside of the above scope of services can be conducted at an hourly rate or as 
negotiated between the Township and OHM Advisors. Additional work will not be conducted prior to 
Township written authorization. 

 No construction phase services are included in the proposal.  The Township can inspect and administer this 
project with their staff or OHM can submit a proposal under separate cover for consideration upon request.  
In general, projects like this require approximately 14-15% of the overall construction cost to administer 
construction services.  This can change based on the level of service provided. 

 Any meetings in addition to the meetings outlined in the above scope are not included in the scope of 
services but can be attended upon request. Time spent for these meetings will be charged on an hourly basis. 

 
SCHEDULE 

 
OHM Advisors intends to start work within three weeks of approval of the proposal. Final plans should be 
complete within four months. OHM Advisors should be notified immediately of any deadline changes to satisfy 
the Township’s needs, as significant changes in the final project schedule could affect total cost.  
 
FEE 
 
OHM Advisors will invoice the Charter Township of Ypsilanti for the above stated services on an hourly not-to-
exceed basis, in accordance with our 2023 Rate Schedule. Invoices will be sent monthly as work is performed.  
 

Design Tasks      Design Fee 
  Task 1: Topographic Survey    $9,000.00 
Task 2: Utility Coordination    $12,900.00 
Task 3: Geotechnical Investigation   $5,950.00 
Task 4: Prelim Engineering Drawing Design  $16,100.00 
Task 5: Develop 50% Plans    $9,300.00 
Task 6: Specification and Final Bid Package Assembly $8,500.00 
Task 7: Bidding Assistance    $4,750.00 
          
Total       $66,500.00 

 



Ms. Brenda Stumbo – Civic Center Parking Lot Reconstruction 
June 1, 2023  
Page 5 of 5 
 

The total fee is estimated to be $66,500.00.  Additional services, such as landscape architectural services or additional 
sidewalk design can be provided on an hourly basis, as requested.  See second bullet under 
Assumptions/Clarifications. 
 
*If landscape concept is desired $76,500.00 should be authorized.  (See attached).   
 
 
ACCEPTANCE 
 
If this proposal is acceptable to you, a signature on the enclosed copy of this letter and initials on the contract terms 
and conditions will serve as our authorization to proceed.   
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to present this proposal to you.  We look forward to working with you 
throughout this project. 
 
 
 
 
OHM ADVISORS   Charter Township of Ypsilanti   
CONSULTANT   CLIENT  
 

 
  (Signature)       
 
Matthew D. Parks, P.E.  (Name)     
 
Principal in Charge  (Title)     
 
  (Date)     
 
 

  (Signature)       
 
  (Name)     
 
  (Title)     
 
  (Date)     
 

 



  
  
 
 

                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                   

 

  
 

ENGINEERS  SURVEYORS  PLANNERS  ARCHITECTS 

STRONGER. SAFER. SMARTER. SPICER.  
 

 

 
 
May 31, 2023 
 
 
John Hines, CPRP 
Recreation Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti  
2025 East Clark Road 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
RE: ARPA Parks Projects 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan 
Letter Agreement for Professional Services 

 
 
Mr. Hines: 
 
At your request, we are furnishing you with a letter agreement to provide professional services related to 
the preliminary engineering, design and bidding of the Ypsilanti Township ARPA Parks projects. 
 
BACKGROUND 

As part of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), Ypsilanti Charter Township received funds for work 
at 5 parks throughout the Township as detailed below. 
 

Park Scope Construction 
Estimate 

West Willow 
Neighborhood Park 

Focus on walking path, shelter refresh, playground 
refresh and expand parking lot $350,000 

Burns Park 
Neighborhood Park Accessibility to park, walking path, playground refresh $250,000 

Ford Heritage Park  Bring shelter with bathroom to Ford Heritage Park.  Add 
lighting around where Shelter is built $500,000 

Ford Lake Park 
New roofs for shelters, look at structure stability overall, 
restrooms for 1, 2, and 3.  Potential Lighting 
upgrades.  Add a shelter 5? 

$300,000 

Lakeside Park Bathroom renovation (in dire state), shelter renovation, 
parking lot paving $300,000 

TOTAL  $1,700,000 

 
 
SCOPE OF BASIC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Spicer Group’s proposed services follow. They are phased to reflect the orderly and reasonable progress 
of the project. 
 

http://www.spicergroup.com/


 
May 31, 2023 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 

1. Preliminary Engineering & Building Evaluation 
a. Meet with the Township to refine the scope of services for each park 
b. Procure geotechnical engineering proposals for shelter foundations, playscapes, and 

parking areas based on the scope of services. 
c. Evaluate the existing building conditions for the renovations and roofing 
d. Perform a needs assessment related to new facilities 

  
2. Survey 

a. Submit MissDIG design ticket, organize utility information, and coordinate with affected 
utility companies as necessary 

b. Perform a topographical survey of the sites and prepare an existing conditions base plan. 
i. Horizontal and vertical control will be established. 

ii. Survey limits will include the area of the park necessary for creating plans, 
including 100’ beyond the property lines where the project abuts a property line. 
We do not intend to survey the entire park properties. 

iii. All visible physical features will be located, including all walls, drives, paved 
areas, fences, sidewalks, pathways, trees, shrubs, drainage structures, culverts, 
etc. 

3. Design 
a. Create plans in CAD based on the scope of work provided by the Township. These plans 

will include details necessary for construction. 
b. Anticipated sheets include: 

i. Cover 
ii. Notes 

iii. Existing Conditions 
iv. Site Plan 
v. Detailed grading & ADA plan 

vi. Building Plans 
vii. SESC plan 

viii. Details  
c. Prepare bidding documents including standard contract language and a project manual 

complete with technical specifications defining pay items and materials/products to be 
used. 

d. Acquire a soil erosion permit. Permit fees are not included in our professional services 
fee. 

e. Hold a design review meeting with the Township prior to advertising the project for bids. 
 

4. Bidding Assistance 
a. Post Plans and Specifications on the Spicer Group bidding website and Quest for 

electronic bidding. We will also post an advertisement on MITN and will provide the 
Township with an electronic copy of the advertisement to post elsewhere, if desired. 

b. Issue addenda as necessary to clarify the bidding documents. 
c. Host a virtual bid opening 
d. Review bids and analyze for completeness; provide a bid tabulation for review 
e. Provide a recommendation of award 

 



 
May 31, 2023 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 

5. Grant Administration 
a. Assist with ARPA submittals, as required 
b. Submit plans, specifications, itemized project cost estimate, and implementation 

schedule. 
 
SERVICES NOT INCLUDED 

For a clearer understanding of our work scope, the following is not included in our Scope of Basic 
Professional Services: 
 

▪ Seeking or securing additional funding 
▪ Expanding or altering the scope of work defined in the grant application and award 
▪ Permit fees 
▪ Boundary Survey 

 
A separate proposal for Construction Inspection and Construction Administration will be provided when 
the project is approaching the construction phase. 
 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Additional services related to this project will be furnished by us after you authorize the work.  Our fee 
for the additional services will be determined at the time they are agreed to and rendered. 
 
 
FEE SCHEDULE 

Our proposed fee schedule follows. We will submit monthly invoices to you for our basic professional 
services, any additional authorized services, and any reimbursable expenses. Unless other payment 
arrangements are made, we will include any of our project subconsultants costs on our invoice including a 
10% fee to cover taxes, administration, and insurance.  
 

Park Prelim 
Eng 

Survey & 
Design Bidding Grant Geotech 

Allowance Total 

West Willow 
Neighborhood Park $1,000  $28,000  $2,500  $1,000  $2,500  $35,000  

Burns Park 
Neighborhood Park $1,000  $21,000  $1,500  $1,000  $2,500  $27,000  

Ford Heritage Park  $1,000  $42,000  $4,000  $1,000  $5,000  $53,000  

Ford Lake Park $1,000  $25,000  $2,000  $1,000  $2,500  $31,500  

Lakeside Park $1,000  $24,000  $2,000  $1,000  $2,500  $30,500  

TOTAL $5,000  $140,000  $12,000  $5,000  $15,000  $177,000  



 
May 31, 2023 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 
We have calculated these fees based on our understanding of what you want us to do and what you have 
told us.  Should we approach the amount of the fee for any reason before we are finished with the work, if 
the scope changes or our understanding was incorrect, we will notify you and discuss with you the option 
of adjusting the amount of the fee or adjusting the scope of services. Our fee includes an allowance for 
geotechnical engineering services. Once the scope of services is fully defined, we will solicit proposals 
from geotechnical consultants and refine this line item of the proposal accordingly.  
 
If this proposal meets with your approval, please acknowledge this approval with an authorized signature 
below and return one of the enclosed copies to us. We deeply appreciate your confidence in Spicer Group, 
and we look forward to working with you and for you on your project. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 Jennifer L Chehab, P.E. 
 Sr. Project Manager  

 
 

  Philip A. Westmoreland, P.E. 
  Sr. Project Manager 
  SPICER GROUP, INC. 
  125 Helle Blvd, Suite 2 
  Dundee, MI 48131 
  Phone:  (734) 823-3308  
 
  Attachment:  General Conditions  
   
   Cc: SGI File 134586SG2023 
 

  
 Above proposal accepted and approved by Owner. 
  
 YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
  
 By:  
  Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor 

 Date:  
   
   

 By:  
  Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 

 Date:  

   
   
   
   

 



Stantec Consulting Michigan Inc. 
1168 Oak Valley Drive, Suite 100, Ann Arbor MI  48108-9200 

 

 
  

 

June 2, 2023 

File: 207585033 

Attention: Mr. John Hines, CPRP 
Ypsilanti Township Recreation Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti  
7200 South Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Dear Director Hines, 

Reference: Architectural and Engineering Design Services for the Community Center Bathroom Renovations Project 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, Michigan 

As requested, Stantec Consulting Michigan Inc. (Stantec) is pleased to submit this proposal for professional 
Architectural and Engineering (A/E) Design Services for the Community Center Bathroom Renovations 
Project.  It is our understanding these improvements will consist of renovations to six (6) restrooms to 
update the functionality of the restrooms by installing new fixtures, wall, and floor finishes, and ensuring the 
spaces comply with current ADA standards. Parts of the water distribution piping are nearing the end of 
their useful life and renovations will provide an opportunity to replace piping along with this project, 
including: 

• New interior wall and floor finishes, including painting, ceramic tile, and related modifications to 
existing walls and ceilings; 

• New toilet and urinal partitions; 
• New plumbing fixtures, including new vanities, faucets, toilets, urinals;  
• New toilet accessories; 
• New light fixtures; 
• Related modifications to existing wiring and light fixture controls; 
• Replace existing water fountains adjacent to the entrance of the toilet rooms; 
• Remove and replace existing galvanized water distribution piping serving identified toilet rooms to 

adjacent main; 
• Investigate and incorporate improvements to existing sanitary sewer system. 

SCOPE OF WORK REQUESTED 
Stantec proposes to perform the following tasks as part of these services: 

1. Conceptual/Schematic Design (Phase I)  
 
A. The A/E will meet with Township staff to confirm project scope and requirements.  
B. Review applicable code and ADA requirements, field verify existing conditions and review available 

record drawings, reports, and studies.  
C. Conduct analysis of existing sanitary system design and capacities based on connected plumbing 

fixtures to determine whether the system is adequate. Identify modifications required to correct 



June 2, 2023 

Mr. John Hines, CPRP 

Page 2 of 5  

Reference: Community Center Bathroom Renovations Project 

 
 

 

existing deficiencies in the system.  Destructive testing, digital camera investigations and other 
invasive investigative analysis is not provided or anticipated.   

D. Provide conceptual/schematic design drawings for review and approval.  
 
This phase is estimated to be four weeks.  
 

2. Design Development (Phase II) 

A. Stantec proposes incorporating Design Development tasks into the Contract Document phase.  
 

3. Contract Documents (Phase III) 

A. After final approval of the final design package from Phase I by the Township, as well as the 
appropriate municipal commissions and other governing bodies, the A/E will create detailed 
construction and specification documents for bidding purposes. 

B. Provide finishes and samples identifying materials to be incorporated into the project and meet with 
Township staff to present drawings and finish selections for approval.   

C. Determine phasing requirements to minimize disruption to existing spaces and allow building to be 
occupied throughout construction. 

D. The final contract documents shall include as a minimum: Demolition Plans, Life Safety/Code Plan, 
Floor Plan(s), Reflected Ceiling Plans, Interior Elevations, Details, Plumbing Plan(s) and Isometrics, 
Door / Window / Room Finish / Mechanical / Plumbing / Electrical schedules and diagrams, HVAC 
Plans, Power Plans, Lighting Plans, Lighting Controls Requirements, and the Project Manual 
including specifications in the CSI division format. 

E. Plan Approvals - The A/E is responsible for submitting for plan reviews to the Township including, 
but not limited to: Building, Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing. Any Fire Protection and/or Fire 
Alarm design and submittals are to be submitted by the Licensed Contractor performing the work. 
The Township is waiving plan review fees for this project.  

This phase is estimated to be six weeks.  

4. Bidding and Contract Award (Phase IV) 

A. The A/E will assist the Township in bidding the project to prospective prime contractors.  
B. Services will include assisting the Township with the distribution of plans and specifications, 

assisting with sub-contractor pre-bid meetings, assisting with formulating responses to prospective 
bidders’ questions, issuing addendums (if necessary), attendance at the bid opening, providing the 
Township with a recommendation for prime contract awards. 

This phase is estimated to be four to six weeks.  

5. Contract Administration, Project Closeout, and Warranty (Phase V) 

A. The A/E shall be a representative of and shall advise and consult with the Township during 
construction until the final payment to prime contractors is due and during the correction period 
described in the Contract Documents. 

B. Construction Related Services - The A/E will provide on the Townships behalf, contract 
administration services. Services anticipated to be provided consist of attending Observation Site 



June 2, 2023 

Mr. John Hines, CPRP 

Page 3 of 5  

Reference: Community Center Bathroom Renovations Project 

 
 

 

Visits at the job site to evaluate job progress.  The number of Observation Visits is assumed to be 
two (2). Attend OAC meetings as established by the Contractor and Owner to review the 
construction schedule and outstanding items. The number of OAC meetings is assumed not to 
exceed 12 virtual meetings. Review of submittals and shop drawings, processing change orders 
and Requests for Information, processing certificates for payment to prime contractors, verifying 
Substantial and Final Completion, developing punch list (one (1) assumed) and confirm completion 
of each item with coordination with the Contractor services are anticipated. Review of warranty and 
project closeout documentation as provided by the Contractor anticipated. An As-Constructed set 
incorporating design changes during the construction phase as well as any Contractor provided 
markups is anticipated to be provided.  

This phase is estimated to be 12 weeks. 

UNDERSTANDINGS & ASSUMPTIONS 
This proposal was developed under the following understandings and assumptions: 

• Excludes any permit fees, geotechnical services or any work not listed above. 
• Conceptual Total Project costs were originally estimated at $737,000 in 2022. 
• Assumes that existing mechanical, pluming and electrical infrastructure is adequate to support 

the anticipated scope.  
• Fire Protection scope is limited to redistribution of heads in accordance with NFPA13.  

SCHEDULE 
We propose to complete the design, engineering, and permit application package per the weeks noted 
above after authorization.  Authorization will be required prior to beginning each phase.  

BUDGET 
We recommend establishing a not-to-exceed budget to complete the Task 1:  Conceptual/Schematic 
Design (Phase I) Architectural and Engineering Scope of Work listed above for $12,000.    

After completion of Conceptual/Schematic Design (Phase 1) Stantec will provide a proposal to complete the 
remaining Phases of work.   

If the above proposal meets your approval, please sign this proposal letter and return a copy to our office. 
All work will be completed under the existing General Services Agreement between Ypsilanti Charter 
Township and Stantec. We sincerely appreciate the opportunity to continue to work with the Township and 
look forward to assisting you with these important improvements. If you should have any questions, please 
feel free to contact us. 

 



June 2, 2023 

Mr. John Hines, CPRP 

Page 4 of 5  

Reference: Community Center Bathroom Renovations Project 

 
 

 

Regards, 

Stantec Consulting Michigan Inc. 

 
 

 
Lindsay Woods  AIA, NCARB, LEED® Green Associate 
Project Manager 
Phone: 248-376-7972  
Lindsay.Woods@stantec.com 

  
 

Mark D. Pascoe  PE, LEED® AP, ENV SP 
Principal 
Phone: 734-214-1865  
Mark.Pascoe@stantec.com 

 
  



June 2, 2023 

Mr. John Hines, CPRP 

Page 5 of 5  

Reference: Community Center Bathroom Renovations Project 

 
 

 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND ACCEPTED:  
 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

John Hines, CPRP 
Recreation Director  
 
 , 2023 

 
mc v:\2075\promotion\2075800\25 - charter township of ypsilanti\pro_hines_ypsi_comm_ctr_bathroom_reno_20230602_final.docx 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

June 6, 2023 

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $1,096.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $1,096.00

Net Revenues $1,096.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out 101-257-708.004 $1,018.00
FICA 101-257-715.000 $78.00

Net Expenditures $1,096.00

236- 14B DISTRICT COURT FUND Total Increase $4,300.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 236-000-699.999 $4,300.00

Net Revenues $4,300.00

Expenditures: Computer Programs 236-286-819.006 $43,000.00

Net Expenditures $43,000.00

282 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FUND Total Increase $8,866,706.00

Revenues: Prior year fund balance 282-000-699.999 ($600,000.00)

Net Revenues ($600,000.00)

Expenditures: Covid-19 Supplies 282-602-840.000 ($600,000.00)
Net Expenditures ($600,000.00)

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $450,000.00

Net Revenues $450,000.00

Expenditures: Barrier Busters 3 yr agreement 282-602-810.000 $450,000.00

Net Expenditures $450,000.00

Request to increase the budget for payout of leave bank of resigned employee.  This will be funded by an 
appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

Request to reverse the original budgeted $600,000 for personal protection equipment (PPE) from Public Health and 
Prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase budget for to upgrade Court recording software. This will be funded by and appropriation to 
prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase budget for Washtenaw County 3 year agreement for Barrier Busters as approved in Resolution 
2023-07. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.

1 of 5



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

June 6, 2023 

Revenues: Interest 282-000-665.000 $130,601.00
Prior year fund balance 282-000-699.999 $134,713.00

Net Revenues $265,314.00

Expenditures: Covid-19 Supplies 282-602-840.000 $265,314.00

Net Expenditures $265,314.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $250,000.00

Net Revenues $250,000.00

Expenditures: Burns Park - Improvements 282-901-981.010 $250,000.00

Net Expenditures $250,000.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $750,000.00

Net Revenues $750,000.00

Expenditures: Civic Center - Parking Lot & Water Main 282-901-981.020 $750,000.00

Net Expenditures $750,000.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $350,000.00

Net Revenues $350,000.00

Expenditures: Civic Center - Pond Lining 282-901-981.030 $350,000.00

Net Expenditures $350,000.00

Request to increase budget for Burns Park - Improvements as approved in Resolution 2023-07. All projects to be 
brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

Request to increase budget for Civic Center - parking lot and water main as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  All 
projects to be brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.

Request to increase budget for Civic Center - pond lining as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  All projects to be 
brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

Request to budget $265,314 for personal protection equipment. This lowers the originally requested amount of 
$600,000.  This will be funded by interest revenue and prior year fund balance. 

2 of 5



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

June 6, 2023 

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $737,000.00

Net Revenues $737,000.00

Expenditures: Community Ctr - Bathroom Improve 282-901-981.040 $737,000.00

Net Expenditures $737,000.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $225,000.00

Net Revenues $225,000.00

Expenditures: Community Ctr - Buses 282-901-981.045 $225,000.00

Net Expenditures $225,000.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $354,000.00

Net Revenues $354,000.00

Expenditures: Community Ctr - Ball Field Lights 282-901-981.050 $354,000.00

Net Expenditures $354,000.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $40,000.00

Net Revenues $40,000.00

Expenditures: Community Resource Center - Improve 282-901-981.060 $40,000.00

Net Expenditures $40,000.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $300,000.00

Net Revenues $300,000.00

Expenditures: Ford Lake Park - Shelters 282-901-981.070 $300,000.00

Net Expenditures $300,000.00

Request to increase budget for Community Center - Ball Field Lights as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  All 
projects to be brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

Request to increase budget for Community Resource  Center improvements as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  All 
projects to be brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

Request to increase budget for Ford Lake Park - Shelters as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  All projects to be 
brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

Request to increase budget for Community Center - Bathroom Improvements as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  
All projects to be brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.

Request to increase budget for Community Center - Buses as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  All projects to be 
brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

3 of 5



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

June 6, 2023 

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $500,000.00

Net Revenues $500,000.00

Expenditures: Ford Heritage Park - Bathroom 282-901-981.080 $500,000.00

Net Expenditures $500,000.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $165,000.00

Net Revenues $165,000.00

Expenditures: Ford Heritage Park - Improvements 282-901-981.090 $165,000.00

Net Expenditures $165,000.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $300,000.00

Net Revenues $300,000.00

Expenditures: Green Oaks Golf Course - Bathroom 282-901-981.100 $300,000.00

Net Expenditures $300,000.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $680,000.00

Net Revenues $680,000.00

Expenditures: Hydro Dam - Safety Project 282-901-981.110 $680,000.00

Net Expenditures $680,000.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $300,000.00

Net Revenues $300,000.00

Expenditures: Lakeside Park - Shelter 282-901-981.120 $300,000.00

Net Expenditures $300,000.00

Request to increase budget for Green Oaks Golf Course - renovations of bathrooms as approved in Resolution 2023-
07.  All projects to be brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

Request to increase budget for Hydro Dam - Safety project as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  All projects to be 
brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

Request to increase budget for Lakeside Park - Shelter as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  All projects to be 
brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant .  

Request to increase budget for Ford Heritage Park -  new bathroom facility as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  All 
projects to be brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

Request to increase budget for Ford Heritage Park - play surface replacement as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  
All projects to be brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

4 of 5



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

June 6, 2023 

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $2,800,392.00

Net Revenues $2,800,392.00

Expenditures: Road Improvements & Storm Water Mgmt 282-901-981.130 $2,800,392.00

Net Expenditures $2,800,392.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $650,000.00

Net Revenues $650,000.00

Expenditures: Streetlight LED Conversion 282-901-981.140 $650,000.00

Net Expenditures $650,000.00

Revenues: Other Federal Grants 282-000-528-000 $350,000.00

Net Revenues $350,000.00

Expenditures: West Willow Park - Improvements 282-901-981.150 $350,000.00

Net Expenditures $350,000.00

Request to increase budget for Streetlight LED Conversion as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  All projects to be 
brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

Request to increase budget for West Willow Park - Improvements as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  All projects to 
be brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant.  

Request to increase budget for Road Improvements & Storm Water Management as approved in Resolution 2023-07.  
All projects to be brought to the Board for approval. This will be funded by the ARPA Grant .  

5 of 5



Motion to Amend the 2023 Budget (#8)  
 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $1,096 to $13,760,550 and approve the 
department line-item changes as outlined. 

 
Move to increase the 14B District Court Fund budget by $4,300 to $1,728,473 and 

approve the department line-item changes as outlined. 
 

Move to increase the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Fund budget by $8,866,706 
to $9,466,706 and approve the department line-item changes as outlined. 

 
 
 

 





















Account Name Beginning Balance Cash Receipts Cash Disbursements Ending Balance
101 - General Fund 5,976,084.97 5,613,113.06 2,756,716.23 8,832,481.80
101 - Payroll 216,212.79 780,889.50 776,745.35 220,356.94
101 - Willow Run Escrow 145,808.22 47.93 0.00 145,856.15
206 - Fire Department 291,779.01 5,342,510.58 458,634.11 5,175,655.48
208 - Parks Fund 21,023.09 71.87 484.44 20,610.52
213 - Roads/Bike Path/Rec/General Fund 445,817.57 1,627,034.81 343,889.82 1,728,962.56
216 - Fire Pension & OPEB  Millage Fund 33,254.34 1,225,359.05 0.00 1,258,613.39
217 - Fire Special Millage Capital Fund 1,199,793.66 732,387.01 0.00 1,932,180.67
226 - Environmental Services 68,290.20 3,590,828.86 378,629.45 3,280,489.61
230 - Recreation 177,477.64 193,420.62 85,820.13 285,078.13
236 - 14-B District Court 81,598.92 360,918.14 165,381.77 277,135.29
244 - Economic Development 72,287.99 250.17 0.00 72,538.16
249 - Building Department Fund 1,685,276.54 53,040.62 81,519.83 1,656,797.33
250 - LDFA Tax 20,515.05 71,170.01 71,082.93 20,602.13
252 - Hydro Station Fund 952,696.45 68,966.82 34,648.29 987,014.98
266 - Law Enforcement Fund 5,486,367.14 8,536,994.66 180,471.82 13,842,889.98
282 - Cares Act Fund 9,434,018.35 32,687.85 0.00 9,466,706.20
284 - Opioid Settlement Fund 20,090.73 69.11 0.00 20,159.84
287 - Nuisance Abatement Fund 65,232.21 8,496.90 4,476.95 69,252.16
398 - LDFA 2006 Bonds 2,211.80 234,149.93 218,000.00 18,361.73
584 - Green Oaks Golf Course 184,375.84 83,018.87 86,967.84 180,426.87
597 - Compost Site 758,434.48 74,339.38 32,365.58 800,408.28
661 - Motor Pool 323,221.91 71,729.58 4,802.34 390,149.15
702 - General Tax Collection 112,831.56 17,729.04 22,698.39 107,862.21
703 - Current Tax Collections 25,345,475.71 4,567.10 25,350,036.78 6.03
707 - Bonds & Escrow/GreenTop 1,736,471.09 17,421.68 35,737.83 1,718,154.94
708 - Fire Withholding Bonds 109,872.91 13,870.02 13,058.00 110,684.93
GRAND  TOTAL * 54,966,520.17 28,755,083.17 31,102,167.88 52,619,435.46

* Revised Beginning Balance 5/17/23

MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT
STAN ELDRIDGE

APRIL  1, 2023 - APRIL 30, 2023



Account Name Beginning Balance Cash Receipts Cash Disbursements Ending Balance
101 - General Fund 8,832,481.80 1,572,638.57 2,296,084.83 8,109,035.54
101 - Payroll 220,356.94 761,987.07 805,570.55 176,773.46
101 - Willow Run Escrow 145,856.15 49.55 0.00 145,905.70
206 - Fire Department 5,175,655.48 31,254.76 406,803.34 4,800,106.90
208 - Parks Fund 20,610.52 84.06 403.70 20,290.88
213 - Roads/Bike Path/Rec/General Fund 1,728,962.56 11,891.24 139,753.99 1,601,099.81
216 - Fire Pension & OPEB  Millage Fund 1,258,613.39 7,817.62 32.21 1,266,398.80
217 - Fire Special Millage Capital Fund 1,932,180.67 9,584.63 4,474.79 1,937,290.51
226 - Environmental Services 3,280,489.61 18,867.37 342,920.32 2,956,436.66
230 - Recreation 285,078.13 191,087.99 201,700.07 274,466.05
236 - 14-B District Court 277,135.29 67,859.87 110,200.15 234,795.01
244 - Economic Development 72,538.16 302.21 0.00 72,840.37
249 - Building Department Fund 1,656,797.33 79,608.32 63,272.68 1,673,132.97
250 - LDFA Tax 20,602.13 86.06 0.00 20,688.19
252 - Hydro Station Fund 987,014.98 85,484.17 29,644.01 1,042,855.14
266 - Law Enforcement Fund 13,842,889.98 90,737.15 583,237.70 13,350,389.43
282 - Cares Act Fund 9,466,706.20 39,561.76 0.00 9,506,267.96
284 - Opioid Settlement Fund 20,159.84 84.06 0.00 20,243.90
287 - Nuisance Abatement Fund 69,252.16 5,181.20 6,745.00 67,688.36
398 - LDFA 2006 Bonds 18,361.73 76.05 0.00 18,437.78
584 - Green Oaks Golf Course 180,426.87 285,499.26 214,923.21 251,002.92
597 - Compost Site 800,408.28 49,217.04 35,571.34 814,053.98
661 - Motor Pool 390,149.15 18,447.43 4,225.49 404,371.09
702 - General Tax Collection 107,862.21 25,840.47 0.00 133,702.68
703 - Current Tax Collections 6.03 16.23 16.23 6.03
707 - Bonds & Escrow/GreenTop 1,718,154.94 3,928.02 21,791.75 1,700,291.21
708 - Fire Withholding Bonds 110,684.93 42,723.19 0.00 153,408.12
GRAND  TOTAL 52,619,435.46 3,399,915.35 5,267,371.36 50,751,979.45

MONTHLY TREASURER'S REPORT
STAN ELDRIDGE

MAY  1, 2023 - MAY 31, 2023



 

ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 
            Elizabeth Cuellar, Deputy Supervisor 
 
Date:   June 14, 2022 
 
RE:     Request to authorize $7,400 increase for OHM’s Local Roads Asset Management 

Plan totaling $22,300 from line 213-753-801.000, contingent on budget amendment 
 
At the December 20, 2022 Board of Trustees meeting, a $14,900 contract with OHM was 
approved for a local road asset management plan, to evaluate roads and determine priorities for 
subdivision roads based on pavement conditions.  
 
Additional work beyond the scope of the original contract was selecting roads in coordination 
with the Washtenaw County Road Commission. OHM is requesting an additional $7,400, to be 
paid from the professional services line, 213-753-801.000, contingent on budget amendment. 
This would bring the total for this project to $22,300. Attached please find a letter from OHM. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Cc: Javonna Neel, Accounting Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 









Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

Local Roads Asset Management Assessment & Recommendations for 2023



TOWNSHIP 
ROAD RATING 
“PASER” MAP 

Good, Fair, Poor



EVALUATION OF 
ROAD CONDITIONS 
ASSEMENT
VS UTILITY 
CONDITIONS



ROAD RATINGS -
PASER DEFINITIONS

(asphalt & concrete)

GOOD (little to no action 
required)

10.  New construction, no 
defects, up to 1 year old

9.    Like new, light traffic 
wear/map cracking, few 
pop outs

8.    Few if any longitudinal 
creaks on joints, minor 
surface defects, isolated 
cracks, light surface wear

FAIR (first signs of wear, 
sound structural 
condition)
7. Little or no crack erosion or 

raveling, minor surface scaling, 
some open joints, isolated 
settlement (action: crack 
seal/seal open joints)

6. Blocks are large and stable, slight 
to moderate polishing/flushing, 
slight reveling, moderate 
surface scaling, corner/ 
reinforcement cracks (action: 
sealcoat/seal over joints)

5. Patching/wedging in good 
condition, moderate raveling, 
extensive to severe 
flushing/polishing/scaling, 
spalling, corner cracks (action: 
sealcoat or thin overlay/grind 
and repair surface defects) 



PASER 
DEFINITIONS 
(cont.)

POOR (signs of structural 
weaking) 

4.  Severe surface raveling, 
multiple 
longitudinal/transverse 
cracks, severe 
scaling/polishing, corner 
cracks, pavement blowups 
(action: structural 
overlay/full depth repairs)

3.  Longitudinal/transverse 
cracks, extension crack 
erosion, occasional potholes, 
patches in fair/poor 
condition (action: structural 
overlay, patching/milling to 
extend life, full depth repair, 
slab replacement)

2.  Closely spaced cracks, 
frequent potholes, extensive 
failed patches, spalled slab 
cracks, joints failed, 
settlement/heaves (action: 
reconstruction of base, crush 
and shape/recycle or rebuild 
pavement)

1.  Loss of surface integrity, 
extensive surface distress, 
restricted speeds, extensive 
potholes, total loss of 
pavement (action: 
reconstruction with base 
repair)



REPRESENTATIVE IMAGES

PASER RATED ROADS 6-8
Preventative Maintenance is appropriate for newer 
roads in Good (8) to Fair (6) condition by lengthening 
the service life of structurally sound pavement. 
Options include surface improvements such as crack 
seals, joint seals, and surface seals. 

PASER RATED ROADS 4-5 (and possibly 3)
Road Rehabilitation procedures are necessary for 
roads in Fair (5) to Poor (4) condition, and often 
includes roads rated (3). Options include localized full 
depth removal and replacement, mill and overlay, or 
other methods to improve the base and/or cross 
section of the pavement such as pulverize, regrade, 
and overlay. 



REPRESENTATIVE 
IMAGES (cont.)

• PASER RATED ROADS 1-2 (and possibly 3)

• Road Reconstruction procedures are 
appropriate for roads in Poor (1-2) 
conditions (sometimes includes a (3) 
rating). A rating of 1 or 2 means the road 
has no more useful service life. Full 
reconstruction with extensive base repair is 
necessary, and often includes drainage 
improvements, water main, or sanitary 
sewer replacements.



REPAIR OPTIONS BASED UPON PASER RATING 
(from WCRC) 



TOWNSHIP PASER 
RATINGS 3 & 4  
These roads are a 
mix of mill and 
overlay and/or 
Reconstruct and 
need a deeper 
inspection by 
WCRC – Ongoing.



TOWNSHIP PASER DATA (every other year)
2021 DATA *roads were last rated in 2021

Township Local Roads

Average PASER Rating

3.56

Paser Rating Centerline Miles

POOR

1 0.102 0.102

2 51.236 102.472

3 34.902 104.706

4 14.755 59.02 100.995 75.77%

FAIR

5 7.087 35.435

6 10.593 63.558

7 8.495 59.465 26.175 19.64%

GOOD

8 5.081 40.648

9 0.99 8.91

10 0.051 0.51 6.122 4.59%

TOTAL 133.292

NOTE: Centerline miles were pulled from the latest 
PASER Rating Mileage Summary (0.073 miles of road 
were unrated)

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

C
e

n
te

rl
in

e
 M

ile
s

PASER Rating

Township Local Roads - 2021
Average PASER Rating 3.56



HISTORICAL INVESTMENT LEVELS 
(2022 matching funds = $278,000)

*note spending above doesn’t not include bond financing costs to the Township.



INVESTMENT OPTIONS

3

3.5

4

4.5

5

5.5

6

2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031

A
ve

ra
ge

 P
A

SE
R

 R
at

in
g

Year

Projected Network Condition - Average PASER Rating

$2.1M / Yr

$1.8M / Yr

$1.5M / Yr

$1.2M / Yr

$900K / Yr



WHAT’s THE END GAME?
OHM review of PASER Report and Analysis Goals

• Review WCRC guidance Report found at www.WCROADS.org

• Supplemental data to help Twp make decisions

• Look at results of different funding levels

Focused Recommendations:

 Leverage collaboration with WCRC and YCUA to make best decisions 
to stretch road repairs.

 Holistically set out to develop a comprehensive Road and utility CIP

 Meet regularly with the WCRC, YCUA and plan/design projects two 
years out.  

OHMs report and analysis did not include bridges and culverts – handled by WCRC



TOWNSHIP 
WATER MAIN 
AGE



2023 Road Recommendations – Proposed Costs



2023 Road Recommendations – Proposed Costs
Back Up Roads

*Other Roads are the focus in 2024.  More Full reconstruction.  Future 
mill and fill years of 2025, 2027 will complete this work and continue 
with same parameters in decision making but also focus on other 
geographic areas in the Twp.



2023 Road 
Recommendations 
– Area 1

PROPOSED ROADS:
• Mapleview Ln
• Creekside Cir
• Maplehurst Dr
• Oakhurst Dr
• Oakbrook Dr
• Oakridge Dr
• Hickory Ridge Dr
• Oakbrook Ct
• Cottonwood Ln



2023 Road 
Recommendations 
– Area 2

PROPOSED ROADS:
• Trillium Dr
• Jonquil Ln
• Tamarack Ln
• Lilly Dr
• Indigo Ln
• Amaranth Ln
• Prairie St
• Lakeway St
• Plainview St
• Wing St
• Burdock St
• Loon Hollow Ct
• Lakeway Ct
• Ringneck Dr
• Dogwood St
• Lupin Ct



2023 Road Recommendations 
– Area 4

PROPOSED ROADS:
• Dover Dr
• Greene Farm Dr
• Henley Dr
• Roxbury Dr
• Warwick Dr
• Carlton Dr
• Kensington Dr
• Essex Dr
• Amrhein Dr
• Durham Dr
• Kenton Ct
• Oyster Bay Dr
• Pioneer Rd



 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

 
 
To:  Heather Jarrell Roe, Township Clerk 
  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 

From:  Jason Iacoangeli AICP, Planning Director  
 

Re: Gault Village Demolition Contract Change Order #1  
 

Date:  June 16, 2023 
 
 
 
Review: 
 
With the commencement of the demolition process and the beginning of the asbestos abatement 
at Gault Village SME and Homrich have become aware that the Gault Village Shopping Center 
building contains more asbestos and non-asbestos material then what was realized during the 
initial bidding process.  Gault Village has had all of the boards removed from the outside of the 
building and it has become apparent from being able to walk through the fully lit building that 
additional asbestos and non-asbestos flooring material and will need to be removed as a part of 
the demolition. Further, some asbestos material has become comingled with other refuse in the 
building which will require additional effort to abate.  Since this time SME and Homrich have 
conducted an additional walkthrough to determine the quantities and the extent of the 
additional material.  SME has provided a memorandum to summarize this process and the 
additional cost involved and what materials have been discovered.   
 
Recommendation: 
 

Included with this memo you will find a memo from Jason C. Lafayette from SME that 
explains the need for the change order to remove additional material from the building that was 
not realized until the building was fully unsealed from being in a boarded up state.  Also you will 
find a copy of the Change Order for Additional Quantities dated June 14, 2023 from Homrich.  
 

 Based on the explanation from SME regarding the justification of the need for the 
change order and acknowledgement from Homrich that this change order is “inclusive of 
necessary expenses to support project abatement and demolition” the Planning Department 
and Building Department are recommending approval of the change order for the removal of 
additional quantities of asbestos and non-asbestos material from Homrich in the amount of 
$205,251.00       
 











 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:   Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:   Michael Saranen, Operation Manager 
 
Date:   June 13, 2023 
 
Subject:  Request to Approve an Agreement with the State of Michigan 
Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS) and the Hydro Station in the Amount of  
$ 14,400.00 be charged to 252.252.000.801.000 
 
In following, the State of Michigan 401 Water Quality Certificate for the Hydro Station, the 
Hydro is required to test 10 fish for mercury and PCB every 10 years as outlined in the 401 
Certificate, section 3.4 . 
 

Ten years after the issuance of the FERC license and every ten years thereafter, the CTY 
shall monitor the edible portion of fish from the Ford Lake Impoundment for total 
mercury and polychlorinated biphenyls. The sample shall consist of ten legal size 
resident predator fish of one species and ten bottom feeder fish of one species that are 
representative of the sizes normally consumed by anglers. Fish shall be individually 
analyzed. 

 
I am asking the Board to approve the agreement with MDHHS in the amount of $ 14,400.00 
that is budgeted in 252.535.801.000 and authorize the Supervisor and Clerk to sign the 
agreement. 
 
Please place this on the June 20th Board Agenda. 
 
If you have any questions please contact me. 
 



Revised 6-18 

State of Michigan  
Department of Health and Human Services  
Bureau of Grants and Purchasing (BGP)  
PO Box 30037, Lansing, MI  48909 
Or 
235 S. Grand Avenue, Suite 1201, Lansing, MI  48933 
 
REVENUE AGREEMENT:  REV23-99256 
Between 
THE STATE OF MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
And 
 
NAME OF AGENCY/PAYER PRIMARY CONTACT EMAIL 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Michael Saranen msaranen@ypsitownship.org 
AGENCY/PAYER ADDRESS TELEPHONE 
7200 S. Huron River DR., Ypsilanti MI 48197 734-368-4169 

 

MDHHS AGREEMENT 
ADMINISTRATOR 

NAME TELEPHONE EMAIL 
Keri Fisher 517-335-9489 FisherK@michigan.gov 

 

REVENUE AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION 
OF SERVICE 

MDHHS-BOL has been selected as the service supplier for anlaysis of total mercury (Hg ) and PCBs in fish 
for Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

BEGIN DATE END DATE MAXIMUM AMOUNT 
04/01/2023 12/30/2024 $14,400.00 

The individual or officer signing this agreement certifies by his or her signature that he or she is authorized to sign this 
agreement on behalf of the responsible governing board, official or agency. 
FOR THE AGENCY/PAYER:  FOR THE STATE OF MICHIGAN: 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

Michigan Department of Health and Human Services 
Agency/Payer   

   

Signature of Authorized Designee  Signature of Director or Authorized Designee 

      

 

Jeanette Hensler,  
Director-Grants Division, Bureau of Grants and Purchasing 

Print Name / Title  Print Name / Title 
   

Date  Date 
  

  



 
 

PAGE 2 of 11 
Revised 6-18 

 
Revenue Agreement Number REV23-99256 

 
This Revenue Agreement establishes the responsibilities and procedures for the Michigan 
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as MDHHS) and Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti for the purpose described below. 
 

1. Background 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti is interested in having fish samples analyzed for total 
mercury and PCBs as part of Ford Lake Dam sampling. 
 
2. Purpose 
 
MDHHS-BOL has been selected as the service supplier for anlaysis of fish for total mercury and PCBs 
for the Charter Townshihp of Ypsilanti. 
 
3.  Period of Agreement 
 
This Agreement will be in effect from the 04/01/2023 through 12/30/2024.   
 
At the discretion of MDHHS, this Agreement may be renewed in writing by an amendment not less 
than 30 days before its expiration.  
 
4. Work Statement of Each Party 
 
MDHHS shall: 

a. Treat as confidential all materials that Charter Township of Ypsilanti provides, directly or 
indirectly, and treat all materials with the same degree of care that it would treat confidential 
information of its own. 

b. Use materials as described in the Purpose, above, only.   
c. Promptly perform analysis and report the results thereof to Charter Township of Ypsilanti and 

in accordance with the agreement. 
d. Establish appropriate safeguards to ensure that the materials are used or disclosed only in 

compliance with the terms and conditions of this agreement and with all applicable statutes 
and regulations. 

e. If Charter Township of Ypsilanti at any time requests to do so, MDHHS will promptly return all 
materials in its possession relating to such materials, including copies thereof, to Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti.  Otherwise, MDHHS will destroy all remaining materials upon 
completion of analysis. 

 



Revenue Agreement Number: REV23-99256 
 
 

PAGE 3 of 11 
Revised 6-18 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti shall: 
a. Ensure materials are appropriately packaged and shipping following MDHHS instructions for 

submission of samples for mercury analysis. 
 
5. Payment 
 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti agrees to compensate MDHHS for services committed and/or 
provided under this Agreement at $14,400.00 for the period from the 04/01/2023 to 
12/30/2024. 
 
 Agreement Period Amount 
Year 1 04/01/2023 through 12/30/2024 $ 720 per 

specimen 
 Total Amount: $14,400.00  

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti will compensate MDHHS at $720 per sample.  Invoices shall be 
billed quarterly and include quantity of specimens tested and an amount due. 
 
MDHHS shall send invoices to:  
 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti shall send payments to: 
Michigan Department of Health and Human Services 
Cashier/Accounting Office 
P.O. Box 30437 
Lansing, MI 48909 
 
All payments sent to MDHHS shall include a reference to the MDHHS Revenue Agreement Tracking 
Number located on the first page of this agreement. 
 
7. Standard Terms 
 
7.1 Notices 
 
All notices and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement must be in 
writing and will be considered given and received: (a) when verified by written receipt if sent by 
courier; (b) when actually received if sent by mail without verification of receipt; or (c) when 
verified by automated receipt or electronic logs if sent by facsimile or email. 
 
 
 



Revenue Agreement Number: REV23-99256 
 
 

PAGE 4 of 11 
Revised 6-18 

7.2 Assignment 
 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti may not assign this Agreement to any other party without the 
prior approval of MDHHS.  Upon notice to Charter Township of Ypsilanti, MDHHS, in its sole 
discretion, may assign in whole or in part, its rights or responsibilities under this Agreement to 
any other party.  If MDHHS determines that a novation of this Agreement to a third party is 
necessary, Charter Township of Ypsilanti will agree to the novation and provide all necessary 
documentation and signatures. 
 
7.3 Change of Control 
 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti will notify, at least 90 calendar days before the effective date, 
MDHHS of a change in Charter Township of Ypsilanti organizational structure or ownership.  For 
purposes of this Agreement, a change in control means any of the following: 
 
a. A sale of more than 50% of Charter Township of Ypsilanti stock; 
b. A sale of substantially all of Charter Township of Ypsilanti assets; 
c. A change in a majority of Charter Township of Ypsilanti board members; 
d. Consummation of a merger of consolidation of Charter Township of Ypsilanti with any 

other entity; 
e. A change in ownership through a transaction or series of transactions; or 
f. The board (or the stockholders) approves a plan of complete liquidation. 
 
A change of control does not include any consolidation or merger effected exclusively to change 
the domicile of Charter Township of Ypsilanti, or any transaction or series of transactions 
principally for bona fide equity financing purposes. 
 
In the event of a change of control, Charter Township of Ypsilanti must require the successor to 
assume this Agreement and all of its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
7.4 Termination for Cause 
 
MDHHS may terminate this Agreement for cause, in whole or in part, if Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti, as determined by MDHHS: 
 
a. Endangers the value, integrity, or security of any location, data, or personnel; 
b. Becomes insolvent, petitions for bankruptcy court proceedings, or has an involuntary 

bankruptcy proceeding filed against it by any creditor; 
c. Engages in any conduct that may expose MDHHS to liability; 
d. Breaches any of its material duties or obligations; or 
e. Fails to cure a breach within the time stated in a notice of breach. 



Revenue Agreement Number: REV23-99256 
 
 

PAGE 5 of 11 
Revised 6-18 

 
Any reference to specific breaches being material breaches within this Agreement will not be 
construed to mean that other breaches are not material. 
 
If MDHHS terminates this Agreement under this Section, MDHHS will issue a termination 
notice.  If it is later determined that Charter Township of Ypsilanti was not in breach of this 
Agreement, the termination will be deemed to have been a Termination for Convenience, 
effective as of the same date, and the rights and obligations of the parties will be limited to 
those provided in Section 7.5, Termination for Convenience. 
 
7.5 Termination for Convenience 
 
MDHHS may immediately terminate this Agreement in whole or in part without penalty and for 
any reason, including but not limited to, appropriation or budget shortfalls.  Any net amount 
due and owing by Charter Township of Ypsilanti to MDHHS shall be paid by Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti to MDHHS, or, conversely, any prepayment by Charter Township of Ypsilanti in excess 
of the revised Agreement amount shall be refunded by MDHHS to Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti. 
 
7.6 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information 
 
The parties acknowledge that each party may be exposed to or acquire communication or data 
of the other party that is confidential, privileged communication not intended to be disclosed to 
third parties.  The provisions of this Section survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 

a. Meaning of Confidential Information.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the term 
“Confidential Information” means all information and documentation of a party that: 
1) Has been marked “confidential” or with words of similar meaning, at the time of 

disclosure by such party; 
2) If disclosed orally or not marked “confidential” or with words of similar meaning, 

was subsequently summarized in writing by the disclosing party and marked 
“confidential” or with words of similar meaning; and, 

3) Should reasonably be recognized as confidential information of the disclosing party. 
 

The term “Confidential Information” does not include any information or 
documentation that was: 
1) Subject to disclosure under the Michigan Freedom of Information Act (FOIA); 
2) Already in the possession of the receiving party without an obligation of 

confidentiality; 
3) Developed independently by the receiving party, as demonstrated by the receiving 

party, without violating the disclosing party’s proprietary rights; 



Revenue Agreement Number: REV23-99256 
 
 

PAGE 6 of 11 
Revised 6-18 

4) Obtained from a source other than the disclosing party without an obligation of 
confidentiality; or, 

5) Publicly available when received, or thereafter became publicly available (other than 
through any unauthorized disclosure by, through, or on behalf of, the receiving 
party). 

 
For purposes of this Agreement, in all cases and for all matters, State Data is deemed to 
be Confidential Information. 

 
b. Obligation of Confidentiality.  The parties agree to hold all Confidential Information in 

strict confidence and not to copy, reproduce, sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of, give 
or disclose such Confidential Information to third parties other than employees, agents, 
or subcontractors of a party who have a need to know in connection with this 
Agreement or to use such Confidential Information for any purposes whatsoever other 
than the performance of this Agreement.  The parties agree to advise and require their 
respective employees, agents, and subcontractors of their obligations to keep all 
Confidential Information confidential.  Disclosure to a subcontractor is permissible 
where: 
1) Use of a subcontractor is authorized under this Agreement; 
2) The disclosure is necessary or otherwise naturally occurs in connection with work 

that is within the subcontractor's responsibilities; and 
3) Charter Township of Ypsilanti obligates the subcontractor in a written contract to 

maintain MDHHS's Confidential Information in confidence. 
 

At MDHHS's request, any employee of Charter Township of Ypsilanti or any 
subcontractor may be required to execute a separate agreement to be bound by the 
provisions of this Section. 

 
c. Cooperation to Prevent Disclosure of Confidential Information.  Each party must use its 

best efforts to assist the other party in identifying and preventing any unauthorized use 
or disclosure of any Confidential Information.  Without limiting the foregoing, each 
party must advise the other party immediately in the event either party learns or has 
reason to believe that any person who has had access to Confidential Information has 
violated or intends to violate the terms of this Agreement and each party will cooperate 
with the other party in seeking injunctive or other equitable relief against any such 
person. 

 
d. Remedies for Breach of Obligation of Confidentiality.  Each party acknowledges that 

breach of its obligation of confidentiality may give rise to irreparable injury to the other 
party, which damage may be inadequately compensable in the form of monetary 
damages.  Accordingly, a party may seek and obtain injunctive relief against the breach 



Revenue Agreement Number: REV23-99256 
 
 

PAGE 7 of 11 
Revised 6-18 

or threatened breach of the foregoing undertakings, in addition to any other legal 
remedies which may be available, to include, in the case of MDHHS, at the sole election 
of MDHHS, the immediate termination, without liability to MDHHS, of this Agreement or 
any Statement of Work corresponding to the breach or threatened breach. 

 
e. Surrender of Confidential Information upon Termination.  Upon termination of this 

Agreement or a Statement of Work, in whole or in part, each party must, within five 
calendar days from the date of termination, return to the other party any and all 
Confidential Information received from the other party, or created or received by a 
party on behalf of the other party, which are in such party’s possession, custody, or 
control; provided, however, that Charter Township of Ypsilanti must return State Data 
to MDHHS following the timeframe and procedure described further in this Agreement.  
Should Charter Township of Ypsilanti or MDHHS determine that the return of any 
Confidential Information is not feasible, such party must destroy the Confidential 
Information and must certify the same in writing within five calendar days from the date 
of termination to the other party.  However, MDHHS’s legal ability to destroy Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti data may be restricted by its retention and disposal schedule, in 
which case Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s Confidential Information will be destroyed 
after the retention period expires. 

 
7.7 Records, Maintenance, Inspection, Examination, and Audit 
 
MDHHS or its designee may audit Charter Township of Ypsilanti to verify compliance with this 
Agreement.  Charter Township of Ypsilanti must retain, and provide to MDHHS or its designee 
and the auditor general upon request, all financial and accounting records related to this 
Agreement through the term of this Agreement and for four years after the latter of 
termination, expiration, or final payment under this Agreement or any extension (“Audit 
Period”).  If an audit, litigation, or other action involving the records is initiated before the end 
of the Audit Period, Charter Township of Ypsilanti must retain the records until all issues are 
resolved. 
 
Within 10 calendar days of providing notice, MDHHS and its authorized representatives or 
designees have the right to enter and inspect Charter Township of Ypsilanti premises, and 
examine, copy, and audit all records related to this Agreement.  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
must cooperate and provide reasonable assistance.  If any financial errors are revealed, the 
amount in error must be reflected as a credit or debit on subsequent invoices until the amount 
is paid or refunded.  Any remaining balance at the end of this Agreement must be paid or 
refunded within 45 calendar days. 
 



Revenue Agreement Number: REV23-99256 
 
 

PAGE 8 of 11 
Revised 6-18 

This Section applies to Charter Township of Ypsilanti, any parent, affiliate, or subsidiary 
organization of Charter Township of Ypsilanti, and any subcontractor that performs Agreement 
Activities in connection with this Agreement. 
 
7.8 Conflicts and Ethics 
 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti will uphold high ethical standards and is prohibited from: 
 

a. Holding or acquiring an interest that would conflict with this Agreement; 
b. Doing anything that creates an appearance of impropriety with respect to the award or 

performance of this Agreement; 
c. Attempting to influence or appearing to influence any State employee by the direct or 

indirect offer of anything of value; or 
d. Paying or agreeing to pay any person, other than employees and consultants working 

for Charter Township of Ypsilanti, any consideration contingent upon the award of this 
Agreement. 

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti must immediately notify MDHHS of any violation or potential 
violation of these standards.  This Section applies to Charter Township of Ypsilanti, any parent, 
affiliate, or subsidiary organization of Charter Township of Ypsilanti, and any subcontractor that 
performs Agreement Activities in connection with this Agreement. 
 
7.9 Compliance with Laws 
 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti must comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and 
regulations. 
 
7.10 Governing Law 
 
This Agreement is governed, construed, and enforced in accordance with Michigan law, 
excluding choice-of-law principles, and all claims relating to or arising out of this Agreement are 
governed by Michigan law, excluding choice-of-law principles.  Any dispute arising from this 
Agreement must be resolved in Michigan Court of Claims.  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
consents to venue in Ingham County, and waives any objections, such as lack of personal 
jurisdiction or forum non conveniens.  Charter Township of Ypsilanti must appoint agents in 
Michigan to receive service of process. 
 
7.11 Non-Exclusivity 
 
Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended nor will be construed as creating any 
requirements contract with Charter Township of Ypsilanti. 



Revenue Agreement Number: REV23-99256 
 
 

PAGE 9 of 11 
Revised 6-18 

 
7.12 Force Majeure 
 
Neither party will be in breach of this Agreement because of any failure arising from any 
disaster or acts of god that are beyond their control and without their fault or negligence.  Each 
party will use commercially reasonable efforts to resume performance.  Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti will not be relieved of a breach or delay caused by its subcontractors.  If immediate 
performance is necessary to ensure public health and safety, MDHHS may immediately contract 
with a third party. 
 
7.13 Dispute Resolution 
 
The parties will endeavor to resolve any Agreement dispute in accordance with this provision.  
The parties must submit the dispute to a senior executive if unable to resolve the dispute within 
15 business days.  The parties will continue performing while a dispute is being resolved, unless 
the dispute precludes performance.  A dispute involving payment does not preclude 
performance.  
 
Litigation to resolve the dispute will not be instituted until after the dispute has been elevated 
to the parties’ senior executive and either concludes that resolution is unlikely, or fails to 
respond within 15 business days.  The parties are not prohibited from instituting formal 
proceedings: (a) to avoid the expiration of statute of limitations period; (b) to preserve a 
superior position with respect to creditors; or (c) where a party makes a determination that a 
temporary restraining order or other injunctive relief is the only adequate remedy.  This Section 
does not limit MDHHS’s right to terminate this Agreement. 
 
7.14 Severability 
 
If any part of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, that part will be deemed deleted from this Agreement and the severed part will be 
replaced by agreed upon language that achieves the same or similar objectives.  The remaining 
Agreement will continue in full force and effect. 
 
7.15 Waiver 
 
Failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver. 
 
 
 
 
 



Revenue Agreement Number: REV23-99256 
 
 

PAGE 10 of 11 
Revised 6-18 

7.16 Survival 
 
The provisions of this Agreement that impose continuing obligations, including warranties and 
representations, termination, transition, insurance coverage, indemnification, and 
confidentiality, will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 
7.17 Entire Agreement 
 
This Agreement is the entire agreement of the parties related to the Agreement Activities.  This 
Agreement supersedes and replaces all previous understandings and agreements between the 
parties for the Agreement Activities. 
 
7.18 Agreement Modification 
 
This Agreement may not be amended except by signed agreement between the parties.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no subsequent Statement of Work or amendment executed 
after the effective date will be construed to amend this Agreement unless it specifically states 
its intent to do so and cites the section or sections amended. 
 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti shall, upon request of MDHHS and receipt of a proposed 
amendment, amend this Agreement, if and when required in the opinion of MDHHS, due to the 
revision of federal or state laws or regulations. 
 
7.19 Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
 
To the extent that this act is pertinent to the services provided by the parties under this 
Agreement, each party assures that it is in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA) requirements including the following: 
 

a. None of the parties will share any protected health data and information provided by 
the other parties that falls within HIPAA requirements except to a subcontractor as 
appropriate under this Agreement. 

b. If one of the parties enters into a subcontractual relationship, it must require the 
subcontractor not to share any protected health data and information covered by this 
Agreement that falls under HIPAA requirements in the terms and conditions of the 
subcontract. 

c. All parties must only use the protected health data and information for the purposes of 
this Agreement. 

d. All parties must have written policies and procedures addressing the use of protected 
health data and information that falls under the HIPAA requirements.  The policies and 
procedures must meet all applicable federal and state requirements including the HIPAA 



Revenue Agreement Number: REV23-99256 
 
 

PAGE 11 of 11 
Revised 6-18 

regulations.  These policies and procedures must include restricting access to the 
protected health data and information by their employees. 

e. All parties must have a policy and procedure to report the unauthorized use or 
disclosure of protected health data and information that falls under the HIPAA 
requirements of which it becomes aware. 

f. Failure to comply with any of these contractual requirements may result in the 
termination of this Agreement. 

g. In accordance with HIPAA requirements, any party negligent in carrying out its 
responsibilities is liable for any claim, loss or damage relating to unauthorized use or 
disclosure of protected health data and information covered by this Agreement. 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Michael Saranen, Operation Manager 
 
Date:  April 13, 2023 
 
Subject: Reject Proposals and Rebid Project for Hydro Station 
 
At the April 4th Board meeting, the Board approved going out to bid on a Hydro Station project 
that included concrete repairs and inspection of the sluice gates. 
 
On June 1st, the Township held bid opening for the project, we received 3 proposals for the scope 
of work. 
 

 Mid-American Group $ 1,540,324.00 
 Ballard   $ 1,950,000.00 
 Brennan  $ 2,430,000.00 

 
During the review period of the proposals, the project timeline is longer than anticipated and cost 
came in higher than expected. Additional accommodation for DTE has potential negative impact 
to the project’s timeline that could extend into the winter. 
 
Based on the review, it is the recommendation to reject all proposals and rebid the project in 
January for an early spring project. 
 
Please place this on the June 20th Broad Agenda under “Old Business”. 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  John Hines, Recreation Director 
 
Date:  June 14, 2023 
 
RE: Request Authorization to approve OHM Advisors to provide professional 

services related to the preliminary engineering, design and bidding for the 
Ypsilanti Township ARPA Civic Center Pond Renovation. 

 
At the May 23,2023 special Board Meeting, the BOT approved resolution 2023-07, which 
designated ARPA funds to various needed projects for the township.  
 
The Residential Services Department is looking for authorization to approve OHM Advisors to 
provide professional services related to the preliminary engineering, design and bidding for 
Project #14: Civic Center Pond Lining for $51,750, which is budgeted in   GL#282-901-981.030  
 
The project entails dredging the existing Civic Center Pond while increasing its depth to improve 
water quality overall. In 2019 OHM, requested G2 Consulting complete a geotechnical 
exploration and provide soil information in their geotechnical report. This report will be 
instrumental in guiding our design decisions and ensuring the project's success.   
 
OHM noted the Township's desire for specific improvements and features, which include: 

  Creating a 20-foot wide embankment along the building for lawn mowing. 
  Configuring fountains to enhance aesthetics and water circulation. 
  Design ad alter geometry to provide easier access to the proposed fountain locations. 
  Installing a valve at the pond's outlet for improved pond management. 
  Stabilizing pond banks with natural stone for soil, sediment, and erosion control. 
  Waterproofing the building wall adjacent to the pond. 
  Providing a bentonite seal for enhanced water impermeability and detention. 
  Placing quality topsoil to promote vegetation growth and enhance the pond perimeter    

landscape 
 

OHM’s proposal is to help with three (3) tasks in relation to the project: 
Task 1: Preliminary Engineering Design Plans 
Task 2: Final Design Plans 
Task 3: Final Bidding Package (Reviewed by Township Attorney) 
Task 3: Recommendation of Award Letter 



 
 
 

OHM Advisors® 
34000 PLYMOUTH ROAD 
LIVONIA, MICHIGAN 48150 

T 734.522.6711 
F 734.522.6427 OHM-Advisors.com 

  

June 14, 2023 
 
 
Ms. Brenda Stumbo 
Township Supervisor 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
RE: Proposal for Civic Center Pond Renovation 
 Professional Engineering Design Services 
 
Dear Ms. Stumbo: 
 
We are pleased to submit this proposal for professional engineering design services for renovation of the existing 
pond located adjacent to the Township Civic Center. Our team has extensive experience in engineering design, 
specifically with pond and shoreline restoration. We are dedicated to delivering a high-quality design that meet the 
Township’s needs and specifications. 
 
This proposal provides key personnel and project manager contact information as well as project understanding, 
deliverables, schedule, and fee estimation.  
 
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 
We have carefully reviewed the project requirements and have a comprehensive understanding of your goals and 
objectives. The project entails dredging the existing Civic Center Pond while increasing its depth to improve water 
quality overall. We would like to highlight that we had requested a geotechnical exploration be done in 2019 by G2 
Consulting and have soils information provided in their geotechnical report.  Those results are attached.  This report 
will be instrumental in guiding our design decisions and ensuring the project's success. 
 
We have noted the Township's desire for specific improvements and features, which include: 
 

 Creating a 20-foot wide embankment along the building for lawn mowing. 
 Configuring fountains to enhance aesthetics and water circulation. 
 Design ad alter geometry to provide easier access to the proposed fountain locations. 
 Installing a valve at the pond's outlet for improved pond management. 
 Stabilizing pond banks with natural stone for soil, sediment, and erosion control. 
 Waterproofing the building wall adjacent to the pond. 
 Providing a bentonite seal for enhanced water impermeability and detention. 
 Placing quality topsoil to promote vegetation growth and enhance the pound perimeter landscape. 

 
SCOPE 
 
Task 1 – Preliminary Engineering Drawing Design 
The data gathered from the G2 2019 Geotechnical Report, along with the conceptual 2019 vision and 
communication with the Township, will allow OHM to create a set of design drawings with aerial overlay.   It should 



Ms. Stumbo – Civic Center Pond Renovation Design Proposal 
June 14, 2023  
Page 2 of 4 
 

OHM Advisors® 
34000 PLYMOUTH ROAD 
LIVONIA, MICHIGAN 48150 

T 734.522.6711 
F 734.522.6427 OHM-Advisors.com 

 
 

be noted that a survey of the pond is recommended due to the ongoing erosion and the change in pond size as well 
as the desired modifications to the pond volume and shape.  This will include a survey of the perimeter of the pond 
and spot elevations within the pond.  OHM may use drone technology to survey the area above the water.  These 
drawings will be further developed to illustrate the pond renovation work. Any notes and details necessary for 
specific design elements will be included along with cross-sections and detail of grading changes and embankment. 
These documents will serve as the plans for the project and allow contractors to understand the overall scope of 
work. In addition, these documents will also be reviewed with the Township personnel assigned to this project to 
obtain feedback. A review meeting will be held and any plan modifications discussed at the meeting will be 
incorporated into the drawings for the final bid package.  The Township will again have an opportunity to review 
the plans prior to bidding.   
 
Task 2 – Specifications and Final Bid Package Assembly 
In developing the specifications, OHM will follow the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Engineering Standards and 
Design Specifications. These specifications will pertain to specific items such as special instructions to bidders, 
supplemental and technical specifications, and a method of payment for the contractor to follow. The bid package 
will include the bonding requirements, prevailing wage information, insurance requirements, a bid form and technical 
specifications. After completion of the design/specification assembly, the Township will be provided with two hard 
copies of the Bid Package for review along with an updated final engineer’s opinion of probable cost. Final 
adjustments to the Bid Package will be made based on the Township comments prior to advertising and bidding. 
 
Task 3 – Bidding 
The final Bid Package will be provided to the Township to be posted on BidNet (Through the Township’s Clerk’s 
Office). OHM will assist with the bid process and conduct a bid opening. OHM can hold an onsite pre-bid 
conference with potential bidders, if requested by the Township. OHM will address any questions and/or any 
Requests for Information (RFIs) received by the bidding contractors during the bid phase. OHM will hold a bid 
opening at the Township on the date specified in the bid documents. Bids will be received, read aloud, collected, 
tabulated, and reviewed. A letter of recommendation will be provided to the Township based on price, references, 
and other criteria outlined in the bid documents. During this task, OHM will arrange for the SESC Permit review 
and prepare the permit for pickup by the awarded contractor. 
 
DELIVERABLES 
 
Task Deliverable 
Task 1 Preliminary Engineering Design Plans 
Task 2 Final Design Plans  
Task 3 Final Bidding Package (Reviewed by Township Attorney) 
Task 3 Recommendation of Award Letter 

 
It’s anticipated that the design project will be awarded in July with final plans completed by August 15th, 2023.  
Construction plans will then be started once the concept is approved by the Township.  Final bidding will be 
coordinated with the bidding months of October but give the contractor option to build in either Fall or Winter of 
2023 or Spring 2024.   
 
KEY PERSONNEL 
This project team has been specifically selected to best meet the technical aspects of the design and facilitate 
coordination with the Township. G2 Consulting Group will offer geotechnical services if deemed necessary. 
Below is a list of key personnel and their roles on this project. 
 
 
 



Ms. Stumbo – Civic Center Pond Renovation Design Proposal 
June 14, 2023  
Page 3 of 4 
 

OHM Advisors® 
34000 PLYMOUTH ROAD 
LIVONIA, MICHIGAN 48150 

T 734.522.6711 
F 734.522.6427 OHM-Advisors.com 

 
 

Project Team Members Role on Project Specific Duties 
Matthew Parks, PE Project Manager 

 
Management & Public Liaison  

Stacie Monte / MC Moritz Design Engineer 
 

Design Development, CAD 
Processing and Permits  

Matt Byrne, PE Lead Design Engineer Design Development and Water 
Resources Engineer 

Ron Cavallaro, PE Streambank Specialist, QA/QC 
Reviewer 

QA/QC Review and Permit 
Review 

G2 Consulting, Inc Geotechnical Engineer Report and Final Document 
Review, Geotechnical Support 

 
ASSUMPTIONS/CLARIFICATIONS 
 

 The Township will provide old plans or information they have on the pond, fountain and power supply 
for the fountain.  Also, it is assumed that the adjacent land can be used for staging and set up area, 
including area needed for dewatering and hauling away spoils.   

 This proposal includes no work to the interior of the Township Civic Center.  All work is assumed to be 
from the exterior of the building, adjacent to the pond area only.   

 Dewatering outlet will utilize the existing Township Storm System and pipe sizing and redesign of the 
outlet control is not included in the design.  Flow rates, in/out of the pond are not proposed to change.    

 The only permit assumed to be required is assumed to be an SESC permit though the Township.  
Additional permits or the need for an EGLE permit is not included in the scope.     

 No construction phase services are included in the proposal.  The Township can inspect and administer 
this project with their staff or OHM can submit a proposal under separate cover for consideration upon 
request.  In general, small projects like this require approximately 12-15% of the overall construction cost 
to administer construction services.  This can change based on the level of service provided. 

 Any meetings in addition to the meetings outlined in the above scope or tasks not included in the scope of 
services can be requested and performed on an hourly basis.  Time spent for these meetings will be 
charged on an hourly basis. 

  
FEE 
 
OHM Advisors will invoice the Charter Township of Ypsilanti for the above stated services on an hourly not-to-
exceed basis, in accordance with our 2023 Rate Schedule. Invoices will be sent monthly as work is performed.  
 
Design Tasks      Design Fee 
Task 1 – Survey and Engineering Design Plans  $25,500.00 
 (Includes $2,500 of additional G2 Support) 
Task 2 – Final Bid Package and Final Plans  $19,500.00 
Task 3 – Bidding and Permits    $6,750.00 
Total       $51,750.00 
 
The total fee is estimated to be $51,750.00.  Additional services can be provided on a time and material basis, as 
requested. 
 
ACCEPTANCE 
If this proposal is acceptable to you, a signature on the enclosed copy of this letter and initials on the contract 
terms and conditions will serve as our authorization to proceed.  This proposal by reference, uses OHM Advisors 
Standard Terms and Conditions that have also been used on past proposals with the Township.   



Ms. Stumbo – Civic Center Pond Renovation Design Proposal 
June 14, 2023  
Page 4 of 4 
 

OHM Advisors® 
34000 PLYMOUTH ROAD 
LIVONIA, MICHIGAN 48150 

T 734.522.6711 
F 734.522.6427 OHM-Advisors.com 

 
 

 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to present this proposal to you.  We look forward to working with you 
throughout this project. 
 
OHM ADVISORS   Charter Township of Ypsilanti   
CONSULTANT   CLIENT  
 
 
  (Signature)       
 
Matthew D. Parks, P.E.  (Name) Ms. Brenda Stumbo    
 
Principal in Charge  (Title) Township Supervisor    
 
  (Date)       
 
 
                (Signature)       
 

             (Name)  Ms. Heather Jarrel Roe    
 
                   (Title)  Township Clerk     
 

              (Date)        
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

July 9, 2019 

 

Mr. Matt Parks, P.E. 

Principal 

OHM Advisors 

34000 Plymouth Rd 

Livonia, Michigan 48150 

 

RE: Letter on Geotechnical Investigation 

 Ypsilanti Township Offices Pond  

 7200 S Huron River Drive 

 Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197 

 G2 Project No. 193268 

 

Dear Mr. Parks: 

 

Per our agreement, we have performed a geotechnical investigation at the above-referenced site.  This 

letter summarizes our findings and recommendations. We understand that water from the pond adjacent 

to the township building is has been leaking into the building.  As a result, it is desired to reduce of the 

footprint of the bond and deepen it.  The project includes backfilling a portion of the pond on the north 

side of the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center, and deepening the remaining portion of the pond to 

approximately 10 to 12 feet below the pond surface elevation. Soil borings B-1 through B-6 are roughly 

equally spaced around the pond, about 10 to 15 feet from the water’s edge. The surface elevation of the 

borings are approximately 2 feet above the water surface elevation. A topographic survey of the site was 

not available at the time of this report. The soil boring logs are given in Figures 1 through 6. Elevations 

and coordinates are approximated using Google Earth. 

 

Soil and Groundwater Conditions 

 

Soil conditions within soil borings B-1 though B-6 consist of 2 to 10 inches of silty clay topsoil.  Loose 

silty sand fill underlies the topsoil in soil boring B-2 and extends to a depth of 1 foot, and in B-4 to a 

depth of 3 feet.  Cohesive soils consisting of medium to hard sandy clay and silty clay with occasional 

sand seams generally extend to depths ranging from 16 to 19-1/2 feet in in soil borings B-2 through B-6. 

However, in soil boring B-1, a granular layer of medium compact silty sand underlies the silty clay from 

13 to 15 feet. Medium compact to compact gray silt extends the end of each boring at 20 feet, 

underlying the granular soil in boring B-1 from 15 feet, and underlying the cohesive soils in borings B-2 

through B-6 from 16 to 19-1/2 feet. 

 

Groundwater was encountered at depths ranging from 16-1/2 feet to 19-1/2 during drilling operations in 

borings B-1, B-2, and B-3. Groundwater was also encountered in wet seams in borings B-2 and B-3 

between 6-1/2 and 19-1/2 feet. Upon completion of drilling, the groundwater was measured at depths 

ranging from 16 to 17 feet in borings B-1 and B-2, and boring B-3 was dry.  Fluctuations in perched and 

long-term groundwater levels should be anticipated due to seasonal variations and following periods of 

prolonged precipitation.  It should be noted that groundwater observations made during drilling 

operations in predominantly cohesive soils are not necessarily indicative of static groundwater levels.  

This is due to the low permeability of such soils and the tendency of the drilling operations to seal of 

natural paths of groundwater flow.  

 



June 28, 2019  

G2 Project No. 193268 

Page 2 

 

Site Preparation Recommendations 

 

Earthwork operations are expected to consist of draining the pond, excavating to the desired depth of 

approximately 10 to 12 feet below the pond surface elevation, and backfilling a portion of the pond using 

the native silty clay soils as engineered fill.  We recommend all earthwork operations be performed in 

accordance with comprehensive specifications and be properly monitored in the field by qualified 

geotechnical engineers and technicians. 

 

We anticipate the native silty clay observed within the borings will be suitable for re-use as a clay 

berm/dike adjacent to the building.   However, the native silty clay has moisture contents ranging from 

13 to 23 percent.  It is anticipated the optimum moisture content of these soils for use as engineered fill 

will be in the range of 10 to 13 percent.  Therefore, moisture conditioning (drying) of these soils that 

exceed the optimum moisture content by more than 3 percent will be necessary to facilitate compaction 

of the existing cohesive soils.  The cohesive soils can be disked and left to dry in the sun prior to 

compaction operations.  This will require a period of warm, dry weather to reduce the moisture content of 

the cohesive soils.  Please note the granular fill soil, native granular soils, and silt soils are not suitable 

for re-use construction of the berm/dike adjacent to the building. 

 

Engineered fill placed within the site should consist of an approved, environmentally clean material.  

Engineered fill should be free of organic matter, frozen soil, clods, or other harmful substances.  The fill 

should be placed in uniform horizontal layers, not more than 9 inches in loose thickness.  The 

engineered fill should be compacted to achieve a density of at least 95 percent of the maximum dry 

density, as determined by the Modified Proctor compaction test (ASTM D 1557).  For cohesive engineered 

fill material, we recommend placing and compacting the material within 1 percent below or 3 percent 

above optimum moisture content.  Frozen material should not be used as fill, nor should fill be placed on 

a frozen subgrade.   

 

Granular sand seams and layers were observed within the clay near the anticipated pond bottom depths. 

Due to the presence sand seams and a sand layer near the proposed bottom of pond elevation, G2 

recommends the use of an impermeable liner to prevent infiltration of water from the pond.  In addition, 

we recommend that the soils immediately adjacent to the below-grade portion of the building be 

backfilled with granular fill and foundation drain be installed to maintain drained conditions against the 

below-grade wall. Water-proofing of the below-grade wall should also be performed. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to OHM Advisors, and thank you for the opportunity to 

work with you on this project.  If you have any questions regarding this letter or any other matter 

pertaining to the project, please do not hesitate to call.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

G2 Consulting Group, LLC 

   

Ryan Carpus       Jason B. Stoops, P.E. 

Staff Engineer       Project Manager / Associate 

       

RPC/JBS/jbs 

 

Encl: Soil Boring Location Plan 

 Soil Boring Logs B-1 through B-6 

 General Notes 

  



Scale: NTS

 Date:07-02-2019

 Drawn by: RPC

 Project No. 193268

Plate
 No. 1

Ypsilanti Township Offices Pond
7200 S Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197

Soil borings performed by Strata Drilling, LLC
on July 2, 2019



S-1

S-2

S-3

S-4

S-5

S-6

S-7

2
3
4

6
7
8

9
11
13

6
12
14

6
7
9

11
13
15

10
16
18

7

15

24

26

16

28

34

13.3

19.6

18.4

19.0

22.6

3000*

5000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

0.6

3.0

5.5

13.0

15.0

20.0

Topsoil: Brown Silty Clay
with trace sand (7 inches)

Stiff Brown Sandy Clay with trace
gravel

Very Stiff Brown and Gray Mottled Silty
Clay,

occasional sand seams

Hard Brown Silty Clay with trace sand
and gravel

Medium Compact Brown and Gray Silty
Sand with trace sand

Compact Gray Silt with trace sand

End of Boring @ 20 ft

SAMPLE
TYPE-NO.

BLOWS/
6-INCHES

STD. PEN.
RESISTANCE

(N)

MOISTURE
CONTENT

(%)

DRY
DENSITY

(PCF)

UNCONF.
COMP. STR.

(PSF)

SOIL SAMPLE DATA

SO
IL

 /
 P

A
V

EM
EN

T
 B

O
R

IN
G

  
1

9
3

2
6

8
.G

PJ
  

2
0

1
5

0
1

1
6

 G
2

 C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 D

A
T

A
 T

EM
PL

A
T

E.
G

D
T

  
7

/1
1

/1
9

Soil Boring No.  B-1

SUBSURFACE PROFILE

Figure No. 1

Water Level Observation:
17-1/2 feet during drilling operations, 17 feet upon
completion of drilling operations

Notes:
* Calibrated Hand Penetrometer

Excavation Backfilling Procedure:
Boring backfilled with auger cuttings

PRO-
FILE

DEPTH
( ft)

5

10

15

20

25

G2 Project No. 193268

Project Name:

Project Location:

Proposed Ypsilanti Township Offices Pond
Improvements
7200 S Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, Michigan

GROUND SURFACE ELEVATION:  744.0  ft ±

Total Depth:
Drilling Date:
Inspector:
Contractor:
Driller:

Drilling Method:
   2-1/4 inch inside diameter hollow-stem augers

20 ft
July 2, 2019

Strata Drilling, Inc.
D. Watkins

ELEV.
( ft)

739.0

734.0

729.0

724.0

719.0

Latitude: 42.212760 Longitude: -83.614864



S-1

S-2

S-3

S-4

S-5

S-6

S-7

4
3
5

3
3
4

3
5
6

7
12
14

6
8
9

7
9
11

9
11
16

8

7

11

26

17

20

27

19.3

20.6

19.2

19.7

20.5

20.9

9000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

7000*

0.2

1.0

9.0

16.0

20.0

Topsoil: Brown Silty Clay
with trace sand (2 inches)

FIll: Brown Silty Sand

Hard Brown and Gray Mottled Silty
Clay with trace sand and gravel,

occasional sand seams

Very Stiff to Hard Brown Silty Clay with
trace sand,

occasional sand and silt seams

Medium Compact Gray Silt with trace
sand

End of Boring @ 20 ft

SAMPLE
TYPE-NO.

BLOWS/
6-INCHES

STD. PEN.
RESISTANCE

(N)

MOISTURE
CONTENT

(%)

DRY
DENSITY

(PCF)

UNCONF.
COMP. STR.

(PSF)

SOIL SAMPLE DATA

SO
IL

 /
 P

A
V

EM
EN

T
 B

O
R

IN
G

  
1

9
3

2
6

8
.G

PJ
  

2
0

1
5

0
1

1
6

 G
2

 C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 D

A
T

A
 T

EM
PL

A
T

E.
G

D
T

  
7

/1
1

/1
9

Soil Boring No.  B-2

SUBSURFACE PROFILE

Figure No. 2

Water Level Observation:
16-1/2 feet during drilling operations, 16 feet upon
completion of drilling operations. Water also
encountered  at wet seams between 9 and 16 feet.

Notes:
* Calibrated Hand Penetrometer

Excavation Backfilling Procedure:
Boring backfilled with auger cuttings

PRO-
FILE

DEPTH
( ft)

5

10

15

20

25

G2 Project No. 193268

Project Name:

Project Location:

Proposed Ypsilanti Township Offices Pond
Improvements
7200 S Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, Michigan

GROUND SURFACE ELEVATION:  745.0  ft ±

Total Depth:
Drilling Date:
Inspector:
Contractor:
Driller:

Drilling Method:
   2-1/4 inch inside diameter hollow-stem augers

20 ft
July 2, 2019

Strata Drilling, Inc.
D. Watkins

ELEV.
( ft)

740.0

735.0

730.0

725.0

720.0

Latitude: 42.213275 Longitude: -83.614762



S-1

S-2

S-3

S-4

S-5

S-6

S-7

S-8

4
5
6

7
10
11

9
11
13

7
11
14

7
7
10

10
13
14

9
14
15

11

21

24

25

17

27

29

17.1

19.3

18.5

18.0

17.4

21.1

23.2

9000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

5000*

1000*

5000*

0.8

6.5

11.0

13.0

15.0

19.5

20.0

Topsoil: Brown Silty Clay
with trace sand (10 inches)

Hard Brown and Gray Mottled Silty
Clay with trace sand,

occasional sand seams

Hard Brown and Gray Mottled Silty
Clay with trace sand and gravel,

occasional sand seams

Very Stiff Brown and Gray Mottled Silty
Clay with trace sand and gravel,

occasional sand seams

Medium Brown and Gray Mottled Silty
Clay with trace sand and gravel,

occasional sand seams

Very Stiff Brown and Gray Mottled Silty
Clay with trace sand and gravel

Gray Silt

End of Boring @ 20 ft

SAMPLE
TYPE-NO.

BLOWS/
6-INCHES

STD. PEN.
RESISTANCE

(N)

MOISTURE
CONTENT

(%)

DRY
DENSITY

(PCF)

UNCONF.
COMP. STR.

(PSF)

SOIL SAMPLE DATA

SO
IL

 /
 P

A
V

EM
EN

T
 B

O
R

IN
G

  
1

9
3

2
6

8
.G

PJ
  

2
0

1
5

0
1

1
6

 G
2

 C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 D

A
T

A
 T

EM
PL

A
T

E.
G

D
T

  
7

/1
1

/1
9

Soil Boring No.  B-3

SUBSURFACE PROFILE

Figure No. 3

Water Level Observation:
19-1/2 feet during drilling operations, Dry upon
completion of drilling operations. Water also
encountered  at wet seams between 6-1/2 and 19-1/2
feet.

Notes:
* Calibrated Hand Penetrometer

Excavation Backfilling Procedure:
Boring backfilled with auger cuttings

PRO-
FILE

DEPTH
( ft)

5

10

15

20

25

G2 Project No. 193268

Project Name:

Project Location:

Proposed Ypsilanti Township Offices Pond
Improvements
7200 S Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, Michigan

GROUND SURFACE ELEVATION:  745.0  ft ±

Total Depth:
Drilling Date:
Inspector:
Contractor:
Driller:

Drilling Method:
   2-1/4 inch inside diameter hollow-stem augers

20 ft
July 2, 2019

Strata Drilling, Inc.
D. Watkins

ELEV.
( ft)

740.0

735.0

730.0

725.0

720.0

Latitude: 42.213529 Longitude: -83.614289



S-1

S-2

S-3

S-4

S-5

S-6

S-7

3
4
4

5
6
6

6
7
7

7
8
10

8
10
12

10
13
15

11
16
19

8

12

14

18

22

28

35

20.8

17.2

18.8

17.0

15.9

9000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

0.8

3.0

7.5

13.0

17.0

20.0

Topsoil: Brown Silty Clay
with trace sand (10 inches)

FILL: Loose Brown Silty Sand

Hard Brown and Gray mottled Silty
Clay with trace sand and gravel

Hard Brown SIlty Clay with trace sand

Hard Grayish Brown Silty Clay with
trace sand

Compact Gray SIlt with trace sand

End of Boring @ 20 ft

SAMPLE
TYPE-NO.

BLOWS/
6-INCHES

STD. PEN.
RESISTANCE

(N)

MOISTURE
CONTENT

(%)

DRY
DENSITY

(PCF)

UNCONF.
COMP. STR.

(PSF)

SOIL SAMPLE DATA

SO
IL

 /
 P

A
V

EM
EN

T
 B

O
R

IN
G

  
1

9
3

2
6

8
.G

PJ
  

2
0

1
5

0
1

1
6

 G
2

 C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 D

A
T

A
 T

EM
PL

A
T

E.
G

D
T

  
7

/1
1

/1
9

Soil Boring No.  B-4

SUBSURFACE PROFILE

Figure No. 4

Notes:
* Calibrated Hand Penetrometer

Excavation Backfilling Procedure:
Boring backfilled with auger cuttings

PRO-
FILE

DEPTH
( ft)

5

10

15

20

25

G2 Project No. 193268

Project Name:

Project Location:

Proposed Ypsilanti Township Offices Pond
Improvements
7200 S Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, Michigan

GROUND SURFACE ELEVATION:  745.0  ft ±

Total Depth:
Drilling Date:
Inspector:
Contractor:
Driller:

Drilling Method:
   2-1/4 inch inside diameter hollow-stem augers

20 ft
July 2, 2019

Strata Drilling, Inc.
D. Watkins

ELEV.
( ft)

740.0

735.0

730.0

725.0

720.0

Latitude: 42.213326 Longitude: -83.613713



S-1

S-2

S-3

S-4

S-5

S-6

S-7

S-8

3
3
5

5
7
10

6
9
11

1
12
14

8
8
10

8
12
14

9
14
21

8

17

20

26

18

26

35

17.4

18.6

18.4

19.7

16.9

15.4

19.5

9000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

0.8

6.0

11.0

14.0

19.5

20.0

Topsoil: Brown Silty Clay
with trace sand (9 inches)

Hard Brown and Gray Mottled SIlty
Clay  with trace sand and gravel

Hard Brown Silty Clay with trace sand

Hard Brown SIlty Clay with trace sand

Hard Gray Silty Clay with trace sand

Gray Silt with trace sand

End of Boring @ 20 ft

SAMPLE
TYPE-NO.

BLOWS/
6-INCHES

STD. PEN.
RESISTANCE

(N)

MOISTURE
CONTENT

(%)

DRY
DENSITY

(PCF)

UNCONF.
COMP. STR.

(PSF)

SOIL SAMPLE DATA

SO
IL

 /
 P

A
V

EM
EN

T
 B

O
R

IN
G

  
1

9
3

2
6

8
.G

PJ
  

2
0

1
5

0
1

1
6

 G
2

 C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 D

A
T

A
 T

EM
PL

A
T

E.
G

D
T

  
7

/1
1

/1
9

Soil Boring No.  B-5

SUBSURFACE PROFILE

Figure No. 5

Notes:
* Calibrated Hand Penetrometer

Excavation Backfilling Procedure:
Boring backfilled with auger cuttings

PRO-
FILE

DEPTH
( ft)

5

10

15

20

25

G2 Project No. 193268

Project Name:

Project Location:

Proposed Ypsilanti Township Offices Pond
Improvements
7200 S Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, Michigan

GROUND SURFACE ELEVATION:  745.0  ft ±

Total Depth:
Drilling Date:
Inspector:
Contractor:
Driller:

Drilling Method:
   2-1/4 inch inside diameter hollow-stem augers

20 ft
July 2, 2019

Strata Drilling, Inc.
D. Watkins

ELEV.
( ft)

740.0

735.0

730.0

725.0

720.0

Latitude: 42.212881 Longitude: -83.613731



S-1

S-2

S-3

S-4

S-5

S-6

S-7

3
5
6

6
6
8

7
9
9

11
13
15

10
10
13

9
10
12

10
14
16

11

14

18

28

23

22

30

18.0

19.3

19.4

18.0

20.2

16.6

20.1

9000*

9000*

6000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

9000*

0.8

6.0

11.5

18.5

20.0

Topsoil: Brown Silty Clay
with trace sand (10 inches)

Hard Brown and Gray Mottled Silty
Clay with trace sand and gravel, and

few roots

Very Stiff to Hard Brown Silty Clay with
trace sand

Hard Gray Silty Clay with trace sand,
occasional sand seams

Medium Compact Gray Silt with trace
sand

End of Boring @ 20 ft

SAMPLE
TYPE-NO.

BLOWS/
6-INCHES

STD. PEN.
RESISTANCE

(N)

MOISTURE
CONTENT

(%)

DRY
DENSITY

(PCF)

UNCONF.
COMP. STR.

(PSF)

SOIL SAMPLE DATA

SO
IL

 /
 P

A
V

EM
EN

T
 B

O
R

IN
G

  
1

9
3

2
6

8
.G

PJ
  

2
0

1
5

0
1

1
6

 G
2

 C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 D

A
T

A
 T

EM
PL

A
T

E.
G

D
T

  
7

/1
1

/1
9

Soil Boring No.  B-6

SUBSURFACE PROFILE

Figure No. 6

Notes:
* Calibrated Hand Penetrometer

Excavation Backfilling Procedure:
Boring backfilled with auger cuttings

PRO-
FILE

DEPTH
( ft)

5

10

15

20

25

G2 Project No. 193268

Project Name:

Project Location:

Proposed Ypsilanti Township Offices Pond
Improvements
7200 S Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, Michigan

GROUND SURFACE ELEVATION:  745.0  ft ±

Total Depth:
Drilling Date:
Inspector:
Contractor:
Driller:

Drilling Method:
   2-1/4 inch inside diameter hollow-stem augers

20 ft
July 2, 2019

Strata Drilling, Inc.
D. Watkins

ELEV.
( ft)

740.0

735.0

730.0

725.0

720.0

Latitude: 42.212550 Longitude: -83.614102



     Figure No. 7 

   
   
 

GENERAL NOTES TERMINOLOGY 
 
Unless otherwise noted, all terms herein refer to the Standard Definitions presented in ASTM 653. 
 
PARTICLE SIZE 
Boulders  - greater than 12 inches 
Cobbles   - 3 inches to 12 inches 
Gravel - Coarse - 3/4 inches to 3 inches 
 - Fine  - No. 4 to 3/4 inches 
Sand - Coarse - No. 10 to No. 4 
 - Medium - No. 40 to No. 10 
 - Fine  - No. 200 to No. 40 
Silt   - 0.005mm to 0.074mm 
Clay   - Less than 0.005mm 

CLASSIFICATION 
The major soil constituent is the principal noun, i.e. clay, 
silt, sand, gravel.  The second major soil constituent and 
other minor constituents are reported as follows: 
 
Second Major Constituent 
(percent by weight) 

Minor Constituent 
(percent by weight) 

Trace - 1 to 12% Trace - 1 to 12% 
Adjective - 12 to 35% Little - 12 to 23% 
And - over 35% Some - 23 to 33% 

 
COHESIVE SOILS 

If clay content is sufficient so that clay dominates soil properties, clay becomes the principal noun with the other 
major soil constituent as modifier, i.e. sandy clay.  Other minor soil constituents may be included in accordance 
with the classification breakdown for cohesionless soils, i.e. silty clay, trace sand, little gravel. 
 

 
Consistency 

Unconfined Compressive 
Strength (psf) 

 
Approximate Range of (N) 

Very Soft Below 500 0 - 2 
Soft 500 - 1,000 3 - 4 

Medium 1,000 - 2,000 5 - 8 
Stiff 2,000 - 4,000 9 - 15 

Very Stiff 4,000 - 8,000 16 - 30 
Hard 8,000 - 16,000 31 - 50 

Very Hard Over 16,000 Over 50 
 
Consistency of cohesive soils is based upon an evaluation of the observed resistance to deformation under load and 
not upon the Standard Penetration Resistance (N). 

 
COHESIONLESS SOILS 

Density Classification Relative Density % Approximate Range of (N) 
Very Loose 0 - 15 0 - 4 

Loose 16 - 35 5 - 10 
Medium Compact 36 - 65 11 - 30 

Compact 66 - 85 31 - 50 
Very Compact 86 - 100 Over 50 

 
Relative Density of cohesionless soils is based upon the evaluation of the Standard Penetration Resistance (N), 
modified as required for depth effects, sampling effects, etc. 
 

SAMPLE DESIGNATIONS 
AS - Auger Sample – Cuttings directly from auger flight 
BS - Bottle or Bag Samples  
S   - Split Spoon Sample - ASTM D 1586 
LS -  Liner Sample with liner insert 3 inches in length 
ST - Shelby Tube sample - 3 inch diameter unless otherwise noted 
PS - Piston Sample - 3 inch diameter unless otherwise noted 
RC - Rock Core - NX core unless otherwise noted 
 
STANDARD PENETRATION TEST (ASTM D 1586) - A 2.0 inch outside-diameter, 1-3/8 inch inside-diameter split barrel 
sampler is driven into undisturbed soil by means of a 140-pound weight falling freely through a vertical distance of 
30 inches.  The sampler is normally driven three successive 6-inch increments.  The total number of blows required 
for the final 12 inches of penetration is the Standard Penetration Resistance (N). 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Jimmie Wilson Jr 

To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 

Belinda Kingsley, Community Compliance Director 
 
Re: Request to confirm authorization for Circuit Court litigation to abate public nuisances 

located at 1769 Cadillac and 1781 Cadillac; funded in account 101-729-801.023. 
 
Date:  June 20, 2023 
 
 
The Township has investigated a multitude of complaints at 1769 Cadillac and 1781 Cadillac, for which 
authorization to engage Circuit Court is now requested. 
 
1769 Cadillac and 1781 Cadillac 
 

 
 
The properties located at 1781 (house) and 1769 (commercial building) Cadillac are owned by 
Jacob Lebo, through two different LLC entities, 1781 Cadillac Ave Holding LLC and 1781 Cadillac 
LLC.  This area is zoned I-C – Industrial-Commercial.  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Jimmie Wilson Jr 

 
The adjoining properties have been used for various unapproved uses since the current owner 
(Lebo) purchased the properties on 5/1/19.  Based on complaints from neighbors along with 
various ordinance inspections, we are aware that the house is being occupied without a valid 
rental certificate.  There is evidence that the commercial building is likely being used for a 
marijuana grow facility and a vehicle repair facility.   
 
There is a history of using 1781 Cadillac, the house, as an unregistered rental since January 
2021.  The Township began performing the most recent rental inspections in June 2022, but 
stopped when Lebo claimed that instead of making the necessary repairs the house would 
remain vacant.  Lebo has not filed a completed vacant structure registration as requested since 
November 2022.  The Township is aware that there are tenants in the house, and the property 
is being rented without a valid rental certificate.  Without an inspection, we are unable to 
protect the health and safety of the tenants. 
 
The commercial building, at 1769 Cadillac, has a history of being used as a marijuana grow 
facility under the previous owner, and was outfitted with the necessary HVAC and electrical 
equipment.  It appears that the unapproved use has continued. The complaints received by the 
Township since the new owner, Lebo, took ownership include the stench of marijuana, removal 
of marijuana plants prior to our scheduled inspections, plants being returned after inspections, 
auto work being performed inside and outside of the building, storage of vehicles and campers, 
a large amount of traffic at all hours of the day and night, vehicles being towed to the site by 
tow trucks, etc.  A neighbor has made contact with an individual stating that he rents a portion 
of the building for the purpose of performing auto repairs, and he is frequently at the property. 
 
Through our inspections and what has been noted during unannounced site visits and drive-
byes we have witnessed evidence of a marijuana grow operation, auto repairs and general use 
of two structures that the owner claims are vacant.  Essentially this property owner has been 
using the properties for unapproved purposes, with no indication to comply despite repeated 
requests from the Township. 
 
 Approval by the Board of Trustees to file appropriate litigation is being requested.  Thank you 
for your consideration and your continued support for our public nuisance abatement efforts. 
  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Jimmie Wilson Jr 

Photos taken during a scheduled inspection on 2/6/23.

 
 

 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Jimmie Wilson Jr 

 
 

 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Jimmie Wilson Jr 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Photo taken on 4/17/23 

 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Jimmie Wilson Jr 

To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Belinda Kingsley, Community Compliance Director 
 
Re: Request to confirm authorization for Circuit Court litigation to abate a public nuisance 

by padlocking a property identified as 1440 Foley Avenue; funded in account 101-729-
801.023. 

 
Date:  June 20, 2023 
 
 
The Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Department Community Action Team (CAT) has investigated a public 
nuisance at 1440 Foley Ave for which administration authorization was previously granted to engage 
legal services to abate said nuisance by padlocking.  Confirmation of that authorization is now 
requested. 
 
1440 Foley Avenue 

 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Jimmie Wilson Jr 

 
 

The property identified as 1440 Foley Ave is located east of S Harris Rd and south of Village Ln (Village 
Grove Apartments), in an R-5 One-Family Residential zone known as the Sugarbrook Subdivision.  The 
property is owned by Jannette Jones, with a last known address of Detroit, MI.  
 
A search warrant was executed on May 5, 2023, by CAT that resulted in the seizure of a significant 
amount of narcotics, two stolen firearms and supplies used in an illegal narcotics manufacture, sale and 
distribution operation.  The two residents of the house, believed to be conducting the illegal narcotic 
business, Ronald Henderson and Heather List, were arrested at the time the search warrant was 
executed.   
 
The Township expects all landlords to not only carefully screen prospective tenants, but also to monitor 
their property on a reasonably regular basis during the lease period, to prevent the kind of activity being 
conducted at 1440 Foley Ave. 
 
The civil lawsuit in this case has been filed against the property owner Jannette Jones, residents Ronald 
Henderson and Heather List, and Bank of America N.A that holds the mortgage on the property.  A Show 
Cause Hearing is scheduled for June 29, 2023. 
 
There is ample evidence to support the fact that the property was being used as a narcotics distribution 
center, involving the presence of stolen firearms.  The Township is seeking a Court Order to padlock the 
property for one year, and requests authorization from the Board of Trustees to continue litigation. 
 
Thank you for your consideration and your continued support for our public nuisance abatement efforts. 
 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 
 
Date:   June 16, 2023 
 
RE:     Washtenaw County Road Commission (WCRC) 2023 Agreement in the amount of 

$2,017,271.08 from account 213-446-982.000, contingent on budget amendment 
 
Attached for the Board’s consideration is the 2023 Road Agreement with the Washtenaw County 
Road Commission.  
 
The Road Commission and OHM worked together to recommend these roads. A presentation 
will be given by Matt Parks from OHM and these are not ARPA funded roads.  
 
 
 









 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 
            Elizabeth Cuellar, Deputy Supervisor 
 
Date:   June 14, 2023 
 
RE:     Request to authorize the agreement with the Washtenaw County Road Commission 

(WCRC) for the installation of three (3) speed bumps on Wiard Road for $33,790 
from account 101-446-982.000, contingent on budget amendment  

 
The Supervisor’s Office is requesting for the board to authorize an agreement with the 
Washtenaw County Road Commission to install three speed bumps on Wiard Road between 
Michigan Avenue and Holmes Road. 
 
On May 19, 2023, the WCRC received and submitted to the Township petition signatures from 
residents of Wiard Road. Per WCRC rules, at least 51% must sign the petition to move forward. 
On May 23, 2023, Deputy Assessor Brian McCleery verified the signatures.  
 
On June 2, 2023, the WCRC sent an agreement, cost estimate, and proposed layout, attached.  
 
Thank you for your consideration.  
 









 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 
            Elizabeth Cuellar, Deputy Supervisor 
 
Date:   June 14, 2023 
 
RE:     Request to authorize agreement with Washtenaw County Road Commission 

(WCRC) for the installation of a rectangular rapid flashing beacon (RRFB) on 
Huron River Drive at Lake Crest Drive in the amount of $26,394.20 from account 
101-446-982.000, contingent on budget amendment  

 
We are requesting for the board to authorize an agreement with the Washtenaw County Road 
Commission to install a rectangular rapid flashing beacon to improve the pedestrian crosswalk 
crossing Huron River Drive at Lake Crest Drive. There were requests from residents for 
pedestrian improvements to this busy area. 
 
The cost is $26,394.20, to be paid from line 101-446-982.000, contingent on budget amendment. 
 
Attached please find an agreement for the RRFB, cost estimations, and a Traffic Control Device 
Agreement for the maintenance of the device. 
 
Thank you for your consideration.  
 









 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 
 
Date:   June 15, 2023 
 
RE:     Request to approve contract with DTE Energy for the conversion of 1,122 

streetlights to LED in the amount of $576,838.06 budgeted in line 282-901-981.140 
(ARPA Funds) 

 
On May 23, 2023, Resolution 2023-07 approved and allocated ARPA funds for this street light 
conversion project.   
 
The breakdown of 1,122 streetlights to LED is as follows: 
 
Underground (UG) – DTE Owned and Maintained Street Lights Fed by Underground Cable: 

 700 - 100 watt High Pressure Sodium to 39 watt LED Granville Acorn Luminaires  
 421 - 100 watt High Pressure Sodium to 64w LED Colonial Luminaires  

 
Overhead (OH) – DTE Owned and Maintained Street Lights Fed by Overhead Wire: 

 1 - 250 watt High Pressure Sodium to 136 watt LED Roadway Luminaire 
 
The annual savings to our residents are estimated to be $98,847.71. Please see agreement, budget 
letter, and map from DTE.  
 
Thank you for your consideration.  
 



















 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  John Hines, Recreation Director 
 
Date:  June 15th, 2023 
 
RE: Request Authorization to approve Stantec Consulting to provide professional 

services related to the preliminary engineering and conceptual design for the 
Ypsilanti Township ARPA Green Oaks Golf Course Bathroom 
Improvements. 

 
At the May 23,2023 special Board Meeting, the BOT approved resolution 2023-07, which 
designated ARPA funds to various needed projects for the township.  
 
The Recreation Department is looking for authorization to approve Stantec to provide 
professional services related to the Phase 1: preliminary engineering and conceptual design for 
Project #9: Bathroom facilities at Green Oaks Golf Course for the amount of $9,000, which is 
budgeted in   GL#282-901-981.100  
 
Stantec’s Concept Report (Phase I) proposal consists of: 
A. The A/E will meet with Township staff to confirm project scope and requirements.  
 
B. Review applicable code and ADA requirements, field verify existing conditions and review 
available record drawings, reports, and studies.  
 
C. Conduct non-destructive analysis of existing sanitary system design and capacities based on  
connected plumbing fixtures to determine potential recommendations. Destructive testing, digital  
camera investigations and other invasive investigative analysis is not provided or anticipated. 
 
D. Provide concept report for review and approval. 
 
This phase is estimated to be four weeks.  Future phases and proposals will be brought to the 
Board for approval.   
 
This project was submitted by recreation and golf staff due to the age of the bathroom fixtures, 
piping and amount of issues that piping has caused in recent years.   In addition to roofing 
concerns, staff have had to schedule service and close the restrooms multiple times.   
 
John Hines 



Stantec Consulting Michigan Inc. 
1168 Oak Valley Drive, Suite 100, Ann Arbor MI  48108-9200 

 

 
  

 

June 15, 2023 

File: 207585033 

Attention: Mr. John Hines, CPRP 
Ypsilanti Township Recreation Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti  
7200 South Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Dear Director Hines, 

Reference: Architectural and Engineering Design Services for the Community Center Golf Course Bathroom 
Renovations Project 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, Michigan 

As requested, Stantec Consulting Michigan Inc. (Stantec) is pleased to submit this proposal for professional 
Architectural and Engineering (A/E) Design Services for the Community Center Golf Course Bathroom 
Renovations Project.  It is our understanding these improvements will consist of renovations to two (2) 
restroom buildings with a total of four (4) restrooms to update the functionality of the restrooms by installing 
new fixtures, wall, and floor finishes, and ensuring the spaces comply with current ADA standards. Parts of 
the domestic plumbing distribution piping are nearing the end of their useful life and renovations will provide 
an opportunity to replace piping along with this project, including: 

• New interior wall and floor finishes, including painting, ceramic tile, and related modifications to 
existing walls and ceilings; 

• New plumbing fixtures, including new vanities, faucets, toilets, urinals;  
• New toilet accessories; 
• New light fixtures; 
• Related modifications to existing wiring and light fixture controls; 
• Investigate and incorporate improvements to existing sanitary sewer system. 

o It is understood that there are no known issues with water pressure, but there have been issues 
with sanitary lines.  

• Roof replacement  
• Structural condition of the existing walls and roof is unknown at this time, but will be observed as 

part of concept design.  

SCOPE OF WORK REQUESTED 
Stantec proposes to perform the following tasks as part of these services: 

1. Concept Report (Phase I)  
 
A. The A/E will meet with Township staff to confirm project scope and requirements.  
B. Review applicable code and ADA requirements, field verify existing conditions and review available 

record drawings, reports, and studies.  



June 15, 2023 

Mr. John Hines, CPRP 

Page 2 of 4  

Reference: Community Center Golf Course Bathroom Renovations Project 

 
 

 

C. Conduct non-destructive analysis of existing sanitary system design and capacities based on 
connected plumbing fixtures to determine potential recommendations. Destructive testing, digital 
camera investigations and other invasive investigative analysis is not provided or anticipated.   

D. Provide concept report for review and approval.  
 
This phase is estimated to be four weeks.  
 

2. Design Development (Phase II) 

A. Stantec proposes incorporating Design Development tasks into the Contract Document phase.  
 

3. Contract Documents (Phase III) 

A. After final approval of the final design package from Phase I by the Township, as well as the 
appropriate municipal commissions and other governing bodies, the A/E will create detailed 
construction and specification documents for bidding purposes. 

B. Provide finishes and samples identifying materials to be incorporated into the project and meet with 
Township staff to present drawings and finish selections for approval.   

C. Determine phasing requirements to minimize disruption to existing spaces and allow building to be 
occupied throughout construction. 

D. The final contract documents shall include as a minimum: Demolition Plans, Life Safety/Code Plan, 
Floor Plan(s), Reflected Ceiling Plans, Interior Elevations, Details, Plumbing Plan(s) and Isometrics, 
Door / Window / Room Finish / Mechanical / Plumbing / Electrical schedules and diagrams, HVAC 
Plans, Power Plans, Lighting Plans, Lighting Controls Requirements, and the Project Manual 
including specifications in the CSI division format. 

E. Plan Approvals - The A/E is responsible for submitting for plan reviews to the Township including, 
but not limited to: Building, Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing. Any Fire Protection and/or Fire 
Alarm design and submittals are to be submitted by the Licensed Contractor performing the work. 
The Township is waiving plan review fees for this project.  

This phase is estimated to be six weeks.  

4. Bidding and Contract Award (Phase IV) 

A. The A/E will assist the Township in bidding the project to prospective prime contractors.  
B. Services will include assisting the Township with the distribution of plans and specifications, 

assisting with sub-contractor pre-bid meetings, assisting with formulating responses to prospective 
bidders’ questions, issuing addendums (if necessary), attendance at the bid opening, providing the 
Township with a recommendation for prime contract awards. 

This phase is estimated to be four to six weeks.  

  



June 15, 2023 

Mr. John Hines, CPRP 

Page 3 of 4  

Reference: Community Center Golf Course Bathroom Renovations Project 

 
 

 

5. Contract Administration, Project Closeout, and Warranty (Phase V) 

A. The A/E shall be a representative of and shall advise and consult with the Township during 
construction until the final payment to prime contractors is due and during the correction period 
described in the Contract Documents. 

B. Construction Related Services - The A/E will provide on the Townships behalf, contract 
administration services. Services anticipated to be provided consist of attending Observation Site 
Visits at the job site to evaluate job progress.  The number of Observation Visits is assumed to be 
two (2). Attend OAC meetings as established by the Contractor and Owner to review the 
construction schedule and outstanding items. The number of OAC meetings is assumed not to 
exceed 12 virtual meetings. Review of submittals and shop drawings, processing change orders 
and Requests for Information, processing certificates for payment to prime contractors, verifying 
Substantial and Final Completion, developing punch list (one (1) assumed) and confirm completion 
of each item with coordination with the Contractor services are anticipated. Review of warranty and 
project closeout documentation as provided by the Contractor anticipated. An As-Constructed set 
incorporating design changes during the construction phase as well as any Contractor provided 
markups is anticipated to be provided.  

This phase is estimated to be 12 weeks. 

UNDERSTANDINGS & ASSUMPTIONS 
This proposal was developed under the following understandings and assumptions: 

• Existing drawings to be provided. 
• Excludes any permit fees, geotechnical services or any work not listed above. 
• Conceptual Total Project costs are unknown.  
• Assumes that existing mechanical, plumbing and electrical infrastructure is adequate to 

support the anticipated scope. Architectural and Engineering services are provided at the 
building.  Any work more than 5’ away from an exterior wall will require additional civil scope. 

• Fire Protection scope in not anticipated.  

SCHEDULE 
We propose to complete the design, engineering, and permit application package per the weeks noted 
above after authorization.  Authorization will be required prior to beginning each phase.  

BUDGET 
We recommend establishing a not-to-exceed budget to complete the Task 1:  Concept Report (Phase I) 
Architectural and Engineering Scope of Work listed above for $9,000.00. 

After completion of Concept Report (Phase 1) Stantec will provide a proposal to complete the remaining 
Phases of work based on the agreed upon scope. 



June 15, 2023 

Mr. John Hines, CPRP 

Page 4 of 4  

Reference: Community Center Golf Course Bathroom Renovations Project 

 
 

 

If the above proposal meets your approval, please sign this proposal letter and return a copy to our office. 
All work will be completed under the existing General Services Agreement between Ypsilanti Charter 
Township and Stantec. We sincerely appreciate the opportunity to continue to work with the Township and 
look forward to assisting you with these important improvements. If you should have any questions, please 
feel free to contact us. 

Regards, 

Stantec Consulting Michigan Inc. 

 
 

 
Lindsay Woods  AIA, NCARB, LEED® Green Associate 
Project Manager 
Phone: 248-376-7972  
Lindsay.Woods@stantec.com 

  
 

Mark D. Pascoe  PE, LEED® AP, ENV SP 
Principal 
Phone: 734-214-1865  
Mark.Pascoe@stantec.com 

 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED AND ACCEPTED:  
 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

Brenda Stumbo 
Supervisor  
 
 , 2023 

 

Heather Jarrell Roe 
Clerk  
 
 , 2023 

 

 
ws v:\2075\promotion\2075800\25 - charter township of ypsilanti\pro_hines_ypsi_comm_ctr_golfrr_reno_20230615.docx 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  John Hines, Interim Residential Services Director 
 
Date:  June 15th, 2023 
 
RE: Request Authorization to approve Stantec Consulting to provide professional 

services related to the preliminary engineering and conceptual design for the 
Ypsilanti Township Community Center Water Damage Renovation 

 
The Recreation Department is looking for authorization to approve Stantec Consulting to provide 
professional services related to the Phase 1:  Concept Report for the Community Center 200 
Hallway and Golf Office Renovation for the amount of $11,000, which is budgeted line  
#213-901-976.008.  
 
Stantec’s Concept Report (Phase I) proposal consists of: 
A. The A/E will meet with Township staff to confirm project scope and requirements.  
 
B. Review applicable code and ADA requirements, field verify existing conditions and review 
available record drawings, reports, and studies.  
 
C. Conduct non-destructive analysis of existing sanitary system design to determine potential  
recommendations. Destructive testing, digital camera investigations and other invasive 
investigative analysis is not provided or anticipated 
 
D. Provide conceptual report for review and approval. 
 
This phase is estimated to be four weeks.  Future phases and proposals will be brought to the 
Board for approval.   
 
This project is a continuation of the work that needs to be completed at the Community Center 
from the water damage sustained in December 2022.  Stantec Consulting was approved at the 
June 6th BOT meeting to oversee the design of the Community Center restroom project.  The 
renovation work will overlap with the restroom project due to the sanitary line issues that need to 
be addressed in the 200 hallway.  This renovation work will focus on the golf shop office, 
Rooms 201, 202 and 204.  
 
John Hines 
 



Stantec Consulting Michigan Inc. 
1168 Oak Valley Drive, Suite 100, Ann Arbor MI  48108-9200 

 

 
  

 

June 15, 2023 

File: 207585033 

Attention: Mr. John Hines, CPRP 
Ypsilanti Township Recreation Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti  
7200 South Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Dear Director Hines, 

Reference: Architectural and Engineering Design Services for the Community Center Hallway 200 and Adjacent Golf 
Office Renovations Project 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, Michigan 

As requested, Stantec Consulting Michigan Inc. (Stantec) is pleased to submit this proposal for professional 
Architectural and Engineering (A/E) Design Services for the Community Center Hallway 200 and Adjacent 
Golf Offices Renovations Project.  It is our understanding these improvements will consist of renovations to 
Hallway 200 and the adjacent golf office and retail rooms to address work related to an existing plumbing 
piping line which has caused past damage to the subfloor and floor.  Piping, subfloor and floor finishes for 
the hallway and offices are anticipated to be part of the scope of work.  The piping in this area connects to 
restrooms that are being proposed to be updated in a separate project. Parts of the water distribution piping 
are nearing the end of their useful life and renovations will provide an opportunity to replace piping along 
with this project on the inside of the building. Wall and full ceiling/lighting scope is not anticipated as part of 
the project. Two packages are expected to be issued for bidding.  

SCOPE OF WORK REQUESTED 
Stantec proposes to perform the following tasks as part of these services: 

1. Concept Report (Phase I)  
 
A. The A/E will meet with Township staff to confirm project scope and requirements.  
B. Review applicable code and ADA requirements, field verify existing conditions and review available 

record drawings, reports, and studies.  
C. Conduct non-destructive analysis of existing sanitary system design to determine potential 

recommendations. Destructive testing, digital camera investigations and other invasive investigative 
analysis is not provided or anticipated.   

D. Provide conceptual report for review and approval.  
 
This phase is estimated to be four weeks.  
 

2. Design Development (Phase II) 

A. Stantec proposes incorporating Design Development tasks into the Contract Document phase.  
 
 
 
 



June 15, 2023 

Mr. John Hines, CPRP 

Page 2 of 4  

Reference: Community Center Hallway 200 and Adjacent Golf Office Renovations Project 

 
 

 

3. Contract Documents (Phase III) 

A. After final approval of the final design package from Phase I by the Township, as well as the 
appropriate municipal commissions and other governing bodies, the A/E will create detailed 
construction and specification documents for bidding purposes. 

B. Provide finishes and samples identifying materials to be incorporated into the project and meet with 
Township staff to present drawings and finish selections for approval.   

C. Determine phasing requirements to minimize disruption to existing spaces and allow building to be 
occupied throughout construction. 

D. The final contract documents shall include as a minimum: Demolition Plans, Life Safety/Code Plan, 
Floor Plan(s), Details, Plumbing Plan(s) and Isometrics, Room Finish / Mechanical / Plumbing / 
Electrical schedules and diagrams, and the Project Manual including specifications in the CSI 
division format. 

E. Plan Approvals - The A/E is responsible for submitting for plan reviews to the Township including, 
but not limited to: Building, Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing. Any Fire Protection and/or Fire 
Alarm design and submittals are to be submitted by the Licensed Contractor performing the work. 
The Township is waiving plan review fees for this project.  

This phase is estimated to be six weeks.  

4. Bidding and Contract Award (Phase IV) 

A. The A/E will assist the Township in bidding the project to prospective prime contractors.  
B. Services will include assisting the Township with the distribution of plans and specifications, 

assisting with sub-contractor pre-bid meetings, assisting with formulating responses to prospective 
bidders’ questions, issuing addendums (if necessary), attendance at the bid opening, providing the 
Township with a recommendation for prime contract awards. 

This phase is estimated to be four to six weeks.  

5. Contract Administration, Project Closeout, and Warranty (Phase V) 

A. The A/E shall be a representative of and shall advise and consult with the Township during 
construction until the final payment to prime contractors is due and during the correction period 
described in the Contract Documents. 

B. Construction Related Services - The A/E will provide on the Townships behalf, contract 
administration services. Services anticipated to be provided consist of attending Observation Site 
Visits at the job site to evaluate job progress.  The number of Observation Visits is assumed to be 
two (2). Attend OAC meetings as established by the Contractor and Owner to review the 
construction schedule and outstanding items. The number of OAC meetings is assumed not to 
exceed 12 virtual meetings. Review of submittals and shop drawings, processing change orders 
and Requests for Information, processing certificates for payment to prime contractors, verifying 
Substantial and Final Completion, developing punch list (one (1) assumed) and confirm completion 
of each item with coordination with the Contractor services are anticipated. Review of warranty and 
project closeout documentation as provided by the Contractor anticipated. An As-Constructed set 
incorporating design changes during the construction phase as well as any Contractor provided 
markups is anticipated to be provided.  

This phase is estimated to be 12 weeks. 



June 15, 2023 

Mr. John Hines, CPRP 

Page 3 of 4  

Reference: Community Center Hallway 200 and Adjacent Golf Office Renovations Project 

 
 

 

UNDERSTANDINGS & ASSUMPTIONS 
This proposal was developed under the following understandings and assumptions: 

• Existing drawings to be provided. 
• Excludes any permit fees, geotechnical services or any work not listed above. 
• Conceptual Total Project costs are unknown. 
• Assumes that existing mechanical, plumbing and electrical infrastructure is adequate to 

support the anticipated scope. Architectural and Engineering services are provided at the 
building. Any work more than 5’ away from an exterior wall will require additional civil scope. 

• Fire Protection scope is not anticipated.  

SCHEDULE 
We propose to complete the design, engineering, and permit application package per the weeks noted 
above after authorization.  Authorization will be required prior to beginning each phase.  

BUDGET 
We recommend establishing a not-to-exceed budget to complete the Task 1:  Concept Report (Phase I) 
Architectural and Engineering Scope of Work listed above for $11,000.00.    

After completion of Concept Report (Phase 1) Stantec will provide a proposal to complete the remaining 
Phases of work based on the agreed upon scope.  

If the above proposal meets your approval, please sign this proposal letter and return a copy to our office. 
All work will be completed under the existing General Services Agreement between Ypsilanti Charter 
Township and Stantec. We sincerely appreciate the opportunity to continue to work with the Township and 
look forward to assisting you with these important improvements. If you should have any questions, please 
feel free to contact us. 

Regards, 

Stantec Consulting Michigan Inc. 

 
 

 
Lindsay Woods  AIA, NCARB, LEED® Green Associate 
Project Manager 
Phone: 248-376-7972  
Lindsay.Woods@stantec.com 

  
 

Mark D. Pascoe  PE, LEED® AP, ENV SP 
Principal 
Phone: 734-214-1865  
Mark.Pascoe@stantec.com 

 
  



June 15, 2023 

Mr. John Hines, CPRP 

Page 4 of 4  

Reference: Community Center Hallway 200 and Adjacent Golf Office Renovations Project 

 
 

 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND ACCEPTED:  
 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

Brenda Stumbo 
Supervisor  
 
 , 2023 

 

Heather Jarrell Roe 
Clerk  
 
 , 2023 

 

 
ws v:\2075\promotion\2075800\25 - charter township of ypsilanti\pro_hines_ypsi_comm_ctr_hallgolf_reno_20230615.docx 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP  
OF YPSILANTI 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-08 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 
 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Merritt Road between 
Munger and Stoney Creek for runners to cross Merritt Road at Wiard’s 
Orchard to enter Rolling Hills on Friday, July 28, 2023 from 6:30pm to 
7:15pm for the Oberun 5K to benefit Huron Waterloo Pathways (Border to 
Border Trail). 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Road Commission. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Randal Step, owner R.F. 
Events be the authorized official designee in this instance, when 
application is made to the Washtenaw County Road Commission for this 
temporary road closure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



��������	
������	�������������������	� �!��
�"���#	$%&&'#���#�	�()(*+���'���	�#�'
����,	��$
-.���/ 01�/23.�045671.��8219.7:��;<����2�=�>�/4�?��11.2;�@770.�/�.�2�ABACD��E�F���GHE�()(*�G(I*J�KF�G������L��	�"%MDN�OI�DL#�����#'��#$#	���
���������#
������L���$�	#P��#�	��Q��	����'#�R�'#	R�����&�	������L��	����	'�����������$	#P���L����	
���	
�R	�,��L����	��	��#������� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �



���������	
����
���������������
�������������������� !��"�#$��"����!%%����&�'"(�)*��!'�+,�$'�-!.�������&�'"�����*��'��*.��"$��/$'�"��%$���"��'�01+23334���'/��$#�"���5$�/���"$�5$�/�������.6�7������.$$8�'9�"$�9�"�:!"�$'�"���.��"�#$��5$��/��::�$&�.!:�;$%�'9�5$��/�<��"�'9=���������$!��+"��>����/$�'9�"�����&�'"��'/���&��'�&��������!��=�7��?�..�*���!*%�""�'9�$!��:��%�"��::.�;�"�$'�"$�7����@$�'/�"��>�?�..�'��/�A"$?'�*$��/��::�$&�.=��BCDEFG�HIDJKE�LM�NOFDG�PJQROST�UKVS�WXT�WYWZ�[FOJF\PQEQ]̂�_�̀OJaQEbG�cQOJRd]�HJêOJR�NQ]FOEeD]G�La�Bf̀DeFDR�g�hi�̀OJFQeQ̀OEF]G�WTYYY�jÒG�kFFOêDRT�F̂D�hEVS�JhOR�lD�bh�hE�Q]�jDJJQFF�F̂Q]�Q]�hEVS�Fh�eJh]]�iJhm�cQOJRd]�HJêOJR�Fh�nhVVQoQVV]p



�������������	
��������������������������	�������������������	��������	�� 	!��"#��#��
�����	��$������� ���������������	���	���	��������	
��������	�%���	�����������
��������������������&������� ����	�������'�������������	
(��������)���) 	���*������������������!�)�����������������&��	�
	��+���,�� ��������&-&�.*����,�	������������	�
���)��������������*����/01231�014�51�6789�9:24�84:1;�<7=8;524<87�>8?�711@A�B>8?�=8;�4?;7<7C�4:<3�2;8?7@�48�DEFE�=8;�4:<3�1G174A�B:276�>8?H�I27@>��I27@>�J14=<10@FK�LG1743MNOO�P2Q6387�F@R77�R;S8;T�IU�VWXOY����





CHARTER TOWNSHIP  
OF YPSILANTI 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-09 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 

 
 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Merritt Road between 
Munger and Stoney Creek for runners to cross Merritt Road at Wiard’s 
Orchard on Saturday, October 7, 2023 from 8:30am to 11:00am for the Run 
Scream Run 5K, 10K and Kid’s Mile to benefit Washtenaw Promise.  

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Road Commission. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Randal Step, owner R.F. 
Events be the authorized official designee in this instance, when 
application is made to the Washtenaw County Road Commission for this 
temporary road closure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



������ ��	
��
���������� �������� ��������  ��!� "��#������� $%$&�'(��)����*����� '�+�, '�+�,����-�� .��/��� 0����� )+�* -������ �.��*1�2324�56���78�
9�56��:�5;
��<8;		��=�>??��7
�;� �1@ABC%AB��+D+�#�ECF&DG�AHI�"��J��/�K�0�/������K�'�*�J�LMNOPQRS�OTUV�WXYUZ�[\U]ÛY_Ẁ�a\[X�[b_VÙW�[a�_TW�[\]ŶUcY_U[̂d�e[�̂[_�fZUfg�ZÛh�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�h�hij�kjlm�n�op�mqp�rsstjuv�wsqxmqy�zs�musz{pq�vqpmz�p|puz}�~p�uv�z{jl�zs��s��pmqr���{s�juv��s���mu�vpz�m��qs|mr�wsq��sz{�p|puzl�mz�z{p�op�mqp�rsstjuv�zs�vpz���z�su�z{p�rjlz�wsq��smqy�m��qs|mr�ju�mu����s�juv��pp�uv���{jl�jl�s�q���z{��pmq�ysjuv�z{jl�p|puz�muy�p|pq�z{juv�{ml�mrxm�l�xsqtpy�s�z�vqpmz}�op�xjrr��p�l���j�uv�s�q��pq�jz�m��rj�m�su�zs�oml{��s�lssu�muy�z{p��xjrr�uppy��zsxu��smqy�m��qs|mr������������������������������������������� ��¡¢���£��¤¥¤¦������§̈©�©ª«�¬���®©�̄��°©���±ª� ��«�����©ª�����ª��²®§³¥®��́©�±ª�µ©¶��·³�µ©¶��̧©¶¶��¡����¡ªª�©��¡��¡¶¶©�̄�¹©¶¶ªº��»������¼�¡½���¾�©���ª��³�²¥¥�µ���¿À��«�����«��¡�¶���¡���̧��̄¡�¡��©ª�µ���©À������«©ª�©ª�¡�¶���¡���¡ªª�½�¡��°©���±ª� ��«�����¡��¡¶¶©�̄�¹©¶¶ªÁ�Â©���̈������²®§³¥®�̧©¶¶�ª������¡̄��«������Ã�¦¥���Ä�ª��������ª�����¢���»������©���¡¶¶©�̄�¹©¶¶ª�ª«¡��¶���Å����«��Á��¿¶¶�����ª�Â«�������̧©¶¶�¢���Ä��¶¡��¶��«��©���°�ª«����̧�Æ�¡�©ª�Á���Â«����̧©¶¶�¢���¡��ª�����ª«�¶ª�����«���¡�����¡ªª©�̄��¡��ª®����Ç���¡�«¡¶����¾¶�������ª���¡ªªÁ�Â«����̧©¶¶��¶ª¡�¢��È������ª�¡���¡��É���¡ªª©�̄�ª©̄�ª��¡�̧������«©�¶�ª�¢�½¡����«���̄����¡��«��������ªÁ������¶������¡̧ ����¡½��Á̈Á������ª���ª��«��¡Ç�©�¶���ª©̄����½¡���«©ª�������Êrpmlp�rpz��p�tusx�x{mz�sz{pq�juwsq�m�su��s��uppy���{mut��s��wsq�z�qujuv�z{jl�mqs�uy�zs�o�Ë��wsq�z{jl�p|puz���{mut��s�}�

Ì����,�Í��#����Ì�Î*���,Ï�#�J����D��*ÐÌÑ����)���#����Ì�Î�����#����Ï,��/�D��ÒÐ





CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 9

June 20, 2023 

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $836,924.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $14,216.00

Net Revenues $14,216.00

Expenditures: Health Care 101-257-719.000 $8,791.00
Dental 101-257-719.015 $425.00
Health Care Deduction 101-257-719.020 $5,000.00

Net Expenditures $14,216.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $26,395.00

Net Revenues $26,395.00

Expenditures: Highway & St Construction 101-446-982.000 $26,395.00

Net Expenditures $26,395.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $33,790.00

Net Revenues $33,790.00

Expenditures: Highway & St Construction 101-446-982.000 $33,790.00

Net Expenditures $33,790.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $205,251.00

Net Revenues $205,251.00

Expenditures: Blight Removal - Gault Village 101-729-806.091 $205,251.00

Net Expenditures $205,251.00

Request to increase the budget for installation of a pedestrian cross walk at Huron River Dr @ Lake Crest Dr. This 
will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase the budget for health care benefits for new employee to Assessing Department. The former 
employee had health care buyout. This will be funded by an appropriation for prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase the budget for a change order increase due to additional asbestos found during demolition of 
the structure located at Gault Village. Homrich was awarded the base bid of $587,000 on April 4, 2023. This will be 
funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase the budget for installation of speed humps on Wiard Road from Michigan Avenue to Holmes 
Road. This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

1 of 3



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 9

June 20, 2023 

Expenditures: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $557,272.00

Net Revenues $557,272.00

Expenditures: Transfer To BSRII Fund 213 101-999-995.213 $557,272.00

Net Expenditures $557,272.00

206 - FIRE FUND Total Increase $20,000.00

Revenues: Interest 206-000-699.999 $20,000.00

Net Revenues $20,000.00

Expenditures: Professional Services 206-269-801.000 $20,000.00

Net Expenditures $20,000.00

213 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, REC, ROADS GENERAL FUND (BSRII) Total Increase $564,672.00

Revenues: Interest 213-000-665.000 $7,400.00

Net Revenues $7,400.00

Expenditures: Professional Services 213-753-801.000 $7,400.00

Net Expenditures $7,400.00

Revenues: Transfer In: General Fund 213-000-699.101 $557,272.00

Net Revenues $557,272.00

Expenditures: Highways  & ST-Road Construction 213-446-982.000 $557,272.00

Net Expenditures $557,272.00

Request to increase budget for additional scope of work to be preformed by OHM engineering for the Township 
wide road survey. This will be funded by a budget increase to the interest earned. 

Request to increase budget in the Fire Civil Service department for the cost related to hiring a new Fire Chief 
including testing, backgrounds, psychological, physicals and other related expenses. This will be funded by a 
budget increase to the interest earned. 

Request a budget increase to transfer funds to the to BSRII Fund for additional road improvement.  This will be 
funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance.

Request to increase the budget for road improvements. This will be funded by a transfer in of funds from the 
General Fund.

2 of 3



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 9

June 20, 2023 

597 - COMPOST FUND Total Increase $6,402.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 597-000-699.999 $6,402.00

Net Revenues $6,402.00

Expenditures: Salaries - Pay out 597-590-708.004 $5,947.00
FICA/Medicare 597-590-715.000 $455.00

Net Expenditures $6,402.00

Request to increase the budget for PTO payout at 75%.  This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund 
balance. 

3 of 3



Motion to Amend the 2023 Budget (#9)  
 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $836,924 to $14,597,474 and approve 
the department line item changes as outlined. 

 
Move to increase the Fire Fund budget by $20,000 to $4,828,882 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 
 

Move to increase the Bike, Sidewalk, Rec, Roads General (BSRII) Fund budget by 
$564,672 to $4,850,975 and approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 
Move to increase the Compost Fund budget by $6,402 to $1,151,196 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 
 
 
 

 



 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  John Hines, Recreation Director 
 
Date:  June 14th, 2023 
 
RE: Request Authorization to award the bid and approve the purchase of three 

(3) new Ford F-250 trucks for $154,350 from the Feldman Automotive Group 
budgeted in line #661-268-985.000  

 
The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to award and approve the 
purchase of three (3) new Parks and Grounds F 250 Plow Trucks in the amount of $154,350 
budgeted in line GL #661-268-985.000 
 
Due to frequent use and age of trucks 67,68, 70 and 71, it was requested of RSD to bid out four 
(4) new vehicles.  On May 18, 2023, the Board of Trustees approved going out to bid for the new 
vehicles.  Bids were opened at 10:00a.m. on Thursday, June 1, 2023.  One (1) bid was received.   
 
Due to the higher anticipated price of the bid, the Residential Services Department is requesting 
to purchase three (3) new vehicles at this time instead of four (4).  This will still provide a great 
deal of relief for staff to integrate the new vehicles into the fleet to  handle the wear and tear that 
occurs throughout the year.  Purchasing the three (3) new vehicles will allow for the department 
to utilize the aging vehicles to be used for the growing department staff and seasonal employees 
that are hired between April-November.  
 
The current lead-time for vehicles is approximately 180 days. If approved, a purchase order will 
be placed immediately encumbering the fund.  
 
 
 
John Hines 
Recreation Director 
jhines@ypsitownship.org 
734-544-3817 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:jhines@ypsitownship.org




 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 



BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 


	June 20, 2023
	Departmental Reports
	Fire May 2023
	Hydro May 2023
	OCS May 2023
	Police Services May 2023

	Work Session Agenda
	2022 Audited Financial Report
	Municipal Services Director
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	May 16, 2023 Work Session Minutes
	May 16, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes
	May 23, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes
	June 6, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes
	Statements and Checks June 6, 2023
	Statements and Checks June 20, 203
	April 2023 Treasurer's Report (Revised)
	May 2023 Treasurer's Report

	Attorney Report
	New Business
	Amend Local Road Asset Management Plan
	Homrich Change Order #1
	Agreement with MDHHS for Fish Analysis
	Hydro Bid Rejection
	OHM for Civic Center Pond
	Public Nuisance Abatement
	Public Nuisance Padlocking
	WCRC Agreement for 2023
	WCRC Wiard Rd Speed Humps
	WCRC RRFB
	DTE for LED Conversion
	Stantec for Green Oaks Bathroom
	Stantec for Community Center Water Damage
	Res. 2023-08, Temporary Road Closure
	Res. 2023-09, Temporary Road Closure
	Budget Amendment #9

	Authorizations and Bids
	Award Snow Plow Bid

	Other Business
	Board Member Updates



